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O SHELL COMPANY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 1p@F THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 19
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Preferred Shares, without par val New York Stock Exchange
American Depositary Shares, (as evidenced by Ameriepositary New York Stock Exchange

Receipts), each representing one Preferred

*The Preferred Shares are non-voting, except ulidéed circumstances.
**Not for trading purposes, but only in connectiwith the listing on the New York Stock ExchangeAofierican Depositary Shares representing those iPeefShares.

Securities registered or to be registered pursieafection 12(g) of the Act:
None
Securities for which there is a reporting obligatfursuant to Section 15(d) of the Act:
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& Yes O No

If this report is an annual or transition report, indicate by check mark if the registrant is not requred to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or 15()lof the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934.

O Yes® No

Note—Checking the box above will not relieve any registint required to file reports pursuant to Section 13or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934dm their
obligations under those Sections.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) fas filed all reports required to be filed by Sectio 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 183luring the
preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period thiathe registrant was required to file such reports) and (2) has been subject to such filing requirenmes for the
past 90 days.

B Yes O No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has gbmitted electronically and posted on its corporatéVeb site, if any, every Interactive Data File regired to be
submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Reguian S-T (8§232.405 of this chapter) during the preading 12 months (or for such shorter period that tie
registrant was required to submit and post such fis).

OYes® No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is darge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or aon-accelerated filer. See definition of “acceletad filer and large
accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Ac(Check one):

Large Accelerated Filer & Accelerated Filerd Non-accelerated Filermd
Indicate by check mark which basis of accounting tl registrant has used to prepare the financial staments included in this filing:

U.S. GAAPO International Financial Reporting Standards as issed Other O
by the International Accounting Standards Board&
If “Other” has been checked in response to the praaus question, indicate by check mark which finaneil statement item the registrant has elected to fioiw:

Item 170 Item 1803
If this is an annual report, indicate by check markwhether the registrant is a shell company (as defed in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).
OYes ® No
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INTRODUCTION

All references in this annual report to (i) “CBDye,” “us,” “our,” “Company” or “Pdo de AcUcar Grplare references to Companhia Brasileira de Distréuiand it
consolidated subsidiaries, unless the context reguitherwise, (ii) the “Brazilian governmerat'e references to the federal government of theragile Republic of Brazil, |
Brazil, and (iii) “preferred shares” and “commonass” are references to our authorized and outstgnshares of non-voting preferred stock, desighate acde:
preferenciai, and common stock, designatedagées ordinariasrespectively, in each case without par value.rélerences to “ADSsére to American depositary sha
each representing one preferred share, withoutgdae. The ADSs are evidenced by American DepgsRaceipts, or “ADRs”, issued by The Bank of Newrk™ellon.

All references herein to theeal,” “reais’ or “R$” are to Brazilian reais, the official cemcy of Brazil. All references to “US$,” “dollargt “U.S. dollars"are to Unite
States dollars.

We have prepared our consolidated financial statésniacluded in this annual report in conformityttwaccounting practices adopted by the Internatifir@ancia
Reporting Standards, or IFRS, issued by the Intermal Accounting Standards Board, or IASBrémis

We have translated some of tteal amounts contained in this annual report into ddlars. The rate used to translate the amountespect of the year enc
December 31, 2010 was R$1.666 to US$1.00, whichthesommercial rate for the purchase of U.S. delia effect as of December 31, 2010, as reporiethé Centre
Bank of Brazil, or the Central Bank. The U.S. doéguivalent information presented in this anneglort is provided solely for the convenience ofeistors and should not
construed as implying that theal amounts represent, or could have been or coulcbheerted into, U.S. dollars at that rate or at ather rate. Seeltem 3A. Selecte
Financial Data—Exchange Rates” for more detailéormation regarding the translationrefais into U.S. dollars.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This annual report includes forward-looking statatage principally in “Iltem 3D. Risk Factors,” “IltedB. Business Overview” andtem 5. Operating and Financ
Review and Prospects.” We have based these forlwakihg statements largely on our current expeatatiand projections about future events and fighti@nds affectin
our business. These forward-looking statementsuatvgect to risks, uncertainties and assumptiorisditog, among other things:

« the effects of the global financial and economisisiin Brazil,

e our ability to sustain or improve our performance,

e competition in the Brazilian retail industry in teectors in which we operate
e government regulation and tax matters,

« adverse legal or regulatory disputes or proceedings

«  credit and other risks of lending and investmetitvaies, and

»  other risk factors as set forth under “Item 3D .kK¥#actors.”

" o, "o "o "o » o

The words “believe,” “may,” “will,” “estimate,” “catinue,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “expect” and singit words are intended to identify forwdabking statements. V
undertake no obligation to update publicly or revany forwardeoking statements because of new information,réutevents or otherwise. In light of these risks
uncertainties, the forwardoking information, events and circumstances dised in this annual report might not occur. Quualctesults and performance could di
substantially from those anticipated in our forwéydking statements.
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PART |

ITEM 1. IDENTITY OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND ADVISO RS
Not applicable.

ITEM 2. OFFER STATISTICS AND EXPECTED TIMETABLE
Not applicable.

ITEM 3. KEY INFORMATION
3A. Selected Financial Data

We changed our financial reporting from BraziliaA&P to IFRS, beginning with the financial statenseas of and for the year ended December 31, 20@&efore, w
present in this section summary financial and dpegadata derived from our audited financial staats as of and for the years ended December 38, 2009 and 20!
included in this annual report and prepared iretance with IFRS.

The following tables present certain of our sumntasyorical consolidated financial and operatingadar each of the periods indicated. Solely fa tonvenience of tl
readerreal amounts as of and for the year ended Decemb&@D have been translated into U.S. dollars attimemercial rate for purchase of U.S. dollars ireetffas c
December 31, 2010 as reported by the Brazilianr@eBank of R$1.666 to US$1.00.

As of and for the Year Ended December 3
2)

200¢ 2009 2010¢

201C
(millions of US$, excep
share, per share and per
(millions of R$, except share, per share and per ABamounts ADS amounts)

Statement of operations dat
Net sales revenu 18,032.( 23,192.¢ 32,091 19,262.
Cost of sales (13,279.5) (17,493.8) (24,241.5 (14,550.7
Gross profit 4,752 5,699.( 7,850.: 4,712.(
Selling, general and administrative expen (3,447.9 (4,179.6 (5,782.1 (3,470.6
Depreciation and amortizatio (442.7 (459.9 (440.1, (264.2
Other operating expenses, net (19.1) (77.9) (26.0 (15.6
Operating profit 842.¢ 981.¢ 1,602.( 961.€
Financial income 292.] 246.7 331.7 199.1
Financial expenst (623.7 (501.2) (1,154.7 (693.1
Equity pickup results (0.5) 5.4 34.5 20.7
Income before income and social contribution teas employees’ profit sharing and noncontrolling
interest 510.7 732 813 488
Income tax expense

Current (36.3; (68.1; (52.1, (31.3

Deferred (110.9 (25.9 (34.5 (20.7,
Employee profit sharing (22.2 (32.5 (35.1 (21.1
Net income 341 606.( 691.¢ 415.2

Attributable to equity holders of the par¢ 341.2 609.% 722.% 433.¢

Attributable to noncontrolling intere 0.C (3.4) (30.7, (18.4,
Basic earnings per 1,000 shares
Preferred 15 25 2.9z 1.7t
Common 13 23 2.6 1.5¢
Diluted earnings per 1,000 shares
Preferred 1.4 25 2.8¢ 1.74
Common 13 23 2.6t 1.5¢
Basic earnings per AD 1.5¢ 25 2.92 1.7t
Diluted earnings per AD¢ 1.4¢ 25 2.8¢ 1.74
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Weighted average number of shares outstandingngimstands)
Preferred

Common

Total

Dividends declared and interest on equity per 1900ed3)
Preferred
Common

Dividends declared and interest on shareholdersteger ADS®)

Balance sheet dat

Cash and cash equivaler

Property and equipment, n

Total assets

Shor-term debt (including current portion of Ic-term debt)
Long-term debt

Shareholder equity

Share capita

Other financial information

Net cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities
Capital expenditure:

As of and for the Year Ended December 3
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200¢ 2009

2010?

201C¢

(millions of R$, except share, per share and per ABamounts

132,17( 145 44; 156,87
99,68 99,68 99,680
231,85 245,12; 256,553
0.2 06 0.6¢

02 05 0.6%
0.28 0.6 069
1,623 2,341 3,818.(
4,867.( 5.356.( 6,703.¢
13,7181 18,574 29,032."
334.¢ 687.¢ 2,977
3,002.¢ 3,582.¢ 5.501.¢
5.454.; 6,656.] 9583.¢
4450, 5.374.¢ 5579.¢
1,256.( 1,842.¢ 363.1
(484.7 (1,636.7 (1,364.9
(206.8 512.¢ 2,477,
(488.3 (1,631.7 (1,521.7

(millions of US$, excep
share, per share and per
ADS amounts)

0.4z
0.3¢
0.42

2,291.°
4,023.¢
17,966.¢
1,787.:
3,356.!
5,752.¢
3,348.¢

218.1
(819.3
1,487.:
(913.4

(1) Includes the result of operations of Globaiitlhdes S.A., or Globex, which operates underttand naméonto Frioas from July 1, 2009. For further information oe #itquisition of Globex, see “ltem 4A.

History and Development of the Company.”

(2) Includes the results of operations of Glohed the results of operations of Nova Casa Bal#ig 8t Nova Casa Bahia, which operates under tancbnameCasas Bahias from November 1, 2010. For further

information on the acquisition of Globex and theazsation of Globex and Nova Casa Bahia, see “BdmHistory and Development of the Company.”

(3) Each preferred share received a dividend higfter than the dividend paid to each common sl@e.“ltem 8A. Consolidated Statements and Othsrfeial Information — Dividend Policy and Dividents

3
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200¢ 200¢ 201 201C
(in millions of US$,
Operating Data (in millions of R$, except as indicatec except as indicated
Employees at end of period ( 70,65¢ 85,24« 92,661
Total square meters of selling area at end of gy 1,360,70! 1,744,65: 1,832,592
Number of stores at end of peric
Péo de Aglicar 148 148 149
CompreBem 16E 157 .
Extra Hipermercadc (2) 13¢ 16€ 178
Extra Supermercac (3) - 13 231
Extra Eletro 47 47 .
Assa 28 40 57
Senda 73 68 .
Ponto Fric (4) - a5t 506
Total number of stores at end of peri 597 1,08( 1121
Net sales revenues per employee
P&o de Agucar 229,07 262,27¢ 323,1¢ 193,97¢
CompreBem 325,73 335,96 - -
Extra Hipermercadc (2) 339,61« 356,21¢ 417,28: 250,46¢
Extra Supermercac (3) - - 316,02¢ 189,69:
Extra Eletrc 409,72: 548,13: - -
Assa 437,538 303,39! 418,86( 251,41
Sendes 244,06( 297,48t - -
Ponto Fric (4) - 258,14« 644,23 386,69
Average net sales revenues per emplo 297,53t 315,69( 407,73: 244,73
Net sales revenues by store forn
P&o de Aclc: 3,37¢ 3,79 4,281 2,891
CompreBer 2,57:¢ 2,58t - -
Extra Hipermercadc (2) 9,12( 10,40¢ 11,28: 6,77
Extra Supermercac (3) - - 4,597 2,75¢
Extra Eletrc 29t 38€ - -
Assa 1,26¢ 1,982 2,94: 1,767
Sendat 1,397 1,60¢ - -
Ponto Fric (4) - 2,47¢ 6,15¢ 3,69¢
Total net sales 18,03: 23,24 29,80¢ 17,89:
Average monthly net sales revenue per square rf@te
P&o de Acguc: 1,481.. 1,637. 1,890.¢ 1,134.¢
CompreBer 1,085.¢ 1,148.° - -
Extra Hipermercadc (2) 1,025. 1,138.( 1,281.( 768.¢
Extra Supermercac (3) - - 1,222 733.¢
Extra Eletrc 881.] 1,154.: - -
Assa 2,486. 1,395.2 1,552 931.¢
Senda 897.1 1,088.¢ - -
Ponto Fric (4) - 620.4 1,494.¢ 897.2
CBD average monthly net sales revenue per squabes 1 1,104.0 1,110. 1,421.¢ 853.¢
Average ticket amoun
P&o de Aclc: 26.1 29 37.¢ 22.¢
CompreBet 19.: 20.7 - -
Extra Hipermercadc (2) 43.7 48.F 51.¢ 31.1
Extra Supermercac (3) - - 23.¢ 14.c
Extra Eletrc 299.1 346.€ - -
Senda 21.¢ 24.2 - -
Assa 78.¢ 74t 85.C 51.C
Ponto Fric (4) - 618. 328.¢ 197.1
CBD average ticket amour 32.€ 41 50.2 30.2
4
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200¢ 200¢ 201C 201C
(in millions of US$,
Operating Data (in millions of R$, except as indicatec except as indicated
Average number of tickets per mon
Péo de Aglict 10,769,07 10,607,75 10,765,303
CompreBer 11,128,32 10,387,30 8,958,669
Extra Hipermercadc (2) 17,406,07 17,886,22 16,950,662
Extra Supermercac (3)
Extra Eletrc 82,18t 92,90¢ 76,243
Senda 531575 5,537,07. 4,562,594
Assa 1,340,14 2,218,15 2,885.286
Ponto Frio @) ; 333,48 1,486,648
CBD average number of tickets per mot 46,041,56 47,062,90 49,401,310
(1) In 2010, does not include the employees hadelling area dfasas Bahiatores.
(2) In 2010, includes the results of operatioh$1® Extra Hipermercadostores and 68xtra Facil stores. In 2009, included the results of operatimnl03Extra Hipermercadostores, 1Extra Supermercadstores
and 52Extra Facil stores.
(3) In 2010, includes the results of operatioh$0i Extra Supermercadstores, 1Sendasstores and 118@ompreBemstores.
(4) Includes the results of operations of Gloffeanto Frig) as from July 1, 2009, arfektra Eletrostores, excluding the operations of Nova Casaa@dhiring 2010, we converted tBatra Eletrostores intdPonto
Frio stores. For further information on the acquisitidrGlobex, see “ltem 4A. History and Developmefithe Company.”
(5) Based on the average of the full-time eqe@mahumber of employees, which is the product efrthmber of all retail employees (full- and ptimie employees) and the ratio of the average mytiblrs of all retal

(6)

employees to the average monthly hours of full-teneployees.

Calculated using the average of square mefesslling area on the last day of each monttépgeriod.

Exchange Rates

The Brazilian foreign exchange system allows thelpase and sale of foreign currency and the intienma transfer ofeais by any person or legal entity, regardles

the amount, subject to certain regulatory procesiufdée Brazilian currency has during the last desagkperienced frequent and substantial variafiorelation to th
U.S. dollar and other foreign currencies. Betwe@d(2and 2002, theeal depreciated significantly against the U.S. dolteaching an exchange rate of R$3.53 per US$1
the end of 2002. Between 2003 and mid-2008r¢hé appreciated significantly against the U.S. dallae to the stabilization of the maaeoenomic environment and a str
increase in foreign investment in Brazil, with #rechange rate reaching R$1.56 per US$1.00 in Awfig. With the crisis in the global financial metk beginning in mid-
2008, thereal depreciated 33.3% against the U.S. dollar overyt@a 2008, reaching R$2.34 per US$1.00 on DeceBhe2008. On December 31, 2009 the exchang
was R$1.74 per US$1.00 and on December 31, 2048sitR$1.67 per US$1.00. The Central Bank has ieter occasionally to control instability in foreigrchange rate
buying or selling local currency.

The following tables set forth the commercial sgjlrate, expressed irais per U.S. dollar (R$/US$), for the periods indicate

Exchange Rate of Brazilian Currency per US$1.(

Year Low High Average(1 Year-End

2006 2.05¢ 2.371 217 2.13¢
2007 1.73¢ 2.15¢ 1.94¢ 1.771
2008 1.55¢ 2.50( 1.83¢ 2.331
2009 1.702 2421 1.99¢ 1.741
2010 1.65¢ 1.881 1.75¢ 1.66¢

Exchange Rate of Brazilian Currency per US$1.(

Month Low High Average(1 Period-End

November 201( 1.68( 1.73¢ 1.71: 1.701
December 201 1.66¢ 1.712 1.69¢ 1.66¢€
January 201 1.65] 1.691 1.67¢ 1.66¢
February 201: 1.661 1.67¢ 1.66¢ 1.661
March 2011 1.62¢ 1.67¢ 1.65¢ 1.62¢
April 2011 1.56¢ 1.61¢ 1.58¢ 1.57¢
May 201: 1.57¢ 1.63¢ 1.61: 1.58C
June 2011 (through June 15, 20 1.57¢ 1.60( 1.58¢ 1.60C

Source: Central Bank

@

Represents the average of the exchangeohésh trading date.
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3B. Capitalization and Indebtedness

Not applicable.

3C. Reasons for the Offer and Use of Proceeds

Not applicable.

3D. Risk Factors

An investment in the ADSs or our preferred shangslives a high degree of risk. You should carefttigsider the risks described below before makimgnaestmel
decision. Our business, financial condition andulesof operations could be materially and adveysaffected by any of these risks. The trading patéhe ADSs cou
decline due to any of these risks or other factarg] you may lose all or part of your investmetie Tisks described below are those that we curydmtlieve may materia
affect us.

Risks Relating to Brazil

The Brazilian government has historically exercisednd continues to exercise, significant influenaaer the Brazilian economy. Brazilian political andconomir
conditions may adversely affect us and the markete of the preferred shares and the ADSs.

The Brazilian governmers’ economic policies may have important effects eazlian companies, including us, and on marketda@@ns and prices of Brazilii
securities. Our financial condition and result®pérations may be adversely affected by the follgwactors and the Brazilian government’s respangbese factors:

* interest rates;

*  monetary policy;

«  exchange rate and currency fluctuations;

» inflation;

» liquidity of the domestic capital and lending magke

* tax and regulatory policies;

«  other political, social and economic developmentsriaffecting Brazil.

Uncertainty over whether the Brazilian governmeiit implement changes in policies or regulationfeefing these or other factors in the future maptgbute tc
economic uncertainty in Brazil and to heightenethtility in the Brazilian securities markets ands#ties issued abroad by Brazilian issuers. Thesertainties and oth
future events affecting the Brazilian economy catddse a material adverse effect on us and theetnarice of the preferred shares and the ADSs.

Brazilian government efforts to combat inflation ngehinder the growth of the Brazilian economy andwdd harm us and the market price of our preferretiares anc
the ADSs.

Brazil has in the past experienced extremely hagbs of inflation and has therefore followed monefmlicies that have resulted in one of the higheal interest rate
in the world. Between 2005 and 2010, the baseésateate (SELIC) in Brazil varied between 19.77% pnd 10.75% p.a. Inflation and the Brazilian goweents measures
fight it, principally through the Central Bank, letiad and may have significant effects on the Baazeconomy and our business. Tight monetary gdiwith high intere
rates may restrict Brazd’growth and the availability of credit. Conversehore lenient government and Central Bank poliaied interest rate decreases may trigger incr
in inflation, which could negatively affect our lsss. We may not be able to adjust the priceshaegeour customers to offset the effects of inflationaur cost structur
In addition, Brazilian government measures to canfation that result in an increase in interees may have an adverse effect on us as ourtaufedss is indexed to |
interbank deposit certificate, or CDI, rate. Infi@iary pressures may also hinder our ability toeascforeign financial markets or lead to governnpmiicies to comb:
inflation that could harm us or adversely affee tharket price of our preferred shares and the ADSs
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Exchange rate instability may have a material adsereffect on the Brazilian economy and us.

The Brazilian currency fluctuates in relation te t0.S. dollar and other foreign currencies. ThezBiem government has in the past utilized différerchange ra
regimes, including sudden devaluations, periodipisiévaluations (during which the frequency of adjwsits has ranged from daily to monthly), exchangerots, due
exchange rate markets and a floating exchangesyatem. Since 1999, Brazil has adopted a floatkotp@nge rate system with interventions by the Gélank in buying ¢
selling foreign currency. From time to time thesyvé been significant fluctuations in the excharaje between the real and the U.S. dollar and atireencies. For examp
the real appreciated 11.8%, 8.7% and 17.2% agtiadt.S. dollar in 2005, 2006 and 2007, respedtivel 2008, as a result of the worsening globahecoic crisis, the re
depreciated 32% against the U.S. dollar, closing%2.34 to US$1.00 on December 31, 2008. For the geded December 31, 2009, the real appreciat&dw@against t
U.S. dollar, closing at R$1.74 to US$1.00 on Decendi, 2009. For the year ended December 31, 20&0gal appreciated 4.2% against the U.S. dallasjng at R$1.67
US$1.00. The real may substantially depreciate pprexiate against the U.S. dollar in the futurectange rate instability may have a material adveféect on us
Depreciation of the real against the U.S. dollarid@reate inflationary pressures in Brazil andseaincreases in interest rates, which could negjsitaffect the growth of tt
Brazilian economy as a whole and result in a malteverse effect on us. Depreciation would alstuce the U.S. dollar value of distributions andidwds and the U.
dollar equivalent of the market price of our predershares and the ADSs.

Developments and the perception of risk in othewotries, especially in the United States and in egiag market countries, may adversely affect ourdiness and th
market price of Brazilian securities, including oypreferred shares and the ADSs.

The market price of securities of Brazilian issusraffected by economic and market conditions tieep countries, including the United States andrging marke
countries. Although economic conditions in thosartdes may differ significantly from economic catighs in Brazil, investos reactions to developments in other cour
may have an adverse effect on the market priceairdties of Brazilian issuers. Crises in the Uthi&tates, the European Union or emerging markettoes may diminis
investor interest in securities of Brazilian issyéncluding ours. This could adversely affectterket price of our preferred shares and the ABSd,could also make it mc
difficult for us to access the capital markets &indnce our operations in the future on acceptadias or at all.

The global financial crisis that began during teesd half of 2008 has had significant consequerigelsiding in Brazil, such as stock and credit keawolatility, credi
retraction, a general economic slowdown, volatdehange rates and inflationary pressure, amongstiéich may, adversely affect us and the markieepf Braziliar
securities, including our preferred shares and\D8s.

Risks Relating to the Retail Industry and Us
We face significant competition, which may advensealffect our market share and net income.

We operate mainly in the food retail and home apiés sectors. The food retail sector in Brazilluiding the cash-and-carry segmeatatarejg, a wholesale format
the retail food sector, and the home appliance®setBrazil are highly competitive. We face insencompetition from small retailers, especiallynirthose that operate in-
informal segment of the Brazilian economy. In aidditin our markets, and particularly in the S&alBand Rio de Janeiro city areas, we competedridbd retail sector wi
a number of large multinational retail food and eyah merchandise and cash-aradry chains, as well as local supermarkets andpieddent grocery stores. In the hi
appliances sector, we also compete with large natltnal chains and large or specialized Braziiampanies. Some of these international competitave greater financi
resources than we have. Acquisitions or consotidativithin the industry may also increase competiind adversely affect our market share and wenie.
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We are co-controlled by two groups of shareholders.

The group composed of Mr. Abilio dos Santos Dimid ather members of the Diniz family, or Diniz Fdmand theCasino Guichard Perrachon Group, or Casino G
haveshared our control since 2005 through our holdiogpany, Wilkes Participacdes S.A., which owns &d¥ our voting shares and also the usufruct 08%4of voting
shares held by the Casino Group. This holding capis also referred to in this annual report asHioding Company. See “ltem 7A. Major Shareholde@onsequentl
our two indirect co-controlling shareholders hawe power to control our Company, including the potee

e appoint the members to our board of directors, Whtyrn, appoint our executive officers,

« determine the outcome of any action requiring dialder approval, including the timing and paymemmy future dividends, provided that we obsenerthinimun
mandatory dividend established by Brazilian corfmtaw,

« determine corporate reorganizations, acquisitidispositions and the transfer of our control todtgarties,
* deliberate on related party transactions and émtenew partnerships, and
e deliberate on financings and similar transactions.

Our controlling shareholders may have conflictinggiests with those of our other shareholders taene of ADSs and the interests of our controlhgreholders may
prevail over those of our other shareholders odérsl of ADS¢

In addition, the cecontrol of our Company could result in deadlocks aisputes between our controlling shareholder$ wéspect to strategic, control and o
important issues, which may adversely affect@rsMay 30, 2011, the Casino Group and its affiséegisor S.A. and Sudaco Participa¢fes Ltda. diletjuest for arbitratic
under the International Chamber of Commerce rudesnat Abilio dos Santos Diniz, Ana Maria Fallei@s Santos Diniz B¥vila, Adriana Falleiros dos Santos Diniz, J
Paulo Falleiros dos Santos Diniz, Pedro Paulo ffadelos Santos Diniz and Peninsula Participacégs. LWe are not a party to the arbitration proceedindy #merefore, a
not aware of its content. The arbitration procegds subject to confidentiality provisions andiimed at ensuring compliance with the shareholdgstements between
controlling shareholders. We cannot anticipateetfects of the dispute on us. For additional infation on shared decision-making, see “Item 7Ajdv&hareholders —
Conditional Put Option Agreement and Sharehold&égseements.”

Since 2003, Mr. Abilio dos Santos Diniz, the cotiing member of the Diniz Family, has been the omain of our board of directors. He has also beerchairman «
the board of directors of the Holding Company. rigy remain as chairman of our board of directodstaat of the Holding Company until 2012. Begirn2012, the Casit
Group will have the right to appoint the chairmdroor board of directors and the chairman of tharbaf directors of the Holding Company, excepilif Abilio dos Santc
Diniz complies with certain conditions. In thissea the Casino Group will be obligated to appoint For those positions. For further informatiomesitem 7A. Majo
Shareholders — Conditional Put Option Agreement@mareholders’ Agreements.”

We may not be successful in integrating and caphgisynergies from acquired companies.

As part of our growth strategy, we regularly analyacquisition opportunities. Acquisitions involvieks and challenges, such as those related tontegration c
operations, personnel, products and customer biatiee aacquired companies with ours, generationxpieeted return on the investment and exposureatulities of the
acquired companies. The integration of acquiredniesses with our business and our capturing ofrgje® from acquired companies may require moreuregs and tinm

than initially expected. In addition, we may beuiegd to obtain approval from Brazilian anti-trastthorities for certain acquisitions. The Brazileamtitrust authorities me
grant the approval subject to restrictive measumesh as sale of part of the assets, or may nat gra a timely manner.
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We have recently entered into an association agreewith the partners of Casa Bahia Comercial Ltathich is still under the analysis of the Brazilianti-trust
authorities. Until these authorities approve theoamtion agreement, we may not fully integrateahbsets related to the association with our horpéamges retail busine
nor capture synergies between this business anGampany.

If we are not able to successfully integrate a@giisusinesses with ours or to capture synergiptaased, we may be materially and adversely aftecte
Change in control of the Holding Company may brir@dpanges to our corporate governance structure.

Mr. Abilio Diniz has been Chairman of both the Halgl Company and us since 2003. According to thmgesf the Holding Company shareholdeagieement, the Dir
Family granted a purchase option of one commonesbathe Holding Company to the Casino Group esefile after June 22, 2012. If exercised, this mseloption wi
allow the Casino Group to obtain indirect contrélomr Company, resulting in the alteration in thenirol of the Holding Company, which may change oarporat
governance structure.

We are subject to environmental laws and regulatson

We are subject to a number of different nationttesand municipal laws and regulations relatinghto preservation and protection of the environnzert speciall
related to our gas stations. Among other obligatidhese laws and regulations establish envirorahdinensing requirements and standards for theassl of effluent
gaseous emissions, management of solid waste auihBy protected areas. We incur in costs for ghevention, control, reduction or elimination ofe@ses into the a
ground and water at our gas stations, as well @eandisposal and handling of wastes at our stanesdistribution centers. Any failure to comply lwithose laws ar
regulations may subject us to administrative ammioal sanctions, in addition to the obligationrépair or indemnify the damages caused to the emvient and third partie
We cannot ensure that these laws and regulatidhsatibecome stricter. In this case, we may beiiredl to increase, perhaps significantly, our egikpenditures and co
to comply with these environmental laws and regost. Unforeseen environmental investments mayaedwailable funds for other investments and coudderially an
adversely affect us and the market price of oufepred shares and the ADSs.

We may not be able to renew or maintain our storkssise agreements on acceptable terms or at all.

Most of our stores operate in leased properties. sttategic location of our stores is key to theetlgpment of our business strategy and, as a reselmay be adverse
affected in case a significant number of our leageeements is terminated and we fail to renew thegsse agreements on acceptable terms or at alddiion, our leas
agreements contain contractual provisions thatwatlee landlord to increase the rent periodicalfymost cases, every three years. A significanteise in the rent of ¢
leased properties may adversely affect us.

We face risks related to our distribution centers.

Approximately 85% of our products are distributetbtigh our distribution centers located in the Betrt, southeastern, midestern and northeastern regions of Braz
operations at one of these centers are adverdelted by factors beyond our control, such as fiegyral disasters, power shortages, failuresdrsjyistems, among others,
in the event that no other distribution centerbeao meet the demand of the region affecteddib&ibution of products to the stores suppliedthy affected distributic
center will be impaired, which may adversely affest Our growth strategy includes the opening @f e®res which may require the opening of new erakpansion of o
existing distribution centers to supply and meet demand of the additional stores. Our operatioag be negatively affected if we are not able tonopew distributio
centers or expand our existing distribution cenitei@der to meet the supply needs of these nemesto
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We are exposed to risks related to customer finagcand loans.

We have a financial partnership with Itad Unibaktmdding S.A.,or Itat Unibanco, through which we have establigfiednceira Itad CBD S.A. Crédito, Financiamento
e Investimento, or FIGyhich exclusively offers private label and branded credit cards, personal and consumer ceedénded warranties and insurance at our stosz
“Item 4A. History and Development of the Company—émdments to the Partnership with Ital Unibantw &ddition, FIC raises funds from financial instions in order t
finance credit sales to our clients. We are suligetitie risks normally associated with providings ttype of financing, including risk of default ¢time payment of principal a
interest and any mismatch of cost and maturityuwsffonding in relation to cost and maturity of fiféng to our customers, which could have a matedakrse affect on us.

The retail segment is sensitive to decreases instoner purchasing power and unfavorable economiclegc

Historically, the retail segment has experiencedogs of economic slowdown that led to declinecamsumer expenditures. The success of operatiottzeitnom
appliances retail sector depends on various factdated to consumer expenditures and consunmgsme, including general business conditions,régerates, inflatiol
consumer credit availability, taxation, consumenfience in future economic conditions, employmant salary levels. Unfavorable economic condition®razil, o
unfavorable economic conditions worldwide reflectedhe Brazilian economy, may significantly redwmnsumer expenditure and available income, péatiguin the lowe
income classes, who have relatively less crediege¢han higher income classes, more stringent rééibtancing conditions and more susceptibilityinoreases in tt
unemployment rate. These conditions may cause eri@laadverse effect on us.

Unauthorized disclosure of customer data throughelach of our computer systems or otherwise couldsmma material adverse effect on us.

One of the main -ecommerce issues is the safe transmission of cartfaleénformation of our customers on our servens ¢he safe data storage on systems th:

connected to our servers. We depend on encryptiohauthentication technologies of third partiesately transmit confidential information. Techogical advances, ne
encryption techniques and other developments msgitren technological failures related to persodata protections provided by customers during msitty. Securi
breaches by third parties of our computer systamsuaauthorized disclosure or use of confidentisdrimation of our customers may expose us to cldmfaudulent use
this information, loss of reputation and judicidéims with potentially high liability, which couldause a material adverse effect on us.

We depend on the transportation system and infrasture to deliver our products to our stores.

Products destined for all of our stores are disted through our distribution centers located inStdtes. The transportation system and infrastreciu Brazil it
under-developed and need investment from the Braziliaregument to work efficiently and to meet our busmeeeds. Any significant interruptions or redutiiothe use «

transportation infrastructure or in their operasiom the cities where our distribution centerslaoated as a result of natural disasters, fireidaots, systemic failures or ot
unexpected causes may delay or affect our abditjigtribute products to our stores and may deereassales, which may have a material adversetedffeus.

Financial institutions in Brazil, including our sulsidiary FIC, are subject to changing regulation liie Central Bank.

The regulatory structure of the Brazilian financigstem is continuously changing. Our subsidiaf@ E a financial institution regulated by the CahtBank and i
therefore subject to these regulations. Braziliamegnment rules and intervention may adverselycaffer operations and profitability more than aitianal retailer withot
these financial operations. Existing laws and ragohs may be amended, and their application @rpnétation may also change, and new laws and atgus may b
adopted. We may be adversely affected by changegiriations, including those related to:

e minimum capital requirements;

e requirements for investment in fixed capital;
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»  credit limits and other credit restrictions;
e accounting requirements; and
e intervention, liquidation and/or temporary specinagement systems.
Risks Relating to the Preferred Shares and ADSs
If you exchange the ADSs for preferred shares, aseault of Brazilian regulations you may risk losgnthe ability to remit foreign currency abroad.

As an ADS holder, you benefit from the electrongztificate of foreign capital registration obtainbg the custodian for our preferred shares undeglyhe ADSs i
Brazil, which permits the custodian to convert dends and other distributions with respect to tiedgored shares into nd®razilian currency and remit the proceeds abi
If you surrender your ADSs and withdraw preferrbdres, you will be entitled to continue to relytbe custodiars electronic certificate of foreign capital regagion for only
five business days from the date of withdrawal.r€héer, upon the disposition of or distributioeating to the preferred shares, you will not bk ab remit abroad non-
Brazilian currency unless you obtain your own elaut certificate of foreign capital registrationymu qualify under Brazilian foreign investmenguéations that entitle sor
foreign investors to buy and sell shares on Braziitock exchanges without obtaining separateretgctcertificates of foreign capital registratidhyou do not qualify unds
the foreign investment regulations you will gengrdle subject to less favorable tax treatment efdéinds and distributions on, and the proceeds faom sale of, ot
preferred share

If you attempt to obtain your own electronic cectite of foreign capital registration, you may inexpenses or suffer delays in the application ggecwhich could del:
your ability to receive dividends or distributioredating to ouipreferred shares or the return of your capital iime&ly manner. The depositasyélectronic certificate of forei
capital registration may also be adversely affebieéuture legislative changes. See “ltem 10D. Exaje Controls.”

You might be unable to exercise preemptive rightthwespect to the preferred shares underlying thBSs.

You will not be able to exercise the preemptivétsyelating to the preferred shares underlying YDSs unless a registration statement under ticar8ies Act of 193
is effective with respect to those rights, or aaragtion from the registration requirements of tee8ities Act is available. We are not obligatediltoa registration stateme
or to take any action to make preemptive rightslabke to holders of ADSs. Unless we file a regitin statement or an exemption from registratioplias, you may recei'
only the net proceeds from the sale of your pregmpights by the depositary or, if the preemptiights cannot be sold, they will lapse and you wit receive any value 1
them. In addition, we may issue a substantial nurobereferred shares as consideration for futeguisitions and we may choose not to extend pregepghts to holdel
of ADSs.

The relative volatility and illiquidity of the Bralian securities markets may substantially limit yoability to sell the preferred shares underlyirtge ADSs at the price
and time you desire.

Investing in securities that trade in emerging retsksuch as Brazil, often involves greater risintmvesting in securities of issuers in more depetl markets, and the
investments are generally considered to be moreutaté/e in nature. The Brazilian securities maiiketubstantially smaller, less liquid, more corraed and can be mc
volatile than more developed securities market fip 10 stocks in terms of trading volume accalifite approximately 53%, 58% and 49% of all sharaded on the Si
Paulo stock exchang81&FBovespa S.A. — Bolsa de Valores, Mercadoridirirog, or BM&FBOVESPA, in 2008, 2009 and 2010, respesti. Accordingly, althoug
you are entitled to withdraw the preferred shamdenlying the ADSs from the depositary at any tigmyr ability to sell the preferred shares undedyihe ADSs at a pri
and time at which you wish to do so may be subistintimited.

Holders of the ADSs and our preferred shares may receive any dividends.

According to our bylaws, we must pay our shareholders at least 25&uofinnual net income as dividends, as determinddadjusted under Brazilian corporate |
This adjusted income may be used to absorb lossetherwise appropriated as allowed under the Beazitiorporation law and may not be available todid ps dividend
We may not pay dividends to our shareholders in @anyicular fiscal year if our board of directorstermines that such distributions would be inadi&san view of ou
financial condition.
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ITEM 4. INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY
4A. History and Development of the Company

We were incorporated in Brazil under Brazilian lawNovember 10, 1981 as Companhia Brasileira deiBusgcdo. Our principal executive offices are lwzhat Avenid
Brigadeiro Luis Antonio, 3,142, CEP 01402-901 SaaolP, SP, Brazil (telephone: 55-11-388621). Our agent for service of process in the éthBtates is CT Corporatit
1633 Broadway, New York, New York, 10019.

We have been a pioneer in the Brazilian retail fowtlistry, opening our first store, a pastry shof,948 in the city of Sdo Paulo under the ndde de AglcarWe
established one of the first supermarket chaifrazil, opening our first supermarket in 1959, apened the first hypermarket in Brazil in 1971.

Brazilian economic reforms implemented in 1994|udig the introduction of theeal as the Brazilian currency and the drastic redaabbinflation rates, resulted in
unprecedented growth in local consumer marketss ifftirease in available income and the resultiegese in consumer confidence broadened our pateattomer ba:
and provided us with growth opportunities.

We responded to these changes by strengthenincppital structure, increasing our logistics andhiedtogy investments and implementing an expandi@eg)y focuse
on the different consumer preferences of the Beazipopulation. To support our expansion strategysisting of acquisitions and organic growth, veéirted the format «
our stores to tailor them to the expectations, sontion patterns and purchasing power of the diffeincome levels in Brazil. Our stores have omeratnder differei
banners targeted at the various income segmerke @razilian population. For further information our banners, see “Iltem 4B. Business Overview —++@ampany”anc
“— Operations.”

In order to implement that strategy and to increagemarket share, between 1981 and 2002, we &hjimportant supermarket chains sucitaspercitrus Lourencéo
Barateiro (we operate these stores under@owenpreBemandExtra banners)Peralta, Paes MendongaABC SupermercadpsSé Supermercad@sd other small chains, st
asSao Luiz NagumaandRosado

In December 2003, we entered into an associatibedc&endas Distribuidora S.A., or the Sendas Aatioo, with Sendas S.A. and investment funds efAlG Group i
order to acquire th8endaschain. TheSendaschain operates retail stores in the State of Ridaheiro.

In July 2004, we entered into a financial partnigrsialled FIC with Itad Unibanco. FIC exclusivelffers private label and cbranded credit cards, personal and cons
credit and insurance at our stores. For more irdtion, see “— Amendments to the Partnership wah WWnibanco.”

In November 2007, we acquired a 60% ownershipéstan theAssai chain by purchasing 60% of the capital stock afcBibna Comércio Varejista e Atacadista S.A
Barcelona, a company holding all of the operatisgets of thé\ssai chain. This acquisition enabled us to enter tteh-@ndearry segment, a wholesale format in the r
food sector, in the State of S&o Paulo.

In October 2008, we started cash-aadry operations in the State of Rio de Janeirough Xantocarpa, a company that assumed the apemaftithree stores of Sen:
Distribuidora, which were converted indssai stores.

In July 2009, we purchased a 70.2% ownership istéareGlobex, a company which operates in the hapm@iances sector under the brand nd&oato Fria In this
annual report, the term “home appliancesfers to sale of durable goods, i.e., electrorigsiture and other items for the home. In a terafter triggered by the acquisitic
our Company increased its ownership interest irbo@&do 98.8%. For more information, see “—Acqusitof Globex Ponto Frio).”
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Also in July 2009, we purchased Barcelona’s remagjirstock for R$175 million, corresponding to 40%itsfcapital stock and, accordingly, we own 100%hafAssai
chain.

In December 2009, we consolidated our leading joosih the retail segment in Latin America and vedidve we became one of the 10 largest companiteielectroni
products segment worldwide as a result of the o with the partners of Casa Bahia ComercialalLta Brazilian home appliances retailer. Purst@mmhe associatic
agreement, by means of a corporate reorganizatierand the partners of Casa Bahia Comercial Ltae fntegrated our respective businesses in thes tagppliances ret:
sector, and have unified the e-commerce operationducted by our subsidiary, Globex. The agreemastapproved by our shareholders at the generadtablders’meeting
held on January 11, 2010. For the year ended Dezegih 2009, this transaction did not generateedf®ct on our accounting records. For the year edtecember 31, 201
Nova Casa Bah'’s results of operations for the months of Noverdoat December were consolidated with our resultspefations. For more information, see Associatiol
Agreement with the Partners of Casa Bahia Comeltita.”

Also in December 2010, we entered into a stocklpase agreement with Sendas S.A. related to thdsétiou of the remaining shares issued by SendasriBiidor:
S.A., held by Sendas S.A. The acquisition was apudy our shareholders at the general shareholdezsting held on March 14, 2011. Upon the acquisitid the
remaining shares, we and our controlled comparéeSupermercados Ltda. and Barcelona became halfi&@9% of Sendas Distribuidora S.A.’s voting cahit

Acquisition of Globex (Ponto Frio)

On June 7, 2009, we entered into a share purctgreeraent with the majority shareholders of Globeitidddes S.A., a company operating in the Braailleome
appliances sector under the brand ndoeto Friofor over 60 years, for 70.2% of its total votingasts. We paid a portion of the purchase price, R#3million, in cash ¢
July 7, 2009 and the majority shareholders of Gtdb&d the option of receiving the remaining R$451illion either in cash, at the fourth anniversafythe closing, or t
subscribing for class B preferred shares issu&bd0.00 per share. In the latter case, the majshiyeholders of Globex were to receive the shardge amount due in cé
plus 10%

We also offered the minority shareholders of Glotiexright to sell us their shares under the sharehase agreement for 80% of the purchase pricetpghe majorit
shareholders of Globex under the same conditiome @undred and twenty (120) minority shareholddrsGmbex agreed to sell us their shares, correspgntc
approximately 25% of the total voting shares ofligbo, for R$236.8 million.

Pursuant to the Globex share purchase agreemerifionemsed our capital stock through the issuafc6$09,046 class B preferred shares at a pride$af0.00 pe
share. This capital increase triggered the preemmptghts of our shareholders to subscribe forrtber class B preferred shares, in accordance witlziian law. Wilke
Participacdes S.A., our controlling shareholdemsferred its right to subscribe for class B preféishares to the Globex shareholders. Due tatirease in the trading pr
of our shares, a larger than expected number ofniruwrity shareholders subscribed for the classégpred shares. As a result of the unexpected deriwa class B preferr
shares, the preemptive rights transferred to tiob&X shareholders were not sufficient to settleamtire purchase price payment obligations. Theb&toshareholders we
only able to subscribe to 4,673,600 class B prefeshares and we paid them the remaining outstaditance of the purchase price for their Globexret, R$451.8 millio
in cash, on October 2, 2009. The total amount vié ipacash and class B preferred shares was R$B Haiflion.

On December 22, 2009, we launched a tender offah#&remaining approximately 5% voting capitaiobex, in accordance with Brazilian regulationdenthe san
terms as the offer accepted by the initial 120 @lominority shareholders. The tender offer was kaiedd on February 3, 2010 and we acquired apprdgrign8.3% o
Globex's capital stock for R$28.4 million and 134Qclass B preferred shares, resulting in us bewgphulders of 98.8% of Globex's capital stock.

Pursuant to the terms and conditions for the adepnsof Globex, the class B preferred shares weamdatorily convertible into class A preferred glsaaccording to
pre-established schedule. The last conversion datelarmsary 7, 2011 and there was no outstanding Blassferred share. On March 31, 2011, our shddeh®approved

a general shareholders’ meeting the terminatiothefclass B preferred shares and ¢hange in the designation of class A preferredeshty preferred shares, without
alteration in the rights, preference, privilegesesms of the securities.
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For further information on the acquisition of Glabeee note 16 (b) to our financial statementaihet! in this annual report.
Amendments to the Partnership with Itad Unibanco SA.

In October 2004, we entered into a partnershipeagemt with Itall Unibanco S.A., or Ital Unibanca, thee creation of a financial institution named RtCexclusivel
offer to our customers financial products and s&wj such as private label credit cards to be eseldsively at our stores, widely accepted carssadirect consumer cre
and personal loans. The initial term of durationthef partnership was 20 years.

In December 2009, we amended the partnership agrgesith Itad Unibanco to include the financial sigliary of Globex into the partnership and to egtés term to a
additional five years. Ital Unibanco paid us R$608illion, of which, R$550.0 million related to t&Unibancaos right to enter into similar partnerships with exthetailer
and R$50.0 million related to the term of the parship until August 28, 2029. For further infornastion our partnership with Itat Unibanco, see dA&t€a) to our financi
statements included in this annual report.

Association Agreement with the Partners of Casa Baa Comercial Ltda.

We entered into an association agreement with aéntng@rs of Casa Bahia Comercial Ltda., a Brazifiame appliances retailer, pursuant to which our gamg and the
will integrate their respective businesses in theé appliances sector, including their e-commectigiies. For further information on the e-comnetiusiness, see “Neve
Pontocom.”

On December 4, 2009 we, Globex, Casa Bahia Conhdricla. and the partners of Casa Bahia Comercidaltwho are members of the Klein family, entemgd i
certain association agreement, aiming at combitfiegoperations of Globex, of certain assets of @Gdaa Comercial Ltda. and of Extra Eletro (CBD{pilone company,
the Association Agreement.

On July 1, 2010, certain provisions of the AssaciatAgreement were amended: (i) the consolidatibiGlmbex and certain assets of Casa Bahia Comelctitl
businesses into our home appliances sector, imgudome appliances retail activities performed BDCat its Extra Eletro stores, and (ii) the consolidation of hc
appliances ®@ommerce activities carried out by Globex, Cashi®&omercial Ltda. and CBD, or the Associatione Tdmendment to the Association Agreement
provided for the necessary phases for the impleatientof the Associatio

In the Association preparatory stage, on Octob@010, the partners of Casa Bahia Comercial Ltdetiglly spun-off Casa Bahia Comercial Ltda., a Bartial Spiroff,
which consisted mainly of certain operating asaets liabilities, rights and obligations relatedtie home appliances retail business of Casa Batviae®@ial Ltda., the lea
agreements related to these assets and 25% ofpiitalcstock of Indistria de Méveis Bartira Ltdar,Bartira, a furniture manufacturer company cafgtbby Casa Bah
Comercial Ltda. The valuation of the assets ofRhdial Spin©ff was based on the audited balance sheet of Baisia Comercial Ltda. as of June 30, 2010. Thi&pes o
Casa Bahia Comercial Ltda. transferred the asdetsedPartial Spirdff to a new and recently incorporated company, &@asa Bahia S.A. Also, on November 9, 2
Globex's shareholders approved the capital stociease by R$755,519,802.42 at the issue price d6R8® per share, fully paid-by us through the transfer of all the as
and liabilities referring to the home appliancesibass related to oliixtra Eletrostores, Bank Deposit Certificates and CBD recdeshgainst companies under its control.

At the same shareholders’ meeting held on Noverih@010, Globexs shareholders approved the merger of 100% shesaed by Nova Casa Bahia into Globex
means of the issue of new shares on behalf of dnmgrs of Casa Bahia Comercial Ltdapartners, or the Merger of Shares. The partrfe@asa Bahia Comercial Lt
became the holders of Globex shares representis§%rof Globex’s capital stock and CBD became thiddr of shares representing 52.41% of Globex'stabgtock.
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According to the terms of the Association Agreem@&atsa Bahia Comercial Ltda., CBD and Globex velliable for the obligations resulting from evept®or to the
date of the Merger of Shares, except for thoserdecbon the date of the Merger of Shares.

We, Globex, Casa Bahia Comercial Ltdad the partners of Casa Bahia Comercial Ltdaremtimto a shareholders’ agreement with aysiar term, renewable up
request of any of the parties for an additionahtef two years. The renewal is only valid if at thiration of the original term, there are no tanging shares correspond
to, at least, 20% of Globexcapital stock and the partners of Casa Bahia @uahétda. have sold a percentage lower than 28.64 Globex shares that they held on the
of the Merger of Shares. For further informationtbe shareholders’ agreement, see “ltem 10C. dat€ontracts.”

The parties to the Association Agreement jointlipraitted the conditions of the Association to th@&8lian antitrust authorities. On February 3, 2010, they exati
Provisional Agreement for Reversibility of the Oatéon with the Brazilian Administrative Council Bconomic Defense EADE, which establishes mainly that Globex
Nova Casa Bahia shall mainte

* their brandgCasas BahiandPonto Frioseparate as well as carry out separate promotiamapaigns, ensuring that advertisement and matketvestments remg
at levels compatible with previous years, excegth@écase of exceptional macroeconomic conditions;

* in operation their current stores located in 14@icipalities where these two companies operate;
«  their respective distribution centers and Bartinaiture factory;

» their respective credit granting policies; and

e separate their procurement structures and comnhemisracts.

Except for these specific conditions, the compani@y adopt the measures they deem necessary ateeheir operations and businesses and captarsynergie
resulting from this operation.

In addition, the companies undertake to maintagnsime overall employment levels at the distriloutienters and stores.
The transaction is subject to the approval of thezlian anti-trust authorities.
Reorganization of E-Commerce Operations

As part of the Association with the partners of &£Bshia Comercial Ltda., the parties to the AssmriaAgreement agreed to concentrate albexmerce assets of the |
de Aclcar Group and Casa Bahia Comercial Ltda. RantoFrio.Com Comércio Eletrdnico S.A., or Novant®eom, an e-commerce company controlled by Glokex.
November 8, 2010, at the special shareha’ meeting ofNova Pontocom, Globex approved a capital stockesse of Nova Pontocom. As a result of the capitakase, tt
new common shares to be issued will be paid-in Bp@nd Globex, as follows: (i) the common shardssstibed by Globex will be fully paigh through the transfer
assets, liabilities, rights and obligations relatedts wholesale activity, and (ii) the common sasubscribed by CBD will be fully paid-through the transfer of ass:
liabilities, rights and obligations related to #heme appliances e-commerce activities performeBxtsa.Com.

Nova Casa Bahia licensed to Nova Pontocom the righuse all the intellectual property rights retht® its eeommerce business, including the dor
www.casasbahia.com.br.

In addition, on November 8, 2010, Globex and NowatBcom acquired the remaining equity interesti#5n E-Hub, a service company in the@nmerce segme
which was a joint venture recorded as investmeatffifiated companies. Former owners oftb transferred their 55% equity interest to Gloaag Nova Pontocom and p
R$20.0 million maturing on January 8, 2013 in exgd®&of 6% of Nova Pontocom. For further informatin the acquisition of Eub, see note 16(c) to our consolid:
financial statements included in this annual report
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After completion of the reorganization of our e-goBrce operations, Nova Pontocom has an experienaedgement team, a platform integrated with stithesart e-
commerce technology, a broad portfolio of assetww.pontofrio.com.br, www.extra.com.br; www.casdsidacom.br; wholesale activities and E-Hubard a stron
connection with our physical locations, all suppdrby our large size, logistics and IT infrastruetu Globex is the controlling shareholder of Nd@antocom, holdin
common shares representing 50.1% of its capitakstoBD holds shares representing 43.9% and ceetedicutive officers of Nova Pontocom hold the rerimgj share:
representing 5.53%.

Proposal Letter from Gama 2 SPE Empreendimentos edrticipacdes S/A

On June 28, 2011, we received a proposal from GaBRE Empreendimentos e Participa¢des S/A, a $pecjgose company held by BTG Pactual Principaéstment
Fundo de Investimento em Participagbes. The pedmmhitemplates a business combination of the Bascdcar Group with the Carrefour Group, the sedangkst retaile
worldwide, headquartered in France. We attaclptbposal in its entirety as Exhibit 15.(a)(1) tstAnnual report.

The proposed business combination is subject tooappin accordance with the terms of the sharedrsldagreements filed in the Company's head offiogdWilkes
Participacdes S.A. and, as the case may be, hlineant corporate bodies of our Company, as veetha competent authorities, in Brazil and abraaduding the Brazilia
Securities and Exchange Comission - CVM and theiridirative counsel for economic defer@enselho Administrativo de Defesa Econdmica - CADE

We will publicly disclose any material further désement related to the proposed business combimatio
Capital Expenditures and Investment Plan

As part of our capital expenditures and investnpéam, we have invested approximately R$3,641.8anilin our operations for the three years endedeBer 31, 201
Our investments included:

Acquisitions of retail chains In the food retail sector, when entering new geplgi@a markets, we have generally sought to acquicallsupermarket chains to ber
from existing knowhow in the geographic region. For expansion withisean areas where we already have a presenceredargmce has been to open new stores. To en
home appliances retail sector, we acquired Globek entered into an Association with Casa Bahia ComelLtda. Our main focus in both sectors, thedfand hom
appliances retail sectors, is to expand organically we may continue carrying out strategic adtjaiss, to the extent that they result in synergiesl add value to o
business. Since 2008, we have acquired 1,015 storése home appliances retail sector. We have tspenaggregate of R$3,641.8 million on acquisitidresn 200¢
through 2010.

The following table presents information regarding acquisitions and the regional distributionta stores we acquired since 2008:
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Year Chains Acquired Stores Geographic Distribution
2009 Ponto Friél) 457 Sé&o Paulo, Rio de Janeiro, Distrito Federal, Bsp8anto, Minas Gerais, Mato Grosso, Parana,
Bahia, Goias, Rio Grande do Sul and Santa Catarina

2010 Casas Bahl@ 526 S&o Paulo, Rio de Janeiro, Distrito Federal, Bsp8anto, Minas Gerais, Mato Grosso, Mato
Grosso do Sul, Parand, Bahia, Goias, Sergipe amta Eatarin

Total 983

(1) Acquired in July 2009.
(2) Association Agreement entered into in Decan#®®9. The results of operations of Nova Casa@hhie been consolidated with our results of ofmeraas from November 1, 2010.

Opening of new stores and purchases of real esthighe food retail sector, we usually seek reahtesproperties to open new stores under one dbanmers in regiol
where there are no local supermarket chain acoprisitpportunities that suit one of our formats. Weve opened 125 new stores from 2008 through 2@ total cost ¢
opening these new stores and purchases of ret esta R$833.5 million.

Renovation of existing storesWe usually remodel some of oB&o de AglcarExtra, Assaistores every year. Through our renovation programadd refrigeratic
equipment to our stores, create a more modernpmestriendly and efficient environment, and outfit atores with advanced information technology systdm&010, w:
focused on the conversion of S&ndasstores and 48ompreBemstores intoExtra Supermercadstores and also on the conversiorEafra Eletrostores intoPonto Frio
stores. The total cost of renovating stores fro®82irough 2010 was R$1,256.2 million.

Improvements to information technologyWe view technology as an important tool for effi@g and security in the flow of information amortgres, distributio
centers, suppliers and corporate headquarters. &/e made significant investments in informationhteslogy in an aggregate amount of R$382.4 millioont 200¢
through 2010. For more information on our inforroattechnology, see “ltem 4B. Business Overview—fedbgy.”

Expansion of distribution facilities Since 2008, we have opened distribution centetharcities of Sdo Paulo, Brasilia, Fortaleza, RiaJdneiro, Recife, Salvador :
Curitiba. The increase and improvement in storgggce enables us to further centralize purchasingdo stores and, together with improvements to informatior
technology, improve the overall efficiency of onvéntory flow. We have spent an aggregate of R$&8llibn on our distribution facilities from 2008iough 2010.

The following table provides a summary descriptiour principal capital expenditures for the thyears ended December 31, 2010:

Year Ended December 3:

200¢ 200¢ 201C
(millions of reais)
Opening of new store R$ 138 R$ 228 R$ 335
Acquisition of retail chair - 885.1 225.2
Purchases of real est: 94.¢ 36.2 0.5
Renovation: 143.C 334.% 778.¢
Information technolog' 101.¢ 144.; 136.¢
Distribution centers 10.3 3.7 45.4
Total R$ 488.3 R$ 1,631.8 R$ 1,521.7

4B. Business Overview
The Brazilian Retail Industry

The Brazilian retail food industry represented agpnately 5.5% of BraziE GDP (gross domestic product) in 2010. Accordmnthe Brazilian Supermarket Associai
(Associagao Brasileira de Supermercadas ABRAS, the food retail industry in Brazil had graevenues of R$201.6 billion in 2010, representrig5% increase compa
with 2009.
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The Brazilian retail food industry is highly fragnted. Despite consolidation within the industngading to ABRAS, the three largest supermarkeinzheepresented
approximately 43.4% of the retail food industry,2@10, as compared to 40.4% in 2009. Our gross saefgesented 17.9% of the gross sales of theeaetiail food industi
in 2010, also according to ABRAS.

The cash-and-carry segmeatgcarejg, a wholesale segment in the retail food industrgs created in order to serve customers withiragket niche that was neitt
reached by self-service retail nor by wholesalecokding to a Kantar World Panel study publishedAgmil 7, 2011, sales in the cash-acary segment increased 24%
2010 compared to 2009 mainly due to the competiggs in the market and the attractiveness causkuviey prices and promotions.

The home appliances retail sector was the secorstlimportant segment in the retail business, dfteffood retail segment, which is explained byfth@rable econom
context in 2010, highlighted by the social ascemgiban important portion of the Brazilian consumerket. The migration of lower income classestedr-middle incom:
classes drove consumption of higher value-addedugts.

According to the Brazilian Institute of GeograpmdaStatisticsIfistituto Brasileiro de Geografia e Estatistjcar IBGE, the total population of Brazil was apgimately
190.7 million in 2010, a 12.3% growth compared 8@ Given that more than 83% of the populatiordiin urban areas (where most of our operationtoasged) and tf
urban population has been increasing at a greaterthan the population as a whole, our businepariscularly well positioned to benefit from Brési urban growth ar
economies of scale related to urban growth. The a@ftSdo Paulo has a population of approximately2 Million and the city of Rio de Janeiro has a yapon o
approximately 6.3 million. These are the two latgsties in Brazil. The State of S&o Paulo hastal fpopulation in excess of 41.2 million, repreggmniapproximately 21.6'
of the Brazilian population and is our largest eoner market. The State of Rio de Janeiro is ousrsttargest consumer market.

The Brazilian retail industry is perceived as etiaéiy growth-oriented, because retail margins are substantiadlye constrained compared to other industries. Y
therefore intrinsically dependent on the growtte rat Brazil's urban population and its different income levéhile living expenses in Brazil are lower thandbadn Nortl
America, Western Europe and Japan, Brazilian haldehcome levels are also substantially lower.

The Precedent Sales Inddrdice Antecedente de Vendas —)A8/an index based on information furnished byitets that allows the Institute for the Developmei
Retail (nstituto para Desenvolvimento do Varejo — )% analyze recent results of operations and pt@epectations of sales of retailers in the stesrh. According to tr
Precedent Sales Index, the sales in food retailsing, which is composed of supermarkets, hyperetarkdrugstores, cosmetic shops and eating owsstimcreased 13.2%
December 2010 compared to December 2009, whilsedles in the home appliances retail industry (furei electronics, durable goods, construction rra$g among other
increased 9.2% in December 2010 compared to Deael2®@9. The growth in both sectors was mainly doefavorable macroeconomic conditions that bene
consumption, such as lower interest rates in lt@aisdividuals, increased consumer confidence heddwest monthly unemployment rate of 5.7%, adogrtb IBGE.

The following table sets forth the different incomlass levels of Brazilian households, accordinthteoConsumption Potential Indelndice de Potencial de Consumo
IPC) Maps 2011.

Monthly Income (average

Class Leve (in reais)
Al 13,10(
A2 9,10C
B1 4,900
B2 2,75C
C1 1,65(
c2 1,10C
D 7u
E 49C
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As per the study from IPC Maps 2011, classes AlAthtouseholds will account for only 19.0% of than population and classes B1 and B2 householtasgbount for
46.4% of the urban population. Classes C1, C2, Ewill collectively represent 34.6% of all urbhauseholds. In recent years, the number of clags &)d E househol
has increased in terms of total urban householddteir average purchasing power has increased.

We expect that increased consumption by the lon@me class levels will occur over time as a resuthe gradual salary increases and a steadilwiggopopulatior
The Brazilian monthly minimum wage has increase®$545.00 in the middle of 2011. As seen in they@amediately following the introduction of theal, even sma
increments in purchasing power generally resukigmificant increases in consumption in absolutengeas well as increased expenditures in premiuoegifood produc
and other non-food items, including home appliaraz@s consumer electronics.

In 2010, as a result of favorable macroeconomiditims, there has been a migration of the popaafiom lower income classes to lowarddle income classes, wh
has positively affected us. The Brazilian lowerame population has been consuming products withenigdded value in the retail food segment, sugrogart and froze
food. In addition, they have gained access to ptsdsuch as laptops, new furniture and flat sciiéésin the home appliances retail industry. Inmterof social mobility i
urban areas, there is still a significant growthhie population from B2 and C1 income classes,endiohg Brazils middle class consumption is powering up. Thisntjtative
increase in the number of people usually derivemfC2 and D income classes, which in 2011 alsoeptsshigher consumption levels. Higher growth ipested in B
income class, which covers 20.9% of urban househal@011 (compared to 19.3% in 2010) and will actdor 25.4% of Brazil's consumption (compare@®&7% in 2010).

Our Company

We are the largest retailer in Brazil in the foethil sector based on both gross sales and nurfisésres. In 2010, we had a market share of apprataly 17.9% in tt
Brazilian food retail sector, according to ABRASIttwgross sales of R$36,144.4 million. As of DecemBl, 2010, we operated 1,647 stores, 81 ga®rstaéind 15
drugstores in 19 States and the Federal Distri@ddition to a logistics infrastructure suppotgdb0 distribution centers located in 14 States.

We classify the various business segments in wiiigloperate in four operating segments as follows:

. Food retail segmentwvhich consists of sales of food and non-food potsl to individual consumers at (i) supermarketsugh the banne®&ao de AgucarExtra
SupermercadadCompreBemandSendas(ii) hypermarkets through the banitetra Hipermercadasand (iii) convenience stores through the baiibxra FAcil

Food products include nqguerishable food products, beverages in general, fregetables, meat, bread, cold cuts, diary petejicleaning products, disposable prod
and personal care products. In some cases, thesis goe sold in the form of private label prodwdt®ur food retail stores. We also sell rfond products, which inclut
clothing items, baby items, shoes and accessdrmssehold articles, books, magazines, CDs and DBdionery, handcraft, toys, sports and campirgr,girniture
mattresses, pet articles and gardening. Some qirtiaicts listed above are also offered in the fofraur private label products. We also sell owdurcts in the food ret:
segment through our website www.paodeacucar.comithour Extra stores, we also sell electronics hsas personal computers, software, computer aadessand sour
and image systems.

In addition, we include in the food retail segmtm@ non-food products we sell at our drugstoresh 18 medications and dermocosmetics, and théawahproducts w
sell and the services we provide at our gas sttion

The food and noieod retail segments also include extended waearitiat we provide to our customers on the saf®wfe appliances sold at our stores and bill pay
services, in addition to the services directly a#tkat our stores, such as photo development.

e Cash-and-carry segmenthich consists of sales of food and some non-fmoducts to intermediate consumers and retaibousts through th&ssai banner.
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*  Home appliances segmenmthich consists of sale of durable goods, i.ectebnics, home appliances, furniture and othenstéor the home, and provision of
products and services, such as specialized anden@nt sales and after-sales service thrabgbas BahiandPonto Friostores.

. E-commerce segmenthich consists of our eemmerce operations through the websites ExtralmprRontoFrio.com.br, CasasBahia.com.br, wholeseliities
and E-Hub, owned by Nova Pontocom.

The following table sets forth the number of owres by region as of December 31, 2010:

State of Sdo Paulc South and Southeas Regions
(excluding the City of State of Rio de (excluding the States of Sdo Paulo North and Northeast ~ Middle -West Regior
City of S&o Paulc S&o Pauloft) Janeiro and Rio de Janeirof?) Regiond?) @
P&o de Agtcar 58 40 13 4 21 13
Extra Hipermercado 23 37 15 7 17 11
CompreBem 68 45 0 0 0 0
Sendas - - 17 0 0 0
Extra Facil 58 10 0 0 0 0
Extra Supermercado 5 45 43 0 8 0
Assai 18 19 10 0] 7 3
Ponto Frio 6C 102 96 15€ 53 39
Casas Bahia 86 177 94 97 28 44
Total 37¢ 475 28¢ 264 134 11C

(1) Consists of stores in 121 cities, includirgn@inas, Ribeirdo Preto and Santos.
(2) This area comprises the States of Espiritdd&Sdio Grande do Sul, Santa Catarina,Minas GeraisParana.
(3) This area comprises the States of Bahia,iP@arara, Pernambuco, Paraiba, Bahia, Rio Grantéode, Sergipe, Tocantins and Alagoas.

(4) This area comprises the States of Mato Grdes8ul, Mato Grosso, the Federal District and &oi&

The following table sets forth the total numbestufres at the end of the periods indicated pee $tymat:

Péo de
Aclcar CompreBer Extra Hiper Extra Eletra Senda Extra Facil Extra Supe Assa Ponto Frio Casas Bahi Total
As of December 31, 20C 14¢ 16& 10z 47 73 32 5 28 - 597
During 2009
Opened 5 - 2 - - 21 - 7 11 - 46
Closed @ @ - - @ @ @ - (13) - 0
Transferred (from)/to 3 @ (€} - ©) — - - —
Acquired - - - - - - - - 457 - 457
As of December 31, 20C 14¢ 157 108 47 68 52 13 40 45t 1,08(
During 2010
Openec 1 - 8 - - 23 2 13 8 - 55
Closed - 1) -1 3) 1) @) - - 1) - (14)
Transferred (from)/t 3 (43) - (44) (50) - 86 4 44 - -
Acquired - - - - - - - - - 52¢ 52€
As of December 31, 201 14¢ 112 11C 0 17 68 101 57 50€ 52€ 1,647

20

http://lwww.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1038572/@¥2B1411001900/cbdform20f2010.} 1/7/201:



cbdform20f2010.htn- Generated by SEC Publisher for SEC F

Segment Revenue and Income Distribution

Page2t of 254

Table of Contents

The table below shows our revenues from our opegatégments and their participation in our netmees. Results of the operating segments are pessentFRS, th
measure used by management in evaluating the peafare of and strategy for the four segments liseddw.

Operating segmen

Year ended
December 31, 2010

Net Revenues from the Segme

(in millions of R$)

Percentage o

Total Net Revenues

Food retai
Casl-anc-carry

Home appliance
E-commerce

Péo de Aclcar Grouf

20,562. 64.1%
2,922.¢ 9.1%
6,902.: 21.5%
1,703.¢ 5.3%

32,091 100.0%

The table below shows the profit or loss (as theeaaay be) from each of the operating segmentgtaid participation in our net income. Results loé peratin
segments are presented in IFRS, the measure usedrgement in evaluating the performance of amatesfy for the three segments listed below.

Operating segmen

Year Ended
December 31, 2010

Net Income from the Segmer

Percentage o

Food retai
Cast-anc-carry

Home appliance
E-commerce

P&o de Aclcar Grouf

Operations

(in millions of R$) Total Net Income
724. 104.7%
13 2.0%
(49.0; (7.1)%
2.6 0.4%
691.¢ 100.(%

The following table sets forth the number of stotbe total selling area, the average selling @erastore, total number of employees and the res savenue as

percentage of our total net sales revenue for ebobir store formats as of December 31, 2

Total Average Selling Area
Selling Area Per Store Percentagt
(in square (in square Total Number of of Our Net Sales

Store Format Number of Stores meters) meters) Employees(l) Revenues
P&o de Aclca Supermarke 14¢ 198,25: 1,331 14,94¢ 13.4%
CompreBerf?) Supermarket 115 131,06 1,16¢ 8,42 .
Extra Hipermercado Hypermarket 11¢ 765,67 6,961 26,53t 35.2042)
Extra Facil Convenience sto 68 14,93% 22 477 14.3%
Extra Supermercad supermarke 101 137,26! 1,35¢ 2,174 9.2%
Assai Cash and car 57 176,71( 3,10C 9,25% -
Senda®) Supermarket 17 45,38( 2,66¢ 6,401 26.8%

@ Home appliances store

Ponto Frio 50¢€ 363,31: 71¢€ 11,42¢ -
Casas Bahi Home appliances stc 52¢€ 978,51: 1,86( 51,89: -
Head office & distribution center R } } 13.38( R
Total 1,647 2,811,10: 2,15¢ 144,91 100.0%

(1) Based on the average of the full-time eq@mahumber of employees, which is the product efrthmber of all retail employees (full- and peéame) and the ratio of the average monthly hourallofetail employee

to the average monthly hours of full-time employees
(2) Extra Facilsales included ixtra Hipermercadaales.
(3) CompreBemandSendassales included iExtra Supermercadsales.
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(4) Extra EletroandNova Casa Bahiaales included in Globe®o¢nto Frio) sales since November, 20Mbva Ponto.comsales included iRonto Friosales Extra.com as of May 2010 an@asasBahia.conas of
November 2010)

For a detailed description of net sales revenuedah of our store formats, see “ltem 5A. OperaRegults.”
Food Retail Operating Segment
P&o de Agulcar Stores

P&o de Aclcapperates convenient neighborhood stores, whictpea@ominantly located in large urban areas (witer@nethird located in the greater Sdo Paulo
area). We believe that the locations of 8o de Aglcastores are a competitive advantage since avaikitde in those urban areas are scarce.Pitede Agucastore:
target the Brazilian class A and class B housebolisumers. The stores are characterized by a plesisapping environment, a broad mix of qualitydurcts, innovativ
service offerings and high level of customer sexvigith an average of 75.4 employees per 1,000requaters of store space. Many of these storegréeapecialty areas st
as perishables, baked goods, wine, readyatodishes, meat, cheese and seafood departmeanty. $tbres have shopping advisors that assistroessowith inquiries abo
their particular needs, prices, special discountskaand information.

As of December 31, 2010, we had I2&o de Ac¢ucastores. Thé&do de Aglcastores range in size from 120 to 4,670 squaremnated as of December 31, 2010, ha
average of 1,331 square meters of selling spaced pooducts represented 94.0% of gross sales revatitibutable tdPao de Acucain 2010 and nofieod product
represented 6.0%.

The P&o de Aglcabanner recorded gross sales of R$4,762.1 millioR0il0, representing an increase of 12.1% relabi\2009. This increase was a result of the s
performance of thP&o de Aclcabanner in the Northeast and Midwest regions aadctmsolidation of the management of B#®o de Agucabanner that helped to crea
single identity for this banner in Brazil while pexting regional characteristics.

CompreBem Stores

CompreBensupermarkets offer competitive prices and servi€esnpreBemstores target the Brazilian classes C, D and Bétmld consumers. Generally, prod
offered at oulCompreBemstores are more competitively priced than prodaffesed at ouP&o de Aglcastores. With an average of 64.3 employees pe0lsQ0are mete
of store spaceCompreBemstores are characterized by a lower level of petired services and different products and assmtmf products, compared Rfio de Aglcar
stores.

As of December 31, 2010, we had 1@8mpreBemstoresCompreBem’sstores range in size from 316 to 3,125 squarersated had an average of 1,160 square n
of selling space as of December 31, 2010. Foodymtsdrepresented 90.6% of gross sales revenubuttile toCompreBemstores in 2010 and ndoned product
represented 9.4%.

CompreBensales are included iBxtra SupermercaddWe expect to convert ti@ompreBemstores intdExtra Supermercadstores by the end of 2011.

Sendas Stores

In December 2003, we formed the Sendasociation through which we subsequently acquinedsendashain. Similarly to ouCompreBembanner, th&Sendasbanne
offers competitively priced products and targetslafé and lower income consumers (i.e., the Brazitilasses C, D and Ejendasstores are all located in lowéncome
neighborhoods in the State of Rio de Janeiro.

As of December 31, 2010, we had 3&ndasstores.Sendas’sstores range in size from 308 to 3,894 squarermeted had an average of 2,669 square meterslioiy
space as of December 31, 2010. Food products eyees90.1% of gross sales revenue attributalimiopreBemstores in 2010 and non-food products represeng®d.9
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Sendassales are included iBxtra SupermercaddVe expect to convert tiendasstores intdExtra Supermercadstores by the end of 2011.
Below we summarize the stock purchase agreemesrteghinto between Sendas S.A. and the subsidiageRaa.

Sendas S.A. and its subsidiary Barcelona entetedaiistock Purchase Agreement and Other Covenartteinsfer the Sendas Distribuidaahares held by Sendas ¢
to Barcelona. This non-controlling interest acdiosi was approved by our Board of Directors andrapgd in our shareholders’ general meeting.

Sendas S.A. transferred to Barcelona its entirerést in Sendas Distribuidora, corresponding t&7%. of the capital stock for R$ 377.0 million to p&id as follows
R$ 59.0 million upon the transfer of shares andrémeaining amount of R$ 318.0 million in six annaall consecutive installments of R$ 53.0 millide first installment
due in July 2011, adjusted by IPCA (Extended CoresuRrice Index) as of the fourth installment, asdfram July to December 2010. This present valuehsigatior
assumed at December 31, 2010 was R$ 324.3 million.

Extra Hipermercados Stores

Extra hypermarkets are our largest stores. We introdticechypermarket format in Brazil with the openioigour first 7,000 square meter store in 1971. Ex&a
hypermarkets offer the widest assortment of pradotfany of our store formats and have an averalljegarea of 6,961 square meters as of Decenhe2®L0. TheExtra
stores target the Brazilian classes B, C, D anfistof December 31, 2010, we had Hxra stores, including stores that opened in 2010. skhe of food products and non-
food products represented 61.6% and 38.4%xtfa Hipermercad® gross sales in 2010, respectively.

Gross sales of thextra banner in 2010, includingxtra Facil sales, reached R$12,641.3 million, a 8.4% increasgpared to 2009. This increase was due to theirng
of severExtra Hipermercadosnd 16Extra Facil stores.

Extra Supermercado Stores

As of December 31, 2010, we operated Bxira Supermercadstores. OuExtra Supermercadbanner is characterized by stores with sales @freg to 464 squa
meters and a complete mix of food products and rgémeerchandise. OUExtra Supermercadstores are complete neighborhood supermarketsexiteptional meat a
bakery products, where families can stock up tpeintries rapidly and economically and also acqaineide range of household items, in an easily aisles pleasal
environment with exemplary customer service. THe s&food products and non-food products represeR.3% and 7.7% dixtra Supermercade gross sales in 20:
respectively.

As part of our strategy to increase our operatiorthis segment and take advantage of the migratiadhe Brazilian population from lower income dde lowermiddle
income class, we have been converttgmpreBemand Sendasstores intoExtra Supermercadstores to unify our banners that are targeteawaerd to middle incorr
consumers. Through this conversion process, wenéhto strengthen our position in this increasingfgwing segment of the Brazilian population anganline ou
operations.

Gross sales of thExtra Supermercadoformat in 2010, includingCompreBemand Sendassales, reached R$5,066.7 million, a 6.1% increasepared to 2009. Tt
increase was due to improvements in the shoppingament of the stores and assortment adjustrteatsdelivered higher sales per store, speciallgahpreBemanc
Sendas

Extra Facil Stores

With the establishment of thiéxtra Facil banner in July 2007, we significantly increased presence in the convenience store segment, wherbad already be
operating through ouExtra Supermercadstores. We opened 16 new stores in 2010, brintpiegotal ofExtra Facil stores to 68 units as of December 31, 2@kira Facil is
characterized by small retail stores with up torfobmeck-outs and offers convenience, proximity &amdlity. The sale of food products and nfaed products represen
95.3% and 4.7% dExtra Facils gross sales in 2010, respectively.
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Gas Stations

As of December 31, 2010, we were operating 81 g#ss, two of which were opened in 2010. Our sfations are located within the parking area ofaberof ou
stores. The location of our gas stations allowsaustomers to both go shopping and refuel theimdate they are on our premises. Our strategy &= stations is based
competitive prices and the reliability and quatifyfuel, which is assured by the brand. We expedb¢rease the number of gas station units, edpeiriaconnection with th
Extra andAssai banners, and increase synergies with drugstoeExma Facil stores.

Drugstores

With 153 units in operation, we operate one oflérigest drugstore chains in Bragifetail food industry. We opened a total of thmeg stores in 2010. In addition,
recently launched a series of initiatives that wheve contribute to the success of our drugstanesding: (i) reorganization of management, giilccessful renegotiation
prices with suppliers and (jii) strategic adjustitsetio the assortment and services offered at augstiores

P&o de Agucar Delivery

The Pao de Acucar Delivery, or PA Delivery, is ateasion of ouPdo de Aglcabanner. Through the PA Delivery, our clients ongerducts through the Internet. As
December 31, 2010, we had nine PA Delivery unitBiiazil, three located in the Greater S&o Paula,asge in each of the cities of Indaiatuba (intedbthe State of Si
Paulo), Bertioga (in the coastal region of theestdtS&do Paulo), Rio de Janeiro, Brasilia, Curitibd Fortaleza.

Cash-and-Carry Operating Segment

Assali Stores

The cash-andarry segment (atacarejo segment), a wholesaleesggmthe retail food industry, is one of the ésstgrowing market segments in Brazil in terms @
store openings. This segment was created in ood&rt/e institutional consumers like processetaijlees and users, offering highly competitive pa@nd quality products.

Assai has been operating in the cash-@ardy segment for 37 years and as of December®), Assai had 9,253 employees and 57 stores.1@, 202 opened 17 n¢
Assaistores. Out of the 17 nedssai stores, 13 stores were newly opened and foursstwege converted into Assai format from other besin@ 2010, theéAssai banne
recorded gross sales of R$3,255.2 million.

Home Appliances Operating Segment

Ponto Frio Stores

Our Ponto Friostores are specialized in home appliances suchresimer electronics and furniture. As of Decemider2810, we were operating 56@@nto Friostore:
as a result of our acquisition of Globex in July26D9. In 2010Ponto Friostores had gross sales of R$7,040.7 million. Farenrdormation on the acquisition of Globex,
“Item 4A. History and Development of the CompanyAequisition of Globex Ponto Frig).”

Through ourPonto Friostores, we seek to provide our customers with #s purchasing experience for electronics, appiisnand household products. Ganto Frio
stores have a large variety of products and se\doe offer personalized and specialized serviogagiand after sales.

Casas Babhia Stores

Our Casas Bahiastores are specialized in electronics/househofiliaagces and furniture. As of December 31, 2010,weee operating 526 stores as a result o
Association with Casa Bahia Comercial Ltda. In Nober and December 201Casas Bahiastores’'gross sales totaled R$2,972.3 million. For morerimation on th
Association with Casa Bahia Comercial Ltda., séemil4A. History and Development of the CompanyAssociation Agreement with the Partners of Casa@@lomercic
Ltda..”
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Our Casas Bahiastores have a business and management modeldraséedplicity in the relationship with customerig relationship allow€asas Bahido provide
easy and simple access to credit to customerselhasvwrespect and dedication to customers, supmigd business partners.

E-commerce Operating Segment

In line with our strategy of expanding our sharehe sales of home appliances through e-commereecomsolidated our eemmerce operations by creating a
company called Nova Pontocom. This segment conzistale of home appliances, i.e., electronicgjifure and other items for the home through thesiteb: Extra.com.kt
PontoFrio.com.br and CasasBahia.com.br

Seasonality

We have historically experienced seasonality inrestlts of operations, principally due to tradiadly stronger sales in the fourth quarter holidagson. Sales reven
in December are typically 40% above the averagessavenues in the other months. We also experignmeg seasonality in our results for the montipfil as a result
the Easter holiday where we offer specialized petslfor the occasion as well as in Soccer World @rars where some of our products experience aedre in sales.

Seasonality relating to the availability of someoaf products (such as fruits and vegetables) daffiect our results due to the large and diveedecsion of products v
offer our customers.

Our Products

Our products in the food retail sector are mosthdy-for-sale products that we purchase and reselir endaser consumers. Only a portion of our productpaseuce:
at our stores, which are, based on formulationpgresl by our technical team for development ofghadbles. In certain circumstances, we have enietegartnerships wii
suppliers who deliver semi-finished products thatfanished at our stores.

The products manufactured and/or handled at ouestare: (i) fruits and vegetables, cut or packagealir stores; (ii) meat (beef, pork, chicken &sd) as well as co
cuts and cheese, which are cut, weighed and padkatgeur stores; (iii) ready-teat meals sold at our delis; and (iv) bread, cakessweets made at the bakeries loc
within our stores.

We do not manufacture the products sold under aur @éxclusive brands. These products are manufathyeuppliers who are carefully selected by oum@any, afte
the quality of their service and their capacityrteet our demand has been thoroughly evaluated.byhesdevelopment of products carrying our own esigle brand is guide
by a detailed process aimed at standardizing cadymts and ensuring the produatsanufacturing and launch within the commercial atvdtegic targets of our brands
compliance with our quality standards, involvingivas areas of our Company.

We purchase our products in the home appliances setctor from suppliers and resell them to out-eser consumers.

Suppliers

The purchasing of our products for de@io de AgicarCompreBemSendasExtra HipermercadasExtra Supermercadd;xtra Facil andAssai stores is centralized a
we purchase substantially on a spot or short-texsistfrom a large number of unaffiliated suppliés.a result, we are not dependent on any singiplisu.

The purchasing of our products for dRwnto FrioandCasas Bahiatores and for our eemmerce operating segment is separated and wegserédrom a small number
suppliers.
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Distribution and Logistics

In order to efficiently distribute perishable foptbducts, grocery items and general merchandis@peeate 51 distribution centers (including thob&lova Casa Bah
and Globex) strategically located in 14 States \&itiotal storage capacity of approximately 1,366,8quare meters. We were the first retailer in Btazhave a centraliz¢
distribution center. The locations of our distribatcenters enable us to make frequent shipmersgtotes, which reduces the need of in-store invgrgpace, and limits non-
productive store inventorie

Our distribution centers are, among others, supddoyy pd@net, a businessHosiness technology platform which links our conep@utomated ordering system to
distribution centers and suppliers in order to matically replenish our inventory.

In 2010, we focused on the following tasks: (i) wipg of seven distribution centers, which we badiavill support our growth through m2B12; (ii) investment i
technological advances, which provided us with eacy; assertiveness and productivity gains; amda@vances in our distribution platform as a reséithe implementatic
of a new system and our adoption of the softwail@r—Retail, which were key to our improvement in thenagement of the demand. For 2011, our strategynsview ou
entire logistics network to include all of our ussses and optimize the use of our different sittdle assuring that the particularities of eaclsibess is respected. 1
expectation is to capture gains through the rednaif losses and working capital.

Our logistics and distribution processes are diyicleaccordance with the products and serviceswsadgr our banners. Accordingly, our distributiongesses are guid
by the following procedure:

Stores, Supermarkets and Hypermarkets

As of December 31, 2010, the logistic process fopBuour stores, supermarkets and hypermarketdu@ing Ponto Frig Casas Bahiaour eeommerce busines
drugstores and gas stations) included 23 distobutienters located in the States of Sdo PaulodRidaneiro, Ceara, Pernambuco, Bahia, Parana arfeetteral Distric
corresponding to a 397,000 square megeesa including both our own and outsourced distidibucenters. Our distribution process is perforgdn outsourced fleet that,
December 31, 2010, totaled more than 1,300 veh@tehisively dedicated to this activity, all of whiare tracked via GPS. As of December 31, 2010¢entralization ra
(the percentage of the products supplied at ouestilmat come directly from our distribution cerjexnas 85%.

Orders made for our non-centralized products ardentirectly by the stores and delivered by the Bergpfollowing the supply model known as “Directhtiy.” As ol
December 31, 2010, 15% of our stores sales comelggioto “Direct Entry” products, especially ornartaplants, cigarettes, ice creams, yogurts andaziags.

Electronic products and home appliances — CasdsaBand Ponto Frio stores

Our logistics process associated with Qasas Bahiaand Ponto Frio stores involve an examination of Ponto Frio’s stbferecast for sales, which we use to sul
orders to our suppliers. Once these orders aredsshe delivery of products is managed by Glohgply chain area, which analyzes inventory leveddes estimates by st
and other variables and schedules the deliverphefréquested products with our suppliers. The ptsdare delivered and distributed among Globedistribution center
which as of December 31, 2010 totaled 16 distrilsutienters located in 11 States (Rio de JaneimP&éalo, Minas Gerais, Parana, Bahia, EspiritocG@nias, Mato Gross
Mato Grosso do Sul, Santa Catarina and the FeDéstict.)

PA Delivery

Our PA Delivery units share the same inventorieth wur stores, where our PA Delivery units aretsgially located, to take advantage of a largeaaf delivery ar
profit from it.

Nova Pontocom

Our non-food products eemmerce network offers assistance to our cligmwtsugh two distribution centers. These centersiaeel for storage and handling of goods;
the time they are selected and packed untiirikieice is issued and the products are shippednUpe placement of the order on our website orutjinoour call center al
confirmation of the payment by the financial ingtibn, the products are selected by a specialigatht are checked and packaged by our quality datemartment, and tl
invoice is issued.
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Drugstores

Our drugstores are supplied with medications andllai products, the latter following the same digttion logistic used for our supermarkets and hyekets
Medications are delivered by specialized distribsitwho intermediate the process between our Comaadythe respective drug manufacturers. As of Deeerd1, 2010, w
maintained agreements with three major distribuésrsvell as with some regional distribution companWe do not maintain drug inventories. Medicatiare requested
distributors through purchase orders that are raaderding to the needs of our drugstores.

In 2010, through a dedicated logistics operatorMBO Farma, located in S&o Paulo, we have made direchpses from the pharmaceutical industry. Theibigion
center operates in the interior of the State of Béidlo and currently serves our drugstores lodattus State.

Gas Stations

Our gas stations are supplied by exclusive suppliks of December 31, 2010, we used five suppli®spply orders are made individually by each atatand fuel i
requested through purchase orders orgumeed daily supplies, pursuant to the respectwgces agreement entered into with each gas stdfieel transportation is carr
out exclusively by our supplier while unloading ost@ns being closely followed by our employeesdafety and quality control reasons. The processdmpressed natu
gas, or GNV is different. GNV is delivered by reggd suppliers directly to the gas stations, throdghlers and using pipelines connected to the rr@rhoxes located at !
gas stations and holding fuel meters installed @rdrolled by the dealers themselves. This equipmegularly measures the GNV volumes supplied. Gsl¥old throug
dispensers attached to these entrance box, usiffisppipelines.

Marketing

Our marketing policy is aimed at attracting andirghg our customers. To this end, we conduct iatiegl marketing campaigns that are specific to stmte banner
which we operate and are structured and directéoeatarget market for each store banner. Our niackéeams are media experts dedicated to devejapiality marketin
campaigns to emphasize our strength in terms et8eh, service and competitive prices.

In 2008, 2009 and 2010 we spent approximately R®180llion, R$266.4 million and R$281.0 milliorespectively, on advertising (approximately 1.09%9%4 and 0.9¢
of total net sales revenues in each year, resgéytiVAlso, 28.0%, 26.3% and 28.1% of our total keting expenditures in 2008, 2009 and 2010, resy¢t were spent ¢
radio, newspaper and magazine advertising. Tetaviadvertisements accounted for 38.2%, 39.2% ar@P@5f advertising expenses in 2008, 2009 and 2@&Hpectively
We spent 33.8% in 2008, 35.6% in 2009 and 36.120k0 on other promotional activities.

FIC and Investcred

Before our acquisition of Globex, it had enteretbian association with UnibancoUnido de Bancos Brasileiros S.A. (currently, Itaditdnco), Banco Investcr
Unibanco S.A., or Investcred. In December 2009,awended the Partnership with Ital Unibanco to ofellnvestcred into the Partnership and to exterdPértnershig’
term to an additional five years. Itad Unibancadpas R$600.0 million, of which, R$550.0 million a&d to Itat Unibance’right to enter into similar partnerships withe
retailers and R$50.0 million related to the ternthef partnership until August 28, 2029.

FIC operates service kiosks in our stores that lexetusive rights to offer private label and lm@nded credit cards, personal and consumer @aeditnsurance. FIC h
been operating for six years and has 7.8 milliost@aumers (including the customer base of Investcrelich represents approximately one third of aistemers. Each of ¢
Company and Itad Unibanco holds 50% of BI€apital stock. Our Company holds 36% and Glolmesh14%. Itad Unibanco is responsible for managit@ and appointir
the majority of its officers.
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FIC’s share of our total gross sales amounted 10%4s of December 31, 2010. In 2010, FIC had aityeopcome of R$47.4 million — a significant impement
compared to the R$15.2 million in 2009. This pearfance was in line with our strategy to increaseRiizcards share of sales, making it the best payment optitine store
and e-commerce operations, with exclusive benafitsadvantages for card-holders.

The table below sets forth the breakdown of FIQistemers in 2008, 2009 and 2010.

Total number of clients (in thousands

200¢ 2004Y) 20042 201C
Private label cards 4,42: 4,262 4,262 5,172
Co-branded cards 78C 97¢ 68t 78¢
Direct consumer credit agreements 13t 35¢ 38 70
Extended warranty 67¢ - - -
Personal loans 53 57 9 24
Flex cards - 1,249 - 1,710
Total 6,06¢ 6,90 4,992 7,76¢

(1) Including Globex (Ponto Frio).
(2) Excluding Globex (Ponto Frio).

Credit Sales

In 2010, 54.3% of our net sales revenue were repted by credit sales in the form of credit carlésanstallment sales, podé&ted checks and purchase vouchers
allowance for doubtful accounts is based on avehigjerical losses complemented by the Companyimates of probable future losses:

Credit card salesAll of our store formats accept payment for pasds with MasterCard, Visa, Diners Club, AmericaprEss and our cbranded credit cards. Sale:
customers using credit cards accounted for 40.@6% and 45.8% of our net sales revenue in 20089 20d 2010 respectively. From this total, salesutjh private lab
and co-branded credit cards accounted for 156@ur net sales revenue in 2010. An allowancedfabtful accounts is not required as credit rigkssabstantially assum
by credit card companies or issuing banks.

Purchase voucherdVe accept as payment in our stores vouchersddsyi¢hird party agents to participating companig® provide them to their employees as a fr
benefit. Purchase vouchers accounted for 1.0%, &ab#65.9% of our net sales revenue in 2008, 20@92810 respectively. An allowance for doubtful agus is nc
required as credit risks are substantially assupyeitie companies that issue the vouchers.

Credit sales OurExtra hypermarketsPonto FrioandCasas Bahiastores offer attractive consumer financing condagito our customers who frequently purchase |
appliances on an installment basis. The installreealets accounted for 1.5%, 1.0% and 2.6% of oal twt sales revenue in 2008, 2009 and 2010 reégelciThese sales ¢
splitin:

Post-dated check®ost-dated checks are used as financial instrisnreBrazil to make purchases. Pdated checks are executed by a consumer with eefdate (up t
60 days) instead of the date of the purchase. @tadler typically deposits the check only as o thiture date, and interest for the time elapséacisided in the amount of t
check. We currently have podéted check programs in which interest is compotethe settlement amount based upon a fixed morgitdyof interest (to a lesser extent
certain promotional programs no interest is chayxgét limit the availability of postlated checks to customers who meet our creditrierigend who hold our identificatit
card. Sales to customers using post-dated checksiaied for 1.5%, 0.7% and 0.2% of our net salesmee in 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively.

Installment sales (“Crediario”) Our Casas Bahiastores offer easy access to credit through paysigst (carnés”) to our customers to finance their purchases. Sa
customers using payment slips accounted for 2.42010.
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Technology

We invested R$101.8 million in information techrgpldan 2008, R$144.fillion in 2009 and R$136.4 million in 2010. Oufanmation technology department is
interconnected with our other departments, streangiour strategic initiatives.

During 2010, we focused on continuing the projéictsd were initiated in 2009. We completed the mbf@racle — Retail, the Comparsylargest technology investmen
recent years. During 2010, we concluded all stafeeployment. In 2011, we will commence the rai;dy category, to the distribution centers anafbur stores. Oracle
Retail is expected to reduce the levels of invgntord breakage in the stores, maximizing employeskwand minimizing consumergerception of lack of products on
shelves.

Other main projects developed during 2010 include:

SAP— SAP will be the platform used to integrate alltteé companies in the Group. SAP is already opegati all areas of our financial bacifice. In 2011, we wi
introduce the system in our cash-azairy and home appliances segments. We believeattoaiting a single platform will lead to better toh integrity and uniformity c
processes among the compatr

DemandTec- We implemented DemandTec in all of the Comparstpermarkets, hypermarkets and proximity retailets. The tool facilitated the studies of p
elasticity of products sold. The studies allowedaumaximize supply at the best price and impravedgin.

Intellectual Property

We consider our brands to be one of our most véguadsets and have worked extensively to definetiaeacteristics of each of our bannétst(a, Extra Supermercad
Extra Facil, Pdo de Aclcar, CompreBem, Sendas,Brib, Casas Bahi andAssaj in terms of expectations, consumption patterrs @urchasing power of the differ
income levels in Brazil. We believe that Brazilieansumers associate with each of our banners #isgeenbination of products, services and prioeels.

In Brazil, to acquire a brand it is necessary fiiciafly register it withInstituto Nacional de Propriedade Industri@dlational Industrial Property Institute), or INAlhis
registration gives the owner the exclusive rightise the trademark throughout Brazil for a renee/aleriod of time.

As of December 31, 2010, our most important trademéao de Agucar, Companhia Brasileira de Disit#o, Barateiro, Extra, Qualita, CompreBem, Sentdlasq
Ponto Frio, Casas Bahia and Assai, among otherg) dudy registered with INPI and we had approxinya2e419 trademarks registered or in the procedmofg registered
Brazil. We did not have any registered patentsf@egember 31, 2010.

Regarding Casa Bahia Comercial Ltda.’s trademahes parties executed the “Trademark AssignmentTaadsfer Agreement,through which Casa Bahia Comer
Ltda. assigned and transferred the property dfatiemarks registered in Brazil to Nova Casa Bahia.

We own the following domain names, among others: wwextra.com.br www.paodeacucar.com,brwww.comprebem.com.pbr www.assaiatacadista.com.br
www.pontofrio.com.br, www.sendas.com.br and www.casasbahia.corlbte that these domain names are for informaiiugposes only and the information containe
these websites is not incorporated by referentieisrannual report.

Competition

Brazil's leading retail food companies are controlled dypanies headquartered abroad. Foreign preseribe Brazilian retail food industry started with Rel retai
food chain, Carrefour. In the past decade, the th8in WalMart has also entered the Brazilian market, mostipugh the acquisition of domestic retail food iob:
increasing competition in the industry. Thus, theZflian retail food industry is highly competitivblonetheless, supermarket penetration levels aziBrin terms of th
number of supermarkets in proportion to the coustpopulation and area, is estimated to be lowar tha levels recorded in the United States, seWwdkdtern Europe:
countries and some South American countries.
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Recently, leading retail food companies, including Company, have acquired various chains. Onenté@nd in the retail food industry is the migoatiof large chains
to smaller formats, such as neighborhood banneesb®eve that hypermarkets should increase tinairesin the clothing, general goods, electronidpots, furniture ar
construction materials markets as well as in otla¢egories of nofeod products, in order to take advantage of tlwsvir in department stores and stores specializirthig
segment in Brazil.

Despite operating in various Brazilian regions, diraension, wealth and importance of the State&af Baulo drive the concentration of our stores thi® market, wit
the State of Rio de Janeiro being the second lacpesumer market for our operations.

Our competitors vary depending on the regionaltionaof the stores. Our principal competitors i tBtate of Sdo Paulo are Sonda, Pastorinho, Carréftambo
Futurama and Walmart. In Brasilia, our principainpetitors are Carrefour, Super Maia, Super CeiBigdBox. In the State of Rio de Janeiro, our praticompetitors a
Mundial, Guanabara, Prezunic and Zona Sul supeetmarkn the States of Paraiba, Pernambuco, Cedrdiani, our principal competitors are the locgesmarkets, i
addition to GBarbosa and Bomprego.

The principal competitor of Extra hypermarket isit@four, which operates stores in the southeastednsouthern regions of Brazil, and Walmart, whipkrates throug
various banners in the southeastern, northeastersa@uthern regions of Brazil.

Assaichain competes with Atacaddo, a wholesale chaim 34 stores purchased by Carrefour in 2007, Rel@i@nda, Makro and Maxxi.

In the State of Sdo Paulo, oOpmpreBemstores face strong competition from various smabgional chains. In the State of Rio de Jandfre,main competitors
ABCCompreBem and Sendas are Guanabara, Prezumia,Sid and Mundial.

In our other regional markets, we compete not avith the organized food retail sector, but alschwiairious small and mediusized chains, family companies and f
retail businesses.

In the home appliances market, the principal coitgretof ourExtra Eletrq Casas BahiandPonto Friostores are Magazine Luiza, Pernambucanas, Ricdedim E&nc
Lojas Insinuante.

In relation to our food products ammerce, our PA Delivery units are market leaders do not face competition at the national lehekvever there are relevi
competitors in local markets, such as Zona Sulckvhas a higher market share than us in the ciBi@fe Janeiro, Mercadorama, which belongs td/faémart group, in tt
city of Curitiba, and Sonda, in the city of S&o Bau

In non-food products e-commerce, our competitoesBrazilian and foreign companidale believe that the competition from foreign coniparis not material in tk
segment. According to a study by Exame, a Brazitiasiness magazine in the beginning of March 20%a Pontocom (comprised tixtra.com.br, PontoFrio.com anc
CasasBahia.com)holds the second highest market share in thisneagy Our competitors in this segment are B2W, rifeket leader, which own&mericanas.Cor
SubmarincandShoptimeamong othersCompra Facilof the Hermes Grouplagazine LuizaWalmart,Saraiva Carrefour andFast Shop

Regulatory Matters

We are subject to a wide range of governmentallagign and supervision generally applicable to cames engaged in business in Brazil, including feldestate ar
municipal regulation, such as labor laws, publialtteand environmental laws. In order to open apdrate our stores, we need a business permit éna@gproval, &
inspection certificate from the local fire departh@as well as health and safety permits. Our staressubject to inspection by city authorities. Wétieve that we are
compliance in all material respects with all apalie statutory and administrative regulations wétbpect to our business.

Our business is primarily affected by a set of comsr protection rules regulating matters such artiding, labeling and consumer credit. We beliexe are il
compliance in all material respects with these oorer protection regulations.
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As a result of significant inflation during long s in the past, it was common practice in Braait to label individual items. However, a recerglyacted feder
regulation established that products exposed tswuoerrs must contain information about prices (fistance price tags, signs or bar codes which caedmewith scanners)
order to facilitate the identification of pricesedich product by the consumer. Pursuant to theseules, the pricing information must be physicatyached or adjacent to
product. When bar codes are used, the commerdablestiment is required to provide easily access#tdanners. We believe that we are in compliantke thiese ne
provisions in all material aspec

The Brazilian Congress is discussing a bill requgira prior assessment of the impact of the consruof a hypermarket in excess of 1,000 squaresraein the releva
neighborhood. The proposed regulation is intenadegrotect traditional familypwned retailers that have increasingly lost madteire in Brazil to the larger chains
hypermarkets. Regulations of this type alreadyteatishe municipal level. For example, governmeatghorities in the city of Porto Alegre in the t8taf Rio Grande do S
issued a city ordinance in January 2001 prohibitirgconstruction of food retail stores with aisgllarea greater than 1,500 square meters, whibhain2005, was amend
as to increase from 1,500 to 2,500 squares médterselling area of food retail stores. Other jucdons may adopt similar laws, and, if the billnging before the Brazilic
Congress becomes law, our future expansion andtgnmay be subject to significant constraints.

Environmental Matters

In 2008, we initiated a new policy of sustainabfetions by structuring our actions in a singlexng, aligned with our goals and business, thiengthening ot
sustainability practices, which are now measuratiimproved on a regular basis. We also incorpdratestainability into our operations compamigle, encompassing eve
sector of the organization. As a result, we createthternal working group and the Sustainable [raent Committee, which is linked to our boardiwéctors. The intern
committee is organized by the sustainability departt comprising representatives of different arfamuir Company.

In 2002, we launched the “Caras do Brasita¢es of Brazil) program, which aims at enabling gblling of products made by small organizatiam$ @@mmunities th
demonstrate socienvironmental responsibility, but which would otivese find it difficult to access large markets itish to trade their production. The program ope
sales channel for sustainable products and encesi@mscientious consumption.

We offer approximately 1,000 sustainable itemsjuiting groceries, meat, fruit, greens and vegetablée result of this type of product in our stoaesounted fc
growth of 30% between 2008 and 2009, encouragirig eehance these product lines in the years tecom

We have also adapted a program for tracking maat,&nd vegetables, which enables us to offer petslincorporating sustainable practices in thesdpction proces
S0 as to ensure the health of our clients, prapetrnent of livestock and environmental preservatio

In respect to environmental management, we havareet control of our consumption of water and eneegources, in addition to the volume of wasteegated an
proper disposal thereof. To that end we have ilestdlow reducers on the taps at most of our stogsesas to permit maximum efficiency in water usageaddition t
implementing daily monitoring of consumption at atiores located in the states of Sdo Paulo, Ridadeiro and Brasilia, in order to rapidly deteeké In the future w
intend to adopt this control at our other storestelgard to energy consumption, 26% of our consiamptomes from renewable sources (9.5410ules or 262.466.841,
KWh), and this energy is acquired on the free elmtpower market. This measure strengthens atise energy production, reduces the environmentphct of electricit
consumption and does not overload the nationatréig transmission system.

In regard to gas emissions, our refrigeration systécold stores, air conditioning, refrigeratorsl dreezers) use R2 gas, a variation of refrigeration gas whicheis:
damaging to the ozone layer, in substitution ofZRgas. In our green stores, we use R-410 gas iaitte®nditioning system and &34 gas in the refrigeration system, wi
have a minimum impact on the ozone layer and reptesnew trend in refrigeration and air conditigninstallations.
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Six years ago we initiated the Top Log programedify our suppliers who employ the best policiesl @ractices in logistics and supply ascertainethduhe year. |
2010, 144 suppliers participated in the Top LoggPam, and were evaluated regarding their servieel |suitability to the client and integration. &gn questions related
sustainability, such as pollutant emissions’ reiunctroute optimization and reverse logistics -ufsed on the disposal of packaging materials, wisteapplied.

We also aim to rationalize resources, while ourafens adopt measures to mitigate their impacish &s:

Waste generatianOn-going study of the waste generated in our storéth the aim of identifying environmentally corredisposal methods, where the focus it
applying the concept of the 3 Rs — reduce, re-tegcle. Based on this assumption, we have adauttdns that seek to optimize ueage of our recyclable and org¢
garbage, thereby reducing the volume of matergtdirged in landfills. This study resulted in tppla&ation of a system in the Green Store at Irtdaia, creating a volume
disposable garbage close to zero. The same systetmecfound in over 20 stores and is being addptetie others, covering all our banners througtigratzil.

Use of materials Replacement of equipment or introduction of meficient new technologies with lower consumpti@specially lighting, compressors and
conditioning systems.

Grease trap The application of a natural biological produat flegrading organic compounds.

Recycling stationsA pioneering initiative in Brazil, the progranrdt appeared in 2001 at tRéio de AcgUcabanner in partnership with Unilever, and was exieanir
subsequent years to tBxtra banner in partnership with H20H!, and CompreBelme Program seeks to make our clients aware ofntip@itance of properly disposing
garbage, while also making available deposits fiuntary delivery of recyclable materials at owrss. In addition to reducing the environmental aetpthrough corre
disposal of garbage, this initiative benefits 2@yming cooperatives while generating income faruzand 900 workers. As of December 31, 2010, we kaglcling stations
110P&o de Aglcastores, 11Extra stores and sevebompreBemstores in 31 cities in the states of Sdo Paular&&io de Janeiro, Paraiba, Pernambuco, Piaain®an
Goias, in addition to the Federal District. Sinleis initiative began more than 40 thousand torganbage have been collected.

CompreBem Oil Collectionin 2010, oil collectors installed at XBompreBemstores collected more than 17,443 liters of aihc8 its beginnings in 2008, more tl
41,800 liters have been collected. All collectddstonated to recycling cooperatives, which fesetompanies that produce biofuels.

Caixa Verde Green Checkolit A program that enables our clients to dispospamkaging at the time of purchase, the first rggelconsumption recycling program.
2010 we had 67 stores already with the projecperation.

Re-usable bagsThis encourages our clients to use plastic bagsdonscientious manner by offeringugable bags in our stores while developing altéragirograms
such as offering purchase vouchers (once a ceartaitber of points is achieved) to clients partidipgin thePrograma Mais(a loyalty scheme) and who useusable bag
In 2010, 659 thousand re-usable bags were sdiddiatde Aclcastores, of the 7 models one of them has partefribome donated to SOS Mata Atlantica, 668 thalise
CompreBem(one of the models being developed in partnersliip Associagdo de Apoio a Crianca Deficiertdthe Association for Children with Disabilities) AACD),
835 thousand dExtra stores (with part of the income raised from s#lesig donated t€asa Hopewhich supports children with cancer). Lastly, gebther initiative w
have adopted for reducing the volume of plasticsheged in purchases at our stores involves thefusere resistant bags that take up to 6 kilos.

We currently do not incur any costs with environtaémegulations compliance, notwithstanding thoests associated with the implementation of theasuebility
practices described above (among them the conistnuat a green store in the Vila Clementino, cifyS8o Paulo), resulting in expenditures of appratety R$17 million fo
the year ended December 31, 2010.
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4C. Organizational Structure

We conduct our operations through Companhia Biiesitke Distribuicdo. We invest in subsidiaries ity to acquire the share capital of other reth#ins from third
parties. In most cases, the retail operationsrarsterred to retail stores under existing banoetke stores acquired begin operating under onndxs. We conduct our fo
retail segment operations under ##&o de AglicarCompreBemSendas, Extra HipermercadBxtra Facil Extra Supermercadbanner and for cash-amary retail segme
operations, under thassai brand. We conduct our home appliances retail sagogerations through olonto FrioandCasas Bahidbrands. The chart below sets for
summary of our organizational structure:
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For further information on our subsidiaries seeerbto our financial statements included in thiswat report.

4D. Property, Plants and Equipment

We own 117 stores, 18 distribution centers andréigmoof the real estate property where our headqrgare located. The remaining 1,530 stores3ndlistributior
centers we operate and the remaining portion ofehkestate property where our headquarters aedeld are leased. Leases are usually for a teffimeofo 25 years, ar
provide for monthly rent payments based on a péagenof sales above an agreed minimum value. We 27 leases expiring by the end of 2011. Based on oor
experience and Brazilian law and leasing practisesdo not anticipate any material change in theega terms of our leases or any material difficidtrenewing them. As
December 31, 2010, we leastd properties from members of the Diniz Family &idstores from Fundo de Investimento Imobiliario Penla, which is owned by the Di
Family. In addition, all of the 526asas Bahia stores are leased, of which 292 were leased dedd¢cember 31, 2010 from members of the Kleinlfarlur manageme
believes that the leases follow market standami$,aae on an arm’s length basis. See “ltem 7B.tBeIRarty Transactions—Leasesid note 21 to our audited consolid:
financial statements included in this annual report
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The following table sets forth the number and tstlling area of our owned and leased retail stbyestore format, the number and total storage afear owned ar

leased warehouses and the total office area di@atquarters that we own and lease as of Decerib2030:

Owned Leasec Total
Area (in Area (in Area (in
square square Number square
Number meters) Number meters) * meters)
P&o de Aclica 2¢ 37,70( 12C 160,55! 14¢ 198,25!
Extra Hipermercado 2¢ 186,24° 81 579,42! 11C 765,67:
Extra Supermercad 17 24,78 84 112,47¢ 101 137,26!
Extra Facil 9 1,60¢ 59 13,32¢ 68 14,93¢
CompreBen 1C 17,91¢ 10¢ 113,14¢ 112 131,06t
Sendas - - 17 45,38( 17 45,38(
Assai - - 57 176,71( 57 176,71(
Ponto Frio 22 31,40¢ 482 331,90¢ 50¢€ 363,31¢
Casas Bahit - - 52¢€ 978,51: 52¢€ 978,51:
Warehouse 18 957,18t 32 405,57: 5C 1,362,76.
Headquarters 1 35,94¢ 1 59,327 2 95,27¢
(*) 24 of our stores have been subject to liena essult of judicial proceedings.
ITEM 4A. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
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You should read this discussion in conjunction witin consolidated financial statements prepareddnordance with IFRS and the related notes andther financia

information included elsewhere in this annual repor

5A. Operating Results

The following table demonstrates certain operatiata as of and for the years ended December 38, 2009 and 2010:

Operating Data
Employees at end of peric

Total square meters of selling area at end of de

Number of stores at end of peri

Péo de Aclcar

CompreBen

Extra Hipermercadc (1)

Extra Supermercad)

Extra Eletrc

Assa

Senda

Ponto Fric (3)

Total number of stores at end of peri

Net sales revenues per employee

Péo de Aclc:

CompreBen

Extra Hipermercadc (1)

Extra Supermercac (2)

Extra Eletrc

Assa

Senda

Ponto Fric (3)

Average net sales revenues per emplo

Net sales revenues by store forn
Péo de Aclc:

CompreBel

Extra Hipermercado(1)

Extra Supermercac (2)

Extra Eletrc

Assa

Sends

Ponto Frio(3)

Total net sales

Average monthly net sales revenue per square rffte

P&o de Aclcar
CompreBel

Extra Hipermercadc (1)
Extra Supermercad(2)
Extra Eletrc

Assai

Senda

Ponto Fric (3)

CBD average monthly net sales revenue per squates t

(in millions of R$, except as indicatec

70,65¢

1,360,701

14¢
16&
13¢
47
28
73

597

229,07t
325,73
339,61«

409,72:
437,538
244,06(

297,53t

3,37¢
2,57%
9,12(

29t
1,26¢
1,397

18,03:

1,481
1,085.«
1,025.¢

881.1
2,486..
897.1

1,104.c

85,24+
1,744,65:

14¢
157
16¢
13

47
4C
68
45¢
1,08C

262,27¢
335,96:
356,21

548,13!
303,39!
297,48t
258,14
315,69(

3,79
2,58t
10,40¢

38¢
1,982
1,60¢
2,47¢
23,24

1,637.
1,148.°
1,138.(

1,154..
1,395.2
1,088.¢
620.
1,110.

201C

127,406
1,832,592

149

178
231

57

506
1,121

323,1¢

417,28:
316,02t

418,86(

644,23
407,73:

4,287

11,28:
4,597

2,94:

6,15¢
29,80¢

1,890.¢

1,281.(
1,222

1,652t
1,494.¢
1,421.¢
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(in millions of US$,
except as indicated

193,97¢
250,46
189,69:

251,41

386,69°
244,73

2,897

6,772
2,75¢

1,767

3,69¢
17,89:

1,134.¢

768.¢
733.¢

931.¢

897.2
853.
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200¢ 200¢ 201 201C

(in millions of US$, excep
Operating Data (in millions of R$, except as indicatec as indicated
Average ticket amoun
P&o de Acguc: 26.1 29 37.¢ 22.¢
CompreBen 19.2 20.7 - -
Extra Hipermercadc (1) 43.% 48.t 51.¢ 31.1
Extra Supermercac (2) - - 23.¢ 14.2
Extra Eletrc 299.1 346.¢ - -
Senda 21.¢ 24z - -
Assa 78.¢ 74.5 85.C 51.C
Ponto Fric (3) - 618.2 328.¢ 197.1
CBD average ticket amour 32.¢ 41 50.2 30.2
Average number of tickets per mot
P&o de Aclice 10,769,07 10,607,75 10,765,30
CompreBer 11,128,32 10,387,30 8,958,66!
Extra Hipermercadc (1) 17,406,07 17,886,22 16,950,66
Extra Supermercac (2)
Extra Eletrc 82,18t 92,90¢ 76,24:
Senda 5,315,75 5,537,07. 4,562,59.
Assa 1,340,14 2,218,15! 2,885.28
Ponto Fric (3) - 333,48 1,486,64:
CBD average number of tickets per mor 46,041,56 47,062,90 49,401,31

(1) In 2010, includes the results of operatioh$1® Extra Hipermercadostores and 68xtra Facil stores. In 2009, included the results of operatinfill 03Extra Hipermercadostores, 1Extra Supermercadstores
and 52Extra Facil stores.

(2) In 2010, includes the results of operatioh$0i Extra Supermercadstores, 1Sendasstores and 118@ompreBemstores.

(3) Includes the results of operations of Gloffeanto Frig) as from July 1, 2009, arfektra Eletrostores, excluding the operations of Nova Casaa@dhiring 2010, we converted tBatra Eletrostores intdPonto
Frio stores. For further information on the acquisitidrGlobex, see “Iltem 4A. History and Developmefithe Company.”

(4) Based on the average of the full-time eq@mahumber of employees, which is the product efrthmber of all retail employees (full- and péame employees) and the ratio of the average mythirs of all reta
employees to the average monthly hours of full-tengployees.

(5) Calculated using the average of square mefesslling area on the last day of each montténgeriod.
Brazilian Economic Environment and Factors Effectirg Our Results of Operations

Since all of our operations are in Brazil, our tesaof operations are affected by macroeconomiditmms in Brazil, including inflation rate, inteserate, Brazilian GDI
employment rates, wage levels, consumer confidendecredit availability.

For the period from 2007 through 2010, BrazilianRsiDcreased by an average of 4.5% annually (6.120@7, 5.1% in 2008 an®.6% in 2009). Inflation, as measu
by the IPCA, was 4.5%, 5.9% and 4.3%, in 2007, 28082009, respectively. From January 2007 thraugtember 2010, theal appreciated 21.7% against the U.S. dc
Unemployment decreased from 9.3% in January 208738 in December 2010. International reserveeas®d from US$91.1 billion to US$275.2 billion, dhd ratio of ne
public debt to GDP decreased from 46.7% to 40.3#iiduhe same peric

In 2008, Brazil received investment grade long-telebt ratings from Standard & Poor’'s and Fitch and&eptember 2009, from Moody’s. The upgraded i dek
ratings were understood to reflect a favorable omaderm economic environment for Brazil due to the umigt of its financial institutions and the poliéitstructure of tr
country, as well as advances in fiscal policy andtol over public debt. In the following monthsetiBrazilian government promoted a series of meastrestimulat
consumption, including reducing interest rates,agxfing credit through federal public banks andirgttaxes on durable goods, such as vehicles drigamtors. In Apri
2011, FITCH upgraded Brazil's rating on Brazil'sé and foreign currency debt to BBB from BBB-, atsdcountry ceiling to BBB+ from BBB.

In the second half of 2008, global economic condii worsened significantly, in light of the gloladancial crisis. The immediate effects on the Bram econom
included reduced growth and depreciation ofrtra, which decreased 31.6% between August and Ocgi#8 (from R$1.57/US$1.00 on August 4, 2008 to R$2IS$1.0
on October 10, 2008). The crisis also adverselgcsdd the Brazilian capital markets, as reflectgd lecrease in the Ibovespa index of 49.0% betwésn19, 2008 ar
December 30, 2008.
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After these initial effects, the Brazilian economegumed its prior growth trend, with rising incoteeels, stable employment rates and controlleaiitfh. The increase
GDP in the first semester of 2010, announced irtedaiper by IBGE, was 9.0% as compared to the samedp@ 2009 and 2.7% as compared to the fourthitquaf 200¢
The average real income of Brazil's workforce irmged by 6.9% in the I®onth period ended September 30, 2010, while tleenployment rate was at 6.2% in Septen
according to IBGE. As of September 30, 2010, theuamilated inflation rate as measured by the IPCA @:6%. The Committee on Monetary Poli€§o(mité de Politic
Monetéric), or COPOM, limited the increases in the baseésterate (SELIC) and had left it unchanged at@%.@intil December 31, 2010. The SELIC increasezDihl an
as of June 20, 2011 it was 12.17%.

The following table sets forth data on real GDPwghg inflation and interest rates, and the U.Sladaxchange rate for the indicated periods:

December 3.
200¢ 200¢ 201(
GDP Growthd) 5.1% 0.2)% 7.5%
Inflation (IGP-M) (%2 9.8% 1.7)% 11.3%
Inflation (IPCA) (%3 5.9% 4.3% 5.9%
DI ) 12.4% 9.9% 9.8%
TILP (9%f9) 6.3% 6.0% 6.0%
SELIC rate (%) 13.7% 8.7% 10.7%
Appreciation (depreciation) of real before USD ( (24.2)% 34.2% 4.5%
Exchange rate (closing) R$ per USD 170 23 1.7 1.7
Average exchange rate R$ per USD 800 1.8 2.0 1.8

(1) Source: IBGE.

(2) Inflation (IGP-M) is a General Market Prigedex measured by FGV.

(3) Inflation (IPCA) is a Broad National Consunfizice Index measured by IBGE.

(4) The interbank deposit certificate (CDI) ig taverage rate of the interbank deposits in Bfazithe end of each period and year).
(5) Long-term interest rate required by BNDESI&org-term financing (end of the period data).

(6) Annual average interest rate. Source: CeBaak.

(7) Exchange rate (for sale) of the last dayasthemonth during the period. Source: Central Bank.

(8) Average of exchange rates (for sale) of #és¢ dlay of each month during the period. Sourcetr@eBank.

Financial Presentation and Accounting Policies

Presentation of Financial Statements

The preparation of our consolidated financial stegets requires management to make judgments, ¢stiraad assumptions that affect the reported are@inevenue
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the dis@asfucontingent liabilities, at the end of the mgjpgy period. However, uncertainty about these mggions and estimates co
result in outcomes that require a material adjustrt@the carrying amount of the asset or liabi#iffected in future periods.

Critical Accounting Policies

We discuss below key assumptions and judgmentsecoing the future and other key sources of unaeratimates at the reporting date that have afiignt risk o
causing a material adjustment to the carrying artsoohassets and liabilities within the next finehgear are:

Operating lease commitments—Company as lessor

We have entered into commercial property leasel v@spect to our investment property portfolio. WWeeve determined, based on an evaluation of thestenm
conditions of the arrangements, that we retaithallsignificant risks and rewards of ownershiphefse properties and we account for the contraaipesiting leases.
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Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangibles

We test annually whether goodwill has suffered iamyairment, in accordance with the accounting poditated in note 4 to our financial statementsl&®136. The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units haee determined based on value-in-use calculatindsrarket quotes. The calculations of valuerse-require the use
estimates.

Other intangible assets, whose useful lives arefiniie as Tradenames and Commercial rights “Fut@l@€omeércio,'were submitted to impairment test according tc
same calculation criteria used for goodwill.

Income taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpietabf complex tax regulations and the amount @méhg of future taxable income. Given the naturd aomplexity of ou
business, differences arising between the actsaltseand the assumptions made, or future changé®s$e assumptions, could require future adjusntentax income ar
expense already recorded. We establish provislmased on reasonable estimates, for possible cosisegm of audits by the tax authorities of the repe jurisdictions il
which we operate. The amount of the provisionsaised on various factors, such as experience ofquvax audits and differing interpretations of tagulations by tF
taxable entity and the responsible tax authoritye @ifferences of interpretation may arise on aewidriety of issues depending on the conditionsailiag in the respecti
company’s domicile.

Deferred income and social contribution taxes asagd recognized for all unused tax losses to xkenethat it is probable that taxable profit Wik available agair
which the losses can be utilized. Significant mamagnt judgment is required to determine the amotidieferred tax assets that can be recognizeddhgsen the likel
timing and the level of future taxable profits tdggr with future tax planning strategies.

We have tax loss carry forwards amounting to ebenefit of R$720.5 million (R$578.1 million in 200 hese losses do not expire and relate to subi@dithat have ti
planning opportunities available to support a porif these balances. We recorded a valuation atioer against these deferred tax assets in the ambR$106.2 million il
2010 and 2009.

Fair value of derivatives and other financial instnents

Where the fair value of financial assets and fifarn@bilities recorded in the statement of finegosition cannot be derived from active markétgsy are determins
using valuation technigues including the discourtash flow model. The inputs to these models gentdrom observable markets where possible, butreviigs is nc
feasible, a degree of judgment is required in distaibg fair values. The judgments include considiens of inputs such as liquidity risk, creditkrend volatility. Changes
assumptions regarding these factors could affecteported fair value of financial instruments.

The fair value of financial instruments that aréiety traded on organized markets is determineskteon the market quotes, on the balance sheet, déthout an
deduction for transaction costs. For financialrimstents that are not actively traded, the fair @aiibased on valuation techniques defined by dscampatible with usus
market practices. If there is no active marketnttie market value is determined through valuatt@hniques. These techniques include the usecehtenarket transactic
between independent parties, benchmarks to thedhie of similar financial instruments, analysigiscounted cash flows or other valuation models.

Share-based payments

We measure the cost of equigttled transactions with employees by referendbedair value of the equity instruments at theedst which they are granted. Estima
fair value for shardased payment transactions requires determininghtie appropriate valuation model, which is depahde the terms and conditions of the grant.
estimate also requires determining the most apja@pinputs to the valuation model including the@eoted life of the share option, volatility andidend yield and makir
assumptions about them. We disclose the assumpiiothsnodels used for estimating fair value for efsed payment transactions in note 25 to our finhstatemen
included in this annual report.
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Review of the useful life of property and equipnitems
We have reviewed the useful life of our fixed asset of January 1, 2010. As a consequence, ounmestatement reflected non comparative amountsmiediation.
Changes have been applied prospectively in accoedaith IAS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in dusting Estimates and Errors.
Business Combinations
Globex Acquisition

We have consolidated the results of operationslob&x into our financial statements since JulydQ2 The acquisition was accounted for under tlygiiation metho
consistent with IFRS 3.

We had used provisional amounts of net assets r@ehin 2009 and 2010. We carried out a final vatuathat resulted in adjustments to net assetsciwlvie recorde
retroactively in the year ended December 31, 2009:

(i) Restricted advances: these refer to adjustmemictverable value of restricted deposits existingherbusiness combination date;

(i) Provision for contingencies: nareorded provisions on the acquisition date (cgetin liabilities), as they do not meet the IAS 8@uirements, recorded in busir
combination according to IFRS 3 requirement (see @8 to our financial statements);

(i) “Ponto Frio” and “Pontofrio.com” trademarks: Pordo and Pontofrio.com are traditional and walbwn trademarks in Brazilian retail industries.light of the
strength and recognition of the brand, a playehémarket should not discontinue to use it. THaevaf the brand was based on how much royaltiagdvoe paid accordir
to market standards for the use of the brand, ihag not acquired it.

(iv) Commercial Rights “Fundo de Comércio™: one of Gigbestrengths is itgoints-ofsale, most of which are located in busy shoppingess. Shopping centers ¢
street stores usually charge fees related to tsigrament for the right to use the pointsafle when it is transferred. The value of the feeslculated based on compari
transactions in the market;

(v) Customer relationship: relates to the customer bas® by Banco Investcred, mainly through privateel cards, corporate clients anda@amerce channel anc
Brazil's 7" largest e-commerce web site.

(vi) Fair value of property and equipment: the Compargluated the fair value of property and equipmejuired, identifying an adjustment of R$99.1 millidully
recognized in the opening balance sheet.

(vii) Deferred income tax and social contribution ovéfiedénces between the taxable basis of tax anduatiog goodwill, under IAS 12;

As of December 31, 2010 we recorded goodwill inaheunt of R$279.9 million (R$703.0 million prowsilly calculated in 2009), in “intangible assebsi5ed on tt
total consideration related to the acquisition tit@x and net assets we identified at fair value.

For further information on the acquisition of Glabsee “Iltem 4A. Development of the Company— Acdiasi of Globex (Ponto Frio)and see note 16 to our finan:
statements included in this annual report.

Casa Bahia Comercial Ltda. Association

We have consolidated the results of operations afaCBahia Comercial Ltd&to our financial statements since November 1,020The business combination \
accounted for under the acquisition method consistéth IFRS 3. We have not yet obtained a finaluation for the fair value of the net assets, rideo to conclude tt
valuation of the goodwill related to the Associati@Ve will conclude the collection of the necessdaya required to complete the valuation of thevalue of the net ass
acquired and consideration transferred during 26@itiin 12 months from the date of the business doation.
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For further information on the Association, seefit4A. History and Development of the Comparissociation Agreement with the Partners of Casad@&lomercie
Ltda.,” “Item 7B. Related Party Transactions — le=gs“Item 10C. Material Contracts” and note 1@@pur financial statements included in this anmegbrt.

Overview

In 2010, we consolidated our leading position as ohthe largest retail companies in Latin Americd/e concluded the negotiation of the Associatigth the partnel
of Casa Bahia Comercial Ltda. and we believe weilmecone of the 10 largest companies worldwide énhtbme appliances segment. While remaining priynarifooc
distribution company, our strong position in therteoappliances retail segment enabled us to diyettef mix of products we offer to our customers.

Since 2008, we have reorganized our managementimbdeing 2010, we ceased to be a multi-format pany and became a multissiness group. We have segreg
each of our business segments into separate operatits: food retail, cash-and-carry, home appkaretail and eemmerce. Our new management model ensures it
operating unit keeps its individual business charéstics and is managed by professionals thaspeeialized in each unit’business segment. In addition, under our
management model, each operating unit benefits fxasingle administrative and operating structueg thcludes market strategy, commercial strategyparate relation
supply chain, corporate services (finance and iliman resources and management control. Througmew management model we gain synergies and attegu
business segments without jeopardizing the spéygifind expertise that is necessary to generatiéiyeesults in each of the segments.

In the food retail operating segment, as part ofsttategy to increase our operations in this segred take advantage of the migration of the Beazpopulation fror
the lower income class to the lower-middle incorass, we have been converti@gmpreBemandSendasstores intdExtra Supermercadstores to unify our banners that
targeted at lower to middle income consumers. Oginothis conversion process, we intend to stremgthe position in this increasingly growing segmefthe Braziliai
population and streamline our operatit

In the cash-and-carry operating segment, we fasteireng organic growth and strengthened our mwsiti this segment. Oukssai stores increased from 14 store
2007 to 57 stores in 2010.

In the e-commerce operating segment, we incorpofdtera Pontocom in the beginning of 2010. Fortfertinformation on the incorporation of Nova Pomtcaee Item
4A. History and Development of the Company — Asatien Agreement with the Partners of Casa Bahia&oial Ltda.” and “— Reorganization of E-commergee@tions.”

We believe that our good results of operationsrau#010 stemmed from favorable macroeconomic cimmgitin Brazil. The migration of the Brazilian pdation fron
the lower income class to the lower-middle incortess increased consumption of higher vaddeed products. In addition, the competitive emvinent has also beco
more balanced as the informal segment of the Baazéconomy has increasingly reduced. We expettithportant events, such as the FIFA World Cug0i4 and th
Olympic Games in 2016, the strength of the reatessector and infrastructure programs sponsoretthéyBrazilian government will continue to increassmsumption i
Brazil, particularly in the low-middle income class

Results of Operations for 2010, 2009 and 2008

We measure the results of our operating segmenERS using, among other measures, each segsngpegrating profit. At times, our Company revides measureme
of each segment’s operating profit, as dictatedhieyinformation regularly reviewed by the chief ggiing decisiormaker. When revisions are made, the results ofadipe
for each segment affected by the revisions aratexsfor all periods presented to maintain complityalinformation for the segments is includedtire following table:

(in millions of R$)

Segment As of December 31, 2010

Statement of operations dat Food Retai Cast-and- Carry E-commerce Home Appliances(l) Total

Net sales revenu 20,562.¢ 2,922.¢ 1,703.¢ 6,902. 32,091
Gross profit 5,524.: 422.¢ 278.( 1,625.° 7,850.:
Depreciation and amortizatic (336.3 (24.3 2.2) (77.3 (440.1
Operating profit 1,244.¢ 67.¢ 215.% 73.€ 1,602.(
Financial expense (646.2 (53.6 (73.5 (381.4 (1,154.7
Financial income 290. 7.2 04 33.¢ 331.7
Income before income and social contribution taxeand employee’ profit

sharing and noncontrolling interest 865.1 21.t 2.7 (70.4. 813.t
Income and social contribution tax (105.3 (8.0) 5.2 21.¢ (86.6,

(1) Includes the results of operations of Glohexrom July 1, 2009 and Nova Casa Bahia as fromeMber 1, 2010.
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(in millions of R$)

Segment As of December 31, 2009
Food Retail Cast-and- Carry E-commerce Home Appliances(l) Elimination (@) Total
Net sales revenu 18,524.: 1,981.¢ 625.5 2,118.¢ (57.5 23,192.¢
Gross profit 4,965.: 291.% 102.2 397.¢ (57.5, 5,699.(
Depreciation and amortizatic (415.5 (12.1 (2.4) (25.5 (4.4 (459.9
Operating profits 989.¢ 39.t (7.6 (42.5 12.4 981.€
Financial expense (432.6 (10.6 (4.7 (43.3 - (501.2
Financial income 238.( 14 - 10.€ (3.3) 246.1
Income before income and social contribution taxeand employee’
profit sharing and noncontrolling interest 795.¢ 30.2 (18.4; (95.4, 20.1 732.t
Income and social contribution tax (119.8 (14.3 34 102.1 (65.4, (94.0;
(1) Includes the results of operations of Gloaexrom July 1, 2009.
(2) Accounts for inter-company transactions.
(in millions of R$)
Segment As of December 31, 2008
Statement of operations dat Retail Casf-and- Carry Elimination (%) Total in IFRS
Net sales revenu 16,769.. 1,262.¢ - 18,032.(
Gross profit 4,557.¢ 194.¢ - 4,752.f
Depreciation and amortizatic (437.4 (5.3) - (442.7
Operating prof 799.5 43.% - 842.¢
Financial expense (618.8 (4.9 - (623.7
Financial income 291.( 11 - 292.1
Income before income and social contribution taxeand employee’ profit sharing and
noncontrolling interest 497.1 39.t (26.0; 510.7
Income and social contribution tax (133.6 (13.6 - (147.2
(1) Accounts for inter-company transactions.
The following table presents the consolidated tesafloperations in accordance with IFRS, as inetlith our financial statements.
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(in millions of R$)

Results of Operatior As of and for the Year Ended December 31,
2010® % 2009 % 200¢ %

Net sales revenu 32,001 100.( 23,192. 100.( 18,032.( 100.C
Cost of sales (24,241.5) (75.5) (17,493.8) (75.4) (13,279.5) (73.6)

Gross profit 7,850.: 24.5 5,699.( 24.€ 4,752.! 26.4
Selling, general and administrative exper (5,782.1 (18.0 (4,179.6 (18.0 (3,447.9 (19.1;
Depreciation and Amortizatic (440.1 1.4 (459.9 (2.0 (442.7 (2.5)
Other operating expenses, net (26.0) (0.1) (77.9) (0.3) (19.1) (0.1)

Operating profit 1,602.( 5.C 981.¢ 4.2 842.¢ 3.6
Financial income 331.7 1.C 246.7 1.1 292.1 1.6
Financial expenst (1,154.7 (3.6 (501.2 2.2 (623.7 (3.5)
Equity pickup results 345 0.1 5.4 0.0 (0.5) 0.0

Income before income and social contribution teas employees’ profit
sharing and noncontrolling interest 813. 2 7308 3.z 510. 2.8

Income tax expense

Current (52.1 0.2) (68.1, 0.3 (36.3; 0.2)
Deferred (34.5, 0.1 (25.9 0.1 (110.9 (0.6)
Employee profit sharing (35.1) (0.1) (32.5) (0.1) (22.2) (0.1)
Net income 691.8 2.2 606.0 2.6 341.3 1.9
Attributable to equity holders of the part 722.% 2.2 609. 2.€ 341.% 1.9
Attributable to noncontrolling intere (30.7, 0.1 (34 0.C 0.C 0.0

(1) Includes the results of operations of Glohexrom July 1, 2009 and Nova Casa Bahia as fromehber 1, 2010.

(2) Includes the results of operations of Glohsxrom July 1, 2009.
Year Ended December 31, 2010 Compared to Year Endé&kcember 31, 2009
Consolidated

Net sales revenudlet sales revenue increased by 38.4%, or R$&88A#ion, from R$23,192.8 million in 2009 to R$821.7 million in 2010, as explained below.
same stores sales increased by 13.2% in the period.

*  Food retail segment (includes the banners Pédo decétg CompreBem, Sendas and Extia) sales revenue increased due to the opening stbfes and conversi
of 93 CompreBemandSendasstores intdExtra Supermercadstores. Our samgtore sales in the food retail segment increasetdty% in the period due to grow
resulting from good sales performance of beverggasonal care & household cleaning products, meitis/household appliances and textile products.

e Cash-and-Carry segment (Assagt sales revenue increased due to organic grthretgpening of new stores and conversion of exjstnes from other banners i
Assai banner, and tha&ssaistores’ improved operating result. Our same-stakessin the cash-and-carry segment increased By%40n the period.

*  Home appliances segment (Casas Bahia and Glob@xtoFFrio) net sales revenue increased by 225.8% principlaldyto the consolidation of Nova Casa Bahia’
results of operations as from November 1, 2010.

*  E-commerce segment (www.extra.com.br, www.pontofmo.br, www.casasbahia.com.bmgt sales revenue totaled R$1,704.0 million in0201

Gross Profitincreased by 37.7%, or R$ 2,151.2 million, from R$8.0 million in 2009 (margin of 24.6%), to R$708% million (margin of 24.5%) due to mq
advantageous negotiations with suppliers, impraygetational and sales management and implemenw@itibamandTec, which helped us in the studies of plasticity fo
many of the products sold, and thus allowed us toaximize the supply at the best price and impdavargin.

Selling, General and Administrative Expengesreased by 38.3%, or R$1,602.5 million, from R$2.6 million in 2009 to R$5,782.1 million in 20Hde tohighe!
personnel and social benefit expenses, increagehegs with IT to support business expansion, 8nmk# stores opened in the ye

Depreciationdecreased by 4.3%, or R$19.8 million, from R$458ilion in 2009 to R$440.1 million in 2010. This gitve impact was due to the review of deprecie
useful lives of certain specific fixed assets dgr2910.

42

http://lwww.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1038572/@¥2B1411001900/cbdform20f2010.} 1/7/201:



cbdform20f2010.htn- Generated by SEC Publisher for SEC F Page47 of 254

Table of Contents

Other operating expenses, nikgcreased by 66.6%, or R$51.9 million, from R$#iion in 2009 to R$26.0 million in 2010. The dease is due to (i) payment of R$
million from Itat Unibanco in connection with thenandment of the FIC partnership, (ii) revenue fxtemporaneous tax credit of R$107.0 million, (@Xpenses related
business combinations of R$53.0 million, (iv) lasskie to write-off of taxes and tax installmentgyeon of R$747.0 million and (v) R$39.0 million aher lossesln 2009
the loss is related to a gain resulting from fabt@aerms of the negotiation of the Associationhwiitova Casa Bahia of R$454.0 million, (ii) losse® do writeeff of taxes
probable claims and tax installment program of F&@illion, (iii) losses in the sales of fixed assof R$73.0 million and (iv) R$8.0 million of @hgains

Financial Incomeincreased by 34.5%, or R$85.0 million, from R$Z4illion in 2009 to R$331.7 million in 2010 due hégher interesearning income from restal
judicial deposits and certain financial investmglots increase in other financial incol

Financial Expenseincreased by 130.4%, or R$653.5 million, from R$20hillion in 2009 to R$1,154.7 million in 2010.hiE increase was mainly a result of
increase in our net debt to finance acquisitions,expansion and opening of stores. In additioa,iticrease in the SELIC base interest rate causéuceease in the cost
service our net debt. To a lesser extent, the &serén financial expenses was also due to an iseréa our installment payment receivables transfeto third parties at
discount (or referred to in this annual reportr@séivables sold") and other assets and liabil#@jasted by the increase in the CDI rate.

Equity pickup resultincreased from R$5.4 million in 2009 to R$34.5 ioillin 2010, due to an increase in the number 6f$-tustomers and the beginning of Glotzex’
credit cards operations since the third quart&000.

Income (Expense) Before Income Taxes, Employeé Biafring and Noncontrolling Interestcreased by 11.1%, or R$81.0 million, from R$B3aillion in 2009 t
R$813.5 million in 2010 due to increase in our saad a nortaxable gain resulting from favorable terms of tiegotiation of the Association with Nova Casa Bafilae
increase was partially offset by financial expenses

Income Tax Benefits (Expensigcreased by 7.9%, or R$7.4 million from R$(94rd)ion in 2009 to R$(86.6) million in 2010 due prarily to a nortaxable gai
resulting from favorable terms of the negotiatiérihe Association with Nova Casa Bahia.

Employee Profit Sharingncreased by 8.0%, or R$2.6 million, from R$32lian in 2009 to R$35.1 million in 2010 mainly due increase in the number of .
company’s employees.

Net Incomencreased by 14.2%, or R$85.8 million, from R$680@illion in 2009 to R$691.8 million in 2010 duettee factors discussed above.
Segment Information

We present the results of our operating segmenSR$, which is the measure used by managemeniainiaing the performance of and strategy for the segmen
listed below. For further information on the segisesee note 26 to our financial statements includehis annual report.

Food Retail Segment
As of December 31, 2010, the food retail segmerst @zanprised of the banndé?sio de Aclcar, Comprebem, SendadExtra.

Net sales revenueacreased by 11.0%, or R$2,038.6 million, from B$24.2 million in 2009 to R$20,562.8 million inZDdue to the good sales performance, espe
of beverages and personal care & household clegmodycts.

Gross profitincreased by 11.3%, or R$558.9 million, from R$5,2 million in 2009 to R$5,524.1 million in 2010elto the increase in sales as a result of theilngerl
new stores.

Depreciationand amortizatiordecreased by 19.1%, or R$79.2 million, from R$81#illion in 2009 to R$336.3 million in 2010. Thi®sitive impact was the result of
review in the useful life of fixed assets, accogdia which the useful life of certain specific fikassets was extended.
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Operating profitincreased by 25.8%, or R$255.0 million, from R®88million in 2009 to R$1,244.8 million in 2010 @ltio higher sales and a decrease in ope!
expenses due to more strict budget control.

Financial expensemcreased by 49.4%, or R$213.6 million, from R®43million in 2009 to R$646.2 million in 2010 asesult of a more leveraged capital structu
support our expansion.

Financial incomeincreased by 21.9%, or R$52.2 million, from R$ 23fillion in 2009 to R$290.2 million in 2010 due higher interest earned on cash and
equivalents resulting from higher interest rates.

Income before income and social contribution teaed employees’ profit sharing and noncontrollingeiestincreased by 8.7%, or R$69.2 million, from R$79%iflion
in 2009 to R$865.1 million in 2010 due to gain téeg from favorable terms of the negotiation o tAssociation with Nova Casa Bahia.

Cash -and-Carry Segment
As of December 31, 2010, our cash-and-carry segmasicomprised of th&ssaibanner

Net sales revenuacreased by 47.5%, or R$941.1 million, from RBLS million in 2009 to R$2,922.9 million in 2016ixipally due to organic growth, the opening
13 new stores and conversion of four stores frdmerdbanners intdssaibanner, and the format's improved operating result.

Gross profitincreased by 45.0%, or R$131.1 million, from R$3illion in 2009 to R$422.4 million in 2010 du17 new stores in the year.

Depreciationand amortizationncreased by 100.8%, or R$12.2 million, from R31illion in 2009 to R$24.3 million in 2010 due tike opening of new stores ¢
conversion of stores in#ssaibanner.

Operating profitincreased by 71.9%, or R$28.4 million, from R$53®illion in 2009 to R$67.9 million in 2010 duehdaher sales level than in 2009.

Financial expensemcreased by 405.7%, or R$43.0 million, from R$1illion in 2009 to R$53.6 million in 2010 due &ogreater amount of receivables discountt
support our working capital needs.

Financial incomeincreased 414.3% or R$5.8 million, from R$1.4 imillin 2009 to R$7.2 million in 2010 due to higlmeterest earned on cash and cash equivalen
on taxes and judicial deposits as a result of higiterest rates.

Income before income and social contribution taaed employees’ profit sharing and noncontrollingeiestdecreased by 29.0%, or R$8.8 million, from R$30iian
in 2009 to R$21.5 million in 2010 due to higherditial expenses, as explained above.

Home Appliances Segment
As of December 31, 2010, our home appliances segwancomprised of the bannétento FrioandCasas Bahia

Net sales revenuacreased by 225.8%, or R$4,783.4 million, fronr2R$8.8 million in 2009 to R$6,902.2 million in 2Dprincipally due to the consolidation of Nt
Casa Babhia results of 526 stores as from Novem2010.

Gross profitincreased by 308.7%, or R$1,227.9 million, fron8B%.8 million in 2009 to R$1,625.7 million in 201Dhis increase was the result of the beginninge
integration of Nova Casa Bahia and capture of gjiasr

Depreciationand amortizatiorincreased by 203.1%, or R$51.8 million, from R$2iillion in 2009 to R$77.3 million in 2010 due twore 526Casas Bahiastores an
conversion oExtra Eletrostores intdPonto Friostores.
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Operating profitincreased by 273.2%, or R$116.1 million, from &} million in 2009 to R$73.6 million in 2010. Ehiesult was due to sales growth, improved ¢
margin as a result of the integration with NovaaBahia, and our continued expenses control anégesmnent.

Financial expensemcreased by 780.8%, or R$338.1 million, from R$4&illion in 2009 to R$381.4 million in 2010 primig due to increased amount of receiva
sold, the increase in CDI rate, which impacts thercdeposits included in the balance sheet ahér@ssets and liabilities, such as contingencies.

Financial incomeincreased by 219.8% or R$23.3 million, from R$16illion in 2009 to R$33.9 million in 2010 due togeeater amount of financial investments
discounts on advance repayments to suppliers.

Income before income and social contribution taaed employees’ profit sharing and noncontrollingeiestincreased by 26.2%, or R$25.0 million, from R$(9
million in 2009 to R$(70.4) million in 2010 due $ales growth, improved gross margin as a resuliefntegration with Nova Casa Bahia, and our coril expenses cont
and management. This increase was partially ofbgéhe decrease in our financial result.

E-commerce Segment

As of December 31, 2010, our e-commerce segmensisted of our e-commerce operations through the sitesh Extra.com.br, PontoFrio.com.banc
CasasBahia.com.br, wholesale activities and E-lduined by Nova Pontocom.

Net sales revenuincreased by 172.4%, or R$1,078.3 million, from6R%5 million in 2009 to R$1,703.8 million in 2010ainly due to organic growth and
consolidation of www.casasbahia.com.br to our camyfs portfolio.

Gross profitincreased by 172.0%, or R$175.8 million, from R&20million in 2009 to R$278.0 million in 2010 dteethe increase in sales.
Depreciationand amortizatiordecreased by 8.3%, or R$0.2 million, from R$2.4iom in 2009 to R$2.2 million in 2010 due to smiatrease in fixed assets.

Operating profitincreased by 1,325.6%, or R$233.3 million, from(R$6) million in 2009 to R$215.7 million in 201@el to the restructuring within the Pao de Ac
Group related to the e-commerce segment that caheselwebsites (Extra.com, PontoFrio.com, CasdaBaim) and the wholesale operation to becomedgbdiis segment.

Financial expensecreased by 400.0%, or R$58.8 million, from R¥1#hillion in 2009 to R$73.5 million in 2010 due itcreased working capital needs driven by
growth in sales.

Financial incomencreased to R$0.4 million in 2010 due to finahii@estments.

Income before income and social contribution taard employees’ profit sharing and noncontrollingemestdecreased by 85.3%, or R$15.7 million, from R$()
million in 2009 to R$(2.7) million in 2010 due tbet restructuring within the Pdo de Agucar Grouptesl to the @ommerce segment that caused three websites a
wholesale operation to become part of this segmeatthe increase in financial expenses.

Year Ended December 31, 2009 Compared to Year End&kecember 31, 2008
Consolidated

Net sales revenudlet sales revenue increased by 28.6%, or R$BIillion, from R$18,032.0 million in 2008 to R$232.8 million in 2009, as explained below.
same stores sales increased by % in the period.

*  Food Retail segment (includes the banners Pao deakg CompreBem, Sendas, Extra and Extra Elatet)sales revenue increased due to the consolidatiou
new marketing program (sales pillars) which waslénmented into our operations in 2008. This progfanuses on increasing the assortment of productaui
stores, improving negotiating strategies to attmtter prices from our suppliers, increasadyertising and offering improved service. Our satges sales in t
traditional retail segment increased by 12.5% i pleriod due to growth resulting from the good saderformance of both food and nfaod products and
increase in credit availability and good paymentditions.
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e Cash-and-Carry segment (AssaBt sales revenue increased due to the openisgveh new stores and the conversion of five exjstiores into théssai format
most of which are in Rio de Janeiro, due to thisnfat's low investment and high return characteristict €ame stores sales in the cash and carry segnatase
by 18.0% in the period, driven by the optimization of ovke ttounter sales.

*  Home appliances segment (Globex - Ponto Fnief) sales revenue totaled R$2,118.8 million in20the acquisition of Globex took effect for accting purpose
on July 1, 2009, increasing our net sales.

Gross Profitincreased by 19.9%, or R$ 946.5 million, from R$25 million in 2008 to R$5,699.0 due to more adagaous negotiations with suppliers,
consolidation of a more profitable product mix,lirding seasonal products and the increased paaticipof Assai and Ponto Frio in our sales.

Selling, General and Administrative Expensesreased by 21.2%, or R$731.7 million, from R%3,£2 million in 2008 to R$4,179.6 million in 200%el to th
consolidation of Globex’s selling, general and ausirative expenses and our overall grovidht it remained below the net sales revenue inerea28.9% as a result
continuing efforts to control expenses.

Depreciation and Amortizatioimcreased by 3.9%, or R$17.2 million, from R$44@illion in 2008 to R$459.9 million in 2009 primbridue to the acquisition of Glob
in July of 2009, which added 455 stores to our @rou

Other operating expenseset increased by 307.9%, or R$58.8 million, fronl®$ million in 2008 to R$77.9 million in 2009 dtee the exclusion of umealizable ta
write-offs resulting from changes in Brazilian tax legigln amounting to R$359.0 million, the net effetthe tax installment program (REFIS) in the antopinR$342.(
million, see “Item 8A. Consolidated Statements @tter Financial Information —Legal Proceeding —Ratl§ax Installment Payment Program (REFI&)id busines
combination expenses amounting to R$76.0 millidfsed by R$600.0 million in revenue as a resultha renegotiation of the FIC association agreemstht Itad Unibancc
see “Item 4A. History and Development of the ConyparAmendments to the Partnership with Itat Unib&drened the reversal of provision for contingenciethimamount ¢
R$107.5 million.

Financial Incomedecreased by 15.5%, or R$45.4million, from R$298illion in 2008 to R$246.7 million in 2009 due dareduction in net debt resulting in less inte
to be paid and lower CDI interbank rate.

Financial Expenseslecreased by 19.6%, or R$122.5 million, from R$828illion in 2008 to R$501.2 million in 2009 asresult mainly of fair value of financi
instruments and swap operations.

Equity increased from R$(0.5) million in 2008 to R$5.4liom in 2009. On September 30, 2009, FIC took dber management of Banco Investcred — BINVI, Globex
financing arm, aiming to boost Ponto FE®ales and increase profitability through the #dopof a strict credit policy and differentiatedypnent conditions, as well as
pursuit of synergies. The increase was mainly duaitiatives implemented throughout 2008, whicing®ted important portfolio gains, kept default eindontrol thanks to
rigorous credit granting policy and led to a diffetiated positioning in regard to the competition.

Income (Expense) Before Income Taxes, Employeé Btafring and Noncontrolling Interestcreased by 43.4%, or R$221.8 million, from R$F1@illion in 2008 t
R$732.5 million in 2009 due to our strategy of engliag our participation in new businesses and gngvim a sustainable manner, while retaining firmtoal over expens:
and investing in competitive prices to leveragesals well as ensuring cash margin gains.

Income Tax Benefits (Expensigcreased by 36.1%, or R$53.2 million from R$(24illion in 2008 to R$(94.0) million in 2009 due the partial inclusion of sor
lawsuits in the Tax Installments Program of Law9#1/09. This Law, among others, amends the fedexalws related to the tax debt payment by insitits, granting
reduction of fines and interest rates in speciéises. This decision was made to reduce the Compeay’exposure, with the benefit of reducing fined interest rates, a
implementing a financing plan of up to 18tbnths. The law also allows that remaining taxdgsand judicial deposits related to lawsuits tariméuded in the installme
program and deducted from the outstanding balambe paid in installmen
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Employee Profit Sharingncreased by 46.4%, or R$10.3 million, from R$2&llion in 2008 to R$32.5 million in 2009 due tochange in our profit sharing plan,
which, some employees in positions below managersanh as coordinators, supervisors and speciaksgtan to benefit from profit sharing.

Net Incomencreased by 78.5%, or R$268.0 million, from R$34tillion in 2008 to R$609.3 million in 2009 duethe factors discussed above.
Segment Information

We present the results of our operating segmenSR$, which is the measure used by managementailnating the performance of and strategy for the segmen
listed below.

Food Retail Segment

As of December 31, 2009, our retail segment waspeized of the bannefao de Aglcar, Comprebem, Sendas, ExtrdExtra Eletro.

Net sales revenuiacreased by 10.5%, or R$1,755.0 million, from B$$9.2 million in 2008 to R$18,52million in 2009. Among the factors that accouhter this
performance was the consolidation of the salesestyaintroduced into our daily activities in 200&iah focused on assortment, pricing, communicatind services. O

group’s solid capital structure also played a @uale in increasing our market share.

Gross profitincreased by 8.9%, or R$407.6 million, from R$Z,85million in 2008 to R$4,965.2 million in 2009&lto the increase in sales as a result of the npeo
new stores.

Depreciationand amortizatiordecreased by 5.0%, or R$21.9 million, from R$43fikion in 2008 to R$415.5 million in 2009 duettee nonamortization of goodwill ¢
from 2009 in compliance with Law 11,638/07 andHe tlecrease in amortization related to improvementthe property of thirgharties and the renewal of leasing conti
resulting in less investments being amortized ¢verdeasing contract period.

Operating profitincreased by 23.8%, or R$190.3 million, from R$B9illion in 2008 to R$98.8 million in 2009 due to higher sales and a demein operatir
expenses due to more strict budget control.

Financial expensedecreased by 30.1%, or R$186.2 million, from R$818illion in 2008 to R$432.6 million in 2009 asesult of a decrease in CDI interest rate, w
represents our biggest exposure, from 12.3% iretioeof 2008 to 9.8% in the end of 2009 and a dseriathe interest received in the amount of R$15om

Financial incomedecreased by 18.2%, or R$53.0 million, from R$2%illon in 2008 to R$238.0 million in 2009 duedadecrease in CDI interest rate, which repre
our biggest exposure, from 12.3% in the end of 20088% in the end of 2009.

Income before income and social contribution taard employees’ profit sharing and noncontrollingeiestincreased by 60.1%, or R$298.8 million, from R$4
million in 2008 to R$795.9 million in 2009 due tigher operating profit and decrease in expensedalsiict budget control.

Income and social contribution taxdecreased by 10.3%, or R$13.8 million from R$138iion in 2008 to R$119.8 million in 2009 due teetchanges resulting frc
Law No. 11,941/09 relating to REFIS (tax paid istallments) which resulted in certain incomes rehd subject to taxation.

Cash-and -Carry Segment

As of December 31, 2009, our cash-and-carry segmastomprised of thessaibanner

Net sales revenuiacreased by 56.9%, or R$719.0 million, from R$2.8 million in 2008 to R$1,981.8 million in 2008mipally due to the inauguration of seven |
stores and the conversion of five existing storgs theAssai format, most of which were in Rio de Janeiro, ifoamat that is characterized by low investment aigh
returns.
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Gross profitincreased by 49.5%, or R$96.4 million, from R$9%hillion in 2008 to R$291.3 million in 2009 dueda increase in sales and opening of new storesis
a result of improved negotiations with supplierd gains in economies of scale.

Depreciationand amortizatiorincreased by 128.3%, or R$6.8 million, from R$%ilion in 2008 to R$12.1 million in 2009 due tcetbpening of new stores in 2009.

Operating profitdecreased by 8.8%, or R$3.8 million, from R$43i8ion in 2008 to R$39.5 million in 2009 due to tlauguration of seven new stores anc
conversion of five existing stores into tAssaiformat, most of which were in Rio de Janeiro. Aligh these units recorded higher sales while maiinigitotal operatin
expenses, they have not yet reached maturity.

Financial expensemcreased by 116.3%, or R$5.7 million, from R$#iflion in 2008 to R$10.6 million in 2009 due taetincrease of finance leases.

Financial incomeincreased 27.3% or R$0.3 million, from R$1.1 roillin 2008 to R$1.4 million in 2009. It remainedakt stagnant due to the Company not inve
any funds principally due to the reinvestment afds into opening new stores.

Income before income and social contribution teaed employees’ profit sharing and noncontrollingeirestdecreased by 23.3%, or R$9.2 million, from R$39iltian
in 2008 to R$30.3 million in 2009 due to the in@eédn the number of employees, and due to the t@wssnot having reached their expected levelsdftpbility as a resu
of not having reached their maturity period.

Income and social contribution taxeereased by 5.1%, or R$0.7 million from R$13.6limil in 2008 to R$14.3 million in 2009.

Home Appliances Segment

As of December 31, 2009, our home appliances segwancomprised of the banrf@éonto Frio,including the web sitpontofrio.com

Net sales revenue totaled R$2,118.8 million as fdoify 1, 2009, when the acquisition of Glob&oijto Frio) took effect for accounting purposes, factors twattribute
to the net sales revenue were result of the Chaistoampaign carried out jointly with GPA, which riliazked the commercial, operational and logisticsaa, ensuring mc
competitive promotions, as well as greater medésgmce throughout Brazil and (differentiated coreysayment conditions during the Christmas sea®anopportunities t
implement some synergies, as well as, efficienéggstill exist.

5B. Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have funded our operations and capital expemrditmainly from our operating cash flow, loans frtme Brazilian National Bank for Economic and St
DevelopmentBanco Nacional de Desenvolvimento Econémico e §poiaBNDES, issuances of debentures and loans branks. In addition, we fund our working car
needs through a receivables securitization investfiuad (PAFIDC).

As of December 31, 2010, we had R$3,818illion in cash and cash equivalents. We have &pdaf maintaining substantial cash and cash edgiis to respond
short-term liquidity requirements.

Our main cash requirements include:
«  the servicing of our indebtedness;
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«  capital expenditures, including the constructiod eemodeling of new stores and investments in miuastructure;
*  consumer credit;

e acquisitions of other supermarket chains; and

e distribution of dividends and interest on sharebmtequity.

Our primary sources of liquidity have historicaigen cash flow from our operating activities anddwings. Net cash from operating activities wasS&%3 million ir
2010, R$1,842.8 million in 2009 and R$1,256.0 miilin 2008. Net cash provided by (used in) finagdtivities was R$1,365.0 million in 2010, R$1,@6illion in 200¢
and R$484.7 million in 2008 (after payment of R&20&illion in dividends). In 2010, these cash flowere primarily used for investments in the capéapenditure
program, totaling R$1,521.7 millio

As of December 31, 2010, our total outstanding deist R$8,569.4 million, consisting of:
e R$7,431.7 million irreal-denominated loans, and
. R$1,137.7 million in U.S. dollar-denominated debt.

We have adopted a treasury policy to manage fiaamoarket risk, principally by entering into swaiosreais for more than 95% of our U.S. doHatenominate
liabilities. We engage in cross-currency interaesé swaps under which we enter into an agreempiuatyy with the same counter-party that provides original U.S. dollar-
denominated financing. A separate financial instatrs signed at the time the loan agreement iswwsomated, pursuant to which we are then effectilafye for amounts i
reais and interest at a percentage of the CDI rate.réfegence amounts and maturity periods of thes@swanerally correspond to the original U.S. deflenominated loa
This policy protects us against losses resultiogifcurrency devaluations.

We may in the future enter into crossrrency swap agreements and other swap transad¢tiananage our remaining exposure to foreign nayrdéiabilities, namely ot
import-finance credit lines.

Total debt as of December 31, 2010 increased by7¥0r R$4,299.2 million, from R$4,270.2 million 2009 to R$8,569.million in 2010. The most significant part
our debt was incurred in connection with the adtjais and construction of new stores, and with rii@odeling of the existing stores. Our cash intezgpense was R$182.8
million in 2010 and R$209.3 million in 2009.

We have entered into folines of credit with BNDES, which are denominateddais and subject to indexation, based on the TJLP guannual spread. Amortizatic
will be in monthly installments after a grace peri@NDES has been historically an important sowfdénancing for new stores and the acquisitioswbermarket chains. F
further information on our lines of credit with BNES, see note 17(b) to our financial statementsided in this annual report.

Under the lines of credit with BNDES, we are prateid from offering assets as collateral in loan®ed into with third parties without the prior corent of BNDES. W
also have to comply with the maintenance of negatisvenants measured in accordance with Brazili@ARS capitalization ratio (shareholdeexjuity/total assets) equal
or in excess of 0.40 and current ratio (curreneé@ésurrent liabilities) equal to or in excess @f51

We issued a number of non-convertible debenturesdes 1997 and 2010. As of December 31, 2010, there 777,965 debentures in circulation.

On March 1, 2007, the shareholders approved thé @suance and public offering of debentures iazBr We received proceeds equivalent to R$779I6omj for
77,965 nornzonvertible debentures issued as the first (54,80d)second (23,965) series of the sixth issuaFtee debentures are indexed to the average CDhrateaccru
an annual spread of 0.5%, which is payable semit@hn The principal amount will be repaid in thregual installments on March 1, 2010, 2011 and 2012
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On June 15, 2009, the shareholders approved tlmtgeissuance and public offering of debentureBraril. We received proceeds equivalent to R$200anj for 20C
non-convertible debentures issued as the first sefifsecseventh issuance. The debentures are indexbd average CDI rate and accrue an annual spfeE@bo which wil
be payable on the maturity date.

On December 4, 2009, the shareholders approvedighéh issuance and public offering of debentuneBriazil. We received proceeds equivalent to R$600on, for
500 noneonvertible debentures issued as the first seffigheneighth issuance. The debentures are indexedet average CDI rate and accrue an annual spfe@db%
payable on the thir-sixth month after the issue date and annuallyethiéer.

As of December 31, 2010, we had 777,965 oonvertible debentures outstanding, totaling R$.B&nillion. We have to comply with certain negatieovenants: n
debt (debt less cash and cash equivalents andrasa@eeivable) no higher than the balance of $tadders’equity, and maintenance of net debt to EBITDA ré&is than ¢
equal to 3.25.

For further information on our non-convertible detuges, see note 17(d) to our financial statemiestaded in this annual report.

On September 19, 2003, we concluded the structofiffgdio de Acglcar Fundo de Investimento em Direitosli@¥sos, or PAFIDC, a receivables securitization fund h
a term of duration until 2012. We transferred toHHAC customer credit financing and accounts red#&/&rom credit card companies in securitizatiaangactions totalir
R$9,803.0 in 2010 and R$9,051.2 million in 2009e Butstanding balance of these receivables as cérbeer 31, 2010 was R$1,667.0 million and R$1,128l®n as o
December 31, 2009. For all securitizations, weimethservicing responsibilities and subordinatadrigsts. The default credits will be collected BYFRDC’'s administrato
which will be assisted by our collection departméfie do not receive fees for collection servicdse §uota holders of senior quotas have no recaarsar other assets
failure of debtors to pay when due. As definechim agreement between us and PAFIDC, the transfaedft rights is irrevocable, naetroactive and the transfer is definit
and not enforceable against us. PAFIDC is conswédlanto our financial statements.

On May 25, 2010, we organiz&lobex Fundo de Investimento em Direitos Creditérios Globex FIDC, a receivables securitization fenelated to acquire the accot
receivable of Globex (mainly credit card), origi@dtirom the sale of products and services to issocners, with an indefinite term. The fund equitysture as of Decemt
31, 2010 was composed of 11,666 senior equityestsrheld by third parties, amounting to R$1,16ildon, representing 87.5% of the fund equity @n@i67 subordinate
equity interests held by Globex and its subsidg&rénounting to R$166.7 million, accounting for5ea.of the fund$ net assets. The subordinated equity interestsedaeb)
Globex and recorded in nanirent assets as interest in the securitizationl,fthe balance of which as of December 31, 2018 R&166.7 million. The interest held
subordinated equity interests represents the mawiexposure to losses in securitization operations.

In 2010, our capital expenditures totaled R$1,52illion. These investment projects were financedarily with our operating cash flow and, to adesextent funde
by third parties. Our capital expenditures were 8B$1.8 million in 2009. For specific use of our itapexpenditures in 2010, sekem 4A. History and Development of -
Company — Capital Expenditure and Investment Plan.”

We believe that existing resources and operatingnire will be sufficient for our capital expenditiaad investment plan and meet our liquidity requieats. Howeve
our capital expenditure and investment plan isexthip a number of contingencies, many of whichbayond our control, including the continued growtid stability of th
Brazilian economy. We cannot assure you that wé suitcessfully complete all of or any portion ofr aapital expenditure and investment plan. In adidjtwe ma
participate in acquisitions not budgeted in thetehpxpenditure and investment plan, and we magifpehese plan

5C. Research and Development, Patents and Licenses, Etc

We do not have any significant research and dewedop policies.

5D. Trend Information

Based on our good performance and strategic atiguisin 2010, we expect 2011 to be a year of coeill growth for the Company.

For 2011, the P&o de Aglcar Group intends to inwvegtie opening of new stores, remodeling and rating stores and acquiring land in strategic lacati We als
intend to invest in infrastructure related to im@tion technology and our distribution.

We believe we are weplositioned to achieve our growth targets. Our itmesit plan reflects the positive outlook for theaBlian economy. While we will prioriti:
organic growth through the opening of new storeswill also remain alert to any opportunities ftnategic acquisitions that will result in operatidsynergies, leverage
return on invested capital and create value forsbareholders.
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We do not maintain any offalance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligatioother relationships with unconsolidated m#ibr others that are reasonably likel
have a material current or future effect on ouafficial condition, changes in financial conditioevenues or expenses, results of operations, liguickpital expenditures

capital resources.

5F. Tabular disclosure of contractual obligations

The following table summarizes significant contuadtobligations and commitments as of DecembeRG10:

Contractual Obligations

Payment Due by Periol

Less than one yee

One to three year:

Three to five year:

After five years

Long-term debt

Debenture!

Estimated interest payments (
Taxes, other than on incomrr
Financial Leasin(

Operating lease (2)

Total contractual obligations

(in millions of reais)

6,796.! 2,385.¢ 3,827.: 583.7 -
1,588.: 520.7 511.% 555.¢ -
107.C 43.¢ 63.1 - -
1,431.¢ 55.C 183.¢ 183.¢ 1,009.°
184.¢ 71.: 53.2 10.1 50.C
3,812.8 489.0 686.4 686.4 19511
13,920.¢ 3,565.¢ 5,325.: 2,019 3,010.¢

(1) Estimated interest payments include unredlizeses on cross-currency and interest rate sastpacts. Estimated interest payments and foreigrency losses were determined considering thedsteate and
exchange rate as of December 31, 2010. Howevetpngr term debt is subject to variable interegtsaand inflation indices, and these estimated paysrmay differ significantly from the paymentsuadty

made.

(2) Operating leases include minimum rental aitlgns.
ITEM 6. DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

6A. Directors and Senior Management

Board of Directors

The following table sets forth the name and the yéalection of each of our board members. A bbiegraphical description of each of our board meraliollows th

table:
Name Position Since Date of Birth
Abilio dos Santos Dini: Chairmai 200z 12/28/193
Ana Maria Falleiros dos Santos Dini;’ Avila Directol 200z 7/28/196:
Jo&o Paulo Falleiros dos Santos D Directol 199¢ 1/5/196:
Pedro Paulo Falleiros dos Santos D Directol 200z 7/6/196¢
Geyze Marchesi Dini Directol 200¢ 12/5/195:
Jear-Charles Henri Naou Directol 200t 2/25/195:
Candido Botelho Brache¢ Directol 200t 4/11/197:
Fabio Schvartsma Directol 2007 5/9/195:
Guilherme Affonso Ferreir Directol 200¢ 11/17/194
Jean Louis Bourgie Directol 200¢ 3/8/194¢
Antoine Marie Remi Lazars Giscarc' Estaing Directol 200¢ 9/19/196:
Pedro Henrique Chermont de Mirar Directol 200¢ 8/24/197:
Arnaud, Daniel, Charles, Walter, Joachim Stra Directol 201C 5/22/1971
Ulisses Kameyam Directoi 201cC 10/11/197:
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Mr. Abilio dos Santos Dinis the chairman of our board of directors since®@nd a member of our board of directors sinc&s1B®s professional career was enti
dedicated to the Grupo P&o de Agucar, from higiniosition as sales manager to the position meently occupies. He was responsible for our Corgfgamajor busine:
upturn and, as chief executive officer, promoteslithplementation of corporate governance policies management professionalization. Since 1999s laéso a member
the board of directors of the Casino Group. Mr.iDis one of the founders of both the Sdo PauloBradilian Supermarket Associations, the APAS (Assgio Paulista (
Supermercados), and the ABRAS (Associagdo Brasitier Supermercados). He was also member of thdiBnalzlonetary Council for ten years, and is cuthg@a membe
of the Federal Government Economic and Social g@reknt Council. Mr. Abilio Diniz holds a bachelsiegree in Business Administration from Fundacéuil® Varga
and has attended Columbia University in New Yor# e University of Ohio in Dayton.

Mrs. Ana Maria Falleiros dos Santos Diniz D’Avikea member of our board of directors since 20P8or to this date she was our chief operatiofis@fand responsit
for the human resources, marketing and consumeicesrdepartments. She is a founding partner ofi§Bioenergia and also founder of Axialent do Brads. D’Avila
holds a bachelos’ degree in business administration from FundagémaAdo Alvares Penteado (FAAP) and a postgraduageed in marketing from Fundagio Get
Vargas. She graduated in owner/president manageimentHarvard Business School. She is involvedewmesal educational projects includiigdos Pela Educagaanc
Parceiros da Educagcé. Mrs. Diniz D’Avila is Mr. Abilio Diniz’s daughter

Mr. Jo&o Paulo Falleiros dos Santos Diriiza member of our board of directors since 1980.Jodo Paulo Diniz started his career in the Camgpin 1985 and w:
director of development and new businesses andtdireesponsible for our affiliated companies amtgtrinational division, having also been responsibiehe Company
assets. Mr. Diniz holds a bachekbdegree in business administration from Fundagidli® Vargas and has attended the London BusiBeksol. Mr. Jodo Paulo Diniz
Mr. Abilio Diniz's son.

Mr. Pedro Paulo Falleiros dos Santos Diniza member of our board of directors since 2008.Pedro Paulo is a businessman, and sharehofd@Pb Holding, a
investment company, in addition to being partned anfounder of Greentech, an investment fund that itsvé@s environmentally friendly, clean technologyngmanie
including Sucral, Sykué, Veridas, Panozon, GT Watet Brazil Timber. He has also founded compamiefe gastronomy and leisure sector. Mr. PedrodPBiniz is Mr
Abilio Diniz’s son.

Mrs. Geyze Marchesi Dinis a member of our board of directors since 200%. Marchesi Diniz is the owningartner of ING11 Consultoria Empresarial e Planejatt
Estratégico Ltda. She holds a bachelaiegree in economy from Universidade Mackenzi€, @m MBA in business management from Fundacdo BeWdrgas. Mrs
Marchesi Diniz is Mr. Abilio Diniz’s wife.

Mr. Jean-Charles Henri Naouis a member of our board of directors since 2006.M&ouri is Chairman and Chief Executive Officétttee Casino Group. Mr. Naol
has a degree in sciences from Ecole Normale Swupérikas studied at Harvard University and at Eblaitonale d’Administration.

Mr. Candido Botelho Bracheis a member of our board of directors since 20@6.Bracher was a director of Banco Itamarati SaAd Vice President of BADESP
Banco de Desenvolvimento do Estado de Sao PauloMy.ABracher is CEO of Banco Ital BBA S.A. Mr. Breer has a degree in Business Administration framdaca
Getulio Vargas.

Mr. Fébio Schvartsmais a member of our board of directors since 2007 .Schvartsman is the chief executive officer détkin S.A. and was the chief executive off
of Telemar ParticipagGes and member of the boardirettors of Telemar Norte Leste, Contax Partipfies S.A. and Gafisa S.A. In the last company, he also th
president of their audit committee. Mr. Schvartsrigastill a member of Signatura Lazard, San Antdnternacional do Brasil, Duratex and Hospital &ita Albert Einsteir
He is also the founder and president of FS&dessoria. Mr. Schvartsman was the chief finarudfader and a member of the board of directorfitfapar Participacdes S.
until April 2007. Mr. Schvartsman has a degree ngiBeering and has pogtaduation degrees in Production Engineering frsoola Politécnica da Universidade de
Paulo — USP and in Business Administration fromdagéo Getulio Vargas.
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Mr. Guilherme Affonso Ferreiréss a member of our board of directors since 2088.Ferreira is the Chief Executive Officer of Bame Participagdes S.A. and is ¢
member of the board of directors of Eternit, SignatLazard, Rio Bravo Investimentos and Tavex. Katreira holds a degree in Production EngineeriogfEscol.
Politécnica da Universidade de Sado Paulo — USRraBdonomics and Politics from Macalester College.

Mr. Jean Louis Bourgieis a member of our board of directors since 20M9.Bourgier has been a member of the Casino Gsinge 1989 and is currently the directc
international operations, having previously hele plositions of restaurant activity director, suparet and convenience store director, internatigita president, manager
the Taiwan branch and director of corporate prsjeBefore working with the Casino Group, he worlkdProcter & Gamble, RJ Reynolds and Burger King. Bburgie
graduated in business management from ESSEC icéran

Mr. Antoine Marie Remi Lazars Giscard D’Estaiisga member of our board of directors since 2008.MEstaing is the financial director of the Casino @roHe wa
previously financial, strategy and IT director bétDanone Group, and more recently, partner at Batompany. Mr. ['Estaing holds a degree in administration from
HEC Business School and the Ecole Nationale d’Adstriation.

Mr. Pedro Henrigue Chermont de Mirandga member of the board of directors since 2009.Miranda was the chairman of the board of divestof Casa Show S.
and CIO and trustee of the main funds of IP Paudigdes, in addition to having participated in tbards of directors of Globex (Ponto Frio), Pontm Eom, Mills Andaime
Tubulares do Brasil S.A. and Rossi Residencial Siégraduated in Mechanical Engineering from thetifloia Universidade Catdlica of the State of R®Janeiro.

Mr. Arnaud, Daniel, Charles, Walter, Joachim Stexsis a member of the board of directors since 2040 Strasser has worked for the Casino Group s28€¥ and we
the development and equity interests officer, havineviously been responsible for the internaticalelopment department and was an advisor to hgidency. Mi
Strasser worked in the Cabinet of the Prime Minisfé=rance in 2005 as Mission Head, and in their@of Renaud Dutreil, French Minister of Companéed Trade, fro
2005 to 2007, as special advisor. He was also abreeof the board of directors 8imacenes Exit¢Colombia), Big C (Thailand) and Super de Boerlaia), as well as
member of the executive committee of the Casinai@&rance).

Mr. Ulisses Kameyamiz a member of the board of directors since 2040 Kameyama has worked for the Casino Group sibeeember 2005 and was the developt
and equity interests officer for Latin America, ay previously been a senior member of the devetopirand equity interests team. He has also workeghanvestmen
analysis officer at Brasil Telecom S.A. and as fiicer at Rothschild Investment Bank. He graduateBroduction Engineering from the Federal Univgref Rio de Janeil
- UFRJ.

Executive Officers

The following table sets forth the name, positiod ¢he year of election of each of our executiieefs. A brief biographical description of eachonir executive office
follows the table:

Name Position First Year Elected Date of Birth
Enéas César Pestana N Chief Executive Office 201C 2/27/196:
José Roberto Coimbra Tambat Executive Vic-President of Retail Busine 201C 3/23/196:
Hugo Antonio Jordao Bethle Executive Vic-President of Corporate Relatic 201C 12/27/196
Antonio Ramatis Fernandes Rodrigues Executive Vice-President of Commercial StrategypBy 2011 10/16/1958
Chain and I
Claudia Elisa de Pinho Soat Executive Vic-President of Market Strate 201C 11/4/195!
José Antonio de Almeida Filipg Corporate and Finance Services Off 2011 5/25/195
Caio Racy Mattar Executive Vic-President of Specialized Busines 201C 1/25/196(
Sylvia de Souza Ledo Wanderl People Office 201C 10/27/196!
Marcelo Lopes Supply Chain Office 201C 3/9/196:
Paulo Gualtier Control and Management Offic 2011 9/1/196°
Andelaney Carvalho dos San IT Officer 2011 4/23/197!
Vitor Faga de Aimeid: Investor Relations Offici 201C 11/5/196
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Mr. Enéas César Pestana Nétas been our Chief Executive Officer since 20160. Réstana began his career with us in 2003, @daministrative Officer and was ¢
CFO and COO before becoming our CEO. He was the-Fresident of Laboratério Delboni Auriemo and wasked for GP Investimentos aihrrefour. Mr. Pestana holi
a degree in Accounting from Pontificia Universid&zigolica de Sdo PauloRUC and specialization degrees in controlling,rfce leadership and management from nat
and international institutions.

Mr. José Roberto Coimbra Tambassmur Executive VicdRresident of Retail Business. Mr. Tambasco begsuwedreer with us in 1979 and since then, has waakeal
Administration Trainee, Sales Assistant, Sales ManaCommercial Manager, Commercialization Offid@perations Officer, Supermarket Division OfficBdo de Aglci
Unity Officer, Commercial, Operational and MarketivicePresident. He has been our executive officer sR@®3 and has a degree in Business Administratiom
Fundagéo Getllio Vargas.

Mr. Hugo A. Jord&o Bethleris our Executive VicdRresident of Corporate Relations. Mr. Bethlem belgiancareer with us in 2001 and since then has eebds oL
Commercialization Officer, Commercial Officer, exéiwe Officer of CompreBem and Sendas unities angpy Chain and IT Vicd?resident. Mr. Bethlem was 1
Commercial Officer of DiCicco, Jerdbnimo Martins,rBae Tematico Play Center a@hrrefour. Mr. Bethlem has a degree in Business Administrafrom Faculdadt
Metropolitanas Unidas — FMU and has a post-graddegeee in Administration from Cornell Universitydahas been our executive officer since 2003.

Mr. Antonio Ramatis Fernandes Rodrigusour Executive Vice-President of Commercial ®gg. Mr. Rodrigues was the Commercial and Markgtiite-chairman ¢
Grupo Bom Preco, the Commercial and Logistics wicairman of Grupo Sonae and the Commercial glwrman of C&A. Mr. Rodrigues has a degree in eegiing fron
Fundacao Armando Alvares Penteado — FAAP and loldaster degree in business administration fronvédsidade de Séo Paulo.

Mrs. Claudia Elisa de Pinho Soares our Executive ViceRresident of Market Strategy. Prior to joining @ompany, she worked for Ambev for 17 years in manal
and director positions in Human Resources, Finabesribution and Logistics. She also worked fotit@ios Morrinhos (Leitbom) as Director of Finand€ and Huma
Resources. Mrs. Soares holds a degree in Busingssnistration from Pontificia Universidade Catdlida Rio de Janeiro PUC, an MBA in General Management fr
INSEAD and in Human Resources from FIA — Universify5do Paulo — USP.

Mr. Jose Antonio de Almeida Filipgmas been our Corporate and Finance Services ©$ficee 2010. Prior to joining our Company in 2016 worked for Gafisa S..
Reinolds LATASA and IngersolRand in various executive financial positions. Fr2@04 until prior to joining us in 2010 he was Vieeesident of both Finance and Hur
Resources at CPFL Energia. Mr. Filippo graduatesinfthe UFRJ with a degree in civil engineering,nedr a finance post-graduate degree at IAG/MRJC-and
specialization in management from IBMEC and HanBudiness School.

Mr. Caio Racy Mattaris our Executive ViceRresident of Specialized Businesses. He previosstyed as a member of the executive office of Rdtmgenharia
Construgdes Ltda., he is the chairman of Gafisa 8 he is also a member of the board of direcbRaramount Lansul S.A.. Mr. Mattar has an ergjimg degree frol
Instituto de Engenharia Paulista and has atterftetddndon Business School. Mr. Mattar began hiserawith us in 1993 and has been our executiveasfSince 1995.

Mrs. Sylvia de Souza Ledo Wandeikepur People Officer. In 2000, Mrs. Ledo begankiay at our Company as a commercial director arglidegen an executive offic
at our Company since 2008. Prior to joining our @any, she worked as a Commercial and Marketingciirdor Wal Mart and has also worked for MesblasM.e&o has
degree in Social Communications from FACHA and aedadtive MBA from UFRJ.

Mr. Marcelo Lopesas been our Supply Chain Officer since 2010. Mpds has worked for us since 2001, operating ifoistics and supply chain areas. He worke
Sao Paulo Alpargatas, operating in the industnal @mmercial areas. He graduated in Business Admatiish from Unicapital and took specialization cses at Coppei
and Fundacao Getlio Vargas.
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Mr. Paulo Gualtierihas been our Control and Management Officer si@d®2Mr. Paulo Gualtieri has worked for us sinc89,9n the operations, commercial and
information technology areas. He graduated witlftemnomics degree from the Pontificia Universidad&(ica of the State of Sdo Paulo, holds a gradiedgeee in Industri
Marketing from Mackenzie University and concludedMBA at Fundagao Getulio Vargas.

Mr. Andelaney Carvalho dos Santoas been our IT Officer since May 2011. He wa®fficer at Holcim, Sadia and Carrefour. He has grele in Computer Sciences,
Executive MBA from Fundacéo Getulio Vargas and sgization degrees in leadership, management ancepses.

Mr. Vitor Faga de Almeid&as been our Investor Relations Officer since Atg2010. Before joining GPA, Mr. Faga was Chiefdficial Officer at Medial Saude, Mé&
and Investor Relations Officer at Julio Sim&es Istiga, Investor Relations Officer at CPFL Energia atrategic consultant at BCGThe Boston Consulting Group. He
also a member of the Brazilian Investor Relatiorsgitute (IBRI), where he acted as Chief Finan©tiicer as well as Vice-President/SP.

6B. Compensation

For the year ended December 31, 2010, the aggregatpensation paid in cash to the directors, ekerudfficers and members of the committees of CBEx
R$61.2 million. Noneash benefits in 2010 included reimbursements aficaéexpenses to our executive officers and tieeaiur cars during working hours. There ar
outstanding loans granted by us to our executifieess or members of our board of directors. Ureleew CVM rule, listed companies are now requicedublicly disclos
the lowest, highest and average compensation pagadcutive officers and board members. However Gampany, together with other listed companies, tat disclose
this information, based on an injunction obtaingdBEF-RJ on March 2, 2010, that, according to legal department, supersedes the CVM requirement.

In July 2007, the Company established a supplememptavate pension plan of defined contributionit® employees and retained the financial instituByasilpre\
Seguros e Previdéncia S.far management purposes. When establishing the i@ Company provides monthly contributions ohdbeof its employees on account

services rendered to the Company. Contributionsentadthe Company in the year ended December 310, Zhounted to R$ 1.4 million and employeeshtribution:
amounted to R$2.0 million with 842 participants.

Compensation of the Board of Directors, Executive @icers and Fiscal Council of CBD for 2010 and 2011

The table below indicates the estimated compensé&iomembers of the board of directors, executiffieers and fiscal council for 2010:

Board of Directors Executive Officers Fiscal Counci Total
(In R$, when applicable)

Number of member&) 14 1 3 28
Fixed Annual Compensatic 0 13,033,02 432,001 13,465,02
Benefits 0 1,875,56 0 1,875,56
Base Compensatic 0 0 0 0
Others 0 0 0 0

Variable Compensatior
Bonus 0 0 0 0
Profit Sharinc 0 23,789,33 0 23,789,33
Participation in Meeting 7,198,601 Q Q 7,198,601
Participation in Committee Meetin: 0 0 o] o]
Commission: 0 0 0 0
Others (Invitee’ Compensation; 101,00( 0 0 101,00(

Pos-Employment Benefit Q Q Q Q

Benefits on ceasing to exercise the positi 0 0 0 0

Share-based compensatio@) 0 14,742,400 0 14,742,400

Total Compensatior 7,299,601 53,440,32 432,00 61,171,92

(1) The number of members of our managementrimédrin the above table represents the average lammuber of members of each body ascertained oordhly basis.

(2) Compensation referring to achieving the gealsblished for previous years, to be recognizetle results for the year ended December 31, 201ide with current policy.
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Board of Directors Executive Officers Fiscal Counci Total
(In R$, when applicable)

Number of member 14 11 3 28
Fixed Annual Compensatit 0 14,335,15 432,001 14,767,15
Benefits 0 2,397,99 0 2,397,99
Base Compensatic 0 0 0 0
Others 0 0 0 0

Variable Compensatior
Bonus 0 0 0 0
Profit Sharing 0 22,301,50 0 22,301,50
Participation in Meeting 7,541,400 Q Q 7,541,400
Commission: 0 0 0 0
Others (Invitee'’ Compensation 234,201 Q Q 234,201

Pos-Employment Benefit 0 0 0 0

Benefits on ceasing to exercise the positi Q Q Q Q

Share-based compensatioh 0 14,742,40 0 14,742,40

Total Compensatior 7,775,601 53,777,04 432,001 61,984,64

(1) Compensation referring to achieving the gealsblished for previous years, to be recogniaetie results for the year ended December 31, 201ihe with current policy.

Variable Compensation 2010 and 2011

With the exception of the compensation based omtiues actually worked, the members of our boardirgfctors and our fiscal council receive no vagatbmpensatic
in the exercise of their functions. Below we preaghe variable compensation of our executive offigeaid in 2010 and expected to be paid in 2011.

Amounts referring to the year 2010

Number of members

Bonus
Minimum expected amoui
Maximum expected amou
Expected amou- goals achieve
Amount actually recognize

Profit sharing
Minimum expected amoui
Maximum expected amou
Expected amour- goals achieve
Amount actually recognize

Executive Officers

(In R$, when applicable)

O O oo

0
27,000,000
18,000,000
24,963,425

(1) The number of members of our executive bazfiatmed in the above table represents the aveaagaal number of executive officers ascertained aronthly basis.
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Amounts projected for the year 2011

Executive Officers
(In R$, when applicable)

Number of member

11
Bonus 0
Minimum expected amoul 0
Maximum expected amou 0
Expected amour- goals achieve 0
Profit sharing
Minimum expected amoul 0
Maximum expected amou 33,452,25
Expected amou- goals achieve 22,301,50

Stock Option Plan for Board of Directors and Execuive Officers
As of December 31, 2010, we had two stock opti@mplin effect. The first plan was approved by dwarsholders at the general shareholderséting held on April 2.

1997, or First Plan, and the second plan was apgrby our shareholders at the general shareholaiensting held on December 20, 2006, or Second Bta@ptions Plar
when together with the First Plan.

Our Option Plans are managed by the stock optian planagement committee, which is elected by oardbof directors. This committee is comprised oééhto five
members and determines which employees shouldibéoefi the stock options based on their dutiespomsibilities and performance.

The Option Plans cover only the preferred shamseid by our Company.

General Terms and Conditions

Our stock option plan management committee uswaitiertakes annual option granting cycles. Eachtigiuaycle is allocated a serial number, wherelgydhants fror
the First Plan are numbered as from “Series |” tnedgrants from the Second Plan are numbered beginvith the letter A, that is, as from “Series AEor the year end
December 31, 2010, the options granted under thiesS¥ of the First Plan and Series Al to A4 of 8exond Plan were in effect.

The options granted within the scope of the Sed®iath can be classified as “Gold” and “Silvetfijs differentiation implies alterations to the iopt exercise price .
explained below.

The Stock Option Committee established the critesizalculate the reduction and/or increase indeducer or accelerator) for the number of optiorentgd an
classified as “Gold” in each series of the Secolath,Faccording to the analysis of the concept tfrreon invested capital (ROIC), under the follogvierms:

(a) Accelerator: after 3%, for every 1% more th@I®, increase by 0.5% the number of shares graolaskified as “Gold”.
(b) Reducer: after -3%, for each 1% less than @&Rreduce by 5.0% the number of shares grantassified as “Gold”.
That is:

Principal Objectives of the Plan

The aim of the Options Plan is to (i) attract aathin highly qualified executive officers and pisdinals; (ii) enable our managers and employegsuticipate in ot
capital and in the equity increases arising fromrisults these managers and employees have coethiland (iii) to align the interests of our mas@gandemployees wit
those of our shareholders, encouraging these miofess to better perform while ensuring continiitghe management of our Company.
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Maximum Number of Shares and Options

The maximum number of shares covered by the Oftlans is 11,617,748 preferred shafidse number of shares covered by the Option Plars atlways be within ol
Companys approved capital limit, which may be amended rat ime upon determination of our board of direstowhen stock options are exercised, we issu
beneficiaries new shares, with the right to uset@asury shares.

There is no maximum number of options that may fa@ted within the scope of the Option Plans, predithat the total number of shares arising fromettercise of tk
options does not exceed the limit discussed abogeadimit of 2% of our capital stock per series.

Exercise Price

First Plan The price of each preferred share is determimethé respective adhesion agreement, and is aldetsmined by the stock option plan disbursel
committee on Fridays at a price between 100% aftl 60the weighted average market price of our prefeshares at the close of business on the BM&FBERA durini
the four days prior to that Friday, adjusted fa thflation rate the IGP-M.

Second Planin the case of options classified as “Silveh@ exercise price per preferred share will comad@o the average closing price of our preferteates over tt
last 20 BM&FBOVESPA trading sessions prior to tlaedon which the stock option plan disbursementroittee decides to grant the optidkfter this average price has b
determined, a discount of 20% will be appliEdr Gold-type options, the exercise price per preteshare will correspond to R$0.01.

Vesting

As a general rule the options will vest as follows:

First Plan: At the end of the last month of the thiydar as from the date of execution of the adhesipaement, the beneficiary will be entitled to a®60% of the tot:
number of shares under the option granted to tiéth the remaining portion exercisable at the ehthe last month of the fifth year.

Second PlanAs from the 38 month to the 48 month following the date of execution of the adbesagreement, the beneficiary will be entitlecatmuire 100% of tt
Silver-type shares. The exercise of the Gglue options will occur in the same period, but pleecentage of these options subject to exercibd&idetermined by the stc
option plan disbursement committee in th& 88onth following the date of execution of the adbesigreement.

The options granted within the scope of the OpRtans may be exercised in whole or in part.
Restrictions on Transferring Shares
The stock option plan disbursement committee meabéish restrictions on the transfer or circulatafrthe shares resulting from the exercise of tht@as.

In the First Plan, part of the shares acquiredhénfifth year following the date of execution oéthdhesion agreement, will be encumbered withtreomsferability, whic
will terminate after the beneficiary retires. Theaqtity of encumbered shares will be calculatefbbmws:

Q=[Q1xPm)-(Q1lxPe)]/Pm

Where:
Q = the quantity of shares to be encumbered withtrensferability;
Q1 = 50% of the total shares initially establishethe beneficiary’s option agreement;
Pm = market price of the preferred shares issuagstpn the option exercise date; and
Pe = exercise price initially established in thedfiiary’s options agreement.
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Outstanding Stock Options for Senior Management

The members of our board of directors are not ldkgfor our stock option plans. Below are the autdtng options for the members of our senior mamage, as ¢
December 31, 2010.

Senior Managemen

Number of members benefiting from the grantingtotk options 11
In relation to options not yet exercisable Series ¥ Series Al- Gold Series Al- Silver Series A2- Gold Series A2- Silver Series A3- Gold Series A3- Silver Series Ad- Gold Series Ad- Silver
Quantity (in thousanc 50.2 0 0 T32.0 140 218.C 218.C 235.C
Vesting date 05/31/2011 and
06/30/2011 N/A N/A 03/31/201 03/31/201 05/31/201 05/31/201 05/31/2011 and 05/31/20 05/31/201
Maximum deadline for exercising the optic 09/30/201 04/20/201 0429/201 03/31/201 03/31/201 05/31/201 05/31/201 05/31/201. 05/31/201.
Weighted average exercise price (in RS, per st 40.3¢ 0,01 24.6¢ 0.01 26.9: 0.01 27.47 N/A N/A
Fair value of the options on the last day of thery RS, per shar¢ 42.4% N/A N/A 0.01 26.9: 0.01 27.43 0.0 46.4¢
In relation to exercisable options
Quantity 11,000 35,781 80,80( 26,95 28,75( 19,68: 24,50 0 [
Maximum deadline for exercising the optic 09/30/201 04/29/201 04/29/201 03/30/201 03/30/201. 05/31/201. 05/31/201 N/A N/A
Weighted average exercise price (in RS, per st 40.3¢ 0.01 0.01 26.9: 0.01 27.47 N/A N/A
Fair value of the options on the last day of theiless year (in R$, per sha 42.4% 0.01 0.01 25.9: 0.01 27.43 N/A N/A
Fair value of the options on the last day of thary@ thousand R 466.7 0.4 03 745.¢ 0.z 675.¢ 0 0.1

Stock Options Exercised and Shares Delivered for 8®r Management

The table below shows the options exercised andtthaees delivered to the members of our senior gaanant in 2010.

Number of members benefiting from the grantingtotlk options

Series Al- Gold Series Al- Silver Series A2- Gold Series A3- Gold Series A3- Silver
. Series A2 — Silver (5’

In relation to the options exercised and the sharedelivered: Series IX (znd tranche) (an tranche) (Slh",anche) tranche) (1% tranche) (lst tranche)
Number of shares (in thousar 61.2 40,C 91.C 29.4 31.4 272 34.1
Weighted average exercise price (in R$, per st 30.52 0.01 24.68 24.68 24.68 0.01 27.4
Total amount of the difference between the exenpigee and the market price of the shares

referring to the options exercised (in R$, per eh 26.71 57.2¢ 32.60 42.81 42.81 59.1¢ 31.6¢
Insurance

We have an insurance policy with Itad Seguros Sfiective from November 23, 2010 through Noven#r2011, covering all our managers against damaifyéisute(
to them in the exercise of their functions. Coveraglimited to US$50 million, with deductibles B5$200,000 for all losses and damages arising fsomand the sar
damaging act involving the capital markets, and 5300 for all losses and damages arising from am the same damaging act of a different nature. ddlicy is
automatically extended to the management of ourswésgidiaries, with liability limited to 30% of thetal assets of the new subsidiary.

6C. Board Practices

According to our bylaws, our board of directors consists of at lehstd and up to 18 members. The directors meet amiljirfive times a year, and extraordina
whenever required. The members of our board ofctlire are appointed at general shareholdeesttings for a term of office of three years angl @mquired to be o
shareholders. The boasdiesponsibilities include leading the corporateegoance process, electing our executive offices supervising our management. Currently
board of directors consists of fourteen memberstedeby our shareholders, consisting of five regméatives of the Diniz Family, four independentediors and fiv
representatives of the Casino Group, whose termdffise expire in 2014. We are managed by our badrdirectors Conselho de Administraci@nd by our board
executive officersDiretoria). None of our directors and officers is party toeamployment agreement providing for benefits ugomtnation of employment.
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Mr. Abilio Diniz acts as the Chairman of our boafddirectors and the Chairman of the board of diecof the Holding Company. As part of his du@ssChairman «
our board of directors, Mr. Abilio Diniz is respadple for the general supervision of our strategy awtivities and liaises between our board of dinecand our board
executive officers. As Chairman of our board oedtors, Mr. Abilio Diniz has a casting vote for eas$ in the regular course of our business.

Our board of executive officers is composed ofeasst two and up to 14 members, being one the Exie€utive Officer, five Vice Presidents and oneeEHiinancis
Officer, elected by our board of directors. The erahresponsibilities of our executive officers destermined pursuant to our laws and their specific duties and titles
established by our board of directors. Until May811, our board of executive officers was compagei® members.

The responsibilities of our executive officers imté adopting plans and rules related to our manageand operations, reporting to shareholders &scal year on tk
status of our business activities, presenting teegnd balance sheets and other legally required dinhatatements and submitting investment prograntsbudgets to o
board of directors.

Our executive officers are elected by our boardlicéctors for thregrear terms, although any executive officer may draaved by our board of directors before
expiration of his or her term. On May 5, 2011, directors elected our current executive officeifse Turrent term of all executive officers expine\pril 2014.

Committees

Pursuant to our blaws, we currently have the following three speciammittees: (i) Human Resources and Compensatwnndttee; (i) Financial Committee; a
(iii) Sustainable Development Committee. The attitms of each committee are established by ourdbofdirectors. The members of each committeeapmointed by ot
board of directors, solely among its members, aedobard of directors also designates the chaimhaach special committee. Each special committ@®inposed of thr
and up to five members for a term of office of thgears, reelection being permitted. In additiothese committees, the board of directors may erethier committees wi
special roles.

Human Resources and Compensation Committee

The human resources and compensation committes hwddtings at least once every two months andhieaf®liowing duties: (i) to provide guidelines fitre selection ¢
our Chief Executive Officer; (ii) to examine canalids for election to our board of directors; (iii)examine candidates for appointment to our badreixecutive officer:
(iv) to review and discuss management compensatidrstock option plan for our officers; (v) to posp criteria for the assessment of the performahoer managers, usi
comparable Brazilian corporations as benchmarl;tgvieview the recruitment and hiring methods d@ddgy us and our controlled companies, using coalye Brazilial
corporations as benchmark; (vii) to define the cengation and incentive policies for our managend; @iii) to identify individuals within our Companand our controlle
companies who could be our future leaders andviollp the development of their career. Our HumanoRes and Compensation Committee is composed afMarie
Falleiros dos Santos Diniz D'Avila, Geyze MarchBsiiz, Jean Louis Bourgier, Arnaud Strasser andhi@une Affonso Ferreira.

Financial Committee

The financial committee holds meetings at leaseawery two months and has the following dutiesto(ireview the financial/economic viability of oimvestment plar
and programs; (ii) to review and recommend actifamsthe negotiation of any merger and acquisitiorobany similar transaction involving us or any air controlle:
companies; (iii) to follow up any such transactand negotiation referred to in item (ii); (iv) teview our cash flow, indebtedness policy and capttacture; (v) to monitc
the implementation and accomplishment of our animuadstment plan; (vi) to monitor the average aafsbur capital structure and to make suggestiomgrfodification:
whenever deemed necessary; and (vii) to reviewacmmmend opportunities related to financing tratisas that may improve our capital structu@err financial committe
is currently composed of Ana Maria Falleiros dosit8a Diniz D’Avila, Jodo Paulo Falleiros dos Sanibigiz, Antonie Marie Remi Lazars Giscard Bstaing and Arnat
Strasser.
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Sustainable Development Committee

The sustainable development committee holds meetihtpast once every three months and has tleevialy duties: (i) to increase the value of our hass by expandii
our sustainable development and environmental nsat{g) to establish sustainable practices, basedeconomic, environmental and social elementsri®eroto promot
sustainable development and disseminate theseigamdhroughout all of our strategic activities amdhtionships; (iii) to evaluate and approve pttge proposals ai
institutional campaigns related to environmentasaeial issues, including the allocation of resesrciv) to evaluate investment opportunities argjgets from a sustainal
perspective; and (v) to approve the social ancafuetle development reporOur sustainability committee is composed of Jeamd 8ourgier, Maria Silvia Bastos Marqu
Joao Paulo Falleiros dos Santos Diniz, Pedro Healleiros dos Santos Diniz, Ulisses Kameyama arith&me Affonso Ferreira.

In addition, to the three special committees, ve® dlave a fiscal council that serves as our aaditngittee and a stock option plan management comenite set fori
below a description of our fiscal council and stogkion plan management committee.

Fiscal Council and Audit Committee

Under the Brazilian corporate law, the fiscal cduixa corporate body independent of managemedtadnCompanys external auditors. The fiscal council has
typically been equivalent to or comparable with & laudit committee; its primary responsibility iee®en to monitor managementctivities, review the financial stateme
and report its findings to the shareholders. Howeparsuant to Exchange Act Rule 1@€e)(3) which provides for an exemption under thles of the SEC, regarding
audit committees of listed companies, a foreigngid issuer is not required to have a separateé eodimittee composed of independent directors fiflai a fiscal counc
established and selected pursuant to home cowegsy or listing provisions expressly requiring ermitting such a board and such board meets carginirements. Pursus
to this exemption, our fiscal council can exerdise required duties and responsibilities of a @L&lit committee to the extent permissible undezilea corporate law. T
comply with the rules of the SEC, the board of tardi must meet the following standards: it mustsbparate from the full board, its members mustheotlected k
management, no executive officer may be a meminerBaazilian law must set forth standards for theéependence of the members. In addition, in omleyuglify for the
exemption, the board of auditors must, to the extermitted by Brazilian law:

*  be responsible for the appointment, retention, aamsption and oversight of the external auditors\fing the resolution of disagreements betweenagament ar
the external auditors regarding financial repoiting

*  be responsible for establishing procedures fordleipt, retention and treatment of complaints mdigg accounting, internal accounting controls wdiing matter
and procedures for the confidential, anonymous ssgiom by employees of concerns regarding quedilereccounting or auditing matters;

» have the authority to engage independent counsebthrer advisors as it determines necessary ty oatrits duties; and
*  receive appropriate funding from the Company fompeant of compensation to the external auditorsafor advisors and ordinary administrative expenses.

As a foreign private issuer, we chose to modify fiszal council to comply with the exemption reauirents. Our board of directors has delegated tdigbal counci
certain additional responsibilities and the fisoalincil and the board of directors adopted an anidit charter delegating to the fiscal council theties and responsibilities
a U.S. audit committee to the extent permitted utazilian corporate law. Because Brazilian cogteraw does not permit the board of directorseieghate responsibili
for the appointment, retention and compensatich®fxternal auditors and does not provide nettreboard nor the fiscal council with the authotiyesolve disagreeme
between management and the external auditors iegafthancial reporting, the fiscal council cannlfill these functions. Therefore, in addition tts oversigh
responsibilities, the fiscal council may only makeommendations to the board of directors and Bbéders with respect to the appointment, retenéind compensation
the external auditors, and with regard to resofutddisagreements between management and thenaiérditors, the fiscal council may only make raggendations to tt
board of directors and shareholders.
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Under the Brazilian corporate law, the fiscal cdumay not contain members who are members of tadof directors or management, or who are ourl@yeps o
employees of a controlled company or of a compdrth@group, or a spouse or relative of any menobeur management. In addition, the Brazilian coap® law require
that fiscal council members receive a compensatioieast 10% of the average amount paid to eactuéxe officer, not including profit sharing andhet benefits. Tt
Brazilian corporate law requires a fiscal coungibe composed of a minimum of three and a maximiufiv® members and their respective alternates.

Our fiscal council is composed of three members wafeoelected at the annual shareholders’ meetiitly,tearms lasting until the next annual sharehadereeting afte
their election. Under the Brazilian corporate ldw)ders of preferred shares have the right to edeparately one member of the fiscal council. Alsager the Brazili
corporate law, minority groups of shareholders ti@t at least 10% of the voting shares are edtitbeelect one member of the fiscal council andaftisrnate by a separ
vote. In any event, however, the common sharehsldave the right to elect the majority of the meralzé the fiscal council. We set forth below thenes, ages and positic
of the members of our fiscal council and their ezdjwe alternates indicated by the Holding Compang elected with previous consent of our prefesieareholders ¢
March 31, 2011, the date of the last annual shédels meeting.

Name Age Position Year First Elected Date of Birth
Fernando Maida Dall Acq! 62 Chairmal 200¢ 3/1/194¢
Mario Probst 58 Membe 200¢ 5/30/195:
Raimundo Lourencgo Maria Christia 53 Membe 2011 8/8/195
John Michel Pimenta de Moraes Streithi 41 Alternate 200¢ 2/9/197(
Antonio Luiz de Campos Gurg 7C Alternate 200¢ 11/12/194
Eduardo Cysneiros de More 3€ Alternate 2011 9/21/197.

Fernando Maida Dall’Acquaborn in 1949, he has been Chairman of the FiSoahcil since 2009. He is currently the chairmanhef Fiscal Council of Globex, Boz
member and Audit Committee member at ISAEEP and Audit Committee member at the O Estad8&tePaulo newspaper, in addition to providing atiimg services t
major companies on mergers and acquisitions, eciznand financial valuation and tax advisory sergidde was Finance Secretary to the S&o Paulo gdarnment, hi
held financial, tax, budget and strategic managemesitions, besides serving as a member of thePa&@ State Privatization Council. He was also bremof the Board «
Directors and the Sarban@sdey Audit Committee at Sabesp, and member oBibards of CESP, PRODESP, DERSA, Banco Nossa Cankd@anespa, besides serving
the Advisory Board of Grupo P&o de Acucar. He ha@dsastes degree in business administration from the Getdirgas Foundation, a PhD in Economic Develop
from the University of Wisconsin-Madison, USA, areteived the post-doctoral title of “Livre Docenta”Business Administration from the Getulio Vargamundation, ar
Professor of the School of Administration of SaalBdGetulio Vargas Foundation). He was also advetit Michigan State University, U.S.A.

Mario Probst born in 1953, he has been a member of the F&zahcil since 2009. Mr. Probst was partner of KPK@litores Independentes and is currently a me
of the Fiscal Council of Globex, Odontoprev S.Adddltrapar ParticipagGes S.A. He graduated in BassnAdministration from the Getulio Vargas Fourmtatand i
Accounting Sciences from the College of Politicadl &conomic Sciences of Rio de Janeiro.

Raimundo Lourenco Maria Christianborn in 1957, begun his carreer at Pricewate@aspers from 1979 to March 25, 2011, when heecttiin 32 years, worked
accounting and financial areas and afterwards omtatters. Became partner in 1994 and was electadbar of the Global Governance Board (2001 to 2@08)Oversigh
Board to South America (2000 to 2005) of PwC. Hledrrently a board member of General ShoppingiB8a&., member of the fiscal council of Kroton Eddonal S.A
and Globex Utilidades S.A. He is also officer atllalod-Brazil Commerce Chamber and member of FinaAceounting and Financial markets commissiorBedziliar
Corporate Governance Institute. He holds a backealegree in accounting of Universidade Catélic&Cdenpinas - PUCC.
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John Michel Pimenta de Moraes Streithotsdrn in 1970, he has been an alternate membiiedfiscal Council since 2009. He is currently Baraate member of tl
Fiscal Council of Globex, and member of the InvestimCommittee of Capital Mezanino FIP. He was mentiehe Investment Committee and director of IcEquity
Partners and member of the Investment Committe&I@f Latin American Equity Partners. He holds a comep engineering degree from the Campinas Stateesity
(UNICAMP).

Antonio Luiz de Campos Gurgélorn in 1940, has been an alternate member dfittoal Council since 2009. Currently, he is arralhite member of the Fiscal Counc
Globex.He served as Fiscal Auditor of the Brazilian In&#iRevenue Service, and, as advisor, he workedamitiipanies such as Cargill Agricola S.A., Compa#iniergétic
do Estado de Sdo Paulo - CESP, Hewlett-Packardl Btda., IBM Brasil Indistria, Maquinas e Servigotla., TELESP Telecomunicac¢des de S&o Paulo S.A., Volksw
do Brasil Industria de Veiculos Automotores Ltdganco Bradesco S.A., Banco Itai Unibanco and Baeal ABN Amro S.A. He worked as associate profegsdhe
Accounting, Finance and Control Department of FGAMHSP. He graduated in Business Administration from FGVES® and holds an MBA from the Michigan S
University, U.S.A.

Eduardo Cysneiros de Moraiborn in 1974, has been an alternate member ofid@l Council since 2009. He started his carieedr998 at Matrix Bank, as buside
analyst. Worked for Claritas in March 2002 as RdidfManager, variable income analyst and becami@ain 2005. He is currently an alternate mendfehe fiscal counc
of Globex Utilidades S.A. member of the fiscal coiof Taesa, Cremer and OHL and held in 2009 t®es position in Medial and Cremer. He is also menubehe
AMEC'’s technical committee. He holds bachelor inremmics at UFRJ and is certified at AMBIMA (CGA)hGFA.

Our board of directors has determined that we doneed to appoint an audit committee financial eixfes defined under the rules and regulationshefSEC). W
believe that the combined knowledge, skills andegigmce of the members of our fiscal council endliden, as a group, to act effectively in the futiignt of their tasks.
addition, the members of our fiscal council have power and authority to engage outside expertseasdeem appropriate to provide them with adviceratters related
their responsibilities.

Stock Option Plan Management Committee

Our stock option plan management committee haddll@ving duties: (i) to deliberate matters relafito granting, prices, dates and the amount grantedch plar
(i) to decide when each stock option plan will dpented, considering the possibility of not gragtithe plan in our Comparg/'interest; (iii) to take into account all
necessary measures in order to appropriately matagstock option plan, including the interpretataf the general guidelines; (iv) to guide the Campon when to iss
new shares or when to use the shares held in tsegs)yito select, among the eligible personnelowtill take part in the stock option plan accordilgthe attribution:
responsibilities and/or their performance basedhengoals established by the “Goldption plan; (vi) to establish the appropriate gliites for each stock option for e
beneficiary, approving the stock option plan agreets, especially regarding the amount of sharegtadonditions to exercise each stock option peii); to establish, fc
each beneficiary, the alternatives, terms and ¢mmdi for each exercise, the share acquisitiorepaind payment; (viii) to extend, generally or iedfic cases, the terminati
date for each stock option plan; (ix) to deterntimeincrease or decrease of the stock option plkartthat were already granted, maintaining its seamd conditions, especie
regarding the acquisition rights of its exercise] &) to modify unilaterally the terms and conalits of the option granted freely as well as adgptiem to amendments in
Brazilian corporate law. Our stock option plan ngeraent committee is composed of Abilio dos SantimézDEnéas César Pestana Neto, José Roberto Goihamnbasc
Caio Racy Mattar, José Antdnio Almeida Filippo,\Bylde Souza Ledo Wanderley and Antonio Ramatisdfetes Rodrigues.

Advisory Board

In addition to the committees aforementioned, oyHldws provide for a non-permaneatl hocadvisory board, which whenever installed, mustseinof up to 1
members, shareholders or not, elected by our arehzkholdersmeeting, whose purpose is to make recommendatoosrtboard of directors on measures to be tak
order to ensure the development of our business®activities, as well as render opinion on anyteratsubmitted by our board of directors. Our aatyi®oard meets semi-
annually and, in extraordinary circumstances, whenealled by the chairman of our board of direstdthe current term of all members of our advidorgrd is three yea
reelection being permitted, and the members magive@ compensation established by our generaébblters’meeting. Our currently installed advisory board \{farst)
elected by our shareholders in the shareholdeegting held on April 30, 2008 and is comprisedhef following members, most of them economistsocomer ministers ¢
economy of Brazil: Luiz Carlos Bresser GongalvesePa, Mailson Ferreira da Nobrega, Roberto Teiela Costa, José Roberto Mendonga de Barros, M&aré:
Teixeira de Abreu, Luiz Felipe Chaves D’Avila, Liarcelo Dias Sales and Yoshiaki Nakano.
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6D. Employees

As of December 31, 2010, we had 144,%mployees (calculated on a ftithe employee equivalent basis). Virtually all afir employees are covered by ur
agreements. The agreements are renegotiated anaaglart of industryvide negotiations between a management group remtieg the major participants in the retail f
industry, including our management, and unionsesgmting employees in the retail food industry. Mgéeve we compensate our employees on a compgeh#gis, and v
have developed incentive programs to motivate mypleyees and reduce employee turnover. Our managdieteves that our relations with our employerd toeir union
are good. We have not had strikes in our history.

The following table sets forth the number of oupéoyees as of December 31, 2006, 2007, 2008, 20026.10:

As of December 341

200€ 2001 200¢ 200¢ 20102
Operationa 53,49 55,40: 60,60¢ 73,61 131,53
Administrative 10,11 10,67 10,05 11,62 13,38¢
Total 63,60 66,16¢ 70,65¢ 85,24 144,91

(1) Based on the average of the full-time eq@mahumber of employees, which is the product efrthmber of all retail employees (full- and peéme) and the ratio of the average monthly hourallofetail employee
to the average monthly hours of all full-time enyges.

(2) IncludesCasas Bahia’€mployees.

6E. Share Ownership

As of December 31, 2010, our board members direstlged an aggregate amount of 426,975 preferre@sh@he members of our board of directors andesacutive
officers, on an individual basis and as a groupn a@livectly less than 1% of our common stock. Fothfer information on direct and indirect share owgh@ of our boar
members, see “ltem 7A. Major Shareholders.” Aswiel30 2011, our management and some of our employsesoained options to purchase an aggregate amo
1,991,260 preferred shares at per-share weightedge purchase price of R$16.8®ne of the members of our management and outogegs holds any options to purct
our common shares. See “ltem 6B. Compensationd fdescription of our stock option plan applicabl®tr management and employees, including thoserodubsidiaries.

ITEM 7. MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
7A. Major Shareholders

The following table sets forth information relatitgythe beneficial ownership of our capital stoskofJune 30, 2011, by each person known by usnefizially own 59
or more of our common shares or preferred shaskhour directors and officers as a group.
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Shareholdel Common Share: Preferred Share: Total Shares

Number % Number % Number %
Wilkes Participagdes S.A ( 65,400,00 65.61 - - 65,400,00 25.1¢
Peninsula Participacdes Ltda - - 2,622,18: 1.64 2,622,18: 1.01
Sudaco Participag6es Ltda 28,619,17 28.71 3,091,561 1.92 31,710,74 12.2(
Segisor S.A. (¢ - - 5,091,75. 3.1¢ 5,091,75. 1.9¢
Casino Guichard Perrachon S.A 5,600,05: 5.62 16,144,08 10.07 21,744,13 8.3€
Bengal LLC (3 - - 6,828,46 4.2¢ 6,828,46 2.62
Oregon LLC (3) ; 1,750,30 1.0¢ 1,750,301 0.67
Abilio dos Santos Din 10C - - - 10C -
Joéo Paulo F. dos Santos D - - 17,89: 0.01 17,89: 0.01
Ana Maria F. dos Santos Diniz' Avila 1 - - - 1 -
Pedro Paulo F. dos Santos D - - 724 - 724
Jear-Charles Naou - - 1 - 1 -
PAIC Participacdes Ltda ( - - 652,14( 0.41 652,14( 0.2t
Onyx 2006 Participagdes Ltda - - 20,635,31 12.87 20,635,31 7.94
Rio Plate Empreendimentos e Participacdes Ltc - - 4,076,49. 2.5¢ 4,076,49. 1.57
Stanhore Trading Internacional < (6) - - 7,398,41 4.62 7,398,41 2.8t
Directors and Officers ( - - 664,88t 0.41 664,88t 0.2€
Other: 60,52( 0.0€ 91,305,64: 5€.97 9,366,16: 35.1¢
TOTAL 99,679,85 100.( 160,279,85 100.( 259,959,70 100.0¢

Mdpagﬁes Ltda. and Sudacicagdes Ltda own 27% and 73%, respectively, efdhpital stock of Wilkes Participacbes S.A..

(2) Abilio Diniz, Ana Maria Diniz, Jodo Paulo Din Pedro Paulo Diniz and Adriana Diniz own 61.48/63%, 9.63%, 9.63% and 9.63%, respectively, efcépital stock of Peninsula Participacdes Ltda.
(3) Sudaco Participagtes Ltda., Segisor S.A.if@aSuichard Perrachon S.A., Bengal LLC and Orelgo@ are part of the Casino Group.

(4) Peninsula Participagdes Ltda. and Abilio Dioin 92.38% and 7.62%, respectively, of the chpiteck of PAIC Participagdes Ltda.

(5) Rio Plate Empreendimentos e Participagdea.ladd Abilio Diniz own 99.998% and .002%, respestyi, of the capital stock of Onyx 2006 Participasd.tda.

(6) Peninsula ParticipagGes Ltda. owns 100%et#tpital stock of Rio Plate Empreendimentos eddaa;oes Ltda. and Stanhore Trading InternaciGnal

(7) These shares refer to the amount of shaatdtta directors and officers own directly, not &fesially.

As of the date of this annual report, AbiDiniz is the beneficial owner of 10.28% of ttatal common shares, 13.71% of the total prefesteates and 12.38% of the t
capital stock. Ana Maria Diniz, Jo&o Paulo Dinizidedro Paulo Diniz are the beneficial owners 61% of the total common shares, 2.14% of the maflerred shares a
1.94% of the total capital stock. As of the datéhis annual report, the Casino Group is the bei@fowner of 44.19% of the total capital stockaBD.

On June 22, 2011, 47,469,227 of our preferred shaeze held in the form of ADSs, representing 28.6f the total of our preferred shares. None afa@mmon shart
are held in the form of ADSs.

Holding Company Goodwill Contribution of Deferred Tax Benefits

On May 3, 2005, the Diniz Family and the Casinoupréormed Vieri Empreendimentos e Participagfes,®AVieri, which became our parent company. Toetol of
Vieri is shared by the Diniz Family and the Casmup. The group was reorganized and restructur@d06, resulting in our current ownership struetur

Under the terms of the corporate reorganizatios résulting tax benefit reverts to the benefithaf tontrolling shareholder that originated the gabdvithout, however
causing any negative effects to our profitabilitytioe flow of dividends to our minority shareholsle©n December 31, 2010, the value of the resutirgoenefit related
both our income taxes and our social contributepndn profits was R$ 104.9 million (R$208.0 millian2009 and R$414.2 million in 2008). This is shmoin the balanc
sheet as part of deferred taxes.

The offsetting entry to the initial recognition thfe tax benefit balance is recognized directlyhiarsholders™ equity as a capital reserve (goodipiicial reserve), as
represents a realizable asset contribution by hlaeetolders. Also under the terms of the corpameganization, the effective tax benefit realizedach fiscal year w
subsequently be capitalized in the name of therabing shareholder, and minority shareholdersearsured the right to preference in the acquisitiba proportional amou
of new capital from the controlling shareholder.
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In 2010, the economic benefits generated by thertiration of shareholdes’ premium was R$105.7 million, which was capitalizen March 31, 2011. The remain
goodwill reserve balance as of December 31, 20R$844.6 million. See note 25 to our financialetaénts included in this annual report.

Conditional Put Option Agreement and ShareholdersAgreements

Since May 2005, the Diniz Family and the Casinouprshare our control through our Holding Compankictv owns 65.6% of our voting shares. On Novemfe
2006, the Diniz Family and the Casino Group enténéal a conditional put option agreement, or thexd@tonal Put Option Agreement, which contempldtes conditione
transfer of indirect equity interest in us from thaiz Family to the Casino Group. At the same d#te Diniz Family and the Casino Group entered mtshareholders’
agreement, or the Holding Company Shareholdersédment, that outlines the rules for the exercisguofcoeontrol, corporate governance and restrictionsramsfer of th
Holding Companys shares. Furthermore, the Holding Company hagha of first refusal of 34.3% of our common shanef by the Casino Group through Casino Guic
Perrachon S.A. and Sudaco Participacdes Ltda.

In addition, the Holding Company, the Diniz Famdgd the Casino Group entered into a separate siidees’ agreement, or the CBD Shareholdéwgiteement, thi
contains rules on, among other matters, the tran$feur shares that are held by either of the DiFamily and the Casino Group other than throughHblding Company. #
of June 15, 2010, the Casino Group, through Sudrmrticipacdes Ltda. and Casino Guichard Perrachfn 8eld an aggregate of 34,219,230 of our comrsioares
representing approximately 34.33% of our outstamdiommon shares. At the same date, the Diniz Fadidynot hold common shares other than throughHbkling
Company.

The three following sections summarize certain jgons of the Conditional Put Option Agreement #mel shareholdergsigreements. The summaries below are qua
by reference to the agreements that are filed labigx to this annual report.

Conditional Put Option Agreement

The Conditional Put Option Agreement grants, amathgr rights: (i) a first put option, or the FiRdtit Option, and a second put option, or the Se€aridption, to th
Diniz Family and (ii) a distressful call option, thre Distressful Call Option, to the Casino Group.

*  First Put Option: in the event that the Casino @relects the Chairman of the Holding Company fremeJ22, 2012, the Diniz Family will be entitleddause th
Casino Group to purchase a direct equity interetité Holding Company corresponding to 1,000,0G0ehof our issued and outstanding common shares.

. Distressful Call Option: in the event that CBD epipeces a distressful situation as defined in toadtional Put Option Agreement, the Casino Groulp lve
entitled to cause the Diniz Family to sell a direquity interest in the Holding Company correspogdio 1,000,000 shares of our issued and outstgratimmol
shares.

»  Second Put Option: in the event that either ofRlist Put Option or the Distressful Call Optioneisercised, the Diniz Family will be entitled to sauthe Casir
Group to purchase a direct equity interest in tiédidg Company corresponding to 19,375,000 shafresimissued and outstanding common shares. Then8deu
Option may be exercised through the exercise ofRinst Put Option or through the exercise of theti@issful Call Option during the period of eightage
commencing on June 22, 2014.

The Conditional Put Option Agreement provides far &cceleration of the First Put Option and theoBéd>ut Option under certain circumstances inclydiive transfe
by the Casino Group of: (i) at least 10% of itsrelaof the Holding Company to a third party othent a competitor of CBD or (ii) any of its sharéshe Holding Compar
to a competitor of CBD.

Should the Diniz Family not be allowed under thente of the Put Option Agreement to exercise thstRut Option and the Second Put Option, the Craimily will be
entitled at any time within a period starting omd22, 2014 and ending on June 21, 2022 to conveat the Casino Group'sole discretion, to exchange the common s
that would have been subject to the First Put @pdiod the Second Put Option into preferred shdr€80 at the ratio of 915 preferred shares for 0,60mmon shares
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Holding Company Shareholders’ Agreement

Pursuant to the Holding Company Shareholders’ Agee#, the Diniz Family is entitled to:

appoint: (i) two directors of the board of direstaf the Holding Company composed of four directargl (ii) two executive officers of the Holding i@pany;

appoint the Chairman of the board of directorshef idolding Company until the Casino Group exercigesption to appoint the Chairman of the Holdidgmpan:
as described below;

appoint five directors of our board of directorsda

appoint the Chairman of our board of directorsluhtne 21, 2012; from June 22, 2012, the appointmwéhalternate every three years between the gnaups, an
the Casino Group will have the right to the firkemate appointment for a term-affice from June 22, 2012 to June 21, 2015; howeter Casino Group has agre
for this first alternate appointment, that Mr. AbiDiniz will continue as Chairman of our boarddifectors, provided that we maintain a good perfotoe trac
record; moreover, for any subsequent terms as formthe Casino Group is entitled to name our ChairpCasino has agreed that Mr. Abilio Diniz willmair
Chairman as long as he is mentally and physicélfpif the functions and as long as we maintaimadgperformance track record.

Pursuant to the Holding Company Shareholders’ Agesg, the Casino Group is entitled to:

appoint (i) two directors of the board of directofghe Holding Company composed of four directars] (ii) two executive officers of the Holding Cpamy;
exercise (i) the option, with an exercise periaifrune 22, 2012 to June 21, 2014, to appoint t@r@an of the board of directors of the Holdingy@any for th
remaining term of the Holding Company Shareholdégreement and (ii) after June 22, 2014, the optmappoint the Chairman of the Holding Companyhd
Diniz Family transfers common shares of the HoldBgmpany to a third party; the appointment by tkeiGo Group of the Chairman of the Holding Compan
accordance with items (i) or (ii) above will ergithe Diniz Family to exercise the First Put Option

appoint five directors to our board of directonsga

appoint the Chairman of our board of directorgffer June 22, 2014, the Diniz Family transfers emymon shares of the Holding Company to a thirtypa

Both the Casino Group and the Diniz Family are scibjo limitations on the purchase of our prefesbkdres on the open market, which limitations \eargording to th
percentage of shares freely available to the iinvggublic. However, the Casino Group may acquing @ our common or preferred shares held by thezZFamily

The Diniz Family may not sell its shares of the diloy Company until June 21, 2014 (or, if the CasBroup exercises the Distressful Call Option orcapis the
Chairman of the board of directors of the Holdingngpany at an earlier date, until the date of sypgomtment or exercise of the Distressful Call Op}i Both the Casir
Group and the Diniz Family have a right of firsfesfwith respect to shares or convertible secritiéthe Holding Company that any of them wisheset or otherwis
dispose of.

If the Casino Group (i) appoints the Chairman @& Hoard of directors of the Holding Company or éiercises the Distressful Call Option, the Dinarfly’s rights
under the Holding Company Shareholdekgireement will be limited to (y) veto rights regargl certain major decisions of the Holding Compamyg (z) certain electic

rights.
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The Holding Company Shareholdefsgjreement will remain in effect until June 21, 2085 subject to limited exceptions, terminates mattically in the event either
the Casino Group or the Diniz Family ceases to hoRb of the Holding Company’s shares or convertigleurities.

CBD Shareholders’ Agreement

According to the CBD Shareholdersgreement, the Holding Company has, except in iteitacumstances, the right of first refusal withspect to our shares
convertible securities to be disposed of by anijia# of the Casino Group and/or the Diniz Famiurthermore, the Holding Company has a right ist fiefusal of 34.3% !
our common shares held by the Casino Group thr@agino Guichard Perrachon S.A. and Sudaco Pagibgsal tda.

If, in the future, our preferred shares are vest#t voting rights by operation of law, the Casi@ooup and/or the Diniz Family will automaticallyatrsfer such votir
rights to the Holding Company. During the periodnihich the preferred shares have any voting rights,Casino Group will be allowed to acquire owferred shares frc
any third party provided that it transfers suchingtights to the Holding Company.

During the term of the CBD Shareholdefsgjreement, the Casino Group may not convert angusfcommon shares into preferred shares unless carorersion i
authorized by the Holding Company.

The CBD Shareholders’ Agreement will be valid agglas the Holding Company is our controlling shatetér.
7B. Related Party Transactions

From time to time we have entered into transactieits the Diniz Family, Casino Group and other tetaparties for the provision of certain servicEise following
discussion summarizes certain of the significanéagents and arrangements among us and certaim affiiates.

Leases

We currently lease properties from some memberthefDiniz family, some of whom are our shareholdarsd also lease properties from Fundo de Investic
Imobiliario Peninsula, which is controlled by membef the Diniz Family. These properties include tstores from Mrs. Floripes Pires Diniz, four seofeom Mr. Arnald:
dos Santos Diniz, four stores from Mrs. Vera L{tis Santos Diniz and seven stores from Mrs. Sor@eaWos Santos Diniz Bernandini, 57 stores fromm3kndas famil
four stores from former Assai shareholders and@®@s from the Fundo de Investimento Imobiliarimisula.

Aggregate payments in 2010 under those leaseseghapproximately R$13.0 million to the Diniz familg$37.5 million to the Sendas family and R$138illion to the
Fundo de Investimento Imobiliario Peninsula. Wedwel that all the leases are on terms at leaghvasdble to us as those which could be obtained frorelated parties on
arm’s-length basis (market conditions). For furtimormation on these leases, see note 21 (b)rtdirancial statements included in this annual repo

The spuneff portion of Casa Bahia Comercial Ltda. that wiearged by Nova Casa Bahia does not include reateeptoperties; Casa Bahia Comercial Ltda. and
Casa Bahia entered into operating lease agreerfeer@asa Bahia Comercial Ltda. properties whereesofrthe stores, distribution centers and buildiofjslova Casa Bah
are located.

During the three first years of the lease agreemerm., until June 30, 2013, the rental will beefl in the total annual amount of R$140 millionpaally adjusted k
inflation based on the positive variation of IPCB@AE (Extended Consumer Price Index of the Braziliztitute of Geography and Statistics). As of therth year of th
lease agreements, the rental of real propertiesendteres are located, which corresponds to 50%ebaforementioned amount, will be the highest athdetween (i) th
aforementioned fixed amount adjusted by IPCA, aidhe amount corresponding to the applicatiorceftain percentage over gross sales. This pereemtdigvary betwee
the fourth and the seventh year of the lease term.
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Furniture Supply Agreement with Bartira

Within the scope of the Association, on Octobef@]10, a furniture supply agement was entered into between Globex and Nova Bakia, on the one hand
Industria de Méveis Bartira Ltda., a furniture méamiurer company controlled by Casa Bahia Cometdid., on the other hand, to exclusively suppiyiture to Nova Ca:s
Bahia. The agreement will have a six-year term. &N@asa Bahia will hold 25% of Bartigtapital stock for the purpose of safeguardingidgfists in the furniture supg
agreement. On November 9, 2010, an agreement waedrinto between Nova Casa Bahia and Casa Baim&efial Ltda., pursuant to which a purchase optibA5% o
Bartira’s capital stock was granted to Nova Cashi®eaexercisable for a 3fay term as of November 9, 2013. If Nova Casa Bdbis not exercise its option, Casa B
Comercial Ltda. will have the obligation to buy No€asa Bahia’s equity interest in Bartira.

Technical Assistance Agreement with Casino

In July 2005, we entered into a technical assigtaeecvice agreement with Casino Group. Pursuahetagreement, Casino Group provides us with teahassistance
the areas of human resources, trademarks, markatish@gommunication, global campaigns and admitiggrassistance, among others. In exchange, weég@gsino Grou
a fixed annual fee imeais corresponding to US$2.7 million. The agreement bél automatically renewed in 2012 and will theteafemain in force for an undetermi
period of time
Consultancy Agreement with Galeazzi & Associados

In July 2007, we hired the consultancy firm Galé&Associados to implement a restructuring plamntprove the Sendasperational performance in the state of Ri
Janeiro.

In light of the favorable impact of the serviceoyded by Galeazzi & Associados on the performaofcéhe Sendasbanner, in December 2007 we amende(
Consultancy Agreement to include all of the Comparbanners and operations. In addition, as patiefe changes, Mr. Claudio Galeazzi was appointedir€EO unti
March 2010, and resigned from his daydtmy roles with Galeazzi & Associados before acogpthe appointment. Currently Galeazzi & Associatas a team of :
professionals, lead by its partner Mr. André Pirekrdassigned on a f-time basis to render services to the Company. Ndu@o Galeazzi continues to be a principe
Galeazzi & Associados.

The scope of the Consultancy Agreement involvesthit) development of a Strategic and Operationabmbais Program, with a view to assessing all thgnes
profitability opportunities, 2) Action Plan in ond® take advantage opportunities identified and 3) business managemerived from the development of the Action F
aiming at making our operations more competitivicient and profitable.

The timeframe to carry out the project was inifi@bktimated to be 14.5 months. However, the coimiusf the project was postponed to the end of 2006n the term «
the agreement expired. The parties have not renéveealgreement.

The fees payable to Galeazzi & Associados are @dvithto a monthly fixed amount of R$350,000 andagable amount calculated by multiplying our opienz!
performance by a percentage which varies up or daeaording to a range of projected performanceat@n See also note 21 (b) to our audited coreald financie
statements included in this annual report.

7C. Interests of Experts and Counsel

Not applicable.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
8A. Consolidated Statements and Other Financial Informton

The information included in Item 18 of this anntegbort is referred to and incorporated by referentethis Iltem 8A.
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Legal Proceedings

We are a party to administrative proceedings angduiés that are incidental to the normal coursewfbusiness. These include general civil, taxlabdr litigation an
administrative proceedings. We believe that ouwigions for legal proceedings are sufficient to tnqe®bable and reasonably estimated losses invbet @f unfavorabl
court decisions to us and to ensure that the owtsamhthese legal proceedings have no materiatteffe our financial condition or results of opesas. We cannot estim:
the amount of all potential costs that we may iraupenalties that may be imposed on us othertthase amounts for which we have made provisionsfutther informatiol
on our legal proceedings, see note 19 to our fiadstatements included in this annual report.

Based on the advice of our external legal counselhave identified, and made provisions for thdofeing probable losses that may result from therentrlegs
proceedings to which we are a pe

200¢

200¢ 201C
(millions of reais)
COFINS and PIS tax clain 1,096.« 161.% 104.5
Labor claims - 45.¢ 27.€
Civil claims 116.0 119.9 127.7
Other claims 31.7 251.1 438.1
Total accrued liabilities for legal proceedings 1,244.1 578.2 697.9

Tax-related claims

Tax+elated claims are indexed to the SELIC rate, whiels 9.50% on December 31, 2009 and 9.37% on Dexredib 2010, and are also subject, in certain cas
fines. We have made provisions for interest chaagesfines, when applicable.

In addition, tax claims are subject to monthly ixidg, which involves adjusting the amount of prémis for litigation in accordance with the indexirades used by ea
tax jurisdiction. The indexing is required by laer fill tax amounts, including the provision forigidl deposits.

COFINS and PIS taxes

We pay contribution for social integratiorRrograma de Integracéo Socjalor PIS tax, and social security contributidBo(tribuicdo para o Financiamento
Seguridade Sociglor COFINS tax, at the rates of 1.65% and 7.6%mss sales revenue, respectively. We adopt themmulative system whereby these tax liabilities
be offset by credits we accrue from taxes previopsid on products we purchase and other expeAses result of our application of the noomulative system, we and «
subsidiaries have requested the right to excludaiogax credit amounts from the calculation basithese two taxes.

The amount of the claims for PIS and COFINS taxesfdecember 31, 2010 was R$104.5 million, cong&reR$161.3 million as of December 31, 2009.

Labor

We are a party to various labor proceedings, pilynarising from layoffs in the ordinary course bfisiness. As of December 31, 2010, we had prowdsidR$88.
million (R$82.6 million as of December 31, 2009) fwoceedings in which the risk of loss was deeprethable. We are also a party to lawsuits with dkloss deemed to
possible in the amount of R$92.7 million in 201(8R.8 million in 2009). Our management, based endinion of our external legal counsel, evalugitese claims ar
records provisions for losses when they are reddprstimable, taking into account our past experein relation to the amounts sought. Labor claémesindexed to tt
Referential Interest Rate (“TR”r@mulatively 0.69% in 2010 and 0.7% in 2009) plusnthly interest of 1%. The balance of the net iovi for the judicial deposits w
R$6.8 million as of December 31, 2010 (R$26.9 miillas of December 31, 2009).
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We recognized provisions for contingent labor liéibs relating to our subsidiary Globex at thediof the business combination, in the amount ofGR&illion in 201(
(R$19.1 million in 2009).

For further information on our tax-related clairasg note 19(b) to our financial statements includetis annual report.
Civil claims
We are a defendant in civil lawsuits. Among thesesluits, we highlight the following:

*  We file and respond to various lawsuits requedtiregreview of lease amounts. In these lawsuitsjutige determines a provisional lease amount, wisithen pai
by the stores until the final lease amount is d=fiin a report and award. We set up a provisiotthierdifference between the amount originally gaidhe stores ai
that established temporarily in these lawsuitsthrer lawsuits, we recorded a provision for théedénce between the amount paid as provisionalarahthat pleadt
by the adversary party, based on a report prefdaydtle technical assistant of the adversary pésyof December 31, 2010, the amount of the promisor thes
lawsuits was R$33.3 million (R$25.7 million as ofd@mber 31, 2009), for which there are no judidegdosits.

e The balance of Globeg'civil actions as of December 31, 2010 was maiolpposed of: (i) consumer lawsuits in the amourR$11.5 million (R$21.0 million as
December 31, 2009), (ii) provisions relating to teassessment of the risk of actions for damagesuatimg to R$8.1 million (R$7.4 million as of Decben 31
2009), resulting from contract termination proposgda former service provider; (iii) recording aopision of R$20.3 million (R$23.7 million as of Deober 31
2009) in view of the contractual premise of theigdtion to pay a fee in favor of the managers @ipging centers, as a result of the change in Glebghare contrc
(iv) a provision of R$8.0 million (R$7.4 million af December 31, 2009) relating to indemnificatitaks deriving from potential contract terminatiomih service
providers.

«  Civil provisions were recorded at the subsidiarglgix relating to contingent liabilities recognizatdthe time of the business combination in the arhofi R$10.
million (R$9.5 million as of December 31, 2009).

As of December 31, 2010, we had provisioned foit aistions in the amount of R$127.7 million (R$14 ®illion as of December 31, 2009), net of judideposits.

Other Claims

We have other tax liabilities for which we deemsies to be probable and have made provisions.

We recorded an amount for these claims of R$ 55l®min 2010 and R$35.0 million in 2009.

We are also disputing our right not to pay the dbations provided for by Complementary Law 110/20€elating to financing the Government Severamzimnity
Fund for EmployeesHundo de Garantia por Tempo de Seryjgor FGTS. The amount we provisioned as of DecerBbe2010 was R$31.1 million (R$33.5 million a
December 31, 2009); the Company made a judiciadsiepf R$9.6 million in connection with this claim

Furthermore, our external legal counsel reassessedin taxrelated claims from possible to probable loss. ADecember 31, 2010, we had provisioned R$1
million, which includes judicial and administratie&ims related to various tax matters.

We recognize tax provisions for contingent lial®kt relating to our subsidiary Globex at the tinieh® business combination in accordance with #tpiirements «
Brazilian accounting rules (CPC 15). We reasse&debex’s claims on the date we acquired it (July 6, 20092010 we recognized, with retroactive effect2@®9, R$159.
million (R$179.4 million in 2009) for contingent¢diabilities. The main contingent tax liabilitiese R$70 million for administrative proceedingsatetl to offsetting PIS tax
under Decrees 2445/88 and 2449/88 resufiiogn credits from legal proceedings, and R$51 wrillielated to offsetting tax debits with contrilouticredits incident on coff
exports.
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In short, our provision for contingencies relateather claims in 2010 was R$438.1 million (R$25h.2009).
For further information on our tax-related clairese note 19(a) to our financial statements includékis annual report.
Other contingent liabilities for which there are poovisions

As of December 31, 2010, we were a party to cettagial proceedings and for which the chances of lesre deemed possible and, therefore, we havenadt
provisions for these proceedings. See note 19itawdited consolidated financial statements inaludethis annual report for detailed informationtbese proceeding

Tax-Related Claims

We are a party to several tax-related legal prdogsdvith various governmental agencies relatezbtoal security taxes, federal income thrggosto de Renda da Pes
Juridice), or IRPJ, withholding taxlnposto de Renda Retido na Fonter IRRF, social contribution on net profitSdntribuicdo Social Sobre o Lucro Liquid@r CSLL
COFINS, PIS, contribution tax on financial trangawes$, Contribuicdo Proviséria sobre Movimentagdo ou Tnaissdo de Valores e de Créditos e Direitos de Nat
Financeire), or CPMF, state value added tdmposto Sobre Circulagdo de Mercadorias e Seryicos ICMS, municipal service tadmposto Sobre Servicoshr ISS
municipal property taximposto Predial e Territorial Urbang)r IPTU and property transfer takn{posto sobre transferéncia de bens imgy@isITBI. As of December 3
2010, the aggregate amount of the possible lossdaw these tax-related legal proceedings was&$2 million.

Other Legal Proceedings

We are a party to certain administrative proceesliagd suits related to civil and consumer protactimtters. As of December 31, 2010, the aggregatuat of thi
possible loss regarding these proceedings was R&@8ion.

Globex’s Claims

Our subsidiary Globex is a party to certain legacgedings for which chances of loss are deemesilpesAs of December 31, 2010, the aggregate amafuthe
possible loss regarding these proceedings was R$2illion.

Any adverse changes in our assessment of themishkvied in these proceedings may require that wieenpaovisions for judicial contingencies. We hanet included th
aforementioned legal proceedings in the REFIS.

Federal Tax Installment Payment Program (REFIS)

On May 27, 2009, the Brazilian government enactaed/ INo. 11,941/09, which amends the federal tax leelsted to tax debt payments by installments bywahg
certain judicial deposits to be deducted and paidstallments.

Previously, we maintained provisions for judiciabpeedings related to certain social security domtions and income taxes. During the third quaae2009, ou
management and legal counsel, adhering to thedketier installment payment program introduced bw INo. 11,941/09, decided to include tax and scssalurity liabilitie:
from proceedings, in particular those related ®@OFINS tax rate, which at the time totaled apjnately R$987.0 million, and other applicable tabilities in the feder:
tax installment payment program. The balance ofcihsolidated installments on December 31, 2010 R&&281.1 million resulting in a reduction in dogencies th:
would have been attributable to these tax and ksedrity liabilities.
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Dividend Policy and Dividends
General

Pursuant to the Brazilian corporate law, Brazitanporations are required to hold an annual shéeh® meeting in the first four months of eaclcéisyear at which
time the allocation of the results of operationsaity year and the distribution of an annual divileme approved. Under the Brazilian corporate Isfigreholders of
Brazilian corporation have the right to receive aamandatory dividend for each fiscal year, a pathe corporation’s net profits as establishedeurits bytaws or, if no
provided under such -laws, an amount equal to 50% of the comparadjusted net profits pursuant to the Braziliarpomate law. Currently, the Brazilian corporate
generally requires that each Brazilian corporatisstribute as a mandatory dividend an aggregateuatrexjual to at least 25% of the adjusted net fsrafé calculated unc
Brazilian GAAP and adjusted according to Brazil@mwporate law. Pursuant to the Brazilian corpolate in addition to the mandatory dividend, the fobaf directors ms
recommend to the shareholders payment of interirideinds and payment of dividends from other legalilable funds. Also pursuant to the Braziliampooate law,
Brazilian company is allowed to suspend the distidn of the mandatory dividends in any year inathits management report to its shareholdgesieral meeting that t
distribution would be incompatible with its finaaticondition.

For the fiscal year ended 2010, we have not chatigedividend distribution period. Pursuant to dividend policy created by our board of directonsAugust 3, 200!
we anticipate our dividend distribution on a qudytdasis. For further information see “ltem 10BeMorandum and Articles of Association Aflocation of Net Profits ar
Distribution of Dividends — Distribution of Divideis.” According to Brazilian corporate law and owr-laws, we must pay declared dividends within 60 dafger th
approval.

On February 23, 2011, our board of directors apgiiadhe anticipation of the dividends payment far fiscal year ending 2011. Interim dividend payrsesill be mad
quarterly in the amount of R$0.09 per preferredelmd R$0.081818181818 per common share. The paydates of quarterly dividends will be determirgdour board ¢
directors after publication of our quarterly result

We calculate our dividends in accordance with BieziGAAP, which does not differ from IFRS.

Dividend Policy and History of Dividend Payments

The following table sets forth the distributionscptn holders of our common shares and preferradestsince 2006:

R$ per Total amount in dividends and
R$ per class A R$ per class B common interest on shareholders’ equity

Period Description First payment date preferred share preferred share share (in R$ millions)
2006 Dividend: June 200 0.0930 - 0.084: 20.2
2007 Dividends June 200 0.2288 - 0.2080 50.1
200¢ Dividend: June 200 0.273¢ - 0.248¢ 61.¢
200¢ Dividends August 24, 200 0.1355¢ - 0.1232¢ 30.¢
200¢ Dividend: November 30, 20C 0.0661: - 0.0601: 15t
200¢ Dividends June 28, 201 0.3937. 0.01 0.3579: 94.1
201C Dividend: May 31, 201 0.0¢ - 0.072727 19.2
201C Dividend: August 17, 201 0.0¢ - 0.072727 19.€
20102 Dividends December 1, 20: 0.0¢ - 0.072727 19.6
201C Dividends May 30, 201 0.4582" - 0.4095! 113.2

(1) Taking into account the 500:1 reverse stquk that became effective on September 1, 200. ditiidend accrued on December 31, 2009 was appratvihe annual shareholders’ meeting held on 2%l2010
and paid in June 2010. According to Brazilian coape law and our by-laws, we must pay declaredddivils within 60 days after the approval.

(2) The dividend accrued on December 31, 2010apasoved at the annual shareholders’ meetingdreMarch 31, 2011 and was paid on May 30, 20110Gwber 18, 2010, the ratio of our ADR (American
Depositary Receipt) program changed, whereby onB ACBD) represented one preferred share of CBD R&)AThis ratio change resulted in a 2 for 1 qplite additional ADR for each ADR held).

Shareholders who are not residents of Brazil mesernlly register with the Central Bank to havedéinds and/or interest on shareholderglity, sales proceeds or ot
amounts with respect to their shares eligible todmeitted in foreign currency outside of BrazileS&tem 10D. Additional Information — Exchange Canis.” The preferre
shares underlying the ADSs are held in Brazil by tustodian, as agent for the depositary, the texgidowner on the records of the registrar for the prete share
underlying the ADSs. The current registrar is Batiad Corretora de Valores S.A.
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Payments of cash dividends and distributions, yf, aill be made in Brazilian currency to the cusérdon behalf of the depositary, which will themwert the paymen
in Brazilian currency into U.S. dollars and theteafvill cause the U.S. dollars to be deliveredh® depositary for distribution to holders of AD&sdescribed above. In
event that the custodian is unable to convert inmately the Brazilian currency received as divideadsl/or interest on shareholdeesjuity into U.S. dollars, the amount
U.S. dollars payable to holders of ADSs may be esblg affected by devaluations of the Brazilianreaocy that occur before the distributions are coiegeand remitted. S
“Item 3A. Selected Financial Data — Exchange Ra@#&idends and interest on shareholdexguity in respect of the preferred shares paidhéoeholders, including hold¢
of ADSs, are subject to the tax treatment outliimeitem 10E. Taxation — Brazilian Tax Consideraiso”

8B. Significant Changes
Proposal Letter from Gama 2 SPE Empreendimentos edrticipacdes S/A

On June 28, 2011, we received a proposal from GaBRE Empreendimentos e Participacdes S/A, a $pecjzose company held by BTG Pactual Principaéhtment:
Fundo de Investimento em Participagdes. The pedposmitemplates a business combination of the Baagdcar Group with the Carrefour Group, the sedargest retailer
worldwide, headquartered in France. We attaclptbposal in its entirety as Exhibit 15.(a)t)this annual report.

The proposed business combination is subject tmappin accordance with the terms of the sharedrsldagreements filed in the Company's head offlye8Vilkes
Participacdes S.A., and, as the case may be, Iyotiperate bodies of our Company, as well as thepetent authorities, in Brazil and abroad, inclgdine Brazilian
Securities and Exchange Comission - CVM and theiridtrative counsel for economic defer@enselho Administrativo de Defesa Econdmica - CADE

We will publicly disclose any material further démement related to the proposed business combmatio
Arbitration Proceeding filed by Casino Group

On May 30, 2011, the Casino Group and its affiiedegisor S.A. and Sudaco Participagdes Ltda. diletjuest for arbitration under the Internatid®iaamber of
Commerce rules against Abilio dos Santos Diniz, Maaia Falleiros dos Santos Diniz D'Avila, AdriaRalleiros dos Santos Diniz, Jodo Paulo Falleiras$tntos Diniz,
Pedro Paulo Falleiros dos Santos Diniz and Perdrailticipagoes Ltda.. We are not a party to thitration proceeding and, therefore, are not awéits content. The
arbitration proceeding is subject to confidentjafitovisions and is aimed at ensuring compliand tie shareholders’ agreements between the chingrghareholders. We
cannot anticipate the effects of the dispute onkar. further information on the shareholders’ agnents, see “ltem 7A. Major Shareholders — Contfiti€ut Option
Agreement and Shareholders’ Agreements.” We willlligly disclose any significant development in thigpute between our controlling shareholders atiwive become
aware that may adversely affect us.

ITEM 9. THE OFFER AND LISTING
9A. Offer and Listing Details

Our preferred shares are traded on the BM&FBOVESRder the trading symbol PCARA4. Our preferred sharghe form of ADSs also trade on the New YorkcE
Exchange, or NYSE, under the trading symbol “CBB @n the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

Our ADSs commenced trading on the NYSE in May 198 .0of December 31, 2010, the ADSs represented?2@Bour preferred shares. Each ADS represent
preferred share, without par value. The ADSs aidegced by American Depositary Receipts, or ADBsyéd by The Bank of New York Mell

The following table sets forth, for the period icalied, the reported high and low sales pricedpteferred shares on the BM&FBOVESPA:
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R$ Average
Daily
Trading
High Low High Low Volume
Calendar Perioc R$ usgb
20062 49.3¢ 27.9¢ 23.1¢ 13.0¢ 11,242,22.
20072 40.7: 27.0¢ 23.0( 15.27 19,440,71
2008:
1st quarte 37.1% 27.7¢ 21.2% 15.8¢ 25,714,87
2nd quarte 40.67 33.8¢ 25.5¢ 21.2¢ 21,096,95
3rd quartel 37.91 32.4¢ 19.8¢ 16.9¢ 16,590,81
4th quarte 37.97 24.6¢ 16.2¢ 10.5¢ 19,690,41
2009:
1st quarte 32.6¢ 27.97 14.1:2 12.0¢ 13,215,49
2nd quarte 38.2¢ 31.9¢ 19.61 16.3¢ 22,381,98
3rd quarte! 50.0( 38.0( 28.11 21.3¢ 30,036,01
4th quarte 65.0: 50.0( 37.3¢ 28.7¢ 36,724,38
2010:
1st quarte 68.17 57.6¢ 38.27 32.3 42,694,32
2nd quarte 64.0¢ 54.4( 35.5] 30.1¢ 46,772,92
3rd quartel 64.4¢ 56.1¢ 38.21 33.27 64,902,60
4th quarte 71.1¢ 59.31 42.8¢ 35.7C 49,312,16
(1) Converted into U.S. dollars at the U.S. deBaazilianreal exchange rate in effect at the end of each perniesemted. See “ltem 3A. Selected Financial Dataxeh&nge Rates.”
(2) As restated due to the reverse stock sptivefshares.
Share prices for the most recent six months afellasvs:
High Low High Low
RS usgd
December 201 70.61 66.6¢ 42.5¢ 40.1¢«
January 201 70.21 61.6¢ 42.1% 37.01
February 201: 62.1¢ 58.9¢ 37.3¢ 35.41
March 2011 67.1( 60.9¢ 41.1% 37.3t
April 2011 70.0( 65.3¢ 44.4% 41.4¢
May 2011 72.4¢ 63.2] 45.8¢ 40.0C

(1) Converted into U.S. dollars at the U.S. deBaazilianreal exchange rate in effect at the end of each perniesemted. See “ltem 3A. Selected Financial DataxehBnge Rates.”

On June 15, 2011, the closing sale price for tiefepred shares on the BM&FBOVESPA was R$66.60 pefiepred share, equivalent to US$41.62 per ADSsteded ¢
the exchange rate of R$1.60 per US$1.00, the coniahenarket rate on that date. On the same dagegldsing sale price for our ADSs on the NYSE w&$4pR.60.

The following table sets forth, for the periodsigaded, the reported high and low sales price®fwrADSs listed on the NYSE:

US$ Average
High Low High Low Daily Trading Volume
Calendar Perioc US$ ADS: R$ ADSSY
20062 46.01 25.54 98.33 54.59 9,505,171
2007 43.7% 27.5( 77.3¢ 50.57 12,177,42
20082 49.41 2218 89.99 51.83 14,603,734
2009 37.7¢ 11.6¢ 65.91 20.2¢ 11,633,26
2010
1st quarte 38.87 31.9( 69.2¢ 56.8¢ 20,101,11
2nd quarte 36.5( 29.1t 65.8¢ 52.6(C 22,684,07
3rd quartel 37.0¢ 32.0C 62.51] 53.9¢ 31,911,58
4th quartel 42.2¢ 35.4¢ 70.21 58.8¢ 26,967,50
(1) Converted into U.S. dollars at the U.S. deBaazilianreal exchange rate in effect at the end of each periesemted. See “Item 3A. Selected Financial DataxehBnge Rates.”
(2) As restated due to the reverse stock sptiv@fshares.
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Share prices for the most recent six months afellasvs:

US$ Average
Daily
Trading
High Low High Low Volume
Calendar Perioc US$ ADS: R$ ADS$D
December 201 42.2¢ 39.5] 70.21 65.74 19,370,57
January 201 43.4( 37.1% 72.3¢ 61.8¢ 26,974,01
February 201: 38.0¢ 35.9¢ 63.3¢ 59.9C 21,589,20
March 2011 41.9¢ 37.18 68.4: 60.5¢ 17,667,03
April 2011 45.4¢ 41.81 71.6: 65.87 25,948,62
May 2011 46.0: 40.5( 72.7% 63.9¢ 34,120,69

mrted into Braziliareaisat the U.S. dollar-Brazilian real exchange rateffact at the end of each period presented. Sem“BA. Selected Financial Data — Exchange Rates.”
9B. Plan of Distribution
Not applicable.
9C. Markets

Trading on the BM&FBOVESPA

The trading market for our preferred shares andneomshares is the BM&FBOVESPA. The BM&FBOVESPA &t@xchange is a stock corporation where all ¢
trades in Brazil are carried out, with the excapti publicdebt bonds, which are traded electronically, amdgtivatization auctions, which are run by the R&éJaneir
Stock Exchange. Settlement of transactions on BMRWBSPA occurs three business days after the tratie @elivery of and payment for shares are madzugh the
facilities of the clearinghous€ompanhia Brasileira de Liquidacéo e Custédia,CBLC, a subsidiary of BM&FBOVESPA. Under the wéggions of the CBLC, financi
settlement is carried out through tBistema de Transferéncia de ReserfRaserve Transfer System) of the Central Bank. Setdement of trades of shares is carried ¢
the custodial system of CBLC. All deliveries agaifirsal payment are irrevocable.

As of May 16, 2011, there were 461 companies listethe BM&FBOVESPA.

Trading on the BM&FBOVESPA by non-residents of Br&zsubject to certain limitations under Braziliforeign investment and tax legislation.

In 2000, the Séo Paulo Stock Exchange was reomggizough the execution of memoranda of undersigrigy the Brazilian stock exchanges. Under the oramda, a
securities are now traded only on the Sdo PaulokSEachange, with the exception of electronicatded public debt securities and privatization ianst which are trad:

on the Rio de Janeiro Stock Exchange.

On May 8, 2008, the S&o Paulo Stock Exchange and®thzilian Mercantile and Futures Exchange mergeghting BM&FBOVESPA. Together, the companies |
formed one of the largest exchanges worldwiderimseof market value, the second largest in the Acasy and the leading exchange in Latin America.

Regulation of the Brazilian Securities Markets

The Brazilian securities markets are regulatedhey@VM, which has authority over stock exchangebsthe securities markets generally, the Nationah&tary Counc
(Conselho Monetario Nacionglor CMN and the Central Bank, which has, amorgopowers, licensing authority over brokerage $irind regulates foreign investment
foreign exchange transactions.
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Under the Brazilian corporate law, a company ieegifpublic, acompanhia abertasuch as we are, or privatecampanhia fechadaAll public companies are registe
with the CVM, and are subject to reporting requiests. A company registered with the CVM may haseécurities traded either on the BM&FBOVESPA othie Brazilial
over-theeounter market. The shares of a company listed hen BM&FBOVESPA may also be traded privately, subjer certain limitations. To be listed on
BM&FBOVESPA, a company must apply for registratigith the CVM and with the BM&FBOVESPA. Trading oéaurities of a public company on the BM&FBOVES
may be suspended at the request of such compamigipation of a material announcement. Tradiny mlao be suspended on the initiative of the BM&RHEESPA or thi
CVM, based on or due to, among other reasons,ief lieht a company has provided inadequate infdonatgarding a material event or has providedégadte responses
inquiries by the CVM or the BM&FBOVESPA.

The Brazilian securities law, Brazilian corporaagvland the laws and regulations issued by the CW¥ieI,CMN, and the Central Bank provide for, amongeothings
disclosure requirements applicable to issuersaofetd securities, restrictions on insider trading) mmce manipulation, and protection of minorityastholders.

Corporate Governance Practices

In 2000, the BM&FBOVESPA introduced three spediting segments, known as Level 1 and 2 of difféeéed Corporate Governance Practices and New Nléxiae/c
Mercadc), aiming at fostering a secondary market for séesrissued by Brazilian companies with securilis®ed on the BM&FBOVESPA, by prompting such comies tc
follow good practices of corporate governance. [[$taing segments were designed for the tradinghafes issued by companies voluntarily undertakingbide by corpora
governance practices and disclosure requiremenaslidition to those already imposed by applicablazBian law. These rules generally increase shddehs rights ani
enhance the quality of information provided to shatders.

To become a Level Njvel ) company, in addition to the obligations imposgcbrrent Brazilian law, it must agree to (a) eesilmat shares of the issuer representi
least 25% of its total capital are effectively dahble for trading (at least 25% must be free floét) adopt offering procedures that favor wideagrewnership of shar
whenever making a public offering, (c) comply witinimum quarterly disclosure standards includinghciow statements, (d) follow stricter disclospaicies with respe
to transactions made by controlling shareholddrectbrs and officers involving securities issugrthe respective company; (e) submit any existimysholdersagreemen
and stock option plans to the BM&FBOVESPA and (Bka a schedule of corporate events available te@kbklers.

On May 10, 2011 the differentiated Corporate Gosroe Practices and New Markétofyo Mercadp rules were amended. The new provisions include pecuniar
sanctions for companies that do not comply witlesuln addition to that, according to the amendgesr a compang’ CEO cannot cumulate the position of chairmarhe
board as well as all board members shall be eldoteal unified two-year term mandate.

We are a Level 1 listed company since March 3132@G a result, we must comply with the corporad@egnance standards described in the previous rzeniagr
addition to other obligations imposed by Braziliaw.

Disclosure Requirements

According to the CVM regulation, a public companysh submit to the CVM and BM&FBOVESPA certain peio information, including financial stateme
accompanied by the management report and indepeaddit report, annual and quarterly informatiomn guarterly management reports and independent epirts. Thi
legislation also requires us to file with the CVMdathe BM&FBOVESPA our shareholders’ agreementsicas of shareholdersheetings and copies of the related min
and communication regarding material acts or facts.

The CVM rules also provide for requirements regagdhe disclosure and use of information relatechaterial acts or facts of publicly held companiesjuding the
disclosure of information in the trading and acdigie of securities issued by publicly held compmi

77

http://lwww.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1038572/@¥2B1411001900/cbdform20f2010.} 1/7/201:



cbdform20f2010.htn- Generated by SEC Publisher for SEC F Page82 of 254

Table of Contents

Such requirements include provisions that:

establish the concept of a material act or fadt gfvzes rise to reporting requirements. Materiakamr facts include decisions made by the contrglihareholder
resolutions of the general meeting of shareholdersf management of the company, or any otheripaljtadministrative, technical, financial or ecario acts ¢
facts related to the compasybusiness (whether occurring within the companytberwise somehow related thereto) that may infteethe price of its public
traded securities, or the decision of investortsade or maintain such securities or to exercigeaduisuch securities’ underlying rights;

specify examples of acts or facts that are consitley be material, which include, among others ethecution of agreements providing for the tranefezontrol of
public company, the entry or withdrawal of shareles that maintain any managing, financial, tecbgichl or administrative function with or contrifmn to the
company, and any corporate restructuring undertakeong related companies;

oblige the public company to disclose material actfacts to the CVM, to the BM&FBOVESPA and thrduihe publication of such acts in the newspapeuslly
utilized by such company;

require the acquirer of a controlling stake in jpeibbmpany to publish a material fact, includingiittentions as to whether or not to de-list thgpomtions share:
within one year;

require management, members of the fiscal coueittive, or of any technical or advising bodyaopublic company to disclose to the company, toaQk& and tc
the BM&FBOVESPA the number, type and form of tragof securities issued by the company, its subs@tiand controlling public companies that are fgidhen
or by persons closely related to them, and anygdsin their respective ownership positions; and

require that, if any direct or indirect controllishareholder or any shareholder electing membettsedfoard of directors of a public company incesasr decreas
participation in such company by more than 5.0%hgerson or entity must disclose information regay such acquisition or disposition.

forbid trading on the basis of insider information.

9D. Selling Shareholders

Not applicable.

9E.

Dilution

Not applicable.

9F.

Expenses of the Issue

Not applicable.

ITEM 10. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

10A. Share Capital

As of December 31, 2010, our capital stock condistea total of 257,773,669 ngar shares, of which 99,679,851 were common shafek745,007 were class
preferred shares and 3,348,811 were class B peefsirares. As of the same date, our Company h2l8&3class A preferred shares in trea:

As of January 7, 2011, we converted our remainlagscB preferred shares into class A preferredeshaccording to our bigws. On March 31, 2011, our sharehol
approved the cancellation of the class B prefestetes and the modification of the designationcte#ss A preferred shares” to “preferred shares.”
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As of June 20, 2011, our capital stock consisted toftal of 259,959,709 ngwar shares, of which 99,679,851 were common slere460,279,858 were preferred shi
As of the same date, 232,586 preferred sharesheddan treasury and no common shares were hdteasury.

Share Buy-back

On January 16, 2009, our board of directors apmgt@/share buyack program for our class A preferred sharesudioh those traded in the form of ADRs. We v
authorized to acquire up to an aggregate of 3,@00&lass A preferred shares, representing appregim®.2% of the Company’ outstanding preferred stock as
December 31, 2008.

The program was terminated on April 18, 2009. Tbgussition of the class A preferred shares was nuadthe BM&FBOVESPA. A total of 369,600 class A fereec
shares were purchased at an average price of R@ér&hare. See “ltem 16E. Purchase of Equity 8iesuby the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers.”

As of April 30, 2010, class A preferred shares weekl in treasury and no common shares were hel@asury. The reduction of assets held in treaorg 369,600 t
232,586 is a result of the tender offer in conmectiith the acquisition of Globex see “Item 4A. tdiy and Development of the Company Aequisition of Globex (Pon
Frio).” We intend to use these shares for subsemqata and/or cancellation with no capital decrease

10B. Memorandum and Articles of Association

Below is a brief summary of certain significant yigions of our bylaws and Brazilian corporate law. This descriptilmes not purport to be complete and is qualifie
reference to our by-laws (an English translatiowbich has been filed with the SEC) and to the Bieazcorporate law.

Corporation Objects and Purposes

We are a publicly held corporation with principdge of business and jurisdiction in the city ob$#aulo, Brazil, governed by Brazilian laws (inchglthe Brazilial
corporate law), CVM regulations and our by-laws.

Our main business purpose is to sell manufactweajmanufactured and natural products of both natiandlforeign origin, of any and all kinds and dgst@on, natur
or quality, provided that they are not forbiddenldy. Furthermore, we may also engage in a widgeaf activities set forth in article 2 of our kymis.

Preferred Shares and Common Shares

Pursuant to the Brazilian corporate law and outadvys, each common share entitles the holder theéceohe vote at our shareholdemséetings. Holders of comm
shares are not entitled to any preference reldtingur dividends or other distributions or any prefice upon our liquidation, provided that they magvert their commc
shares into class A preferred shares at any tiee.“S-Conversion of Common Shares into class A PredeShares.All of our class B preferred shares have been coes
into class A preferred shares. See Genversion of Class B Preferred Shares into ClaBseferred Shares, Termination of Class B Prefesteates and Designation Cha
of Class A Preferred Shares into Preferred Shares.”

Pursuant to Brazilian corporate law, each prefesteate is non-voting, except under limited circlanses, and is entitled to:

e priority in the receipt of fixed or minimum dividdn

»  priority in the reimbursement of capital, with oitout premium; or

« cumulative preferences and advantages establishgghis (i) and (ii) above.

Furthermore, the preferred shares will only be #igmhifor trading on the BM&FBOVESPA if they are et to at least one of the following preferences:
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e right to participate in the distribution of the naatory dividend of at least 25% of our adjusted prefits, pursuant to the following criteria (See-“Allocation of
Net Profits and Distribution of Dividends — Mandat®ividends”for a description of calculation of our adjusted peofits): (i) priority in the receipt of dividers
corresponding to at least 3% of the shabesik value; and (ii) right to participate in theofit distribution together with the common sharesler equal conditior
after the common shares have received dividendstderth in item (i) above; or

*  right to receive dividends in an amount per shéw teast 10% higher than the amount per shagktpdiolders of common shares.

In addition, pursuant to Brazilian corporate lavd aur by-laws, the preferred shares will acquim right to vote in the event that the minimum momulative annu.

preferred dividend is not paid for a period of thensecutive years and such voting right will eeagon the payment of such minimum -cumulative annual preferr
dividend.

Under Brazilian corporate law, amendments reduthiegrights of preferred shares entitle the holdéthose shares to withdrawal rights. See “~WithddaRights”for &
description of withdrawal rights.

Allocation of Net Profits and Distribution of Divid ends

Allocation of Net Profits

Brazilian corporate law defines the “net profits the results of the relevant fiscal year, redumedccumulated losses of prior fiscal years, miowis for income tax al
social contribution for such fiscal year, and antswallocated to employees’ and managensepdirticipation in the results in such fiscal y@dre allocation of our net profits
proposed by our management and is subject to agbbyvour shareholders at a general shareh¢ meeting. The discretion of our management and bareholders |
determine the allocation of our net profits, howev limited by certain rules that determine whegtbuch net profits should be distributed as divitteor allocated to cert:
profit reserves or carried forward to future fisgahrs, as follow

Mandatory dividendsOur shareholders are generally entitled to recenandatory dividends each year, in an amount atgrivto 25% of our adjusted net pro
Adjusted net profits are net profits following taédition or subtraction of:

* amounts allocated to the formation of a legal neseccount;

« amounts allocated to the formation of a contingeesgrve account and the return of any amountsyircantingency reserve accounts deposited in puswears;
* amounts allocated to the formation of a tax inc@&sireserve account;

* amounts allocated to the statutory reserve, if any;

* amounts allocated to the unrealized profit reserve;

* amounts allocated to the retained profit resernd; a

*  reversions of the amounts allocated to the unredlprofit reserve, when realized and not absorlydddses.

The payment of our mandatory dividends may be éichito the profits actually realized in the fiscelay, if the portion of the profits not realizedalocated to th
unrealized income reserve account (as describeavipel

For the fiscal year ended 2009, we created a neidatid policy during the board of directors meetlmgd on August 3, 2009, pursuant to which we gdie ou
dividend distribution on a quarterly basis; we hawe made further alterations to the dividend disition period.
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Legal reserve accounWe are required to maintain a legal reserve thvive must allocate 5% of our net profits for edisleal year until the amount of the rese
equals 20% of our paiih capital. The allocation of a portion of the nebfits to the legal reserve account is mandaterg & must be submitted for approval to
shareholders voting at the general shareholadeegting and may only be transferred to our capitabunt or used to offset accumulated lossesyif\&te are not required
make any allocations to our legal reserve for asgaf year in which such reserve, when added tocapital reserves, exceeds 30% of our capital stbbk legal resen
account is not available for the payment of dividien

Expansion Reserv€urrently, our by-laws provide for an expansiesarve Reserva de Expanspahich will be made of up to 100% of the remainddjusted net profi
after the establishment of the legal, contingenmy @nrealized income reserves. The total amoutitisfreserve may not exceed the amount correspgrdiaur share capit
Our shareholders may amend ourlayes in order to establish other discretionary mese The allocation of our net profits to disavatiry reserve accounts may not be r
if it prevents the distribution of our mandatoryidiends.

Contingency reserve accourt portion of our net profits may also be allochte a contingency reserve for an anticipated fleasis deemed probable in future years.
amount so allocated in a prior year must eitherelversed in the fiscal year for which the loss aaticipated if the loss does not occur or be claafeif the anticipated lo:
occurs.

Tax incentives reserve accourtccording to the Brazilian corporate law, our rgielders’meeting, upon a justified proposal of our boarddwéctors or board !
executive officers, may decide to allocate a peemgmof our net profits resulting from governmeonations or subventions for investment purposes.

Retention of our net profit?\ccording to the Brazilian corporate law, the reti@lders can decide to retain a portion of thepnefit provided that such portion has b
contemplated in the capital budget previously apgddoy the shareholders.

Unrealized income reserve accouiihe portion of the mandatory dividends that edeethe net profits actually realized in that yeayrbe allocated to the unreali:
income reserve account. Unrealized income is incoesalting from the equity pick up result and/oe throfits of earnings of any transaction, the firiahsatisfaction ¢
which takes place in the subsequent fiscal year.

The unrealized income reserve account, when reklipeist be used first to offset accumulated loséesyy, and the remaining portion must be usedtierpayment ¢
mandatory dividends.

The balance of the profits reserve accounts, exoeghe contingency reserve account and unrealizesime reserve account, may not exceed our slaieat If this
occurs, a shareholdensieeting must resolve if the excess will be appl@g@ay in the subscribed and unpaid capital, toeimse and pay in the subscribed share capita
distribute dividends.

Distribution of Dividends

Under the Brazilian corporate law and our by-laws,may pay dividends only from:

e our “net profits"earned in a given fiscal year, which is our restithe relevant fiscal year, reduced by: accumdldbsses from prior fiscal years; provisions
income tax and social contribution for such fispadr; and amounts allocated to employees’ and neasigzarticipation in the results in such fiscal yearguant t
our Profit Sharing Progranpdrticipacdes estatutaridsFurthermore, our blaws allows us to implement a profit sharing plan émployees and managers al
stock option plan. The amount to be paid in corineawith both plans is set forth by our board afdiors and must not exceed an amount equal todf586r ne
profits. UnderBrazilian corporate law, this profit sharing mayyobe paid to managers with respect to a fiscat yewhich the mandatory dividend has been ded
to the shareholders.

* our net profits accrued in previous fiscal yearghany six-month and/or quarterly interim periadsa fiscal year; or
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e our profit reserves set aside in previous fiscargeor in the first six months of a fiscal yearttis case, “profit reservesheans any discretionary reserve acct
contingency reserve account, amounts allocatedit@apital expenditure budget approved by our $twders’resolution or unrealized income reserve accourt
including the legal reserve account.

Under our by-laws, the preferred shares are edhtitle (i) priority in receiving a minimum nocumulative annual preferred dividend equal to R&@ér preferred sha
(i) priority in reimbursement of capital, withoptremium, in case of liquidation, (iii) participaticon equal terms with common shares in the dididhuof bonus shar
resulting from capitalization of reserves of re@rearnings and (iv) receipt of the mandatory @iithat is 10% higher than the dividend of eaghmon share, includin
for purposes of this calculation, in the sum of tiial dividend amount paid to the preferred shatesamount paid as a minimum neoumulative annual preferred divide
equal to R$0.08 per share.

Consequently, under our by-laws, to the extent $ume available, dividends and/or interest on $tedders’ equity are paid in the following order). g minimum non-
cumulative annual preferred dividend in respedhefpreferred shares in the amount of R$0.08 mfeped share; and (ii) after common shares argeds dividend equal
the minimum norsumulative annual preferred dividend equal to R&@ér share, each preferred share receives a divitheat is 10% higher than the dividend of ¢
common share, including, for purposes of this dat@n, the amount paid as a minimum mamnulative annual preferred dividend equal to R$@ér preferred share, sub
to any determination by our board of directors thath distribution would be incompatible in viewaafr financial condition. We are authorized, but remuired, to distribu
a greater amount of dividends.

Dividends are generally to be declared at gendrateholdersimeetings in accordance with the recommendatiomefbbard of directors. Our board of directors
declare interim dividends to be deducted from tberwed profits recorded in our annual or semianfinancial statements. In addition, our board akdiors may pe
dividends from the net income based on our unadidjterterly financial statements. The interim dérids may be declared and debited to the profitwvesamount register:
at the most recent annual or semiannual statefibate semiannual or quarterly interim dividends matyexceed the amounts accounted for in our dapiarve accoun
Any payment of interim dividends may be set offiagathe amount of mandatory dividends relatinthenet profits earned in the year the interimdéwids were paid.

Distributions of interest on our shareholdezquity may constitute an alternative form of paytrtenshareholders. These payments may qualify #sopghe mandatol
dividend at their net value. Please see “|ltem TG&ation — Brazilian Tax Considerations.”

Dividends are generally available to the sharehsldéthin 60 days after the date the dividends wiseared to the holder of record on the declanadiate. The amou
is subject to monetary restatement, in accordariteracommendation of our board of directors arelBhazilian corporate law.

A shareholder has a thrgear period following the dividend payment datel@m a dividend in respect of its shares. After éxpiration of that period, we are no lor
liable for the payment of such dividend.

Our calculation of “net profitsand allocations to reserves for any fiscal yeardmtermined on the basis of financial statemergpamed in accordance with Brazil
GAAP.

Under the Brazilian corporate law, however, we @tewed to suspend the distribution of the mandatbvidends in any year in which our managemenoref ou
shareholdersgeneral meeting that the distribution would be mpatible with our financial condition. Such suspenss subject to review by the fiscal counciljtifis in
place. In addition, in case of public companide lis, our management must file a justificationsioch suspension with the Brazilian Securities Casion within five day
from the date of the relevant general shareholdeegting. In case the mandatory dividend is nad,ghie unpaid amount shall be attributed to a sppeeserve account and
not absorbed by subsequent losses, those fundssh@aid out as dividends as soon as the finanoiadition of the company permits.
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Conversion of Common Shares into Preferred Shares

Our by-laws do not provide for the conversion oéfprred shares into common shares. In accordartbeont bylaws, our shareholders may at any time conver
common shares into preferred shares, providedstieit common shares are fully paid and that thé edtareferred shares issued do not exceed the &frtwo-thirds of al
outstanding shares. The requests for conversion Ineusubmitted in writing to our board of executdficers and subsequently ratified at the nextrdad directors meeting.

Conversion of Class B Preferred Shares into Clas®referred Shares, Termination of Class B Preferr8tiares and Designation Change of Class A Prefer&ithres
into Preferred Shares

All of our class B preferred shares have been atedénto class A preferred shares in accordante avpreestablished schedule: (i) 50% of the class B prefeshare
were mandatorily converted into class A preferdeares on July 7, 2010; and (ii) 50% of the clagg&erred shares were mandatorily converted iraescA preferred shal
on January 7, 2011. On March 31, 2011, our shidet®approved at a general shareholderséting the termination of the class B preferrearesti and the change in
designation of class A preferred shares to predeshares, without any alteration in the rightsfenence, privileges or terms of the securities.

Interest on Shareholders’ Equity

We are allowed to pay interest on shareholdegsity as an alternative form of payment to shddsre, which payment may be treated as a dedueigense for incon
tax and social contribution purposes. Paymentsi@fiést on shareholdersfuity may be made at the discretion of our bodrdirectors, subject to the approval of
shareholders in the shareholders’ meeting. The atnpaid to shareholders as interest on shareholdgrsty, net of any withholding tax, may be includesl part of th
mandatory distribution. This interest is limitedttee daily pro rata variation of the TILP, as defaed by the Central Bank from time to time, andrezt exceed, for t
purposes, the greater of (i) 50% of net incomee(afeduction of social contribution on profits arefore taking such distribution and any deductimmcbrporate income ts
for the year in respect of which the payment is epaxt (ii) 50% of the sum of retained profits anmdfjt reserves in the beginning of the period wiélspect to which tt
payment is mad

Distribution of interest on shareholdeesjuity may also be accounted for as our tax delecéixpense, and any payment of interest on pegfeshares to sharehold:
whether Brazilian residents or not, including hatdef ADSs, is subject to Brazilian withholding takthe rate of 15% or at the rate of 25% in chsebeneficiary is reside
and domiciled in a “tax havend country or location that does not impose incoaxeor where the maximum income tax rate is lowantB0% or where the local legislat
imposes restrictions on disclosing the shareholdimmgposition or the ownership of the investmene Stem 10E. Taxation — Brazilian Tax Consideration- Distributior
of Interest on Shareholders’ Equity.” To the extest distribute interest on shareholdezquity in any year, which distribution is not acoted for as part of the mandat
distribution, a Brazilian withholding tax would dpg@and we would not be required to make a gross-up.

Board of Directors

Under the Brazilian corporate law, the members @drapanys board of directors must be shareholders of thepemy. There is no requirement as to the numbsharfe
an individual must own in order to act as a menafehe board of directors.

According to the Brazilian corporate law, our offis and directors are prohibited from voting oraating in, matters in which their interests cantfivith ours.

Our by{aws provide that the shareholders are respon$iileletermining the global remuneration of the mersbof our management bodies. There are no sy
provisions regarding the direct’ power to vote on their compensation in the absesfan independent quorum.

With respect to the borrowing powers of the Bodr®ectors, the Board of Directors has the poveeatithorize the borrowing of funds. Other financarxgangement
including bank loans, may be entered into by uswupe joint signatures of (i) one executive officacting jointly with the Chief Executive Officer otherexecutive office

indicated by the board of directors, (ii) one daéfi@nd one attorney-in-fact, or (iii) two attorneiysfact.
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There is no requirement under the Brazilian corigolav or our by-laws that directors retire upoacteing a certain age. In addition, our by-laws doprovide for the re-
election of directors at staggered intervals.

For a discussion of our Board of Directors, seerfittA. Directors and Senior Management — Boardioédbors” and “Item 6C. Board Practices.”
Voting Rights
Each common share entitles the holder thereof ¢ovore at our shareholders’ meetings. Preferregestan not entitle the holder to vote.

The Brazilian corporate law provides that nasting or restricted voting shares (such as oufepred shares) entitled to fixed or minimum divideracquire unrestrict
voting rights if the company has failed for thremsecutive fiscal years (or for any shorter pegetiforth in a company’s biaws) to pay any fixed or minimum dividenc
which such shares are entitled, and such votifggigxist until the payment thereof is made. Outldoys do not set forth any shorter period.

In any circumstance in which holders of preferredres are entitled to vote, each preferred shdrentitle the holder thereof to one vote.

Any change in the preferences or advantages opitbferred shares, or the creation of a class afeshiaaving priority or preference over the existimgferred share
would require, in addition to the affirmative vaieshareholders holding the majority of our comnsbares in a shareholderseeting, the prior approval or the ratificatior
holders of a majority of the concerned outstangirgferred shares, voting as a class at a specetimgeof holders of preferred shares. This meetingld be called by notit
published at least three times in the Diario Ofidia Estado de Sao Paulo, as well as in a newspdpede circulation in Sdo Paulo, at least 15 dager to the meeting, b
would not generally require any other form of netid/e have designated newspapers Folha de Sdo Paltw, B&condmico, Estado de S. Paulo or Brasil Ecaodror this
purposeln addition to these newspapers, we also havelbighithe notice on the website of CVM or BM&FBOVES and our website.

According to the Brazilian corporate law, (i) sHeokelers that jointly hold preferred shares thatreepnt, at least, 10% of the total capital stocld i) holders ¢
common shares that are not controlling shareholaiedsrepresent, at least, 15% of the total vottogks will have the right to elect one member af toard of directors a
an alternate. In case neontrolling shareholders do not achieve the aforgioeed percentage, they may combine their pagtmp and, if they jointly hold at least 10%
the total capital, they may elect a member of tbarth of directors and an alternate director. Ohlgrsholders that prove they have been holding hlaees for at least
continuous months may exercise such rights.

Shareholders’ Meetings

Under the Brazilian corporate law, at an annuakgairmeeting of shareholders, or an extraordinanegal meeting, convened and held in accordandeswith law ar
our by-laws, the shareholders are empowered taldeti matters relating to our business purposes.

In accordance with Brazilian corporate law, shalddis voting at our general meeting have the poaregng others, to:
e amend our by-laws;

* delisting from CVM (to become a closely held comgan

» approve the issuance of convertible debenturesecured debentures;

« elect or dismiss members of the board of direcocsof the fiscal council, at any time;
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receive the management’s accounts and approvhkdfrtancial statements, including the allocatibnet profits;

suspend the rights of a shareholder who has vibBtazilian corporate law or our by-laws;

approve the valuation of assets offered by a sloédehin consideration for the subscription of &saof our capital stock;
approve the transformation of the corporate forra orerger with or into another company, spin-affysolidation or split; and

authorize the management to petition for bankrupteyleclare our company insolvent and to requestgalures involving protection from creditors samiin natur
to reorganization under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code.

In addition, our by-laws also establish that a geihmeeting of our shareholders will have the feilog duties:

approval of our dissolution or liquidation and #qgpointment and dismissal of the respective ligwidand review the reports;

appointment and removal of the Chairman of our d@drdirectors;

approval of the annual global compensation of teenlvers of our management, including benefits;

approval of or amendment to our annual investmssgram;

approval of any issuance of common or preferredeshap to the limit of our authorized capital (480,000 shares), and/or any bonuses, debenturesrtibie intc
our shares or with secured guarantee or secudti@her rights or interests which are convertibieexchangeable into or exercisable for our sharesny othe

options, warrants, rights, contracts or commitmefitany character pursuant to which we are or mapdund to issue, transfer, sell, repurchase @rwike acquir
any shares and the terms and conditions of suliseripnd payment;

approval of any agreement or amendment to any agnee directly or indirectly, between us and/or affiliates and any of our controlling shareholdershei
relatives, members of our management or any ofcoatrolled companies and affiliates, except thageements executed in ordinary course of businesigh
should be contracted on an arm’s-length basis (etadnditions);

approval of any delisting from trading on any steskchange or filings for new listings;
approval of any change in our dividend policy;

approval of any joint venture between us and tpadies involving an individual investment or intregnts aggregated over a fiscal year in exceskeomour
equivalent irreais to US$100,000,000 or in excess of an amount equéfo of our shareholders equity as determinetsitatest annual balance sheet, whiche\
the higher, provided that the joint venture was/jmesly approved by our board of directors;

approval of any purchase, sale, disposal of ortiorea@f any lien on any asset of ours or any oihgestment made by us in an individual amount opuntx
aggregated over a fiscal year in excess of the atriaueais equivalent to US$100,000,000, or in excess ofranumt equal to 6% of our shareholders equi
determined in our latest annual balance sheethehir is higher; and

approval of any financial arrangement, including tbending or borrowing by us of funds and the isseaof noneonvertible debentures in excess of an indivi
amount equal to two times our EBITDA of the preocgdl2 months.

85

http://lwww.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1038572/@¥2B1411001900/cbdform20f2010.} 1/7/201:



cbdform20f2010.htn- Generated by SEC Publisher for SEC F Page9C of 254

Table of Contents

In relation to the matters described in the last ballet points above, according to our by-laws, lmeard of directors has the following duties:

approval of any purchase, sale, disposal of ottioreaf any lien on any asset of ours or any otheestment made by us in an individual amount enalated over

fiscal year in excess of the amountémis equivalent to US$20,000,000 or in excess of anuarnequal to 1% and up to 6% of our shareholdewityegs determine

in its latest annual balance sheet, whicheverastgher; and

approval of any financial arrangement in excessnohdividual amount equivalent to one half andaifwo times our EBITDA of the preceding 12 months.

According to Brazilian corporate law, neither a @amy’s by-laws nor actions taken at a shareholdeegting may deprive a shareholder of some spedifits, such as:

the right to participate in the distribution of fits;
the right to participate equally and ratably in @esnaining residual assets in the event of liqieedf the company;

the right to preemptive rights in the event of suipdion of shares, convertible debentures or suigun warrants, except in some specific circumses under tt
Brazilian law described under “—Preemptive Rights”;

the right to withdraw from the company in the cagescified under Brazilian corporate law, see “—Alfiawal Rights”; and

the right to supervise, pursuant to Brazilian coap®law, the management of the company.

Quorum

Generally, Brazilian corporate law provides thafjuorum at a shareholders’ meeting consists of kblders representing at least 25% of a compaiggued ar
outstanding voting capital on the first call arfdhat quorum is not reached, any percentage osdbend call. If the shareholders are called torahoeir bylaws, a quorum
a shareholders’ meeting consists of shareholderesenting at least twitvirds of our issued and outstanding voting capitathe first call and any percentage on the se

call.

As a general rule, the affirmative vote of shardbetd representing at least the majority of ourdadsand outstanding common shares present in pers@presented |
proxy at a sharehold¢ meeting is required to ratify any proposed actand abstentions are not taken into account. Howéveaffirmative vote of shareholders represel
more than one-half of our issued and outstandinipg@apital is required to:

modify a preference, privilege or condition of regsion or amortization conferred on one or moressis of preferred shares, or create a new clabsgveate
privileges than the existing classes of prefertetes;

reduce the percentage of mandatory dividends;

change our corporate purpose;

merge us into or with another company;

spin off a portion of our assets or liabilities;

approve our participation in a group of compangsdefined in the Brazilian corporate law);

apply for cancellation of any voluntary liquidatijon
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* merge all our shares into another Brazilian compaayhat we become a wholly-owned subsidiary chszompany; and
e approve our dissolution.
Notice of our shareholders’ meetings

Notice of our shareholdersieetings must be published at least three timeéiseirDiario Oficial do Estado de S&o Paulo, andntaespapers Folha de Sao Paulo, \
Econdmico, Estado de S. Paulo or Brasil Econéniibe. first notice must be published no later thamldgs before the date of the meeting on the fallf and no later the
eight days before the date of the meeting on thergkcall. However, in certain circumstances, tMViGnay require that the first notice be publishéddays in advance
the meeting.

Conditions of admission

Shareholders attending a shareholderseting must produce proof of their status as $lwdders and proof that they hold the shares thtgnihto vote. A shareholc
may be represented at a shareholderetting by a proxy appointed less than a year befohich must be a shareholder, a corporation affia lawyer or a financi
institution. Investment funds must be representethbir manager.

Preemptive Rights on Increase in Preferred Share Gatal

Under the Brazilian corporate law, each sharehdidsra general preemptive right to subscribe fareshin any capital increase, in proportion tesfktareholding, exce
in the event of the grant and exercise of any optiacquire shares of our capital stock understock option program. A shareholder has a geneesdmpptive right t
subscribe for debentures convertible into our sharel subscription warrants that we may issue. Airmim period of 30 days following the publicatiohtbe notice of
capital increase must be respected to exercisergluhexcept if otherwise determined by the bydaor the shareholder meeting, and the right iotizigle.

According to Brazilian corporate law, capital inases that do not change the proportion betweeexibéng classes and types of shares entitle theehblders to exerci
their preemptive rights solely with respect to sisasf equal class and type as the shares theylglhedd. However, if an issuance of shares chattgeexisting proportion
classes and types of shares, then (i) the shamsisaldhy exercise their preemptive rights with respeshares of equal class and type as the stiegsiready hold and, (ii)
necessary to maintain such shareholders’ ownepsbijportional with regard to the total capital stotley may subscribe for other classes or typehafes.

Our board of directors is authorized to eliminategpnptive rights with respect to the issuance afesy debentures convertible into shares and sptsorwarrants
provided that the distribution of such shares feaéd (i) through a stock exchange or in a putdfiering or (ii) through an exchange of shares puhlic offering, the purpo:
of which is to acquire control of another company.

In the event of a capital increase, that maintaingcreases the proportion of capital represehtedreferred shares, holders of ADSs, may, undeaicecircumstance
described above, exercise preemptive rights tocsildes newly issued preferred shares. In the evérat oapital increase which would reduce the proporbf capita
represented by preferred shares, holders of AD&g,under certain circumstances described above p@emptive rights to subscribe for preferred ehan proportion 1
their shareholdings and for common shares onlizgceiktent necessary to prevent dilution of thegriest in us. For risks associated with preemptgles, see ftem 3D. Risl
Factors — Risks Relating to the Preferred ShardsA@bSs — You might be unable to exercise preempiiyets with respect to the preferred shares ugiterithe ADSs.”

Withdrawal Rights

Neither the common shares nor the preferred slzmeesedeemable. Any of our shareholders who didsemt certain actions taken by our shareholdems shareholders’
meeting have the right to withdraw from our compamy to receive the value of their shares. Accardinthe Brazilian corporate law, the withdrawalhts of a dissentir
shareholder may be exercised in the event thaslwaneholders representing at least one-half ofssued and outstanding voting capital authorizes:
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i the creation of preferred shares or the dispropaatiincrease of an existing class of preferredesheelative to the other classes of shares, usleds action
provided for or authorized by our by-laws;

ii. the modification of a preference, privilege or citiod of redemption or amortization conferred orea@r more classes of preferred shares, or theianeatt a nev
class with greater privileges than the existingsie of preferred shares;

iii. a reduction in the mandatory distribution of diwids;
iv. a change in our corporate purposes;

V. the transfer of all of our shares to another conpparmrder to make us a wholly owned subsidiarguwdéh company or vice versa;

Vi. our merger into or with another company, includinge are merged into one of our controlling comiganor are consolidated with another company;
Vii. our participation in a group of companies as defineder the Brazilian corporate law and subjethéoconditions set forth therein;
Viii. a spineff of our company if it entails a change in thepmwate purpose, a reduction in mandatory dividerdie participation in a centralized group of pamies
or
iX. the transformation of us into another type of compa

Dissenting shareholders also have a right of with@t in the event that the entity resulting fromdaransfer of all of our shares to another comgparorder to make us
wholly owned subsidiary of such company or viceseer(b) a spimff or, (c) a merger or a consolidation of a Briazilpublicly listed company, fails to become a Hraa
publicly listed company within 120 days of the gethehareholde’ meeting in which such decision was taken.

The right to withdraw lapses 30 days after pubigcrabf the minutes of the relevant shareholderseting. In items (i) and (ii) above, the resolntimill be effective onl
upon the prior approval or confirmation within oyear by the preferred shareholders, which must &genat a special meeting, in which case thea@0term is counted frc
the date the minutes of the special meeting ardighetl. In any event, we are entitled to reconsa®r action giving rise to withdrawal rights withien days following tF
expiration of the 30-day term mentioned abovehéf withdrawal of shares of dissenting shareholderdd jeopardize our financial stability.

In addition, the rights of withdrawal in items (i\{y), (vii) and (viii), above, may not be exeraisy holders of shares if such shares have (aldiiuwhen such shar
are part of the BM&FBOVESPA Index, or part of arther stock exchange index in Brazil or in the wpdd defined by the CVM, and (b) dispersion, whendontrollin
shareholder or other companies under the sameottats less than 50% of the shares or class oéshar

Our preferred shares may be withdrawn at their baie, determined on the basis of the last balaheet approved by the shareholders. If the shiletsomeeting
giving rise to withdrawal rights occurs more thattysdays after the date of the last approved ldasheet, a shareholder may demand that its shaneued on the basis
a special balance sheet that is of a date withity siays of such shareholderaeeting. In this case, we must immediately pay & %e book value of the shares accordir
the most recent balance sheet approved by ourlelidegs, and the balance must be paid within 138 déter the date of the resolution of the relew@natreholders’ meeting.

Form and Transfer of Shares

Our shares are in bodatry form, and the transfer of such shares is ngdéae registrar in our books, by debiting thereshaccount of the transferor and crediting
share account of the transferee. We maintain beoky form services with Banco Ital Corretora ddovs S.A., or the registrar, which performs ak thervices ¢
safekeeping and transfer of our shares and retatedtes.
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Transfer of shares by a foreign investor is madéhérsame way and is requested by the investocal lagent on the investarbehalf. If the original investment
registered with the Central Bank pursuant to Regnil2,689 of CMN, the foreign investor should at&ek amendment through its local agent, if necgseathe electroni
registration to reflect the new ownership.

BM&FBOVESPA operates a clearing house through CBCBLC is also responsible for settlement and cystafcthe shares. The payment of dividends, bonase
other corporate events is managed by “Central O&p@s, a branch of BM&FBOVESPA.

Other Dispositions

In addition to the provisions already describethis annual report, the Brazilian corporate law andent regulations set forth, among others:

X. upon a sale of control, the acquirer is requirelhtmch a tender offer to purchase all minorityingtshares at a price equal to at least 80% ofdmérol price;
Xi. if provided for in the by-laws, disputes among shareholders will be subject to arbitration; ousldys currently do not provide for arbitration;
Xii. upon the occurrence of a tender offer aiming astiey our company or through which our controllisigareholders acquire more than timed of the float share

the purchase price will be equal to the fair valfithe shares considering the total number of antlihg shares;

Xiii. members of our board of directors elected by theaamtrolling shareholders will have the right tooéhe choice of the independent accountant of timéralling
shareholders; and

Xi

<

the chairman of any shareholders’ or board of ttimst meeting will disregard any vote that is reradkeagainst provisions of any shareholdag’eement if thi
shareholders’ agreement has been duly filed with us

10C. Material Contracts
Casas Bahia

Below we summarize the shareholdeagreement entered into between us, Casa Bahia Cianktda., Globex and the partners of Casa Baluen€rcial Ltda. Th
summary is qualified by reference to the agreemthatsare filed as exhibits to this annual report.

Pursuant to the shareholders’ agreement CBD wilktie right to elect the majority of members obldx’s board of directors and the partners of Casa Babiaercis
Ltda. will have the right to elect a certain numb&members corresponding to their ownership irsteire Globexs capital stock if Casa Bahia Comercial Ltda. hodddeas
25% of shares bound to the shareholders’ agreembatpartners of Casa Bahia Comercial Ltda. shpdbant, at least, two members of GlokeXoard of directors if th
hold, at least, 20% of the shares bound to theshiotders’ agreement. The shareholsl@greement also provides for veto rights regardertpin matters. Currently, the bo
of directors is composed of five members electe@Bjp and four members elected by partners of CaddaBComercial Ltda.

In addition, during the period in which the parthef Casa Bahia Comercial Ltda. hold shares booridet shareholders’ agreement representing, dt B2 of Globexé
total capital stock (excluding treasury shares ftbiw calculation), Mr. Michael Klein will be appded chairman of the board of directors.

The board of directors appointed Mr. Raphael Kteihold the position of Globex’s chief executivéicgr on November 17, 2010, with two-year term fiice.
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10D. Exchange Controls
The ownership of preferred or common shares byiddals or legal entities domiciled outside Bragisubject to certain conditions established utazilian Law.

The right to convert dividend payments and procéema the sale of common shares or preferred shate$oreign currency and to remit those amounfiside Brazil i
subject to exchange control restrictions and foréiyestment legislation which generally requir@siong other things, obtaining an electronic registn with the Centr.
Bank.

Resolution No. 1,927 of the CMN, which is the réstieand amended Annex V to Resolution No. 1,280@CMN, or the Annex V Regulations, provides tog tssuanc
of depositary receipts in foreign markets in respécshares of Brazilian issuers. We filed an amgilon to have the ADSs approved under the Anné&edulations by tt
Central Bank and the CVM, and we received finalrapal before the offering of the preferred shanedanlying the ADSs in May 1997.

An electronic registration, which replaced the adeshcertificate of registration, was issued inrlhene of the depositary with respect to the ADSsiamdaintained t
the custodian on behalf of the depositary.

This electronic registration was carried on throtighSistema do Banco Cent+&ISBACEN, a database of information provided bwfiicial institutions to the Cent
Bank. Pursuant to the electronic registration,dhstodian is able to convert dividends and othstriutions with respect to the preferred sharpsesented by the ADSs i
foreign currency and remit the proceeds outsideiBria the event that a holder of ADSs exchan@es¢ ADSs for preferred shares, that holder wikkbgtled to continue
rely on the depositarg’electronic registration for only five businesyslafter that exchange, following which that holdaist seek to obtain its own electronic registra
Thereafter, unless the preferred shares are hetaigot to Resolution No. 2,689 of CMN, dated adavfuary 26, 2000, as amended, a holder of prefstrads who appli
for and obtains a new electronic registration may e able to obtain and remit abroad U.S. dokarsther foreign currencies upon disposal of thefeared shares,
distributions with respect thereto, and generalily lve subject to a less favorable tax treatmenttenproceeds arising from any sale of the prefiesteares. In addition, if t
foreign investor is domiciled in a Low or Nil Tai@ Jurisdiction (as defined under “Brazilian TagrSiderations”)the investor will also be subject to a less favtwahy
treatment, even if its registry before the Cerahk is in accordance with the provisions of Reoiu2,689. See “Iltem 10E. Taxation — Brazilian Taansiderations.”

Under Resolution 2,689, foreign investors may ihvesalmost all financial assets and engage in atmadl transactions available in the Brazilian finel and capiti
markets, provided that the requirements descriledalabare fulfilled. In accordance with Resolutio&9, the definition of foreign investor includeslividuals, legal entitie
mutual funds and other collective investment esgitiomiciled or headquartered outside Brazil.

Pursuant to Resolution 2,689, foreign investorstrfulll the following requirements before engagim financial transactions:

XV. appoint at least one representative in Brazil wittvers to perform actions relating to the foreigveistment;
XVi. appoint an authorized custodian in Brazil for threeistments, which must be a financial institutiotydauthorized by the Central Bank and the CVM;
XVii. complete the appropriate foreign investor regigireform;
Xviii. register as a foreign investor with the CVM; and
XiX. register the foreign investment with the CentrahiBa

Securities and other financial assets held by gor@vestors pursuant to Resolution 2,689 musehestered or maintained in deposit accounts or wthdecustody of &
entity duly licensed by the Central Bank or the CVM addition, securities trading is restricted ttansactions carried out on stock exchanges owugramrganize
over-the-counter markets licensed by the CVM, except forsstiption, bonification, conversion of debentune®ishares, securities indexes, purchase and saleestmer

funds quotas and, if permitted by the CVM, goinygte transactions, canceling or suspension ofrtgadVloreover, the offshore transfer or assignnadrthe securities
other financial assets held by foreign investonspant to Resolution 2,689 are prohibited, exceptransfers resulting from a corporate reorgainaor occurring upon ti
death of an investor by operation of law or will.
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Investors under Resolution 2,689 who are not resiofea tax haven jurisdiction (i.e., a countrytttaes not impose income tax or where the maxirmgome tax rate
lower than 20%) are entitled to favorable tax treit. See “Item 10E. Taxation — Brazilian Tax Cdesations.”

10E. Taxation

This summary contains a description of the princBrmzilian and U.S. federal income tax consequserafethe purchase, ownership and disposal of pexfeshares
ADSs, but it does not purport to be a comprehendeseription of all the tax considerations that rbayrelevant to these matters based upon the glarticircumstances o
holder.

This summary is based upon tax laws of Brazil dredfederal income tax laws of the United Statesffact as of the date hereof, which laws are stiipchang
(possibly with retroactive effect) and differingénpretations. This summary is also based upongiesentations of the depositary and on the agsumtpat each obligatic
in the Amended and Restated Deposit Agreementddest®f May 28, 1997, among us, the depositanjtie®wners from time to time of American DepositReceipts, ar
any related documents, will be performed in accocdawith its terms.

Although there is presently no income tax treatyieen Brazil and the United States, the tax auilesrbf the two countries have had discussionsrtigt culminate i
such a treaty. No assurance can be given, howasdn whether or when a treaty will enter into éor how such a treaty would affect a U.S. holdepreferred shares
ADSs.

Brazilian Tax Considerations

The following discussion summarizes the principeddilian tax consequences of the acquisition, oslriprand disposal of preferred shares or ADSs bglder that i
not domiciled in Brazil for purposes of Braziliamxation (a “Non-Brazilian Holder”)it is based on Brazilian law as currently in effeghich is subject to change, poss
with retroactive effect, and to differing interprbns. Any change in such law may change the cpstes described below. Each NBnazilian Holder should consult his
her own tax adviser concerning the Brazilian tansemuences of an investment in preferred sharab8s.

Taxation of Dividends

Dividends based on profits generated after Janliat@96, including dividends paid in kind, payableus to the depositary in respect of preferredeshanderlying AD
or to a Non-Brazilian Holder in respect of preferghares, are exempt from withholding income tax.

Distribution of Interest on Shareholders’ Equity

In accordance with the Law No. 9,249, dated Decerbe1995, as amended, Brazilian corporations male payments to shareholders characterized afbdigins o
interest on shareholdsrequity as an alternative to making dividend itistions. Such interest is calculated by referandhe TILP (long term interest rate) as determioy
the Central Bank from time to time and cannot eddbe greater of:

XX. 50% of the net income (after the deduction of damiatribution on net profits and before taking swlistribution and the provision for corporate immtax int
account) for the period in respect of which thememt is made; or
XXi. 50% of the sum of retained profits and profits ress, as of the date of the beginning of the peinagspect of which the payment is made.
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Payments of interest on shareholder’s equity teoa-Brazilian Holder may be deducted for purposes afutating Brazilian corporate income tax and soci@ftributior
on net profits as far as the limits described atareeobserved. Such payments are subject to withitgpincome tax at the rate of 15%, or 25% if thenMBrazilian Holder i
domiciled in a country or location that does nopase income tax or where the maximum income tax imatower than 20% (“Low or Nil Taxation Jurisd@t”). Thest
payments may be included, at their net value, a@sgbany mandatory dividend. To the extent thathspayments are accounted for as part of the manddividend, unde
current Brazilian law, we are obliged to distribtieeshareholders an additional amount sufficiergrisure that the net amount received by the shiaieisp after payment |
us of applicable Brazilian withholding income talus the amount of declared dividends, is at lemgtal to the mandatory dividend. The distributidnirderest o
shareholders’ equity is proposed by our board fadors and subject to subsequent declarationéghiareholders at the general meeting.

Taxation of Gains

According to Law No. 10,833 of December 29, 200&ital gains realized on the disposal of assetstéocin Brazil by a Non-Brazilian Holder, whetherdther non-
Brazilian resident or to a Brazilian resident amdject to taxation in Brazil. In this sense, on thigposal of the preferred shares, as they ardsaksmted in Brazil, tt

Non-Brazilian Holder will be subject to income tax dretgains assessed, following the rules describenivbeegardless of whether the disposal is condlugieBrazil o
abroad and with a Brazilian resident or not.

Regarding the ADSs, although the matter is not frem doubt, arguably the gains realized by a NoazBian Holder on the disposal of ADSs to anothen-Braziliar
resident are not taxed in Brazil, based on theragg that ADSs would not constitute assets locaté®tazil for purposes of Law No. 10,833/03. Howewge cannot asst
you of how Brazilian courts would interpret the idéfon of assets located in Brazil in connectioiththe taxation of gains realized by a I-Brazilian Holder on the dispo:
of ADSs to another non-Brazilian resident. As ailiegains on a disposal of ADSs by a Non-Brazilidwider to Brazilian resident, or even to a i@nazilian resident in tt
event that courts determine that ADSs would canstiissets located in Brazil, may be subject tormetax in Brazil according to the rules describelbw.

The withdrawal of ADSs in exchange for preferredrsls is not subject to Brazilian income tax as lasgegistration rules for the preferred sharesappopriatel
observed with the Central Bank. The deposit ofgrefl shares in exchange for ADSs may be subjeBtapilian income tax on capital gains at the @td5% or 25%, i
case of a resident in a Low or Nil Taxation Jud&dn, if the acquisition cost of the preferred r&sais lower than (1) the average price per prefeshare on a Brazilian stc
exchange on which the greatest number of such sheee sold on the day of deposit, or (2) if ndfgmed shares were sold on that day, the averdage pn the Brazilia
stock exchange on which the greatest number okpesf shares were sold in the fifteen trading eassimmediately preceding such deposit. In thiscése differenc
between the acquisition cost and the average pfittee preferred shares, calculated as abovepwitlonsidered a capital gain subject to taxatiosome circumstances, th
may be arguments to claim that this taxation isapglicable in the case of a NeéBrazilian Holder that is a 2,689 Holder (as defitedbw) and is not a resident in a Lov

Nil Taxation Jurisdictior

Under Brazilian law, income tax rules on such gaas vary, depending on the domicile of the NByazilian Holder, the type of registration of thevéstment by tt
Nor-Brazilian holder before the Central Bank and hberdisposal is carried out, as described below.

Capital gains assessed by a Nenazilian Holder on a disposal of preferred sha@sied out on the Brazilian stock exchange (wlndtudes the transactions carried
on the organized over-the-counter market) are:

XXii. exempt from income tax when assessed by a Blazilian Holder that (1) has registered its inwet in Brazil with the Central Bank under the suté Resolutio
No. 2,689, of January 26, 2000, (“2,689 Holder")l §B) is not a resident in a Low or Nil Taxatiorriddiction; or

xxiii. subject to income tax at a rate of 15% in any otiase, including a case of gains assessed by aB¥arilian Holder that is not a 2,689 Holder, oaisesident in
Low or Nil Taxation Jurisdiction.

In these cases, a withholding income tax of 0.005%e sale value will be applicable and can berlaffset with the eventual income tax due on tgital gain.
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Any other gains assessed on a disposal of therpedfehares that is not carried out on a Brazdtack exchange are subject to income tax at tleeofat 5%, except for
resident in a Low or Nil Taxation Jurisdiction agtywhere the local legislation imposes restrictionghe disclosure of the shareholding compositidrihe ownership of tt
investment or of the identity of the effective biciary of the income attributed to naesidents, which, in this case, is subject to inedax at the rate of 25%. If these g;
are related to transactions conducted on the Baazilon-organized over-thesunter market with intermediation, the withholdingome tax of 0.005% shall also be applic
and can be offset against the eventual incomeuaod the capital gain.

In the case of a redemption of preferred sharesd8s or a capital reduction by a Brazilian corpamtsuch as our company, the positive differeretvben the amou
received by the NoBrazilian Holder and the acquisition cost of thefprred shares or ADSs redeemed is treated askgpih derived from the sale or exchange of sl
not carried out on a Brazilian stock exchange naakd is therefore subject to income tax at the 0&tL5%, or 25%, as the case may be.

As a general rule, the gains realized as a re$altdisposal of preferred shares or ADSs is thétipedifference between the amount realized onsthle or exchange
the shares and their acquisition cost.

There is no assurance that the current preferemgiatment for NorBrazilian Holder of ADSs and 2,689 Holder of pregetr shares will continue or that it will not
changed in the future.

Any exercise of preemptive rights relating to thieferred shares or ADSs will not be subject to Bieazincome tax. Any gain on the sale or assignnoérpreemptiv
rights relating to the preferred shares or ADSaliyonBrazilian Holder will be subject to Brazilian taiat at the same rate applicable to the sale orodapof preferre
shares.

Discussion on Low or Nil Taxation Jurisdictions

In certain circumstances, the Brazilian tax ledgistaimposes higher taxation on transactions thetarried out with entities located in jurisdictsoconsidered to maint:
favorable tax regimes (the above mentioned LowibT &kation Jurisdiction).

On June 24, 2008, Law No. 11,727 enlarged the socbpew or Nil Taxation Jurisdiction (by adding tfeurth paragraph to article 24 of Law no. 9,43049@l introduce
a new concept of “Privileged Tax Regime.” Accordiogthe enacted article 24-A of Law no. 9,430/98 itonsidered as such the tax regiimat (i) does not tax income
taxes it at a maximum rate lower than 20%; ordiignts tax benefits to naesident entities or individuals (a) without theugement to carry out a substantial econc
activity in the country or dependency or (b) cogént to the nomxercise of a substantial economic activity in ¢oentry or dependency; or (iii) does not tax oregxhi
income generated abroad at a maximum rate lower208&o; or (iv) does not provide access to infororatielated to shareholding composition, ownershiassets and rigt
or economic transactions carried out.

The recent enactment of the Normative Ruling n637/10, which sets forth the updated list of caestor jurisdictions deemed by Brazilian tax auities to provid
Favorable Taxation and Privileged Tax Regimes, neddent the acknowledgement by tax authorities tia legislation does not provide for a singulancept for tax
haven.”Rather, there are cases of Low or Nil Taxationsdliction and there are cases of Privileged Tax iRegivhich must be analyzed separately. The prowsad Lav
No. 11,727/08 that refer to tI‘Privileged Tax Regime” came into effect on Janukr009.

In principle, the best interpretation of Law No.,227/08 lead us to conclude that the new concefiprofileged tax regime’should be solely applied for purpose:
transfer pricing rules in export and import trarigacs (Law no. 9,430/96) and thin capitalizatiofesu(Law no. 12,249/10).

Thus, to income and gains realized by foreign itorssthat invest in the Brazilian financial and italpmarkets (2,689 Holder), the relevant conceghé one that mak
reference to “countries that tax income at a el than 20%,as provided under Law no. 9,959/00 (i.e. only LavNd Taxation Jurisdiction) and the countriesdigtin th
article one of the Normative Ruling No. 1,037/10.
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Other Brazilian Taxes

There are no Brazilian inheritance, gift or sucessaxes applicable to the ownership, transfedisposal of preferred shares or ADSs by a Boazilian Holder, exce
for gift and inheritance taxes, which are leviedsbyne states of Brazil on gifts made or inheritarzestowed by the NdBrazilian Holder within such states to individuak
entities resident or domiciled within such statesBrazil. There are no Brazilian stamp, issue, stegfion or similar taxes or duties payable by aBeazilian Holder ¢
preferred shares or AD!

Taxation of Foreign Exchange Transactions (“IOF/Extange™)

Pursuant to Decree No. 6,306/07, the conversianforeign currency or the conversion into Brazilanrency of the proceeds received or remitted Byazilian entit
from a foreign investment in the Brazilian secestmarket, including those in connection with theestment by a noBrazilian holder in the preferred shares and AD&g
be subject to the Tax on Foreign Exchange Trarsastor IOF/Exchange. Although the current applieahte for almost all foreign currency exchangasactions is 0.38¢
the exchange transactions for the inflow and thi#law of funds by nonBrazilian holders for investment in the Braziliandncial and capital markets are subject tc
IOF/Exchange Tax at the respective rates of 2%08adIn any case, the Brazilian Government is peeaiito increase at any time the rate to a maximugb%, but only il
relation to future transactions.

Tax on Bonds and Securities Transactions (“IOF/Bogst

Pursuant to Decree 6,306/07, the Tax on Bonds andriies Transactions (“IOF/Bondsf)ay be imposed on any transactions involving bamdksecurities even if t
transactions are performed on a Brazilian stockamnge. As a general rule, the rate of this taxiisently 0% but the Brazilian government may inseeauch rate up to 1.t
per day, but only with respect to future transact On November 19, 2009, the Brazilian governmentdgased the IOF/Bonds from zero to 1.5% on the is®iahdeposital
receipts traded outside of Brazil which underlysiares are issued by a Brazilian company and lastea Brazilian stock exchange. Any increase inréte would not app
retroactively.

U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations

The following discussion summarizes the principabUederal income tax considerations relatingh® @cquisition, ownership and disposition of pmeférshares
ADSs by a U.S. holder (as defined below) holdinghspreferred shares or ADSs as capital assetsr@bneroperty held for investment). This summé&based upon tl
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the€'Go@ireasury regulations, administrative pronoumests of the U.S. Internal Revenue Service (th&s")Rand judicia
decisions, all as in effect on the date hereof, @hdf which are subject to change (possibly wittroactive effect) and to differing interpretasohis summary does 1
describe any implications under state, local or-bo®. tax law, or any aspect of U.S. federal tax (auch as the estate tax, gift tax or the Meditaxeon net investme
income) other than U.S. federal income taxation.

This summary does not purport to address all thieniah U.S. federal income tax consequences thatlmearelevant to the holders of the preferred shareADSs, an
does not take into account the specific circum&taraf any particular investors, some of which (sashltaxexempt entities, banks or other financial instdnsg, insuranc
companies, dealers in securities or currenciedetsin securities that elect to use a markatoket method of accounting for their securitiefdimys, regulated investme
companies, real estate investment trusts, invebédnie for the alternative minimum tax, partnepshand other padbrough entities, U.S. expatriates, investors tat or ar
treated as owning 10% or more of our voting stackestors that hold the preferred shares or ADSsasisof a straddle, hedge, conversion or constteiciale transaction
other integrated transaction and persons whoseifunat currency is not the U.S. dollar) may be sabjo special tax rules.

As used below, a “U.S. holder” is a beneficial owoepreferred shares or ADSs that is, for U.Sefatlincome tax purposes:
XXiV. an individual citizen or resident of the United t8&
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XXV. a corporation (or an entity taxable as a corponqtimeated or organized in or under the laws otthited States, any state thereof, or the Distric@olumbia;
XXVi. an estate, the income of which is subject to Le8efal income tax regardless of its source; or
XXVi. a trust if (A) a court within the United Statesalsle to exercise primary supervision over the agstration of the trust and one or more United $tatersons ha

the authority to control all substantial decisiafghe trust or (B) the trust has a valid electioreffect under applicable U.S. Treasury regulatitmbe treated a:
United States person.

If a partnership or other entity taxable as a paship holds preferred shares or ADSs, the taxnirerat of a partner will generally depend on theustaf the partner al
the activities of the partnership. Partners ofrpenghips holding preferred shares or ADSs shouldwotheir tax advisors.

In general, for U.S. federal income tax purposefijérs of American Depositary Receipts evidencifi®Sa will be treated as the beneficial owners ofptederred shar
represented by those ADSs.

Taxation of Distributions

In general, distributions with respect to the prefeé shares or ADSs (which likely include distribus of interest on shareholders’ equity, as dbedriabove under “—
Brazilian Tax Considerations—Interest on SharehsldEquity”) will, to the extent made from our current or acclated earnings and profits, as determined
U.S. federal income tax principles, constitute diévids for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Ifs&riiution exceeds the amount of our current amdimalated earnings a
profits, as so determined under U.S. federal inctareprinciples, the excess will be treated fisbanor-taxable return of capital to the extent of the .Uh&8ders tax basis i
the preferred shares or ADSs, and thereafter attgpin. We do not intend to maintain calculatiaf our earnings and profits under U.S. federadbiime tax principles ar
unless and until such calculations are made, Wolehs should assume all distributions are madeobaairnings and profits and constitute dividencbime. As used belo
the term “dividend” means a distribution that ca@nses a dividend for U.S. federal income tax psgm

The gross amount of any dividends (including amswvithheld in respect of Brazilian taxes) paid witlspect to the preferred shares or ADSs genesdllype subject t
U.S. federal income taxation as ordinary incomeaitichot be eligible for the dividends receivedddetion allowed to corporations. Dividends paidBiazilian currency wi
be included in the gross income of a U.S. holdea i.S. dollar amount calculated by reference ® dkchange rate in effect on the date the dividemdsactually ¢
constructively received by the U.S. holder, orhe tase of dividends received in respect of AD8sthe date the dividends are actually or constraltireceived by th
depositary, whether or not converted into U.S.aiell A U.S. holder will have a tax basis in anytriisted Brazilian currency equal to its U.S. doanount on the date
receipt by the U.S. holder or disposition, as thgecmay be, and any gain or loss recognized ugabsequent disposition of such Brazilian currerayegally will be foreig
currency gain or loss that is treated as U.S. soardinary income or loss. If dividends paid in Blian currency are converted into U.S. dollarstiom day they are receiv
by the U.S. holder or the depositary, as the casg Ibe, U.S. holders generally should not be reduicerecognize foreign currency gain or loss irpees of the divider
income. U.S. holders should consult their own tdwisors regarding the treatment of any foreignency gain or loss if any Brazilian currency recdiby the U.S. holder
the depositary or its agent is not converted int8.dollars on the date of receipt.

Subject to certain exceptions for shtmtm and hedged positions, under current law, ti& dollar amount of dividends received in taxafgars beginning on or beft
December 31, 2010 by an individual with respecth®s ADSs will be subject to taxation at a maximuaterof 15% if the dividends represent “qualifiegtidénd income.”
Dividends paid on the ADSs will be treated as digglidividend income if (i) the ADSs are readilgdable on an established securities market in thieetl States and (ii) v
were not in the year prior to the year in which divedend was paid, and are not in the year in Whie dividend is paid, a passive foreign investneempany (“PFIC”)The
ADSs are listed on the New York Stock Exchange, ghr@lild qualify as readily tradable on an establiskecurities market in the United States so lanthey are so liste
However, no assurances can be given that the ADIEbevor remain readily tradable. Based on ouritaldfinancial statements as well as relevant ntaaike sharehold
data, we believe that we were not treated as a R¥1O.S. federal income tax purposeih respect to our 2009 taxable year. In additiomsed on our audited financ
statements and current expectations regardingdhee\and nature of our assets, the sources anceratwur income, and relevant market and sharehnaldta, we do n
anticipate becoming a PFIC for our 2010 taxabler.yBacause these determinations are based on theeraf our income and assets from time to timel awvolve the
application of complex tax rules, no assurancesbeaprovided that we will not be considered a PielGhe current (or any past or future) tax year.
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Based on existing guidance, it is not entirely clehether dividends received with respect to tredgared shares (to the extent not represented HysAWill be treated
qualified dividend income, because the preferredeshare not themselves listed on a U.S. excham@eldition, the U.S. Treasury Department has anoed its intention 1
promulgate rules pursuant to which holders of ABBpreferred stock and intermediaries through wisach securities are held will be permitted to miycertifications fror
issuers to establish that dividends are treategbiabfied dividends. Because such procedures havget been issued, we are not certain that webeilable to comply wi
them. U.S. Holders of ADSs and preferred sharesildhoonsult their own tax advisors regarding thailability of the reduced dividend tax rate in tight of their owr
particular circumstance

Dividends paid by us generally will constitute figire source “passive categoryicome and will be subject to various other limdas for U.S. foreign tax credit purpos
Subject to generally applicable limitations unde§ Ufederal income tax law, Brazilian income tayased or withheld on such dividends, if any, wél toeated as a forei
income tax eligible for credit against a U.S. holsld).S. federal income tax liability (or at a Ul&lder's election if it does not elect to claim a foretgm credit for an
foreign income taxes paid during the taxable yakuforeign income taxes paid may instead be dedlict computing such U.S. holdgertaxable income). In general, spe
rules will apply to the calculation of foreign tasedits in respect of dividend income that is sabje preferential rates of U.S. federal income tax

U.S. holders should be aware that the IRS has sg@deconcern that parties to whom ADSs are releasgdbe taking actions that are inconsistent withdlaiming ¢
foreign tax credits by U.S. holders of ADSs. Acdngly, the discussion above regarding the creditglof Brazilian income tax on dividends could b#ected by futur
actions that may be taken by the IRS. The ruleb v@spect to the U.S. foreign tax credit are compm@d U.S. holders of preferred shares or ADSaieged to consult the
own tax advisors regarding the availability of theeign tax credit under their particular circunmstes.

Taxation of Capital Gains
Deposits and withdrawals of preferred shares by bbo&lers in exchange for ADSs will not resulttie trealization of gain or loss for U.S. federalbime tax purposes.

In general, gain or loss, if any, realized by a.l&der upon a sale, exchange or other taxabfgosigon of preferred shares or ADSs will be subjecU.S. feder:
income taxation as capital gain or loss in an arh@gqual to the difference between the amount redlian the sale, exchange or other taxable disppsénd suc
U.S. holder’s adjusted tax basis in the preferfeatess or ADSs. Such capital gain or loss will begkeerm capital gain or loss if at the time of sabkgtenge or other taxal
disposition the preferred shares or ADSs have beéhfor more than one year. Under current U.Serfgdincome tax law, net lortgrm capital gain of certain U.S. hold
(including individuals) is eligible for taxation pteferential rates. The deductibility of capl@ses is subject to certain limitations underGoele.

Gain, if any, realized by a U.S. holder on the salkehange or other taxable disposition of pretesiares or ADSs generally will be treated as Bb8rce gain fc
U.S. foreign tax credit purposes. Consequentlg, Brazilian income tax is imposed on the sale spasition of preferred shares, a U.S. holder tbasdot receive sufficie
foreign source income from other sources may noalide to derive effective U.S. foreign tax credénbfits in respect of such Brazilian income taxteAlatively,
U.S. holder may take a deduction for all foreigooime taxes paid during the taxable year if it doatselect to claim a foreign tax credit for anydign taxes paid or accri
during the taxable year. U.S. holders should carteeir own tax advisors regarding the applicatidrthe foreign tax credit rules to their investméntand disposition ¢
preferred shares or AD!
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Passive Foreign Investment Company Rules

Based upon our current and projected income, aasetsictivities, we do not expect the preferredeshar ADSs to be considered shares of a PFICUbcurrent fisce
year or for future fiscal years. However, becabsedetermination of whether the preferred sharesD8s constitute shares of a PFIC will be basedhuhe composition
our income, assets and the nature of our busiasssell as the income, assets and business agstititwhich we hold at least a 25% interest, ftome to time, and becat
there are uncertainties in the application of #levant rules, there can be no assurance thatdiferyed shares or ADSs will not be consideredeshaf a PFIC for any fisc
year. If the preferred shares or ADSs were shafes BFIC for any fiscal year, U.S. holders (inchglicertain indirect U.S. holders) may be subjectdverse te
consequences, including the possible impositioanoihterest charge on gains or “excess distribatiafiocable to prior years in the U.S. holden'olding period during whit
we were determined to be a PFIC. If we are deemdskta PFIC for a taxable year, dividends on oefepred shares or ADSs would not be “qualified di&vid income”
eligible for preferential rates of U.S. federaldnee taxation. U.S. holders should consult their eanadvisors regarding the application of the PRies to the preferr
shares or ADSs.

U.S. Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

A U.S. holder of preferred shares or ADSs may, uregetain circumstances, be subject to informat&porting and backup withholding with respect ta@e payment
to such U.S. holder, such as dividends paid byocoumnpany or the proceeds of a sale of preferredeshar ADSs, unless such U.S. holder (i) is an exeegpient an
demonstrates this fact when so required, or (ithencase of backup withholding, provides a cort@gpbayer identification number, certifies thasia U.S. person and that i
not subject to backup withholding, and otherwisenplies with applicable requirements of the backufhholding rules. Backup withholding is not an adutial tax. An)
amount withheld under these rules will be credéagainst a U.S. holder’s U.S. federal incomeitbility, provided the requisite information is taty furnished to the IRS.

Recently enacted legislation requires certain bdklers to report information with respect to thewestment in certain “foreign financial assets$t held through
custodial account with a U.S. financial institutimnthe IRS. U.S. holders who fail to report reqdiinformation could become subject to substapgaklties. U.S. holders
encouraged to consult with their own tax advisegarding the possible implications of this newdégion on their investment.

10F. Dividends and Paying Agents

Not applicable.

10G. Statement by Experts

Not applicable.

10H. Documents on Display

We are subject to the information requirementhef$ecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendedypnt to which we file reports and other informatwaith the SEC
Reports and other information filed by us with 8EC may be inspected and copied at the publicaederfacilities maintained by the SEC at Room 1380, F Street N.E
Washington, D.C. 20549, and at the CommissidRégional Offices at 233 Broadway, New York, Newrkf 10279 and Northwestern Atrium Center, 500 Wiatlisor
Street, Suite 1400, Chicago, IL 6068311. Copies of such material can also be obtaitgmescribed rates by writing to the Public RefeseSection of the SEC at 10
Street N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. You may afspéct these reports and other information at tfiees of the New York Stock Exchange Inc., 120 &tStreet, Ne
York, New York 10005, on which our ADSs are listed.

We also file financial statements and other pedadports with the CVM, including theormulario de Referéncia accordance with CVM Instruction No. 480/09, i
can be accessed through www.cvm.gov.br. Informdtimm that website is not incorporated by refereinée this document.
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Copies of our annual reports on Form 20-F and decusnreferred to in this annual report and outawys will be available for inspection upon requasbur headquarte
at: Avenida Brigadeiro Luiz Anténio, no. 3,142, CBEP402-901, S&o Paulo, SP, Brazil.

10l. Subsidiary Information

Not required.
ITEM 11. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK
Market Risk

We are exposed to market risks from changes ingioreurrency and interest rates. Market risk isgbeential loss arising from adverse changes irketaates, such
foreign currency exchange rates and interest r&@s.note 18 to our financial statements includatlis annual report for additional information aeding derivative financi
instruments and our foreign exchange and inteagstrisk.

Since late 1999, we have adopted a treasury pdisygned to manage financial market risk, prinéyphy swapping a substantial part of our U.S. delanominate
liabilities to obligations denominated irais We engage in cross-currency interest rate swag@sruvhich we enter into an agreement typicallyhvifte same countgarty
which provides the original U.S. dolldenominated financing. A separate financial insgntris signed at the time the loan agreement iswwtomated, under which 1
effectively are then liable for amountsrigmis and interest at a percentage of the CDI rate. Antsoare normally consummated with the same findits#itutions and for tr
same maturity periods. See “Item 5B. Liquidity @apital Resources.”

We use derivative financial instruments, usuallyssrcurrency interest rate swaps, to mitigate ¢&ksed by fluctuating currency and interest ralés.enter into cross-
currency interest rate swaps to protect foreigmenay exposure. Decisions regarding swap contezetsnade on a case-bgise basis, taking into consideration the an
and duration of the exposure, market volatilityd aconomic trends. We realized and unrealized gaislosses on these contracts which are includédnw/ financia
income” and “financial expense,” respectively.

We use interest rate swap agreements to manageshtmsts and risks associated with changing.rates differential to be paid or received is acdras interest rat
change and is recognized in interest expense bedif¢ of the agreements.

We have a policy of entering into contracts onlytmparties that have high credit ratings. The ceuparties to these contracts are major financialtingins. We do nc
anticipate a credit loss from counter-party faparformance.

Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to interest rate volatility withareto our cash and cash equivalents, fixed aratifig rate debt. For cash and cash equivalentgemerally swap tt
fixed interest rate for a floating rate, the CDieralhe interest rate in our cash and cash equitsatienominated ireais is based on the CDI rate, the benchmark inteete
set by the interbank market on a daily basis.

We are exposed to interest rate volatility witharebto future issuances of fixed rate debt, foreigrrency fluctuations and existing issuancesx#dirate debt, forei(
currency fluctuations and existing issuances ofatde rate debt. We manage our debt portfolio ispomse to changes in interest rates and foreigrermy rates k
periodically retiring, redeeming and repurchasirtd and using derivative financial instruments. ok other facilities, we also use bank loans to tnoee financin
requirements, originally denominated in U.S. dalland swapped to obligationsramis accruing interest based on the CDI rate.

The table below provides information about our Bigant interest ratesensitive instruments. For variable interest ratet dthe rate presented is the weighted averag
calculated as of December 31, 2010. See notesd.I&to our financial statements included in thewal report.
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As of December 31, 201

Expected Maturity Date

Fair Annual Average
2011 201z 2012 201< 201¢ Thereafter Total Value Interest Rate
(millions of reais)
Assets
Cash and banks reais 417.¢ - - - - - 417.¢ 417.¢
Cash equivalents denominatecreais 3,400.4 - - - - - 3,400.4 3,400.4 98.7% of CDI
Total cash and cash equivalents 3,818.0 - - - - - 3,818.0 3,818.0
Marketable securities reais 608.( 608.( 608.( 100.9% of CD
608.( 608.( 608.(
Liabilities:
Loans and financing Floating rate, denominated $hddllars.. 457.% 81.¢ 444.¢ 27.€ 27.1 98.2 1,137 1,137 102.8%
Floating rate, denominated reais - 1,096.: 1,184 - - - 2,280.! 2,280.! 106.4% of CD
Floating rate, denominated reais 1,847.C 128.¢ 698.7 43.C 43t 154.5 2,915." 2,915." 11.0%
Floating rate, denominated reais 80.¢ 119.C 74.C 65.C 65.C 59.C 462.¢ 469.¢ 4% over TJLI
Floating rate, denominated reais 713 374 15.8 8.9 1.2 50.0 184.6 184.6 108% of CDI
Total loans and financin 2,456.8 1,462.7 2,417.7 1448 137.4 361.8 6,981.2 6,987.9
Debenture:
Floating rate, denominated reais 520.7 251.8 259.9 555.8 - - 1,588.2 1,580.3 0.5% over CDI

(1) We entered into cross-currency interest sataps in the same amount to mitigate our exposuegchange rate variations.

Based on a basket of foreign currencies to reB&DES’s funding portfolio, the annual TILP, whichmodified quarterly, was as follows:

Three months ended March 31, 201

200¢ 200¢ 201( 2011

IGP-M(1) 9.8% “1.5% 11.3% 2.4%
CDI (2) 12.4% 9.9% 9.8% 10.4%
TR (3) 1.6% 0.7% 0.7% 0.7%

(1) indice Geral de Pregos — MercadGeneral Price Index) compiled by the Fundacadil@evargas.
(2) Certificado de Dep6sito Interbancaritnterbank Variable Interest Rate), annualized edtthe end of each period.

(3) Taxa ReferenciglReference Rate)

We have not experienced, and we do not expectgeregnce, difficulty obtaining financing or refinging existing debt. See “Iltem 5B. Liquidity and @apResources”
for a discussion of our credit agreements.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

We are exposed to fluctuations in foreign currecagh flows related to certain short-term and ltarga debt payments. We are principally exposeduidations of th
exchange rate with the U.S. dollar. Additionallgrtain lines of credit agreements entered into BINDES are subject to indexation based on a badldereign currencies
reflect BNDES's funding portfolio.

Since January 1, 2005 and through December 31, 204Q@.S. dollar depreciated by 37.5% againsteélg and as of December 31, 2010, the commercakenrate fc
purchasing U.S. dollars was R$1.66 to U.S.$ 1.6Ghé first quarter of 2011, ttreal appreciated 1.8% against the U.S. dollar, and adasth 31, 2011, the commerc
market rate for purchasing U.S. dollars was R$10683.S.$1.00.

Our foreign currency exposure gives rise to marigis associated with exchange rate movements stghi@ U.S. dollar. Foreign currendgnominated liabilities as
December 31, 2010 included debt denominated mainly.S. dollars. Our net foreign currency expos{UeS. dollar-denominated debt less our crogsency interest ra
swaps in our U.S. dollatenominated debt) was R$8.3 million as of DecerBtier2010 compared to R$2.9 million as of DecemhlerZ909. Our net foreign currer
exposure is represented by the debt due to impamding. Our cross-currency interest rate swapsafig protect our exposure arising from our Udsllar-denominated debt.
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The table below provides information on our delistanding as of December 31, 2010.

Expected Maturity Date
2011 201z 2012 201¢ 201t Thereafter Total Fair Value
(millions of reais)

Loans and financing

US dollars (*) 457.% 81.¢ 444.¢ 27.€ 27.1 98.% 1,137 1,137t
reais 1,999.5 1,380.9 1,972.9 117.2 109.7 263.5 5,843.7 5,857.2
Total loans and financing 2,456.8 1,462.7 2,417.7 144.8 137.4 361.8 6,981.2 6,994.7
Debentures
reais 520.7 251.8 259.9 555.8 - - 1,588.2 1,580.3
Total Debentures 520.7 251.8 259.9 555.8 - 723.6 1,588.2 1,580.3

(*) Originally US dollar-denominated and swappedDI.

Our utilization of derivative financial instrumerisssubstantially limited to the use of crassrency interest rate swap contracts to mitigateifin currency risks. Forei
currency swap contracts allow us to swap fixed tht& dollar-denominated short-term and long-teghtdor Brazilian reaienominated floating rate debt, based on the
rate variation. See notes 17 and 18 to our finarstEtements included in this annual report. AsDecember 31, 2010, the originally U.S. dokEmmominated debt
R$1,137.8 million and R$800.8 million as of Decem®&, 2009, which were covered by floating rate gsvimreais, based on the CDI rate, has been treated on aicec
basis as if these loans had been originally denat@éhinreais and accrued CDI. In addition, the swap agreensmtsot provide for collateral.

The table below provides information about our srosrrency interest rate swaps:

Expected Maturity Date

Fair Value of Average Average

(Assets) Paying Rate in Receiving
2011 201z 201: 201< 201¢ There- after Total Liabilities reais Rate
Cross currency and interest rate swap
contracts notional amot
105.6% over 4.2% over U.S.
US dollars tcreais 365.2 67.¢ 567.€ - - - 1,000. (106.9 CDI dollar

ITEM 12. DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES OTHER THAN EQUITY SECURIT IES
12D. American Depositary Shares
In the United States, our preferred shares tradeeifiorm of ADS. The ADSs commenced trading onNN&E on May 29, 1997.

We do not treat ADR holders as our shareholdersA@id holders have no shareholder rights. Brazileam governs shareholder rights. The depositarigésholder of th
preferred shares underlying the ADSs. Holders oR&Mave ADR holder righ

Fees and Expenses

The depositary collects its fees for delivery andender of ADSs directly from investors depositsigres or surrendering ADSs for the purpose didsétwal or fror
intermediaries acting for them. The depositaryemififees for making distributions to investors by deihgthose fees from the amounts distributed oséiling a portion ¢
distributable property to pay the fees. The depogitnay collect its annual fee for depositary smwiby deductions from cash distributions or bgdatly billing investors ¢

by charging the book-entry system accounts of gipethts acting for them. The depositary may geherafuse to provide feattracting services until its fees for th
services are paid.
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Persons depositing or withdrawing shares must pa For:
US$5.00 (or less) per 100 ADSs (or portion of 1(0Ss) . Issuance of ADSs, including issuances resultingnfra distribution o
shares or rights or other property
¢ Cancellation of ADSs for the purpose of withdrawatluding if the deposit
agreement terminai
US$.02 (or less) per ADS *  Any cash distribution to ADS registered Holc
A fee equivalent to the fee that would be payatdecurities distributed to you had «  Distribution of securities distributed to holdefsdeposited securities whigh
been shares and the shares had been depositedifance of ADSs are distributed by the depositary to ADS registérelder:
Registration or transfer fees «  Transfer and registration of shares on our shayistes to or from the name
of the depositary or its agent when you depositittdraw share
Expenses of the depositary . Cable, telex and facsimile transmissions (when esgly provided in the
deposit agreement)
*  Converting foreign currency to U.S. doll
Taxes and other governmental charges the depositahe custodian have topaydn «  As necessary
any ADS or share underlying an ADS, for exampleglstransfer taxes, stamp duty
or withholding taxe
Any charges incurred by the depositary or its agémtservicing the deposited +  Asnecessary
securitie
Fees Incurred Since January 1, 2010
From January 1, 2010 until December 31, 2010, thmgany received from the depositary US8,B37.94, for continuing annual stock exchangéntistees

standard out-opocket maintenance costs for the ADRs (consistimgimbursement of the expenses of postage andapesfor mailing annual and interim financial res
printing and distributing dividend checks, electoofiling of U.S. Federal tax information, mailimgquired tax forms, stationery, postage, facsingte] telephone calls), &
applicable performance indicators relating to tligRAfacility, underwriting fees and legal fees.

Fees to be Paid in the Future

The Bank of New York Mellon, as depositary, hasagrto reimburse the Company for expenses they thatiare related to establishment and maintenexjgenses
the ADS program. The depositary has agreed to nagisethe Company for its continuing annual stoatharge listing fees. The depositary has also ageepdy the standa
out-ofpocket maintenance costs for the ADRs, which corafishe expenses of postage and envelopes foringadinnual and interim financial reports, printingc
distributing dividend checks, electronic filing UfS. Federal tax information, mailing required faxns, stationery, postage, facsimile, and telephealls. It has also agre
to reimburse the Company annually for certain itmerelationship programs or special investor fetet promotional activities. In certain instandib® depositary has agre
to provide additional payments to the Company basedny applicable performance indicators relatmghe ADR facility. There are limits on the amouwfitexpenses fi
which the depositary will reimburse the Companyt tie amount of reimbursement available to the Gamgpis not necessarily tied to the amount of féesdepositat
collects from investors.
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PART Il

ITEM 13. DEFAULTS, DIVIDEND ARREARAGES AND DELINQUENCIES
No matters to report.

ITEM 14. MATERIAL MODIFICATIONS TO THE RIGHTS OF SECURITY HO LDERS AND USE OF PROCEEDS
None.

ITEM 15. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedurgnagement, with the participation of our ChiekEutive Officer and our Chief Financial Officertaafevaluating tr
effectiveness of our “disclosure controls and pdaees” (as defined in the Securities Exchange Adt984 under Rules 13a-15(e) and 15i(e) as required by paragraph
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rules 13a1155d45) as of the end of the period covered by thisuahreport, has concluded that, as of Decembe@10, ou
disclosure controls and procedures were effectiverovide reasonable assurance that informationined) to be disclosed by us in the reports wedilesubmit under tt
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarizedegrudted, within the time periods specified in @@mmissions rules and forms, and is accumulated and commiga
to management, including our Chief Executive Offiaad Chief Financial Officer, to allow timely dsitins regarding required disclosure. A control @ystno matter ho
well designed and operated, can provide only resdlennot absolute, assurance that the contradsystobjectives will be met. Therefore, our managendeets not expe
that the controls will prevent all errors and aiuds.

Management’'s Report on Internal Control over Finahdeporting Our management is responsible for establishird) raaintaining adequate internal control ¢
financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f 45d45(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934r @ternal control over financial reporting is dgsed to provid
reasonable assurance to our management and bodietatbrs regarding the reliability of financi@porting and of financial statements for externajppses in accordar
with generally accepted accounting principles.

All internal control systems, no matter how welkigmed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, etr@se systems determined to be effective may retent or dete
misstatements and can provide only reasonableas=iwith respect to financial statement preparatiad presentation.

Our management assessed the effectiveness of eanah control over financial reporting as of Det®m31, 2010. In making this assessment, manageusext th
criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring@izations of the Treadway Commission (COSOhterhal Control-+ntegrated Framework. Based on this assess
management believes that, as of December 31, 2Qt0nternal control over financial reporting iSesftive based on those criteria. For our managemegytort on intern
control over financial reporting, see page F-1hig annual report.

The effectiveness of internal controls over finaheeporting as of December 31, 2010 has beenaldy Ernst & Young Terco Auditores Independentes., She
independent registered public accounting firm wiso audited our consolidated financial statemexgstated in their report appearing on page FtBisfannual report.
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ITEM 16. [RESERVED]
16A. Audit Committee Financial Expert

Our board of directors has determined that we dappoint an audit committee financial expert (efireed under the rules and regulations of the SE .believe th:
the combined knowledge, skills and experience efrtiembers of our fiscal council enable them, amap to act effectively in the fulfillment of thefasks. In addition, tt
members of our fiscal council have the power anthaity to engage outside experts as they deemoapipte to provide them with advice on matters teglato thei
responsibilities.

16B. Code of Ethics

In 2000, our board of directors adopted a codetlite for our directors, officers and employeeg]uding our chief executive officer and chief fircdal officer ant
controller. The code of ethics is available at mabsite www.gpai.com.br. We intend to make publicly available this website any amendments to our code of e
Information from that website is not incorporatedrbference into this document.

16C. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
Ernst & Young Terco Auditores Independentes actedua independent registered public accounting fonthe fiscal year ended December 31, 2009 ad® Z0he cha

below sets forth the total amount billed to us bgdE & Young Terco Auditores Independentes for me performed in 2009 and 2008, and a breakdowhese amounts
category of service:

200¢ 201C

(millions of reaig)(1)
Audit Fees 7.1 4.¢
Audit-Related Fee 0.4 0.c
Total 7.5 5.8

(1) Fees including out-of-pocket expenses.
Audit Fees

Audit fees are fees billed for the audit of our aainfinancial statements and for the reviews of quarterly financial statements in connection wdthtutory an
regulatory filings or engagements.

Audit-Related Fees

Audit-related fees were comprised of assurance and dedatwices that are related to the performancéefaudit or review of the financial statements|uding du¢
diligence related to mergers and acquisitions, taimdconnection with acquisitions, internal contreliews, attest services that are not requiredtayute or regulatio
consultations concerning financial accounting apbrting standards and tax compliance review.

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

The Fiscal Council approves all audit, augitated, tax and other services provided by Erndtoging Terco Auditores Independentes. Any servimesided by Ernst «
Young Terco Auditores Independentes that are netipally included within the scope of the audiush be preapproved by the fiscal council prior to any engagetTh¢
fiscal council is permitted to approve certain fé@saudit-related services, tax services and ofleevices pursuant tode minimisexception before the completion of
engagement. In 2010, none of the fees paid to Brivaiung Terco Auditores Independentes were appiguesuant to thde minimisexception.

16D. Exemptions from the Listing Standards for Audit Committees

Under the listed company audit committee ruleshef N'YSE and the SEC, effective July 31, 2005, weswequired to comply with Exchange Act Rule 18Awhict
requires that we either establish an audit commitemposed of members of the board of directorsrteets specified requirements or designate andeempour fisce
council to perform the role of the audit committeeeliance on the exemption set forth in ExchaAgeRule 10A3(c)(3). In our assessment, our fiscal councilbite @0 ac
independently in performing the responsibilitiesaafaudit committee under the Sarbanes-Oxley A20D62 and to satisfy the other requirements of Brgle Act Rule 10A-
3. For a further discussion of our fiscal counaitldhe audit committee exemption, see “ltem 6C.rBéaactices — Committees — Fiscal Council and AGdimmittee.”
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16E. Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Afiated Purchasers

The following table shows the results of the sHauwg-back program for the Compasypreferred shares which was completed on ApriR0B9 for a total amount
US$5.6 million.

Total Number of Maximum Number of Shares that
Total Number of Average Price Pait Shares Purchased as Part of Publicly May Yet Be Purchased Under the
Shares Purchased (1) per Share (2) Announced Program (3) Program
January 1-30, 200¢ 177,40( US$15.0i 177,40( Not applicabl
February -27, 200¢ 128,30( US$15.2i 128,30( Not applicabl
March Z-19, 200¢ 63,90( US$15.4. 63,90( Not applicabli
April 1-18, 200¢ - - - Not applicabl

(1) All shares were purchased through a publicigounced program, in open-market transactions®@BM&FBOVESPA and on the NYSE.

(2) For the purposes of this calculation, thechases made on the BM&FBOVESPA were translated frominalreais into U.S. dollars at the commercial selling ratdune 9, 2009 (R$1.9385 to US$ 1.00).

(3) The share buyback program was approved byoard of directors on January 19, 2009, in aceweavith applicable Brazilian legislation. We wenghorized to buy back up to an aggregate of 300@preferre
shares, including those traded in the form of ADRpresenting approximately 2.21% of our outstaggireferred capital as of December 31, 2008. Thgram was terminated on April 18, 2009. A total of
369.600 preferred shares were purchased at angevprize of US$15.21 per share. The shares hetéasury were reduced from 369,600 to 232,586rasdt of the tender offer in connection with tlogaisition
of Globex, see “Item 4A. History and Developmentt® Company — Acquisition of Globex.” We intenduse these shares for subsequent sale and/or legiocelvith no capital decrease.
16F. Change in Registrant’s Certifying Accountant
None.
16G. Corporate Governance

Significant Differences between our Corporate Goverance Practices and NYSE Corporate Governance Staatis

We are subject to the NYSE corporate governantiadistandards. As a foreign private issuer, thadsdrds applicable to us are considerably diffetfeant the standar
applied to U.S. listed companies. Under the NYSEsuwe must disclose any significant differencesMeen our corporate governance practices and tiotlseved by

U.S. companies under NYSE listing standards. AsaziBan company listed on BM&FBOVESPA, we are riegd to comply with the corporate governance stedglae
forth in the Brazilian corporate law, and the rutdé€€VM. The following is a summary of those difeices.

Independence of Directors and Independence Tests

The NYSE rules require that a majority of the boamast consist of independent directors. Indeperel&defined by various criteria, including the eixe of a materi
relationship between the director and the listethmany. Brazilian law does not have a similar resmient. Under Brazilian law, neither our board akdiors nor ot
management is required to test the independendeeaftors before their election to the board. Hoereboth the Brazilian corporate law and the CVMeéhastablished rul

that require directors to meet certain qualificatiequirements and that address the compensatiodwties and responsibilities of, as well as theriet&ins applicable to,
company'’s executive officers and directors.
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While our directors meet the qualification requiesrts of the Brazilian corporate law and the CVM,deenot believe that a majority of our directorsulebbe considere
independent under the NYSE test for director indepace. The Brazilian corporate law requires thaitdirectors be elected by our shareholders atargéshareholders’
meeting. Currently our board of directors consistiourteen members elected by our shareholdersisting of five representatives of the Diniz Grpfipe representatives
the Casino Group, and four external directors.

Executive Sessions

NYSE rules require that the nananagement directors must meet at regularly sceddadecutive sessions without management preseatBiiazilian corporate law dc
not have a similar provision. According to the Bliam corporate law, up to orthird of the members of the board of directors barelected from management. There i

requirement that non-management directors meetadguwvithout management. As a result, the aoranagement directors on our board do not typicalyet in executiv
session.

Our board of directors consists of fourteen membésted by our shareholders, all of whom are-nemnagement directors.

Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee

NYSE rules require that listed companies have aimating/corporate governance committee composackgnof independent directors and governed by igtewr charte
addressing the committeetequired purpose and detailing its required nesibdities, which include, among other things,ritiying and selecting qualified board memr
nominees and developing a set of corporate goveengrinciples applicable to the company.

We are not required under applicable Brazilian ocafe law to have, and accordingly we do not hawépminating Committee and a Corporate Governamserniittee.
People Management Policies Committee

NYSE rules require that listed companies have apemsation committee composed entirely of independieactors and governed by a written charter asking th:
committee’s required purpose and detailing its ireguresponsibilities, which include, among oth@ngs, reviewing corporate goals relevant to thefakxecutive officer
compensation, evaluating the chief executive officeerformance, approving the chief executive cgffis compensation levels and recommending to tdadononehiet

executive officer compensation, incentre®@mpensation and equity-based plans.

We are not required under applicable Brazilian tavihave a compensation committee. Under the Baazibrporate law, the total amount available fanpensation ¢
our directors and executive officers and for prafitaring payments to our executive officers is distadd by our shareholders at the annual generetinge The board «

directors is then responsible for determining tidiviidual compensation and profibaring of each executive officer, as well as timpensation of our board and commi
members. In making such determinations, the baaridws the performance of the executive officarsluding the performance of our chief executiveceif, who typicall
excuses himself from discussions regarding hisoperdnce and compensation.

We do, however, have a Human Resources and Contmn&€ommittee, which, among other assignmentserey management compensation. For further infoion
on our Human Resources and Compensation Comnsged|tem 6C. Board Practices — Committees — HuR@sources and Compensation Committee.”

Audit Committee and Audit Committee Additional Reécgments

NYSE rules require that listed companies have alitawommittee that (i) is composed of a minimumtlofee independent directors who are all financiitsrate
(i) meets the SEC rules regarding audit committieedisted companies, (iii) has at least one membleo has accounting or financial management eigeeeind (iv) i
governed by a written charter addressing the coteei# required purpose and detailing its requiegponsibilitiesHowever, as a foreign private issuer, we need tw
comply with the requirement that the audit commeitteeet the SEC rules regarding audit committeedisied companies to the extent compatible withzBien corporat
law.
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The Brazilian corporate law requires companiesaeeha permanent or non permanent Fiscal Counciposad of three to five members who are electetleagéner:
shareholders’ meeting. If a n@ermanent Fiscal Council is established, meetifigsich Fiscal Council shall be convened upon regpieshareholders representing a ce
percentage of the share capital of the compange@forth in the Brazilian corporate law. The Fis€auncil operates independently from managemedtfamm a compar’s
external auditors. Its main function is to monitbe activities of management, examine the finansiatements of each fiscal year and provide a forewort to ou
shareholders.

We have a permanent Fiscal Council that consistarek members and three alternates and whichrdasaoy meetings at least every three months. ¢leroto compl
with the exemption requirements that allow our &ig€ouncil to act as an audit committee pursuar8EE rules, our board of directors approved thegslon to the Fisc
Council of certain additional responsibilities ahe Fiscal Council and the board of directors agd@tn additional charter that delegates to theaFSouncil the duties al
responsibilities of a U.S audit committee to théeak permitted under Brazilian corporate law. RotHer information on our Fiscal Council, see “Ité@. Board Practices —
Committees — Fiscal Council and Audit Committee.”

Shareholder Approval of Equity Compensation Plans

NYSE rules require that shareholders be given gippunity to vote on all equity compensation plansl material revisions thereto, with limited exto@ps. Under th
Brazilian corporate law, shareholders must apprlVetock option plans. In addition, any issuanfe@wv shares that exceeds our authorized shar¢at@pisubject t
shareholder approval.

Our board of directors is responsible for votingtbe issuance of new equity in connection with existing stock option plans, provided that the fiofi our authorize
capital is respected. However, any issuance ofstewes that exceeds such authorized capital iscitbj shareholder approval.

Corporate Governance Guidelines

Under NYSE listing standards, a listed U.S. companst adopt and disclose corporate governance lneédethat cover certain minimum specified subjed¥e hav
adopted and observed corporate governance guidetiraccordance with Brazilian legislation, incluglia disclosure policy which requires, among othigs, the disclosu
of our corporate governance guidelines, mater@kfand annual Financial Reports. In addition, esechadopted and observed a policy on business cbadd ethics.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

NYSE rules require that listed companies adoptdiscose a code of business conduct and ethiadifectors, officers and employees, and promptlgldige any waive
of the code for directors or executive officers phgable Brazilian law does not have a similar iegment.

Although we were not required to adopt a code loicet we implemented a code of ethics in 2000 galee our employes’conduct with us and our customers, supp
competitors and the public at large. In order tmply with the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley aw NYSE rules, we implemented rules applicableur managers’
conduct in connection with the registration andtoarof financial and accounting information aneithaccess to privileged and npoblic information and data in 2005. |
more information about our code of ethics, searil6B. Code of Ethics.”

Internal Audit Function

NYSE rules require that listed companies maintairinéernal audit function to provide management thedfiscal council / audit committee with ongoiassessments
the company’s risk management processes and systarternal control. Our inteal audit department and our internal control depant are responsible for our complia
with the requirements of Section 404 of the U.Sb&aes Oxley Act of 2002 regarding internal contreér financial reporting. The internal audit dep@ent reports to o
Board of Directors and Fiscal Council / Audit Conttext and our internal control department reportsutochief financial officer.
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Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002

We maintain controls and procedures designed tarerthat we are able to collect the informationase required to disclose in the reports we filehtite SEC, and
process, summarize and disclose this informatidghimthe time periods specified in the rules of 8#C. We have filed the relevant officer certifioas under Section 404
the U.S. Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002 regarding iratecontrols over financial reporting as Exhibissfland 12.2 to this annual report.
PART Il
ITEM 17. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have responded to Item 18 in lieu of respontbrtiis item.
ITEM 18. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements, together thi¢ Reports of Independent Registered Public Awetiag Firms, are filed as part of this annual répo

ITEM 19. EXHIBITS

Exhibit Number Description
11 English translation of oUEstatuto Sociajby-laws), as amended.
2.(a) Form of Amended Deposit Agreement, among us, ThekB&rNew York Mellon, as depositary, and each Owaed Beneficial Owner from time to time of AC

issued thereunder, including the form of Americapsitary Receip&)

4.(b)(1) Joint Venture Agreement dated as of May 3, 2005reym&bilio dos Santos Diniz, Ana Maria Falleiros ddantos Diniz DAvila, Adriana Falleiros dos Santos Dir
Jodo Paulo Falleiros dos Santos Diniz, Pedro Fzalleiros dos Santos Diniz, Peninsula Participatéés., Casino Guichard Perrachon S.A., and Compdhtaisileir:

de Distribuigéqz)

4.(b)(2) Private Instrument of Institution of Usufruct dates of July 8, 2005 among Vieri Participacdes SCasino Guichard Perrachon, Segisor, Abilio dos &abiniz, Ani
Maria Falleiros dos Santos Diniz Aila, Adriana Falleiros dos Santos Diniz, Jodo|Bdalleiros dos Santos Diniz, Pedro Paulo Falieitos Santos Diniz, Penins

Participacdes Ltda. and Companhia Brasileira deibis'gﬁo(z)

4.(b)@3) Technical Assistance Agreement dated as of JUW85 by and between us and Casino Guichard Perr%hon
4.(b)(4) Real Estate Structure Agreement dated as of Oc&2805 by and between us, Zabaleta ParticipaedesRio Plate Empreendimentos e Participagées(kfda.
4.(b)(5) First Amendment to the Real Estate Structure Agre¢mated as of December 30, 2005 by and betweehAabsleta Participages, and Rio Plate Empreendane

Participacdes Ltd@.)

4.(b)(6) Wilkes' ShareholdersAgreement dated as of November 27, 2006 among $udaxicipagdes S.A., Segisor, Abilio dos SantasDiAna Maria Falleiros dos San
Diniz D’'Avila, Adriana Falleiros dos Santos Diniinédo Paulo Falleiros dos Santos Diniz, Pedro Fealleiros dos Santos Diniz, and Peninsula Partidips. Ltda(s)

4.(b)(7) Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo Shareholdagreement dated as of December 20, 2006 among ¥Viteeticipacdes S.A., Segisor, Abilio dos SantaszZDiAn:
Maria Falleiros dos Santos Diniz Mila, Adriana Falleiros dos Santos Diniz, Jo&o |IPdtalleiros dos Santos Diniz, Pedro Paulo Falteidos Santos Diniz, a

Peninsula Participacdes Ltg?.

4.(b)(8) Conditional Put Option Agreement dated as of Novar@@e 2006 by and between Abilio dos Santos DiAiza Maria Falleiros dos Santos DinizAVila, Adriane
Falleiros dos Santos Diniz, Jodo Paulo Falleiras $antos Diniz, Pedro Paulo Falleiros dos Santoi [Reninsula Participagdes Ltda., AD Peninsularéendimentc

e Participagdes Ltda. and Casino Guichard PerraSh®nand Segis%)

4.(b)(9) Operational and Administrative Management Servikg®ement dated as of June 27, ZP)QZ.

4.(b)(10) First Amendment to Operational and Administrativertdgement Services Agreement, dated as of Decet@b2007,) ,

4.(b)(11) Second Amendment to Operational and Administratlemagement Services Agreement, dated as of OcI0#808) ,

4.(b)(12) Third Amendment to Operational and Administrativarigement Services Agreement, dated as of Dec@th2009;,
ShareholdersAgreement dated as of July 1, 2010 among CompanhisilBira de Distribuicdo, Samuel Klein, Michael ileEva Lea Klein, Globex Utilidades S.A. as

4.(b)(13) intervening party, Casa Bahia Comercial Ltda. and ¥¥ilRarticipacées S.A.

6.1 See note 4(q) to our financial statements for mf@ion explaining how earnings per share infornmati@s calculategd.

8.1 List of Subsidiaries. See note 3(a) to our finahstatements for information regarding our sulasids,

121 Section 302 Cetrtification of the Chief Executive @éiii

12.2 Section 302 Certification of the Administrative Firéal Officeri

131 Section 906 Certification of the Chief Executive @éiii

132 Section 906 Certification of the Administrative Firéal Officeri

15.(a)(1)
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Proposal Letter from Gama 2 SPE Empreendimenta@steipacdes S/A to Companhia Brasileira de DistgBai dated June 27,2011.

Incorporated herein by reference to our registresimtement on Form-6 (No. 33:-145679)

Incorporated herein by reference to our annualrtepoForm 2-F filed on September 15, 20

Incorporated herein by reference to o-K filed on August 1, 200

Incorporated herein by reference to our annualrtepoForm 2-F filed on June 27, 20C

Incorporated herein by reference to our annualrtepoForm 2-F filed on June 28, 20C

Incorporated herein by reference to our annualrtepoForm 2-F filed on June 23, 20C

Incorporated herein by reference to amendmentolit@nnual report on Form -F filed on March 31, 201

Filed herewitt

Confidential treatment has been requested and grémtg@ortions of this exhibit and submitted sepelsato the Securities and Exchange Commis
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SIGNATURES
The registrant hereby certifies that it meets fithe requirements for filing on Form 20-F and baty caused and authorized the undersigned to
sign this Annual Report on its behalf.
COMPANHIA BRASILEIRA DE DISTRIBUICAO
By: /s/ Enéas César Pestana Neto
Name: Enéas César Pestana Neto
Title: Chief Executive Officer
By: /s/ José Antonio de Almeida Filippo

Name: José Antdnio de Almeida Filippo
Title: Chief Financial Officer

Dated: July 1, 2011

Consolidated Financial Statements

Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicao

December 31, 2010 and 2009
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Management 's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporti ng

The management of Companhia Brasileira de Distribui¢éo is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting for the Company.

The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
The Company'’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Therefore, even those
systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation.

Our conclusion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting did not include the internal controls of Nova Casa Bahia S.A., which
is included in the 2010 consolidated statements of financial position of Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo and subsidiaries and constituted R$
2,916,499 thousand, R$ (34,416) thousand and R$ 5,300,180 thousand of revenues net losses and assets, respectively, as of December 31,
2010.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010 based on the criteria
set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control—Integrated Framework.
Management's assessment included documenting, evaluating and testing of the design and operating effectiveness of its internal control over
financial reporting. Based on that assessment, management believes that, as of December 31, 2010, the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting is effective based on those criteria.

The effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010 has been audited by Ernst & Young Terco Auditores
Independentes S.S., the independent registered public accounting firm who also audited the Company’s consolidated financial statements. Ernst
& Young Terco’s attestation report on the Company'’s internal controls over financial reporting is included herein.

s/ Enéas César Pestana Neto. s/ José Antonio de Almeida Filippo
Enéas César Pestana Neto José Antonio de Almeida Filippo
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Date: June 30, 2011 |

http://lwww.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1038572/@¥2B1411001900/cbdform20f2010.} 1/7/201:



cbdform20f2010.htn- Generated by SEC Publisher for SEC F Pagell7 of 254

Table of Contents

Report of independent registered public accounting firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of

Companhia Brasileira de Distribui¢céo and subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, shareholders'
equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2010. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
did not audit the financial statements of Globex Utilidades S.A., a consolidated entity as from on July 1, 2009, which statements reflect total
assets of R$ 2,462,577 thousand as of December 31, 2009 and total revenues of R$ 2,427,324 thousand for the period from July 1 to December
31, 2009. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the
amounts included for Globex Utilidades S.A., is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of other auditors the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010 and
2009, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2010, in
conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards - IFRS, issued by the International Accounting Standards Board - IASB.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), Companhia
Brasileira de Distribuicdo and subsidiaries' internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010, based on criteria established in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated
June 30, 2011, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

ERNST & YOUNG TERCO

Auditores Independentes S.S.
CRC-25P015199/0-6

Sergio Citeroni
Accountant CRC1SP170652/0-1

Sao Paulo, Brazil
June 30, 2011
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Report of independent registered public accounting firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Companhia Brasileira de Distribui¢cdo and subsidiari es

We have audited Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010, based
on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (the COSO criteria). Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo and subsidiaries’ management is responsible for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the
accompanying annual Management'’s report on internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Companhia
Brasileira de Distribuicdo and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company'’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

As indicated in the accompanying Management’s report on internal control over financial reporting, management’s assessment of and conclusion
on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting did not include the internal controls of Nova Casa Bahia S.A., which is included in
the 2010 consolidated statements of of Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo and subsidiaries as from November 1, 2010 and constituted R$
2,916,499 thousand, R$ (34,416) of revenues and net losses, respectively, for the period from November 1, 2011 to December 31, 2010; and
assets of R$5,300,180 thousand as of , December 31, 2010. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting of Companhia Brasileira de
Distribuicdo and subsidiaries also did not include an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of Nova Casa Bahia S.A.

In our opinion, Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo and subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2010, based on the COSO criteria.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated
statements of financial position of Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income, shareholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2010 and our report dated June 30, 2011 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

ERNST & YOUNG TERCO
Auditores Independentes S.S.
CRC2SP015199/0-6

Sergio Citeroni
Accountant CRC1SP170652/0-1

Sao Paulo, Brazil
June 30, 2011
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Companhia Brasileira de Distribui¢céo

Consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income
Years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008
(In thousands of reais, except earnings per share)

Notes 2010 2009 2008
Gross sales 36,144,368 26,161,597 20,855,674
Taxes on sales (4,052,694) (2,968,839) (2,823,659)
Net sales 32,091,674 23,192,758 18,032,015
Cost of sales (24,241,476) (17,493,806) (13,279,497)
Gross profit 7,850,198 5,698,952 4,752,518
Operating expenses
Selling costs (4,869,462) (3,499,976) (2,857,312)
General and administrative (912,676) (679,581) (590,620)
Depreciation and amortization (440,139) (459,900) (442,714)
Other operating expenses, net 27 (26,016) (77,873) (19,061)
Operating profit 1,601,905 981,622 842,811
Net finance expenses 28 (823,001) (254,475) (331,566)
Equity pickup results 15 34,499 5,412 (486)
Profit before income and social contribution taxes and employees' profit
sharing 813,403 732,559 510,759
Income and social contribution taxes 24 (86,558) (94,015) (147,240)
Profit before employees' profit sharing 726,845 638,544 363,519
Employees’ profit sharing (35,110) (32,505) (22,173)
Net income and comprehensive income 691,735 606,039 341,346
Attributable to equity holders of the parent 722,422 609,431 341,346
Attributable to noncontrolling interest (30,687) (3,392) -
Net income and comprehensive income 691,735 606,039 341,346
Earnings per ordinary share 30
Basic earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent 2.65 2.34 1.39
Diluted earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent 2.65 2.34 1.39
Diluted earnings per share
Earnings per preferred non -voting share 30
Basic earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent 2.92 2.59 1.54
Diluted earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent 2.89 2.50 1.49

See accompanying notes.
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Companhia Brasileira de Distribui¢céo

Consolidated statements of financial position
December 31, 2010 and 2009
(In thousands of reais)

Notes 2010 2009
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7 3,817,994 2,341,927
Marketable securities 8 608,002 -
Trade accounts receivable,net 9 4,047,234 2,475,373
Inventories 11 4,823,768 2,827,463
Recoverable taxes 12 888,355 416,550
Other current 531,012 338,435
Total current assets 14,716,365 8,399,748

Noncurrent assets

Trade receivable 9 611,630 419,191
Recoverable taxes 12 213,506 255,194
Deferred tax assets 24 1,392,509 1,207,712
Related parties 21 176,241 118,650
Financial instruments 16 416,004 -
Restricted deposits for legal proceedings 19 534,389 383,046
Other noncurrent 54,204 19,911
Investments in associates 15 232,540 194,227
Property and equipment, net 13 6,703,595 5,356,601
Intangible assets 14 4,881,765 2,219,773

Total noncurrent assets 15,216,383 10,174,305

Total assets 29,932,748 18,574,053
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Notes 2010 2009
Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities
Trade accounts payable 5,306,349 4,004,395
Loans and financing 17 2,456,829 668,226
Debentures 17 520,675 19,386
Payroll and related charges 595,558 428,188
Taxes and social contribution payable 23 400,508 351,694
Related parties 21 274,291 31,734
Dividends payable 116,287 98,052
Financing related to acquisition of real estate 14,211 14,212
Rent payable 68,226 60,834
Advertisement payable 33,614 32,333
Provision for restructuring - 84,701
Other accounts payables 201,224 5,862
Payable related to acquisition of noncontrolling interest 16 297,484 -
Other current liabilities 531,642 234,108
Total current liabilities 10,816,898 6,033,725
Noncurrent liabilities
Loans and financing 17 4,524,464 2,101,243
Debentures 17 1,067,472 1,481,356
Taxes payable in installments 23 1,376,788 1,205,579
Deferred tax liability 24 1,325,333 208,182
Provision for contingencies 19 697,806 578,343
Payable related to acquisition of noncontrolling interest 16 215,060 154,401
Other non current liabilities 325,157 154,499
Total noncurrent liabilities 9,532,080 5,883,603
Shareholders' equity
Share capital 25 5,579,259 5,374,751
Reserves 25 1,519,330 1,249,469
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 7,098,589 6,624,220
Noncontrolling interest 2,485,181 32,505
Total shareholders' equity 9,583,770 6,656,725
Total shareholders' equity and liabilities 29,932,748 18,574,053

See accompanying notes.
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Companhia Brasileira de Distribui¢céo

Consolidated statements of changes in shareholders’ equity
Years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008
(In thousands of reais)

Capital Reserves re:g:\fli:es
Share Specia}l Other equity Other Granted . Retained atribEu?;ti)tI); to  Noncontrolling
Capital ?(ch’g\:\\l/lg instruments  reserves options Legal Expansion earnings owners of the interest Total
parent

Balances at January 1, 2008 4.149.858 517.331 128.096 - 27.570 133.617 54.842 (112.648) 4.898.666 - 4.898.666
Capitalization of reserves 60.936 - - - - - (54.842) (6.094) - - -
Private subscription of shares 217.861 - - - - - - - 217.861 - 217.861
Stock options exercised 22.070 - - - - - - - 22.070 - 22.070
Recognized granted option - - - - 36.034 - - - 36.034 - 36.034
Net income for the year - - - - - - - 341.346 341.346 - 341.346
Appropriation of net income to legal reserve - - - - - 13.021 - (13.021) - - -
Dividends - - - - - - - (61.756) (61.756) - (61.756)
Balances at December 31, 2008 4.450.725 517.331 128.096 - 63.604 146.638 - 147.827 5.454.221 - 5.454.221
Capitalization of reserves 239.031 (88.780) - - - - - (150.251) - - -
Private subscription of shares 664.362 - - - - - - - 664.362 - 664.362
Stock options exercised 20.633 - - - - - - - 20.633 - 20.633
Paid in capital - Globex - - - 7.360 - - - - 7.360 - 7.360
Treasury shares - - - - - - - (10.908) (10.908) - (10.908)
Recognized granted option - - - - 19.621 - - - 19.621 - 19.621
Agquisition of noncontrolling interest - - - - - - - - - 35.897 35.897
Net income for the year - - - - - - - 609.431 609.431 (3.392) 606.039
Appropriation of net income to legal reserve - - - - - 29.579 379.350 (408.929) - - -
Dividends - - - - - - - (140.500) (140.500) - (140.500)
Balances at December 31, 2009 5.374.751 428.551 128.096 7.360 83.225 176.217 379.350 46.670 6.624.220 32.505 6.656.725
Capitalization of reserves 169.388 (83.908) - - - - - (85.480) - - -
Stock options exercised 35.120 - - - - - - - 35.120 - 35.120
Treasury shares - - - - - - - 4.040 4.040 - 4.040
Recognized granted option - - - - 27.920 - - - 27.920 - 27.920
Aquisition of noncontrolling interest-C.

Bahia - - - - - - - - - 2.483.363 2.483.363
Aquisition of noncontrolling interest-

Sendas - - (128.096) - - - - (229.860) (357.956) - (357.956)
Paid-In capital acquisition NCB - - - - - - - 214.398 214.398 - 214.398
Net income for the year - - - - - - - 722.422 722.422 (30.687) 691.735
Appropriation of net income to reserve - - - - - 36.122 463.253 (499.375) - - -
Dividends - - - - - - - (171.575) (171.575) - (171.575)
Balances at December 31, 2010 5.579.259 344.643 - 7.360 111.145 212.339 842.603 1.240 7.098.589 2.485.181 9.583.770

See accompanying notes.
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Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicéo

Consolidated statements of cash flows
Year ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008
(In thousands of reais)

2010 2009 2008
Cash flow provided by operating activities
Net income for the year 691,735 606,039 341,346
Adjustment to reconcile net income to cash from operating activities
Deferred income tax 34,506 25,934 110,893
Loss on disposal of properties and equipment 81,825 30,156 11,125
Depreciation and amortization 440,139 459,900 442,714
Unrealized financial expenses 249,053 316,718 539,117
Unrealized financial income - 17,928 (39,725)
Equity pickup results (34,499) (5,412) 486
Provision for contingencies 298,406 81,326 115,996
Bargain purchase gain (453,569) - -
Provision for property and equipment write-offs and losses - (7,878) 6,162
Stock option 27,920 19,621 36,034
Decrease (increase) in assets
Trade accounting receivable 733,423 (170,835) (60,566)
Inventories (706,705) (849,380) (36,621)
Recoverable taxes (171,574) 116,392 (77,741)
Related parties (31,536) 28,355 (20,849)
Restricted deposits for legal proceedings (150,314) (99,419) (20,905)
Other 169,740 (62,163) (31,646)
Increase (decrease) in liabilities
Trade payables 245,298 1,052,761 70,239
Payroll and related charges (146,633) 206,719 51,050
Related parties (941,274) - -
Other taxes - 80,180 (72,961)
Taxes and social contribution paid (23,836) (4,383) (43,695)
Other 51,182 214 (64,452)
Net cash flow provided by operating activities 363,287 1,842,773 1,256,001
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Companhia Brasileira de Distribui¢céo

Consolidated statements of cash flows (Continued)
Year ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008
(In thousands of reais)

2010 2009 2008
Cash flow used in investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiary net of cash acquired - (885,113) -
Acquisition of noncontrolling interest (28,544) - -
Marketable securities 58,798 - -
Property and equipment (1,296,464) (700,636) (485,418)
Intangible assets (196,714) (45,987) (2,900)
Capital increase in subsidiaries 64,957 (9,318) -
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 33,032 4,330 3,592
Net cash flow used in investing activities (1,364,935) (1,636,724) (484,726)
Cash flow provided by (used in) financing activities
Capital increase 35,120 487,144 88,196
Financings:
Issuances 3,981,201 736,805 680,154
Repayments (1,204,381) (393,129) (607,079)
Interest paid (182,813) (209,301) (318,001)
Dividends paid (151,412) (109,157) (50,084)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 2,477,715 512,362 (206,814)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,476,067 718,411 564,461
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 2,341,927 1,623,516 1,059,055
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 3,817,994 2,341,927 1,623,516

See accompanying notes.
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1. Corporate information
Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo and Subsidiaries ("Company" or “GPA”") operates primarily as a retailer of food, clothing, home
appliances and other products through its chain of hypermarkets, supermarkets, specialized and department stores principally under the
trade names "P&o de Agucar", "Comprebem", "Extra", "Extra Eletro", “Extra Perto”, “Extra Facil”, “Sendas”, “Assai”, “Ponto Frio”, “Casas
Bahia”, “Casa Bahia.Com”,“Extra.com” and “Ponto Frio.Com”. The registered office is located in Sdo Paulo, SP, Brazil. Founded in 1948,
the Company has 145,614 employees, 1,647 stores in 20 Brazilian states and the Federal District and a logistics infrastructure comprised of
28 warehouses located in seven states as of December 31, 2010.

The Company’s shares trade on the Level 1 Special Corporate Governance segment of the Sdo Paulo Stock Exchange and its shares are
listed at the Sdo Paulo and New York Stock Exchanges (ADR level llI).

The Diniz Group and the Casino Group share the Company’s control through their ownership of the holding company named Wilkes
Participacdes S.A., pursuant to an agreement entered into in May 2005.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2010, were authorized by the Board of Directors on June 30, 2011.
2. Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for derivative financial instruments that have
been measured at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Brazilian reais.
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Company’s subsidiaries are measured using the currency of the primary economic

environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Brazilian Real,
which is the company’s functional and presentation currency. All the subsidiaries have the Brazilian Real as their functional currencies.
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2. Basis of preparation (Continued)

a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

3. Basis of consolidation

a) Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of all subsidiaries over which the parent company exercises
control either directly or indirectly.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies and generally holds shares of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Company controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Company obtains control. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared as of the same reporting period as the parent company, using consistent
accounting policies. All intra-company balances, income and expenses, unrealized gains and losses and dividends resulting from intra-
company transactions are eliminated in full.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a change of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

Losses are attributed to the noncontrolling interest even if that results in a deficit balance.

The primary direct or indirect subsidiaries, included in the consolidation and the percentage of the company’s interest comprise:
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Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicéo
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

December 31, 2010 and 2009
(In thousands of reais)

3. Basis of consolidation  (Continued)

a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

Novasoc

Although the Company’s interest in Novasoc represents 10% of its shares, Novasoc is included in the consolidated financial statements
as the Company effectively has voting control over a 99.98% beneficial interest in Novasoc, pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement.
Under the Bylaws of Novasoc, the appropriation of its net income does not need to be proportional to the shares of interest held in the
company.

Globex

The Company consolidates the financial statements of Globex, a subsidiary that concentrates the Group’s home appliance products,
operating under the banners “Ponto Frio” and “Extra-Eletro”, and “Casas Bahia” as of November 2010.

Sendas

The Company consolidates the financial statements of Sendas Distribuidora S.A. (“Sendas Distribuidora), a wholly-owned subsidiary,
which operates in the retail and cash-and-carry segments. Further details on acquisition of Sendas Distribuidora noncontrolling
interest, are disclosed in Note 15.

PAFIDC and Globex FIDC

The Company consolidates PAFIDC’s and Globex FIDC's financial statements, two special purpose entities, organized with exclusive
purpose of conducting the securitization of receivables of the Company and its subsidiaries. The consolidation is justified by the fact
that most of the risks and benefits related to the fund’s profitability are linked to subordinated shares owned by the Company and
subsidiaries.

The table below shows the legal interest of the parent company in each of the subsidiaries and associates.
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December 31, 2010 and 2009
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3. Basis of consolidation  (Continued)

a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

Investor 's interest (%) — as of December 31, 2010
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Nova
CBD Sendas Lake Globex Casa Ponto Ponto Frio
Companies CBD Novasoc Sé Holland Distrib. Bellamar ECQD Niassa Utilidades Bahia Ponto Frio Cred Adm Total

Subsidiaries:
Novasoc Comercial Ltda. 10.00 10.00
Sé Supermercados Ltda. 93.10 6.90 100.00
Sendas Distribuidora 14.86 85.14 100.00
PAFIDC 9.58 0.75 0.37 10.70
P.A. Publicidade Ltda. 99.99 99.99
Barcelona Com. Varej. e - - - - - - - - - - -
Atacadista S.A. 100.00 100.00
CBD Holland 100.00 100.00
CBD Panama 100.00 100.00
Xantocarpa Empreend.e Partic. - - - - - - - - - - -
Ltda. 100.00 100.00
Vedra Empreend.e Partic. Ltda. 99.00 99.00
Bellamar Empreend.e Partic. - - - - - - - - - -
Ltda. 0.01 99,99 0.01
Vancouver Empreend.e Partic. - - - - - - - - - - -
Ltda. 100.00 100.00
Dallas Empreend.e Partic. Ltda. 99.99 99.99
Bruxellas Empreend.e Patrtic. - - - - - - - - - - -
Ltda. 99.99 99.99
Monte Tardelli 99.00 99.00
GPA 1 99.99 99.99
GPA 2 99.99 99.99
GPA 4 99.00 99.00
GPA 5 99.00 99.00
GPA 6 99.99 99.99
ECQD 100.00 100.00
API SPE Imobiliarios 100.00 100.00
Lake Niassa Empreend.e Partic. - - - - - - - - - -
Ltda. 99.99 0.01 100.00
Globex Utilidades S.A. 52.41 52.41
Globex Adm. e Servigos Ltda. 99.99 0.01 100.00
Nova Casa Bahia S.A. 100.00 100.00
CBD Contact Center Ltda 100.00 100.00
Ponto Frio Adm. e Import. de - - - - - - - - - - - 99.99
Bens Ltda. 99.99
Rio Expresso Comércio
Atacadista de Eletrodomésticos - - - - - - - - - - -
Ltda. 100.00 100.00
Globex Adm. de consércio Ltda. 99.99 0.01 100.00
Pontocred Negdcios de varejo - - - - - - - - - -
Ltda. 99.95 0.05 100.00
Nova Extra Eletro 0.01 99.99 100.00
PontoFrio.com Comércio - - - - - - - - -
Eletronico S.A. 39.05 4.85 50.10 94.00
E-HUB Consult.Particip. e Com. - - - - - - - - - - -
S.A. 100.00 100.00
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Associates and jointly
controlled entities
Financeira Itat CBD-FIC 35.76 14.24 50.00
Industria de Méveis Bartira Ltda 25.00 25.00
Banco Investrcred Unibanco 50.00 50.00
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Companhia Brasileira de Distribui¢céo

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
December 31, 2010 and 2009
(In thousands of reais)

3. Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Investor 's interest (%) — as of December 31, 2009

CBD Sendas Lake Globex Total
Companies_ CBD Novasoc Sé Holland Distrib. Bellamar Niassa Utilidades Interest

ubsidiaries:
ovasoc Comercial Ltda. 10.00 - - - - - - - 10.00
é Supermercados Ltda. 93.10 6.90 - - - - - - 100.00
endas Distribuidora 14.86 - 42,57 - - - - - 57.43
AFIDC 8.87 0.69 0.35 - - - - - 9.91
.A. Publicidade Ltda. 99.99 - - - - - - - 99.99
arcelona Com. Varej. e Atacadista S.A. - - 100.00 100.00
BD Holland 100.00 - - - - - - - 100.00
BD Panama - - - 100.00 - - - - 100.00
antocarpa Empreend.e Partic. Ltda. - - - - 99.99 - - - 99.99
edra Empreend.e Partic. Ltda. 100.00 - - - - - - - 100.00
ellamar Empreend.e Partic. Ltda. - - 100.00 - - - - - 100.00
ancouver Empreend.e Partic. Ltda. 100.00 - - - - - - - 100.00
allas Empreend.e Partic. Ltda. 100.00 - - - - - - - 100.00
ruxellas Empreend.e Partic. Ltda. 100.00 - - - - - - - 100.00
ake Niassa Empreend.e Partic. Ltda. - - - - - - - 100.00 100.00
lobex Utilidades S.A. 95.46 - - - - - - - 95.46
lobex Adm. e Servigos Ltda. - - - - - - - 100.00 100.00
onto Frio Adm. e Import. de Bens Ltda. - - - - - - - 100.00 100.00
io Expresso Comércio Atacadista de Eletrodomésticos Ltda. - - - - - - - 100.00 100.00
lobex Adm. de consércio Ltda. - - - - - - - 100.00 100.00
ontocred Negdcios de varejo Ltda. - - - - - - - 100.00 100.00
ontoFrio.com Comeércio Eletronico S.A. - - - - - - - 100.00 100.00
Associates and jointly controlled entities  :

- - - - - 35.64 14.36 - 50.00
-HUB Consult.Particip. e Com. S.A. - - - - - - - 45.00 45.00
anco Investcred Unibanco - - - - - - 50.00 - 50.00
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Companhia Brasileira de Distribui¢céo

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
December 31, 2010 and 2009

(In thousands of reais)

3. Basis of consolidation  (Continued)

(b) Associates — FIC and BINV

The Company’s investments in its associates (FIC — Financeira Itad CBD and BINV — Banco Investcred, both are the entities that
finance sales directly to CBD customers, and are a result of an association between Banco Itall Unibanco with CBD and Globex) are
accounted for by the equity method. An associate is an entity in which the Company has significant influence, but does not control.

Prevailing decisions related to the operational and strategic management of FIC and BINV lies with Itall Unibanco, therefore, the
Company does not have control to allow the consolidation of FIC in its consolidated financial statements.

Under the equity method, the investment in the associate is carried in the statement of financial position at cost plus post acquisition
changes in the Company’s share of net assets of the associate. Goodwill relating to the associate is included in the carrying amount
of the investment and is neither amortised nor individually tested for impairment.

The income statement reflects the share of the results of operations of the associate. Where there has been a change recognized
directly in the equity of the associate, the Company recognizes its share of any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the
statement of changes in equity. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Company and the associate
are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate.

The share of profit of associates is shown on the face of the income statement as equity pickup results. This is the profit attributable
to equity holders of the associate and therefore is profit after tax and noncontrolling interests in the subsidiaries of the associates.
The financial statements of the associates are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Company.
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Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicédo

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
December 31, 2010 and 2009
(In thousands of reais)

3. Basis of consolidation  (Continued)

(b) Associates — FIC and BINV

@

After application of the equity method, the Company determines whether it is necessary to recognize an additional impairment loss
on the Company’s investment in its associates. The Company determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case the Company calculates the amount of impairment as
the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognizes the amount in the income
statement.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Company measures and recognizes any retaining investment at its fair
value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the
retaining investment and proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit or loss.

Interest in a joint venture - Bartira

The Company has an interest in a joint venture which is a jointly controlled entity called Industria de Moveis Bartira Ltda (Bartira),
whereby the venturers (CBD through Nova Casa Bahia with 25% interest and Klein Family with 75% interest) have a shareholders’
agreement that establishes joint control over the economic activities of the entity. The agreement requires unanimous agreement for
financial and operating decisions among the venturers. The Company recognizes its interest in the joint venture using the
proportionate consolidation method. The Group combines its proportionate share of each of the assets, liabilities, income and
expenses of the joint venture with similar items, line by line, in its consolidated financial statements. The financial statements of the
joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company. Adjustments are made where necessary to bring the
accounting policies in line with those of the Company.
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Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicéo

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
December 31, 2010 and 2009
(In thousands of reais)

4. Significant accounting policies

a) Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognized as of the date on which the Company enters into the contract. When recognized, these are
recorded at their fair value plus the transaction costs that are directly attributable to their acquisition or issuance. Their subsequent
measurement occurs every balance sheet date according to the rules established for each type of financial asset and liability.

(i) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans receivables,
held to maturity investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

The Company determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value, and in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, plus
directly attributable transaction costs.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell
the asset.

The Company’s financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, related party receivables and
restricted advances for legal proceedings. The Company does not have any available-for-sale investments as of December 31,
2010 and 2009.

Subsequent measurement

They are classified among categories mentioned below, according to the purpose for which they were acquired or issued:

http://lwww.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1038572/@¥2B1411001900/cbdform20f2010.} 1/7/201:



cbdform20f2010.htn- Generated by SEC Publisher for SEC F Pagel34 of 254

Table of Contents

Companhia Brasileira de Distribui¢céo

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
December 31, 2010 and 2009
(In thousands of reais)

4. Significant accounting policies  (Continued)

a) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

*  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: these financial assets are measured at their fair value at each balance sheet
date. Interest rates, monetary restatement which is an adjustment of the amount of the provisions for contingencies in
accordance with index rates used by each tax jurisdiction, exchange variation and variations deriving from the valuation at fair
value are recognized in the statement of income when incurred as financial revenues or expenses. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. This category
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by IAS 39. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in finance income or finance expense in the
income statement. The Company has not designated any financial assets upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss other than derivatives and cash and cash equivalents.

« Loans and receivables: these are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. After the initial recognition, these are measured using amortised cost through the effective interest rate method.
Interest income, monetary restatement, exchange variation, and impairment losses, where applicable, are recognized in the
statement of income when incurred as financial revenues or expenses.
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Companhia Brasileira de Distribui¢céo

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
December 31, 2010 and 2009
(In thousands of reais)

4. Significant accounting policies  (Continued)

a) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables

The Company securitizes its accounts receivable with two special purpose entities, the PAFIDC (Pao de Acglcar Fundo de
Investimentos Creditérios) and Globex FIDC (Globex Fundo de Investimentos Creditdrios). (See also Note 10).

Accounts receivable deriving from business agreements are related to bonus and rebates granted by vendors, contractually
established and calculated over purchase volumes, marketing actions, freight cost reimbursements, etc.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are classified as held-to-maturity when the
Company has the positive intention and ability to hold it to maturity. After initial measurement,

held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method (EIR) , less impairment. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the income statement. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the income statement in finance costs.
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Companhia Brasileira de Distribui¢céo

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
December 31, 2010 and 2009

(In thousands of reais)

4, Significant accounting policies  (Continued)

a) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

»  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

¢« The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,

and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the

asset is recognized to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset.

In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

December 31, 2010 and 2009
(In thousands of reais)

4. Significant accounting policies  (Continued)

a) Financial instruments (Continued)
(i) Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if,

and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated

future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial

difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the

estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If
the Company determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial

assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the assets carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses
that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial assets original
effective interest rate. If a financial asset has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
December 31, 2010 and 2009
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4. Significant accounting policies  (Continued)

a) Financial instruments (continued)

@

(ii)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the income statement. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as
part of finance income in the income statement. Loans and receivables together with the associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the company.

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after

the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance
account. If a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to finance costs in the income statement.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans or
borrowing, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Company determines the

classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value, and in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, bank overdraft, loans and financing, debentures and derivative
financial instruments.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

December 31, 2010 and 2009
(In thousands of reais)

4. Significant accounting policies  (Continued)

a) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The measurement depends on the classification of liabilities as follows:

» Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss: these include financial liabilities that are usually traded before
maturity, liabilities designated in their initial recognition at fair value through income and derivatives, except for those designated
as hedge instruments. These are measured by their fair value at each balance sheet date. Interest expense, monetary
restatement, exchange variation and variations deriving from fair value valuation, where applicable, are recognized in the
statement of income when incurred.

» Loans and borrowings: After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognized in the income statement when the liabilities are
derecognized as well as through the effective interest rate method (EIR) amortisation process.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the income statement.
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4. Significant accounting policies  (Continued)

a) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Financial liabilities (Continued)

Put options granted to noncontrolling shareholders

The classification of instruments issued by the Company in equity or debt depends on each instrument’s specific characteristics. An
instrument is deemed to be an equity instrument when the following two conditions are met: (i) the instrument does not contain a
contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity, or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities
with another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavorable to the entity; and (ii) in the case of a contract that will or may be
settled in the entity’s own equity instruments, it is either a non-derivative that does not include a contractual obligation to deliver a
variable number of the Company’s own equity instruments, or it is a derivative that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount
of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the entity’s own equity instruments.

Accordingly, instruments that are redeemable at the Company’s discretion and for which the remuneration depends on the payment
of a dividend are classified in equity.

When the Company has a present ownership interest in the shares subject to the instrument, no non-controlling interest is recorded
and the shares subject to the instrument are accounted for as acquired. The Company’s policy is to treat any liability associated with
the instrument as an IFRS 3(r) liability with changes recognized as contingent consideration against goodwill. Changes to the liability
related to the passage of time such as the unwinding of a discount rate or monetary restatement are recognized in the income
statement against finance expense.
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4. Significant accounting policies  (Continued)

a) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Financial liabilities (Continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statements of financial position if,
and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

An analysis of fair values of financial instruments and further details as to how they are measured are provided in Note 18.

Reclassification of debt and equity instruments

In order to reclassify debt and equity instrument, the Company shall record them as follows:

e an equity instrument (shareholders’ equity) shall be reclassified as debt instrument (financial liability) as of the date the
instrument no longer shows all its characteristics and conditions necessary to support its recognition. The financial liability shall
be measured by fair value of instrument on the reclassification date. The Company shall recognize in shareholders’ equity any
difference between the carrying amount of equity instrument and the fair value of financial liability at the reclassification date;

« a debt instrument shall be reclassified as equity instrument (shareholders’ equity) as of the date it shows all the characteristics
and meets all the conditions related to its recognition, as set forth by IAS 32. The equity instrument shall be measured by carrying
amount of debt instrument on the reclassification date.
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4. Significant accounting policies  (Continued)

b) Hedge accounting

The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as, interest rate swaps and cross-currency swaps. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the
fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on derivatives are taken directly to the income statement.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair
value of a recognized asset or liability.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the Company
wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation
includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the entity
will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s
fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes
in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout
the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

Hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for fair value hedges:

Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of an interest rate hedging derivative is recognized in the income statement in finance costs. The change in
the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as a part of the carrying value of the hedged item and is also

recognized in the income statement in finance costs.
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4. Significant accounting policies  (Continued)

b) Hedge accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges (continued)

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, the adjustment to carrying value is amortised through the income
statement over the remaining term to maturity. Effective interest rate amortisation may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and shall
begin no later than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its fair value attributable to the risk being hedged.

If the hedge item is derecognized, the unamortised fair value is recognized immediately in the income statement.

¢) Cash and cash equivalents

d)

In accordance with IAS 7, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, investments that are short-term, highly liquid, readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value with an original maturity of three months or less. Bank
overdrafts are included within current liabilities on the statements of financial position.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The cost of inventories purchased is recorded at average cost,
including warehouse and handling costs, as these costs are necessary to put the inventory in conditions for transfer to the stores for
sale.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Inventories are also reduced by an allowance for losses and breakage, which is periodically reviewed and evaluated as to its adequacy.
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4. Significant accounting policies  (Continued)

e) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. When impairment
indicators exist, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use;
the recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value
indicators.

Impairment losses are recognized in the income statement in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s
or cash-generating unit's recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in
the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is
limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, or the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the
income statement unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
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4. Significant accounting policies  (Continued)

e)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

The following criteria are also applied in assessing impairment of specific assets:

Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually (as of December 31) and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUSs) to which the goodwill
relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount an impairment loss is recognized.
Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods. Recoverable value is the higher of a cash generating unit's
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

Intangible assets
The intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but tested annually in relation to impairment losses, individually or at
the level of the CGU. The evaluation of indefinite useful life is reviewed annually in order to determine if this evaluation is still justifiable.

Otherwise, the change in the indefinite useful life to definite useful life occurs prospectively.

Gains and losses resulting from the disposal of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net amount obtained
from the sale and the asset's carrying amount and are recognized in the income statement.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost
includes the cost of replacing a component of the equipment and borrowing costs for long term construction projects if the recognition
criteria are met. When significant components of property and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, the Company
recognizes such components as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation, respectively. Likewise, when a major
replacement is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the income statement as incurred.
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4. Significant accounting policies  (Continued)

f) Property and equipment (Continued)
The useful lives are as follows:
Annual Annual
Depreciation Depreciation
rate % - Prior to rate % - From

Asset Category: January 1, 2010 January 1, 2010
Buildings 3.3 2.5
Improvements 6.7 4.2
Equipment 10.0 to 33.0 10.0 to 50.0
Installations 20.0t0 25.0 4.2 10 10.0
Furniture and fixtures 10,0 8.331t0 33.3
Machinery and equipment 10.0 2.81t050.0
Vehicles 20.0 20.0

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future

economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset

is derecognized.

As part of the process of periodically reviewing the useful life of its fixed assets, the Company hired external appraisers to prepare an

appraisal report on the useful life of the Company’s fixed assets. The Company applied the new useful lives prospectively from January

1, 2010, since the new lives represent a change of estimate. The application of the new useful life from January 1, 2010, impacted the

depreciation expense by reducing in the amount of R$ 90,916 for the year ended December 31, 2010.

g) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.
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4.

Significant accounting policies  (Continued)

h) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is its fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized software
development costs, are not capitalized and the expenditure is reflected in the income statement when incurred.

Intangible assets consist mainly of purchased software, software developed for internal use and commercial rights (right to use),
customer list, advantageous lease agreements, advantageous supply agreements of furniture and trademarks.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and method is reviewed at least at
each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the income statement in the
expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset.

Computer software development costs recognized as assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives. Software is amortised over
five years.

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are not amortised, but are tested for impairment at each year-end or whenever there is an
indication that their carrying amount may not be recovered, either individually or at the cash generating unit level. The assessment is
reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from the indefinite
to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the income statement when the asset is recognized.
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4. Significant accounting policies  (Continued)

i) Classification of assets and liabilities as current and non-current

Assets (excluding deferred income and social contribution tax assets) that are expected to be realized in or are intended for sale or
consumption within twelve months after the balance sheet date, assets that are held primarily for the purpose of being traded, and cash
and cash equivalents are classified as current assets. Liabilities (excluding deferred tax liabilities) that are expected to be settled within
twelve months after the balance sheet date are classified as current. All others assets and liabilities (including deferred taxes) are
classified as “noncurrent”.

All deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets or liabilities.

i) Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at inception date:
whether fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use
the asset.
Company as a lessee
Finance leases, which transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are
capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized in the income statement.
Leased assets are depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain
ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease
term.

Leases are classified as operating leases when there is no transfer of risk and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item.
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4. Significant accounting policies  (Continued)

)

k)

Leases (Continued)

Company as a lessee (Continued)

The installment payments of leasing (excluding costs of services, such as insurance and maintenance) classified as operating lease
agreements are recognized as expenses on a straight-line basis during the term of the lease.

Company as a lessor

Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as
operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognized over the lease term on the same bases as rental income.

Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation. Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an

insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to any provision is presented in the income statement net of any reimbursement.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as a liability in the financial statements at the year-end, based on the
minimum mandatory dividends established by the statutory law. Any amount above of that amount is only recorded at the date in which
such incremental dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.
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4.

Significant accounting policies  (Continued)

m) Pension plan

n)

The pension plan is funded through payments to insurance companies, determined by periodic actuarial calculations which are
classified as defined contribution plans according to IAS 19. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Company
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

Shareholders’ equity

Ordinary and preference shares are classified as equity.

When any related party purchases the Company’s equity share capital (treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs is deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled or
reissued. When such shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable incremental
transaction costs, is included in equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders. No gain or loss is recognized on the purchase, sale,
issuance or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and the consideration
is recognized in other capital reserves.

Share-based payment

Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (‘equity-settled transactions’).

In situations where equity instruments are issued and some or all of the goods or services received by the Company as consideration
cannot be specifically identified, the unidentified goods or services received (or to be received) are measured as the difference between
the fair value of the share-based payment transaction and the fair value of any identifiable goods or services received at the grant date.
This is then capitalized or expensed as appropriate.
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4. Significant accounting policies  (Continued)

0) Share-based payment (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognized for

equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.

The income statement expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning
and end of that period.

No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional upon
a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the

market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled transaction award are modified, the minimum expense recognized is the expense as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognized for any modification that

increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.
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4. Significant accounting policies  (Continued)

0) Share-based payment (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognized
for the award is recognized immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the entity or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement award on
the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in
the previous paragraph. All cancellations of equity-settled transaction awards are treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share (further
details are given in Note 30).

p) Customer loyalty programs

These are used by the Company in order provide incentives to its customers on the sale of products or services. If customer buys
products or services, the Company grants credits thereto. Customer may redeem the credits free of charge or discounting from the
amount of products or services.

The Company estimates the fair value of points granted according to the “Programa Mais” loyalty plan, applying statistical techniques,
considering the maturity of plans defined in the terms of the program.

g) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period, excluding
shares issued in payment of dividends and treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by the treasury stock method, as follows:
- numerator: earnings for the period;

- denominator: the number of shares is adjusted to include potential shares corresponding to dilutive instruments (stock options ), less
the number of shares that could be bought back at market, if applicable.
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4. Significant accounting policies  (Continued)

q) Earnings per share (continued)

Equity instruments that will or may be settled in Company’s shares are included in the calculation only when their settlement would have
a dilutive impact on earnings per share.

Determination of net income

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be
reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received, excluding discounts, rebates, and sales taxes or

duty.

The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The
Company has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements except as it relates to certain product
warranties. The Company operates as an agent related to product warranties and records amounts related to extended product
warranties on a net basis in revenues, which relate to the commission received from the insurance companies. The following specific

recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized.
(i) Revenue

(a) Sales of goods

Revenues are recognized at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and service.
Revenues from the sale of products are recognized when their value can be measured reliably, all risks and rewards inherent to
the product are transferred to the buyer, the Company no longer has the control or responsibility over the goods sold and the
economic benefits generated to the Company are probable. Revenues are not recognized if their realization is uncertain.
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4. Significant accounting policies  (Continued)

r) Determination of net income (Continued)

(i) Revenue
(b) Interestincome
For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income or expense is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR), which is the rate that discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. Interest income is
included in net finance expense in the income statement.

(ii) Gross profit

Gross profit corresponds to the difference between net sales and the cost of goods sold. The cost of goods sold comprises the cost
of purchases net of discounts and cash considerations received from vendors, changes in inventory and logistics costs.

Cash consideration received from vendors is measured based on contracts signed with suppliers.
Cost of sales includes the cost of logistics operations managed or outsourced by the Company, comprising all warehousing,
handling and freight costs incurred after goods are first received at one of the Company stores or warehouses. Transport costs (e.qg.
for goods purchased on a “delivery duty paid” or “DDP” basis) are included in the cost of purchases.

(iii) Selling expenses
Selling expenses consist of all store expenses, such as salaries, marketing, occupancy, maintenance, etc.

(iv) General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses correspond to overheads and the cost of corporate units, including the purchasing and
procurement, IT and finance functions.
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4. Significant accounting policies  (Continued)

r) Determination of net income (Continued)

(v) Other operating expenses, net
Other operating income and expense correspond to the effects of major events occurring during the period that do not meet the
Company'’s definition for the other income statement lines.

(vi) Net finance expenses
Finance expenses include all expenses generated by net debt and the receivables securitization during the period offset by
capitalized interest, losses related to the remeasurement of derivatives at fair value, losses on disposals of financial assets,
finance charges on contingencies and taxes, interest charges on finance leases, and discounting adjustments.

Finance income includes income generated by cash and cash equivalents and tax and judicial deposits, gains related to the
remeasurement of derivatives at fair value and purchase discounts obtained from vendors.

s) Taxation
Current income and social contribution taxes

Current income and social contribution tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted, by the reporting date.

The taxation on income comprises the Corporate Income Tax (“IRPJ”) and Social Contribution on Net Income (“CSLL") and is
calculated based on taxable income (adjusted income), at rates applicable according to the prevailing laws — 15%, over taxable income
plus 10% over the amount exceeding R$ 240 in taxable income yearly for IRPJ and 9% for CSLL.

Deferred income and social contribution taxes

Deferred tax is provided using the liability basis method on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts.
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4. Significant accounting policies  (Continued)
s) Taxation (Continued)
Deferred income and social contribution taxes (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, and unused tax credits and losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which to deduct the temporary differences and unused tax credits and losses;
except where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss.

With respect to deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are
recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income and social contribution taxes assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income and social contribution taxes assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax items relating to items recognized outside of profit or loss are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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4. Significant accounting policies  (Continued)
s) Taxation

Deferred income and social contribution taxes — (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Other taxes

Revenues from sales and services are subject to taxation by State Value-Added Tax (“ICMS”), Services Tax (“ISS”), Social Contribution
Tax on Gross Revenue for the Social Integration Program (“PIS”) and Social Contribution Tax on Gross Revenue for Social Security
Financing (“COFINS”) at rates prevailing in each region and are presented as deductions from sales in the statements of income.

The amounts recoverable derived from non-cumulative ICMS, PIS and COFINS are deducted from cost of goods sold. The PIS and
COFINS payable related to financial income and PIS and COFINS recoverable derived from financial expenses are also included in
these line items of the statement of income.

Taxes recoverable or prepaid taxes are shown in the current and noncurrent assets, in accordance with the estimated timing of their
realization.

Sales tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales tax except:

- Where the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the
sales tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable;

- Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax included. The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or
payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.
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4. Significant accounting policies  (Continued)

t) Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations from January 1, 2007

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the
consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. For
each business combination, the acquirer measures the noncontrolling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs incurred are expensed and included in administrative expenses.

When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability will be recognized in accordance
with IAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity,
it is not remeasured until it is finally settled within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognized for
non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized in profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Company’s cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those
units.
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4. Significant accounting policies  (Continued)

t) Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations from 1 January 2007 (continued)

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated
with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when

determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative
values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Business combinations prior to January 1, 2007

In comparison to the above-mentioned requirements, the following differences apply to business combinations prior to January 1, 2007:

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition formed

part of the acquisition costs. The non-controlling interest (formerly know as minority interest) was measured at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identiable net assets.

5. Standards issued but not yet effective

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of the issuance of the Company’s financial statements include the following standards
and interpretations issued which the Company reasonably expects to be applicable at a future date. The Company intends to adopt those
standards when they become effective.
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5. Standards issued but not yet effective (Cont  inued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement (continued)

IFRS 9 as issued reflects the first phase of the IASBs work on the replacement of IAS 39 and applies to classification and measurement of
financial assets as defined in IAS 39. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. In subsequent
phases, the IASB will address classification and measurement of financial liabilities, hedge accounting and derecognition. The completion
of this project is expected in early 2011. The adoption of the first phase of IFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement
of the Company’s financial assets. The Company will quantify the effect in conjunction with the other phases, when issued, to present a
comprehensive picture.

IFRS 10 Consolidate financial statements

IFRS 10 as issued reflects the replacement of SIC 12 and IAS 27 and applies to consolidated financial statements when an entity controls
one or more other entities. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. The Company will analyze
the effect of the adoption of the standard.

IFRS 11 Joint arrangements

IFRS 11 as issued reflects the replacement of SIC 13 and IAS 31 and applies to Joint controlled entities. The standard is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. The Company will analyze the effect of the adoption of the standard.

IFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities

IFRS 12 as issue applies to Disclosure of interests in other entities, which is intended to enable users to know the risks, the nature, and the
effects in the financial statements of the interest in other entities. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2013. The Company will analyze the effect of the adoption of the standard.

IFRS 13 Fair value mesurements

IFRS 13 applies when another IFRS requires or permits fair value measurements or disclosures about fair value measurements (and
measurements, such as fair value less costs to sell, based on fair value or disclosures about those measurements). The standard is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. The Company will analyze the effect of the adoption of the standard.

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments

IFRIC 19 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2010. The interpretation clarifies that equity instruments issued to a
creditor to extinguish a financial liability qualify as consideration paid. The equity instruments issued are measured at their fair value. If this
cannot be reliably measured, the
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instruments are measured at the fair value of the liability extinguished. Any gain or loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss. The
adoption of this interpretation will have no effect on the financial statements of the Company.

Improvements to IFRSs (issued in May 2010)

The IASB issued Improvements to IFRSs, an omnibus of amendments to its IFRS standards. The amendments have not been adopted as
they become effective for annual periods on or after either July 1, 2010 or January 1, 2011. The amendments are listed below:

v IFRS 3 Business Combinations

v IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

v |1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

v |AS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
v IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programs

The Company does not expect significant effects on its consolidated financial statements due to the application of such amendments.

6. Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

The key assumptions and judgments concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.
(a) Operating lease commitments—Company as lessor
The Company has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Company has determined, based
on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.
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6. Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions (Continued)
b) Estimated impairment of goodwiill

The Company tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note 4
and IAS 36. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on value-in-use calculations and market
quotes. The calculations of value-in-use require the use of estimates.(see note 14).

c) Income taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the amount and timing of future taxable income.
Given the nature and complexity of Company’s business, differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or
future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Company
establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective
jurisdictions in which it operates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits
and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation
may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective company's domicile.

Deferred income and social contribution taxes assets are recognized for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

The Company has tax loss carry forwards amounting to a tax benefit of R$ 720,530 (R$ 578,101 in 2009). These losses do not expire
and relate to subsidiaries that have tax planning opportunities available to support a portion of these balances. The Company recorded
a valuation allowance against these deferred tax assets in the amount of R$ 106,196 in 2010 and 2009.

Further details on taxes are disclosed in Note 24.
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6. Significant accounting judgments, estimate s and assumptions (Continued)
d) Fair value of derivatives and other financial instruments

Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position cannot be derived from
active markets, they are determined using valuation techniques including the discounted cash flow model. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair
values. The judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

The fair value of financial instruments that are actively traded on organized markets is determined based on the market quotes, on the
balance sheet dates, without any deduction for transaction costs. For financial instruments that are not actively traded, the fair value is
based on valuation techniques defined by the Company and compatible with usual practices on the market. If there is no active market,
then the market value is determined through valuation techniques. These techniques include the use of recent market transactions
between independent parties, benchmarks to the fair value of similar financial instruments, analysis of discounted cash flows or other
valuation models.
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6. Significant accounting judgments, estimate s and assumptions (Continued)

e) Share-based payments

The Company measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments
at the date at which they are granted. Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determining the most
appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determining the
most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making
assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are
disclosed in Note 25.

f)  Review of the useful life of property and equipment items

The Company has reviewed the useful life of its fixed assets as at January 1, 2010. As a consequence, the Company’s statement of
financial position reflected non comparative amounts of depreciation.

Changes have been applied prospectively in accordance with IAS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors.
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7. Cash and cash equivalents

The financial instruments at December 31, 2010 and 2009 earn interest mainly at the Interbank Deposit Certificate (“CDI") rate. Securities
on hand and in bank accounts are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

CDI(*) 2010 2009

Current

Banco do Brasil 94.4% 696,331 705,608
Itad 100.6% 1,727,488 555,657
Bradesco 97.4% 674,633 564,768
ABN AMRO 101.5% - 161,941
Santander 101.0% 70,087 70,324
Safra 101.3% 53,750 -
Unibanco 104.1% 4,931 15,079
CEF 98.0% 2,668 2,436
Votorantim 101.1% 104,766 11,612
Others 100.1% 65,779 22,859
Total 3,400,433 2,110,284
Cash on hand and in bank accounts 417,561 231,643
Cash and cash equivalents 3,817,994 2,341,927
* Average rate of CDI

8. Marketable securities

CDI(*) 2010
Banco do Brasil 101.0% 315,332
Banco Santander 100.5% 190,307
Banco Safra 101.25% 102,363
Total 608,002
The NCB subsidiary is restricted to use the balance of R$ 163,301 invested in Banco do Brasil, referring to Consumer Credit through Dealer
(“CDCI"). In addition, R$ 155,912 will be available for use by means of payment of restricted loan during 2011.
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9. Trade accounts receivable, net

a) Breakdown

Current
Resulting from sales through:
Credit card companies
Sales vouchers and others
Credit sales with post-dated checks
Consumer financing - direct credit
Trade accounts receivable from wholesale customers
Private label credit card - interest free installment
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Accounts receivable from vendors

Accounts receivable — FIDCs

Non-current

Accounts receivable - Paes Mendonga
Consumer financing - direct credit
Others

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Pagel6¢€ of 254
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2010 2009
418,519 727,623
158,166 129,903

6,294 8,246
1,520,670 10,774
13,233 64,942
15,127 11,491
(172,901) (17,237)
421,097 413,794
2,380,205 1,349,536
1,667,029 1,125,837
4,047,234 2,475,373
420,570 376,155
101,503 -
105,859 43,036
(16,302) -
611,630 419,191

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business.

b) Credit card companies

Credit card sales are receivable from the credit card companies. In the subsidiaries Globex, Nova Casa Bahia and pontofrio.com, credit

card receivables related to the sale of home appliances are receivable in installments not exceeding 18 months.

Through its subsidiaries Globex, Nova Casa Bahia and pontofrio.com, the Company sells its credit card receivables to banks or credit

card management companies, in order to obtain working capital.
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9. Trade accounts receivable (Continued)

¢) Consumer financing — direct credit

The outstanding balance of these receivables refer to consumer direct credit through dealer (CDCI) which can be paid in 24
installments.

Until November 2010, NCB subsidiary maintained an operating agreement with Banco Bradesco (“Bradesco”), through its subsidiary
Finasa, for the granting of credit to its customers to finance the acquisition of its goods at stores. As a result of credit granted to
customers, the Company receives the principal amount financed by Bradesco on the first business day following the sale date.

According to this agreement, the Company is liable for the extrajudicial collection of defaulting customers, bearing the corresponding
expenses. After elapsing 45 days of the initial maturity of overdue installments, the Company acquires the credit by means of
assignment. Within this context, as required by IAS 39 — Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, the risks and benefits
related to accounts receivable assigned to Bradesco are not substantially transferred to the counterparty, and the amounts discounted
with Bradesco are recognized in the Company’s balance sheet liability as “Loans”.

The outstanding balance of these receivables under NCB's responsibility as of December 31, 2010 was R$ 657,097.

d) Accounts receivable from vendors

Accounts receivable from vendors includes rebates and discounts obtained from suppliers. These amounts are established contractually
and include amounts for volume purchase discounts, joint marketing programs, freight reimbursements, and other similar programs.
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9. Trade accounts receivable (Continued)

e) Accounts receivable — FIDCs

The Company carries out securitization of its credit rights, represented by credit sales with food voucher and credit card company
receivables, to PAFIDC and Globex FIDC. The volume of operations was R$ 9,802,251 for the year ended December 31, 2010
(R$ 9,051,236 for 2009 and R$ 8,057,146 for 2008), in which the responsibility for services rendered and subordinated interests were
retained by the Company. The securitization costs of such receivables amounted to R$ 113,807 in 2010 (R$ 125,180 in 2009 and
R$ 135,111 in 2008), as mentioned in Note 29, are recognized as financial expenses in the statement of income for 2010, 2009 and
2008, respectively.

Services rendered, which are not remunerated, include credit analysis and the assistance from the collection department to the fund’s
manager.

The outstanding balances of these receivables at December 31, 2010,were R$ 1,667,029, (R$ 1,125,837 in 2009), respectively, net of
allowance.

f) Accounts receivable — Paes Mendonga

The accounts receivable from Paes Mendonga relate to amounts deriving from the payment of third party liabilities by the subsidiaries
Novasoc and Sendas. Pursuant to contractual provisions, these accounts receivable are monetarily restated and guaranteed by
commercial leasing rights of certain stores currently operated by the Company, Novasoc and Sendas. The maturity of accounts
receivable is linked to the lease agreements.

F-52

http://lwww.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1038572/@¥2B1411001900/cbdform20f2010.} 1/7/201:



cbdform20f2010.htn- Generated by SEC Publisher for SEC F

Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicéo

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
December 31, 2010 and 2009
(In thousands of reais)

9. Trade accounts receivable (Continued)

g) Allowance for doubtful accounts
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The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on average historical losses complemented by Company's estimates of probable future

losses:

At beginning of year
Provision for doubtful accounts
Recoveries and provision written off
At end of year

Credit sales with post-dated checks
Corporate sales
Other accounts receivable

2010 2009
(17,237) (10,520)
(596,885) (214,165)
424,919 207,448
(189,203) (17,237)
(172,901) (1,269)
(16,302) (15,968)
(189,203) (17,237)

Neither Past due but not impaired
past
due or
Total impaired <30 days 30-60 days 61-90 days >90 days
2010 4,658,864 4,353,328 229,411 16,497 53,090 6,538
2009 2,894,564 2,781,513 76,364 4,873 2,995 28,819

10. Receivables Securitization funds — FIDCs

a) Pao de Acucar Receivables Securitization fund — PAFIDC

PAFIDC is a receivables securitization fund formed for the purpose of acquiring the Company and some subsidiaries’ trade receivables,
arising from sales of products and services to their customers. Initially, the fund would acquire credit rights derived from credit cards
sales, meal tickets, installment system or post-dated checks. The fund had its due date extended on May 25, 2010, and has a defined

term until December 7, 2012.

The capital structure of the fund, at December 31, 2010, is composed of 10,295 senior shares held by third parties in the amount of
R$ 1,096,130, which represent 89.3% of the fund’'s equity (90.1% in 2009) and 2,864 subordinated shares, held by the Company and
subsidiaries in the amount of R$ 131,374, which represent 10.7% of the fund’s equity (9.9% in 2009).
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10. Receivables Securitization funds — FIDCs

a) Pao de Acucar Receivables Securitization fund — PAFIDC

The interest rates of senior shares are shown below:

2010 2009
Shareholders Amount CDI Rate Balance CDI Rate Balance
Senior A 5,826 109.5% 672,861 105% 694,858
Senior B 4,300 109.5% 184,135 105% 166,560
Senior C 169 109.5% 239,134 105% 216,309
10,295 1,096,130 1,077,727

Subordinated shares are non-transferable and registered, and were issued in a single series. The Company will redeem the
subordinated shares only after the redemption of senior shares or at the end of the fund’'s term. Once the senior shares have been
remunerated, the subordinated shares will receive the balance of the fund’s net assets after absorbing any losses on receivables
transferred and any losses attributed to the fund. Their redemption value is subject to credit, prepayment, and interest rate risks on the
transferred financial assets.

The holders of senior shares have no recourse against the other assets of the Company in the event customers’ default on the amounts
due. As defined in the agreement between the Company and PAFIDC, the transfer of receivables is irrevocable, non-retroactive and the
transfer is definitive.

b) Globex Receivables Securitization fund — Globex FIDC

Globex FIDC is a receivables securitization fund formed for the purpose of acquiring Globex’s trade receivables (mainly credit card),
arising from sales of products and services to their customers. The fund was set up on May 25, 2010 and has a indefinite term.

The capital structure of the fund, at December 31, 2010, is composed of 11,666 senior shares held by third parties in the amount of

R$ 1,166,600, which represent 87.5% of the fund’s equity and 1,667 subordinated shares, held by the Company and subsidiaries in the
amount of R$ 166,700, which represent 12.5% of the fund’s equity.
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10. Receivables Securitization funds — FIDCs (Con tinued)

a) Globex Receivables Securitization fund — Globex FIDC

The interest rates of senior shares are shown below:

Subordinated shares and senior quotas have the same conditions than the described for PAFIDC.

2010
Shareholders Amount CDI Rate Balance
Senior - 1st Series 11,666 107.75% 1,184,387
11. Inventories
2010 2009

Stores 2,630,265 1,991,114
Warehouses 2,291,445 935,323
Provision for obsolete inventories (97,942) (98,974)

4,823,768 2,827,463

Provisions on inventories are mainly composed of provisions for unrealized bonuses in inventories amounting to R$ 51,344 (R$ 54,186
in 2009), and obsolescence provisions in Globex amounting to R$ 25,422 (R$ 32,526 in 2009).
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12. Recoverable taxes

The balances of recoverable taxes refer to credits from Withholding Income Tax, (“IRRF"), Social Contribution Tax on Gross Revenue for
the Social Integration Program (“PIS”), Social Contribution Tax on Gross Revenue for Social Security Financing (“COFINS") and
recoverable State Value-Added Tax (“ICMS”):

2010 2009
Current
Taxes on sales 612,956 276,244
Income tax and others 275,946 140,508
Present value adjustment (547) (202)
888,355 416,550
Noncurrent
Taxes on sales 189,097 244,067
ICMS and others 33,320 14,404
Present value adjustment (8,911) (3,277)
213,506 255,194
Total of recoverable taxes 1,101,861 671,744
13. Property and equipment, net
2010
OfB f;gf/eéggg Additions Depreciation A(s:ggissii(;iic;r:yof Disposals Transfers OfB f;?gf/%gio
Lands 980,469 536 - - (5,420) 7,420 983,005
Buildings 1,842,073 11,146 (66,433) - (18,629) 139,570 1,907,727
Leasehold improvements 1,179,101 44,826 (108,084) 72,090 (21,278) 349,243 1,515,898
Equipments 423,588 248,647 (65,865) 57,420 (20,206) (36,005) 607,579
Installations 99,738 66,774 24,452 96,460 (7,398) (35,502) 244,524
Furniture and fixtures 221,043 94,335 (63,048) 131,655 (18,045) 33,633 399,573
Vehicles 21,445 14,278 (7,195) 139,292 (2,508) (7,483) 157,829
Construction in progress 361,346 779,352 - 17,644 - (580,385) 577,957
Other 105,553 33,233 (9,405) - 12,093 95 141,569
5,234,356 1,293,127 (295,578) 514,561 (81,391) (129,414) 6,535,661
Finance Leases:
Machinery and equipment 35,273 2,944 (4,410) 41,693 (155) (1,013) 74,332
Hardware 34,992 - (1,578) - - - 33,414
Installations 1,232 - 5 - - (151) 1,086
Furniture and fixtures 19,655 - (1,424) - - (367) 17,864
Vehicles 656 392 (1,553) 14,635 (279) (1,296) 12,555
Buildings 30,437 1 (1,755) - - - 28,683
122,245 3,337 (10,715) 56,328 (434) (2,827) 167,934
Total 5,356,601 1,296,464 (306,293) 570,889 (81,825) (132,241) 6,703,595
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13. Property and equipment, net (Continued)
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2009
Acquisition

Ofozl?gf/ezggg Additions Depreciation of _sthlzik()jéiry Disposals Transfers OfB fgglc/%ggg
Lands 857,634 2,790 - 114,202 (70) 5,913 980,469
Buildings 1,877,362 6,422 (78,425) 19,710 2,274 14,730 1,842,073
Leasehold improvements 1,203,779 28,637 (139,194) 47,777 (9,306) 47,408 1,179,101
Equipments 402,208 87,205 (114,596) 30,584 (7,391) 25,578 423,588
Installations 106,300 26,167 (38,570) 27,948 (482) (21,625) 99,738
Furniture and fixtures 210,787 17,993 (43,255) 25,360 (2,232) 12,390 221,043
Vehicles 14,212 10,608 (4,208) 1,855 (2,305) 1,283 21,445
Construction in progress 68,426 451,432 - 18,722 (6,550) (170,684) 361,346
Other 2,792 42,369 (1,001) 1,866 (4,096) 63,623 105,553
4,743,500 673,623 (419,249) 288,024 (30,158) (21,384) 5,234,356

Finance Leases:
Machinery and equipment 13,326 29,754 (1,828) - (5,979) 35,273
Hardware 62,239 6,373 (1,215) 2 (32,407) 34,992
Installations 5,210 3,256 (1,391) (5,843) 1,232
Furniture and fixtures 8,936 1,267 (1,046) - 10,498 19,655
Vehicles 1,776 107 (513) - (714) 656
Buildings 32,055 130 (1,587) - (161) 30,437
123,542 40,887 (7,580) 2 (34,606) 122,245
Total 4,867,042 714,510 (426,829) 288,024 (30,156) (55,990) 5,356,601

No impairment charges were recognized in the years ended December 31, 2009, and a provision for impairment of stores fixed assets of
R$ 11 million was recorded in the year ended December 31, 2010.

Transfers in the table above refer to items transferred to intangible assets (software) carried through constructions in progress account

upon their acquisition.

Capitalized borrowing costs

The capitalized borrowing costs are related to the construction or significant refurbishment of approximately 370 stores.

The amount of borrowing costs capitalized during the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 were R$ 13,249 and R$ 12,229,
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respectively. The rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization was approximately 100% of CDI, which is
the effective interest rate of the Company’s borrowings.
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14. Intangible assets

Goodwill - Goodwill - Goodwill - Software Commercial Costumer ~ Advantageous
Cash & Home . Tradenames " > ; leasing Total
Carry Appliance Retail and others right relationship agreements

Balances as of December 31, 2008 370,220 - 672,311 38,639 81,953 - - 1,163,123
Additions 42,827 279,851 6,373 399,593 86,606 196,654 34,268 - 1,046,172
Acquisition of subsidiary

Transfers - - - - 55,692 - - 55,692
Write-off - - - - (1,181) - - - (1,181)
Amortisation - - - - (40,892) - (3,141) - (44,033)
Balances as of December 31, 2009 413,047 279,851 678,684 438,232 182,178 196,654 31,127 - 2,219,773
Additions - - - 1,615,417 223,438 401,011 - 397,195 2,637,061
Acquisition of subsidiary - - - - 46,239 5,601 - - 51,840
Transfers - - (5,313) - 110,986 - - - 105,673
Write -off - - (3,677) - 15,956 - - - 12,279
Amortisation - - - - (130,359) - (6,282) (8,220) (144,861)
Balances as of December 31, 2010 413,047 279,851 669,694 2,053,649 448,438 603,266 24,845 388,975 4,881,765

Impairment testing of goodwill and intangibles

Goodwill and intangible assets were tested for impairment at December 31, 2010 and 2009 by the method described in note 4 — “Significant
Accounting Policies”.

The assumptions used are set out below.
As a result of the impairment tests carried out in 2010 and 2009, the Company did not recognize impairment losses.

Impairment testing consists of determining the recoverable values of the cash generating units (CGUs) or groups of CGU to which the
goodwill and intangibles is allocated and comparing them with the carrying amounts of the relevant assets.

Gooduwill arising on the initial acquisition of companies is allocated to the groups of CGU in accordance with the classifications set out in
note 26 (Segment Information).

Value in use is determined by the discounted cash flows method, based on a pre-tax cash flow and using the following rates:

Growth rate Discount rate
Cash Flow (2009 and 20010) Between 3.9% and 4.9% 11.3%
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14.

Intangible assets (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill and intangibles (continued)

The future cash flow assumptions and growth prospects are based on the Company’s annual budget and long-term business plans,
approved by the Board of Directors, as well as comparable market data and they represent Management’s best estimate of the economic
conditions that exist during the economic useful life of group of the assets that generate cash flows.

Key assumptions used in the impairment analysis are outlined below:

1. Revenues — projected based on the annual budget of the following year and the Company’s business plan comprising the period
between 2011 and 2015.

2. Costs and operational expenses — projected based on the Company’s business plan.

3. Capital investments — capital investments were estimated considering the infrastructure required to support the Company’s business
plan.

Key assumptions were estimated considering the Company’s historical performance and based on reasonable macroeconomic
assumptions compatible with external sources of information and are documented and approved by Company’s management.

Other intangibles
Software was tested for impairment following the same criteria established for property and equipment.

Other intangible assets, whose useful life is indefinite, were submitted to impairment test according to the same calculation criteria used for
goodwill.

Acquisition during the year

In the business combinations occurred in 2009 and 2010 (as described in Note 16), the Company acquired intangible assets with definite
and indefinite useful lives, as follows:

« Indefinite useful life — Tradenames and Commercial rights “Fundo de Comércio”;
Definite useful life — Favorable lease agreement (10 years), Favorable supply agreement (3 years) and Customer relationship (5 to 7 years).
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15. Investments in associates

a) Breakdown of investments

Investments breakdown Fic / Miravalles BINV - Globex Others Total
Balances at December 31, 2008 92,410 - 314 92,724
Additions 15,623 79,615 3,100 98,338
Merger 75,592 (75,592) - -
Other (3,787) 1,540 - (2,247)
Equity pickup (3,273) 9,447 (762) 5,412
Balances at December 31, 2009 176,565 15,010 2,652 194,227
Additions 12,777 - 4,806 17,583
Write -off - (2,689) - (2,689)
Equity pickup 35,032 (511) (22) 34,499
Dividends (11,080) - - (11,080)
Balances at December 31, 2010 213,294 11,810 7,436 232,540

(i) FIC/Miravalles

Miravalles, a company formed in July 2004 and owner of exploitation rights of the Company’s financial activities, received capital
subscription from Itad Unibanco Holding S.A., which now holds 50% equity interest of such company (the other 50% interest is held by
the Company). Also in 2004, Miravalles formed Financeira Itadl Companhia S.A. (“FIC"). FIC is a company which structures and trades
financial products and services exclusively to the Company’s customers.

On August 28, 2009, the Company and Itat Unibanco Holding S.A. (“ltad Unibanco”) amended the FIC partnership agreement,
removing Itad Unibanco’s exclusivity obligation. In return, Itad-Unibanco paid in total R$ 600 million, which was recognized as a gain in
“Other Operating Expenses, net” (Note 28); in addition, the Company and Itat Unibanco also extended the partnership agreement for
additional 5 years, which shall be effective up to August 28, 2029. The new partnership agreement includes all brands and formats of
stores operated or owned by the Company, direct or indirectly, including supermarkets, hypermarkets, convenience stores, home
appliance stores, cash and carry stores, gas stations, drugstores and e-commerce.

During 2009, there was a corporate restructuring involving the merger of Miravalles and FIC. After such restructuring, the Company still
holds an interest of 50% in FIC.

The operational management of FIC is under the responsibility of Itall Unibanco.
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15. Investments in associates (Continued)

a) Breakdown of investments (continued)

The summarized financial information of FIC at December 31, 2010 and 2009 is as follows:

2010 2009

Operating results:

Revenues 918,415 703,176
Operating income 148,070 7,910
Net income (losses) 95,616 (6,544)
Current assets 3,057,634 2,471,929
Non-current assets 310,509 371,574
Total assets 3,368,143 2,843,503
Current liabilities 2,783,045 2,228,791
Non-current liabilities 36,259 139,331
Shareholders' equity 548,839 475,381
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 3,368,143 2,843,503

@) Sendas

Acquisition of non-controlling interest in Sendas Distribuidora

On January 5, 2007, Sendas notified the Company about its put option exercise based on a transaction with the Casino Group in 2005,
which would have constituted a change of control of CBD. In this case, the option would be paid in cash. On April 29, 2008, the
Arbitration Chamber, ultimately expressed an opinion, which is favorable to CBD, that the transaction with the Casino Group in 2005 did
not constitute a change of control of CBD as claimed by Sendas. Accordingly, the claims formalized by Sendas in the arbitration
proceeding were denied, specifically the request for the recognition of its right to exercise the put of its shares in Sendas Distribuidora
and promptly receive the total amount in cash. Therefore, the option exercised should be paid in the Company’s shares.

Under IAS 32 the Company'’s financial statements as of December 31, 2009 reflected the exercise of option with Sendas S.A., estimated
at R$ 128,096, by means of recognition of an equity instrument, determined by the number of preferred shares of CBD (3,566,000

shares) which would be delivered to Sendas S.A, using CBD'’s preferred share price on the exercise date of swap option, i.e., January 5,
2007.
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15. Investments in associates (Continued)

a) Breakdown of investments (Continued)

(i) Sendas (continued)

Within this context, the Company fully consolidated Sendas Distribuidora in the financial statements of December 31, 2009 and 2010,
derecognizing the corresponding non-controlling interest.

Sendas S.A. and the subsidiary Barcelona entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement and Other Covenants, to transfer the Sendas
Distribuidora’s shares held by Sendas S.A. to Barcelona. This non-controlling interest acquisition was approved by the Board of
Directors of CBD, and approved by the Company's shareholders' general meeting.

Once this condition is met, Sendas S.A. will transfer to Barcelona its entire interest in Sendas Distribuidora, currently corresponding to
42.57% of the capital stock for R$ 377,000 to be paid as follows: R$ 59,000 upon the transfer of shares and the remaining amount of
R$ 318,000 in 6 annual and consecutive installments of R$ 53,000, the first installment is due in July 2011, adjusted by IPCA (Extended
Consumer Price Index) as of the fourth installment, and as from July to December 2010. The present value of the obligation assumed at
December 31, 2010 is R$ 324,350.

According to IAS 32, an equity instrument shall be reclassified as financial liability as of the date this instrument no longer shows all its
characteristics and conditions. The financial liability shall be measured at fair value of instrument on the reclassification date,
recognizing in shareholders’ equity any difference between the carrying amount of equity instrument and the fair value of financial
liability on the reclassification date.

Therefore, the equity instrument of R$ 128,096, previously recognized in the Company’s shareholders’ equity was reclassified into
financial liability as at December 31, 2010, since the negotiation was already in progress on that date. In addition, the financial liability
assumed was added against the Company’s shareholders’ equity by the amount of R$ 229,860, resulting from the difference between
the present value of financial liability of R$ 324,350, other consideration transferred of R$33,606 and the equity instrument of
R$ 128,096. The recognition in shareholders’ equity is supported by IAS 32.
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b) Accounts payable for acquisition of noncontrolling interest
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2010 2009
Acquisition of noncontrolling interest - Assai 188,194 154,401
Acquisition of noncontrolling interest - Sendas Distribuidora (ii) 324,350 -
512,544 154,401
Current liabilities 297,484 -
Noncurrent liabilities 215,060 154,401
512,544 154,401
i) Payables for acquisition of noncontrolling interest of Assai, a subsidiary that develops the business of "Cash & Carry" for the

Group. The accounts payable will be settled during the year 2011.

ii) Payables for acquisition of noncontrolling interest of Sendas Distribuidora, which will be paid in six annual installments, the last

being due in December 2017.

16. Business combinations and acquisition of Non- controlling interest

a) Association with Nova Casa Bahia

Context of the partnership

On December 4, 2009, Casas Bahia Comercial Ltda. (“CB”) and GPA entered into a Shareholders’ Agreement (“Shareholders’ Agreement”)
aiming at merging their retail trade of durable goods and electronic commerce of durable goods businesses.

On February 3, 2010 the parties signed a Provisional Agreement for the Maintenance of Operation Reversibility (“APRO”) with the
Administrative Council for Economic Defense (“CADE”"), which determined that the following actions be taken: (i) maintenance of “Casas
Bahia” and “Ponto Frio” brands, as well as separate advertising campaigns, ensuring investments in advertising and marketing at levels
compatible with previous fiscal years, except for the assumptions resulting from the economic scenario; (iii) the maintenance of stores
existing in 146 cities where both “Casas Bahia” and “Ponto Frio” are located; (iii) maintenance of respective
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16. Business combinations and acquisition of Non- controlling interest  (Continued)

a) Association with Nova Casa Bahia (Continued)

warehouses and the Bartira’s furniture plant; (iv) maintenance of respective debt policies; and (v) maintenance of separate procurement
structures and their commercial contractual instruments, even though they may jointly operate in this segment. Except for these specific
conditions, both Globex and NCB may adopt the measures necessary to merge their activities and capture the synergies resulting from this
operation. This present operation is pending approval from CADE.

On July 1, 2010, NCB'’s shareholders entered into an addendum to the Shareholders’ Agreement, in which the parties reviewed certain
conditions of the partnership, as well as defined the actions required for their implementation.

As a preliminary phase of this transaction, at October 1, 2010, the net operating assets of CB were transferred to new company named New
Casas Bahia ("NCB") through a partial spin-off. This transfer included an equity interest of 25% in Bartira (remainder 75% still owned by
CB).

Thus, as of October 1, 2010, NCB now operates under the "Casas Bahia” brand, which operates in 11 Brazilian states and in the Federal
District, represented by 526 stores and 8 warehouses, selling a wide range of electronic products, home appliances and devices, such as
furniture, electronic toys, office supplies, mobile phones, computers and accessories.

On November 9, 2010, as a preparatory phase of the process to merge NCB’s shares into Globex, the Company centralized the retail trade
of durable goods and the electronic commerce of durable goods in Globex.

Thus, the Company made a capital increase into its subsidiary Globex, in the following amount: (i) net assets from the Company’s electronic
products operations, established by the “Extra-Eletro” brand, in the amount of R$ 89,826; (ii) financial investments of R$ 290,143; and (iii)
receivables between the Company’s subsidiaries, in the amount of R$ 375,550 for a total of R$ 755,519.
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16. Business combinations and acquisition of Non- controlling interest  (Continued)

a) Association with Nova Casa Bahia (Continued)

Determination of the consideration transferred due to the takeover of NCB (continued)

As a final phase of the process to merge the retail trade of durable goods, at November 9, 2010, all NCB’s shares were merged into the
capital of Globex at the carrying amount, thus, as of that date, NCB became a wholly-owned subsidiary and CBD’s control was maintained.
As a result of the share merger, GPA diluted its direct interest in Globex, now holding 52.44% of its capital stock, but maintaining the control
of operating and financial decisions pertaining to Globex and its subsidiaries.

Determination of the consideration transferred due to the acquisition of NCB

GPA transferred approximately 47% of its entire investment in Globex to CB, which is determined as total consideration transferred for the
acquisition of NCB ("total consideration transferred").

Since Globex is a publicly held company, with its shares quoted and traded on the stock exchange (Bovespa) by independent purchasers
and sellers and experts in electric/electronic products segment, for accounting purposes, the fair value of the consideration transferred was
determined by the final price of Globex’s common share traded on Bovespa at November 9, 2010, as follows:

12.31.2010

Number of common shares held by CBD, corresponding to a 98.77% interest 168,927,975
Globex common share quote at November 9, 2010 - R$ 15.00
Fair value (Bovespa) of investment in Globex  —98.77% 2,533,920
47% of market value of investment in Globex assigned to CB’s shareholders 1,193,082
Fixed mandatory dividends to Bartira’s shareholders (i) 6,069
Assets received from CB considered as a reduction of consideration transferred:

Call option of Bartira, net of income and social contribution taxes and non-controlling interest (ii) (143,992)
Fair value of total consideration transferred 1,055,159
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16. Business combinations and acquisition of Non- controlling interest  (Continued)

a) Association with Nova Casa Bahia (Continued)

Determination of the consideration transferred due to the takeover of NCB (continued)

(i) According to the Shareholders’ Agreement, Bartira will disproportionally distribute mandatory dividends to its shareholders, in order to
ensure that CB receives a total of R$ 12 million as dividends in the next three years. This mandatory minimum dividend that Bartira shall
pay to the Klein family, as a disproportional sharing was considered according to IFRS 3R, as part of the total consideration transferred
for acquisition of control of NCB;

(ii) Fair value of Bartira’s call option amounting R$416,004: the parties granted through the Shareholders’ Agreement, call and put options
for the interests held by GPA and CB in Bartira. The conditions are defined as follows:

« During the lock-up period defined in the Shareholders’ Agreement as 36 months, NCB is eligible to sell is 25% interest in Bartira’s
capital stock for one real (R$ 1.00);

» During the period from the end of the lock-up period and the end of the 6! year of the agreement, NCB may acquire the remaining
75% Interest in the capital stock of Bartira, currently held by CB, for a total of R$ 175,000, adjusted by IPCA (Extended Consumer

Index Price);
¢ Should NCB not exercise the aforementioned call option at the end of the gih year, CB shall have to acquire the 25% interest from
NCB for a total of R$ 58,500, adjusted by IPCA;

The provisional fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired from NCB, on the date of business combination were as follows:
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16. Business combinations and acquisition of Non- controlling interest  (Continued)
a) Association with Nova Casa Bahia (Continued)
Determination of the consideration transferred due to the takeover of NCB (continued)
) . - Balance after
FRSLPMS  mesmemtod  Bane.  Commocal (Sl Adngeous  prevsond
in Bartira trademark rights agreements purchase price
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 64,957 - - - 64,957
Marketable securities 586,536 - - - 586,536
Trade receivables 2,434,960 - - - 2,434,960
Inventories 1,360,420 - - 1,360,420
Recoverable taxes 269,352 - - - - - 269,352
Deferred income tax 142,342 (46,770) (549,242) (136,344) (47,971) (87,075) (725,060)
Prepaid expenses 58,498 - - - - - 58,498
Other 268,059 - - - 268,059
Investments in associated
companies - 137,560 - - 137,560
Property and equipment 570,889 - - - - - 570,889
Intangible assets 57,217 - 1,615,417 401,011 141,092 256,103 2,470,840
5,813,230 90,790 1,066,175 264,667 93,121 169,028 7,497,011
Liabilities
Trade receivables (1,063,178) - - - (1,063,178)
Loans and borrowings (1,438,859) - - (1,438,859)
Taxes payable (448,565) - - (448,565)
Deferred revenues (230,637) - - - - (230,637)
Provision for contingencies (33,796) - - - (33,796)
Other (1,405,165) - - - (1,405,165)
(4,620,200) - - - - - (4,620,200)
Net assets 1,193,030 90,790 1,066,175 264,667 93,121 169,028 2,876,811

(i) Fair value of investment held in Bartira (25%): it refers to the measurement of fair value of the investment currently held by NCB of 25%

of Bartira’s capital stock. It was measured by EBITDA multiples, obtained from comparable market players.

(I) “Casas Bahia” trademark: Casas Bahia is a traditional, well recognized brand in the Brazilian retail trade and is considered one of the
most valuable brands, according to specialized brand valuation companies. Considering the strength and recognition of this brand, a
market participant should not discontinue it. Its measurement was based on the royalties relief methodology, which represents the
remuneration practiced by the market for using the brand, if it were not acquired;
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16. Business combinations and acquisition of Non- controlling interest  (Continued)

a) Association with Nova Casa Bahia (Continued)

Determination of the consideration transferred due to the takeover of NCB (continued)

(Il Commercial rights “Fundos de Comeércio”: points-of-sale, many of them are located in very busy and large shopping centers. Usually,
shopping centers and street stores charge fees related to the assignment for the right to use the point-of-sale when this asset is
transferred. These are measured according to information on comparable transactions in the market;

(IV) Advantageous supply agreement with Bartira: NCB has an exclusive supply agreement with Bartira. This agreement holds profitable
conditions to NCB in the acquisition of furniture compared to the margins established in the sector. The amount was defined using
information on comparable transactions in the market;

(V) Advantageous stores lease agreement signed with CB: this refers to CB’s properties, which include stores, warehouses and buildings
which are purposes of operating lease by NCB. This was measured according to information on comparable transactions in the market;

No contingent liabilities or assets were identified and recognized on the acquisition date.

The fair value of the non-controlling interest was measured by applying their interest, through the fair value of identifiable net assets of NCB
on the business combination date, as follows:

12.31.2010
Fair value of acquired net assets 2,876,811
Non-controlling interest 47.56%
Non-controlling interest — measured by the proportional amount method at fair value of acquired net assets 1,368,083
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16. Business combinations and acquisition of Non- controlling interest  (Continued)

a) Association with Nova Casa Bahia (continued)

Gains from a bargain purchase

As a result of: (i) measurement of the total consideration transferred due to acquisition of control of NCB; (ii) measurement of non-controlling
interest; and (iii) measurement of identifiable assets and liabilities at their fair value, the Company recorded a gain from a bargain price
acquisition, in the amount of R$ 453,569, recognized in the statement of income for the year ended as of December 31, 2010, under other
operating expenses as follows:

12.31.2010
Total consideration transferred due to takeover of NCB (1,055,159)
Non-controlling interest — measured by the proportional amount method at fair value of acquired net assets (1,368,083)
Fair value of acquired net assets 2,876,811
Gain from a bargain purchase resulting from takeover of NCB 453,569

The gain is justified for CB mainly due to extremely positive future developments deriving from this partnership with GPA. This partnership
will allow to NCB better accesses to financing and synergies in all areas, such as: trade, logistics, administrative and financial areas, among
others.

In addition, the partnership with CB will position Globex into a new business level, thus, allowing higher nationwide coverage, scale gains and
other benefits which is expected to result in a more attractive future profitability, and accordingly, the appreciation of shares held by CB. With

47.56% interest in Globex, CB will continue actively participating in this operation, whether in the direct management or through the Board of
Directors.
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16. Business combinations and acquisition of Non- controlling interest  (Continued)

a)

b)

Association with Nova Casa Bahia (continued)

The acquisition of NCB was recorded according to the method of acquisition, in accordance with IFRS 3R. The fair value of the net assets
acquired is provisional

Pursuant to IFRS 3R, the Company will complete the collection of data and the valuation of the fair value of net assets acquired and
consideration transferred during 2011 within 12 months as of the business combination date.

Since the date acquisition of control, thus considering the date when shares were contributed, NCB contributed with R$ 2,447,676 to sales
revenue, net of returns and cancellations, and losses of R$ (43,909) to the Company's income before taxes. If business combination had
occurred in the beginning of the 2010 fiscal year, NCB would have contributed with R$ 15,162,481 to sales revenue, net of returns and
cancellations, and a loss of R$ (163,482) for income before taxes.

As a result of the transferring 47.56% of its interest in Globex to the shareholders of CB, the Company recognized a net gain of R$214, 398
which was recognized directly in equity.

The non-controlling interest in the amount of R$2,483,363 represents mainly the portion of the shareholders’ equity of Globex and NCB
owned by Klein Family.

The transaction costs, amounting to R$ 100,100, were treated as expenses and included under other operating expenses.

Acquisition of Globex

Context of the acquisition

On June 7, 2009, the Company entered into a Share Purchase Agreement for the acquisition of 86,962,965 common shares, representing
70.2421% of the total and voting capital stock of Globex at the price of R$ 9.4813 per share, aiming at expanding its durable goods retall
trade and durable goods electronic commerce segments. Globex is an important Brazilian retailer focused on electric and electronic devices
and furniture, known in the market as “Ponto Frio”. With this acquisition, CBD assumed Brazil's retail leadership with approximately R$ 26
billion annual sales, more than 1,000 stores and nearly 79,000 employees.
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16. Business combinations and acquisition of Non- controlling interest  (Continued)

b) Acquisition of Globex (continued)

Context of the acquisition (continued)

Total consideration transferred, based on the agreement, was R$ 824,521, R$ 373,436 in cash and R$ 451,085 in installments. According to
the agreement, the installment amount was subject to conversion into Company’s class B preferred shares, with 10% premium upon
conversion. Such conversion was accepted by Globex’s former controlling shareholders and approved on Company’s Board of Directors at
July 7, 2009.

The Class B preferred shares were issued at the fair value in exchange date. Additionally, these shares are characterized by: (i) no voting
rights; (i) fixed dividends of R$ 0.01; and (iii) they are not negotiable in the stock market.

Pursuant to Brazilian Corporate Law, Mandala (a former subsidiary of the Company) held a public offering to acquire Globex shares owned
by non-controlling shareholders for R$ 7.59 per share, corresponding to 80% of the price paid to former controlling shareholders and under
same conditions granted thereto, corresponding to R$ 3.44 per share paid in cash and R$ 4.15 per share in installments.

Both former controlling and non-controlling shareholders’, upon conversion of Class B preferred shares, received an equivalent number of
Class A preferred shares, according to the following schedule:

a. 32% were converted on the date the operation was approved at the Company’s Special Shareholders’ Meeting held at July 6, 2009;
b. 28% were converted at January 7,2010;

c. 20% were converted at July 7, 2010; and
d. 20% were converted at January 7, 2011.
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16. Business combinations and acquisition of Non- controlling interest  (Continued)

b) Acquisition of Globex (continued)

Context of the acquisition (continued)

The Company also guaranteed the minimum price of R$ 40.00 per share for class A preferred shares upon conversion, adjusted by CDI of
July 7, 2009 until the conversion date. Therefore, if the amount of class A shares (calculated according to the weighted average of prices per
volume obtained in fifteen (15) trading sessions of BOVESPA immediately before each conversion) were less than R$ 40.00 plus the
adjustment according to CDI, the Company would pay the difference in cash.

In the first conversion made at July 6, 2009, the Company paid an additional amount of R$ 5,669 to Globex’s former controlling shareholders.
This amount was recorded as reduction in the value of shares issued on the acquisition date (a reduction in “Other reserves” account, under
shareholders’ equity). In the second, third and fourth conversions made at January 7, 2010, July 7, 2010 and January 7, 2011, no additional
amount was paid.

The Company finalized a public offering at February 9, 2010, for the remaining non-controlling shareholders of Globex, acquiring an
additional 4,102,220 common shares representing approximately 3.3% of its capital stock. After acquisitions through the public offering, the
Company held 98.77% of Globex’ capital stock. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of Non-controlling interest amounted to
R$ 28,428 in cash and 137,014 Class B Preferred Shares for the additional interest of 3.3%. Said interest subsequently changed with the
transaction involving NCB, as per item (a) above.

Considering that all the conversions have already occurred, the Class B Preferred Shares delivered as payment for the second public
offering, were converted into Class A Preferred Shares.

Globex was acquired through the Company’s subsidiary, Mandala, and the operation was duly approved at the Special Shareholders’
Meeting held at July 6, 2009.
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16. Business combinations and acquisition of Non- controlling interest  (Continued)

b) Acquisition of Globex (continued)

Determination of consideration transferred due to acquisition of Globex

Total consideration transferred due to acquisition of Globex is defined by the amount paid to former controlling and non-controlling
shareholders through the public tender offer (OPA), held in 2009 and 2010, as follows:

12.31.2010
Installment paid in cash 932,063
Amount paid in shares 200,290
Transaction costs 23,479
1,155,832

Value of total consideration transferred

Fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired

The fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired from Globex on the business combination date are the following:
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16. Business combinations and acquisition of Non- controlling interest  (Continued)

b) Acquisition of Globex (continued)

Fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired (continued)

Final Purchase Price Allocation

(vii) Deferred

Provisional (iv) income tax on
Purchase Price (i) Restricted (ii) Provision for (iii) C cial (v) C (vi) Fair value goodwill base Final purchase
Allocation d i i i Trademark rights relationship of fixed assets difference price allocation
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 82,765 - - - - - - - 82,765
Trade receivable,net 689,534 - - - - - - - 689,534
Inventories 407,220 - - - - - - - 407,220
Recoverable taxes 183,117 - - - - - - - 183,117
Deferred tax assets 292,589 15,371 70,702 (135,862) (66,862) (11,651) (33,694) 121,542 252,135
Restricted deposits for legal proceedings 57,033 (45,209) - - - - - - 11,824
Other 125,086 - - - - - - - 125,086
Investments in associates 14,987 - - - - - - - 14,987
Property and equipment, net 193,359 - - - - - 99,099 - 292,458
Intangible assets 41,313 - - 399,593 196,654 34,268 - - 671,828
2,087,003 (29,838) 70,702 263,731 129,792 22,617 65,405 121,542 2,730,954

Liabilities
Trade payable 542,135 - - - - - - - 542,135
Loans and financing 405,179 - - - - - - - 405,179
Taxes and social contributions payable 141,357 - - - - - - - 141,357
Dividends payable 1,672 - - - - - - - 1,672
Provision for contingencies 220,163 - 182,817 - - - - - 402,980
Other 300,641 - 25,128 - - - - - 325,769
Noncontrolling interest 21,604 (1,355) (6,231) 11,973 5,893 1,027 2,969 - 35,880
1,632,751 (1,355) 201,714 11,973 5,893 1,027 2,969 - 1,854,972
Total identifiable net asset 454,252 (28,483) (131,012) 251,758 123,899 21,590 62,436 121,542 875,982

The Company had used provisional amounts of net assets acquired in 2009. In 2010 a final valuation was performed and it resulted in the
following adjustments to net assets, which retrospectively recorded in the year ended December 31, 2009:

() Restricted advances: these refer to adjustment to recoverable value of restricted deposits existing on the business combination date;

(i) Provision for contingencies: non-recorded provisions on the acquisition date (contingent liabilities), as they do not meet the IAS 37
requirements, recorded in business combination according to IFRS 3 requirement (see Note 19);

(i) “Ponto Frio and Pontofrio.com” trademark: Ponto Frio and Pontofrio.com are traditional and well-known trademark in Brazil's retail
trade. Considering this brand strength and recognition, a market participant should not discontinue it. Its measurement was based on

the royalties relief methodology, which represents how much would be the remuneration practiced by the market for the utilization of
brand, if it were not acquired;
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16. Business combinations and acquisition of Non- controlling interest  (Continued)

b) Acquisition of Globex (continued)

Calculation of goodwill generated in the acquisition of Globex

(iv) Commercial Rights “Fundo de Comércio”: the points-of-sale are one of Globex’s strengths for any market participant, most of them are
located in very busy shopping centers. Usually, shopping centers and street stores charge fees related to the assignment for the right

to use the point-of-sale when this asset is transferred. These are measured according to information on comparable transactions in the
market;

(v) Customer relationship: this is related to the customer base held by Banco Investcred, mainly through Private Label cards, corporate
clients and e-commerce channel and is Brazil's 7 largest e-commerce web site.

(vi) Fair value of property and equipment: the Company evaluated the fair value of property and equipment acquired, identifying an
adjustment of R$ 99,099, fully recognized in the opening balance sheet.

(vii) Deferred income tax and social contribution over differences between the taxable basis of tax and accounting goodwill, under I1AS 12;

As a result of: (i) measurement of total consideration transferred due to the acquisition of Globex and (ii) measurement of identifiable
assets and liabilities, the Company verified as at December 31,2010, a goodwill amounting to R$ 279,850 (R$ 702,710 provisionally
calculated in 2009), recognized in “Intangible Assets” as shown below:

12.31.2010
Total consideration transferred due to takeover of Globex 1,155,832
Fair value of acquired net assets (875,982)
Goodwill from takeover of Globex 279,850

The goodwill is based on synergies and future profitability which will be obtained by the consolidation of durable goods and electronic
commerce of the Company.
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16. Business combinations and acquisition of Non-co ntrolling interest  (Continued)

¢) E-Hub Acquisition
On November 8, 2010, Globex and PF.com subsidiary signed an agreement to acquire the remaining interest of 55% in E-Hub (service
company in the electronic commerce segment). E-Hub was a joint venture recorded as investment in an affiliated companies. The former
owners of E-Hub transferred 55% of their interest in this company plus R$ 20,000 not payable, due on January 8, 2013, in exchange of
6% interest in PF.com subsidiary.

The parties signed a seven year shareholders’ agreement with a right of first refusal in case of sale of the shares of PF.Com, always at
market values.

This transaction resulted in a deferred bargain gain of which R$ 20,147, pending final determination of values.

17. Loans and financing

(i) Breakdown of debt

Note 2010 2009

Debentures
Debentures 17d 523.574 22.843
Swap contracts 17a 598 654
Financing fees (3.497) (4.111)

520.675 19.386
Local currency
BNDES 17b 80.905 143.744
Working capital 17a 1.604.525 27.593
Financial lease 21 71.277 38.711
Swap contracts (439) -
Financing fees (6.770) (422)
Antecipation of receivables 249.997 157.904

1.999.495 367.530

In foreign currency
BNDES 17b - 654
Working capital 17a 414.140 170.904
Swap contracts 17a 43.856 129.635
Financing fees (662) (497)

457.334 300.696
Total current 2.977.504 687.612
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17. Loans and financing (Continued)

(i) Breakdown of debt (continued)

Note 2010 2009

Debentures
Debentures 17d 1,075,538 1,492,893
Financing fees (8,066) (11,537)

1,067,472 1,481,356
In local currency
BNDES 17b 381,519 29,117
Working capital 17a 1,073,135 409,063
FIDCs 10 2,280,517 1,077,727
Financial leases 20 113,277 84,192
Swap agreements 17a 8,134 1,100
Financing fees (12,535) (106)

3,844,047 1,601,093
In foreign currency
Working capital 17a 617,826 477,008
Swap contracts 17a 63,059 23,449
Financing fees (468) (307)

680,417 500,150
Total non -current 5,591,936 3,582,599
(i) Noncurrent maturity
R$

2011 1,735,547
2012 2,677,642
2013 700,630
2014 137,391
Over 60 months 361,532
Sub-total 5,612,742
Funding cost (20,806)
Total 5,591,936

a) Working capital financing

Obtained from local banks, with a portion used to fund the Company’s working capital. The loans have no collateral.
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17. Loans and financing (Continued)

(i) Noncurrent maturity (Continued)

a) Working capital financing (Continued)

Rate 2010 2009
Debt
Local currency
Itadl Unibanco CDI 100.0% - 4
Santander CDI 100.0% 190,317 -
Banco do Brasil Fixed 12.0% 1,310,708 404,332
Safra CDI 100.0% 540,362 -
Bradesco CDI 100.0% 620,407 -
HSBC CDI 100.0% 4,811 -
Itatl Unibanco Fixed 1.5% 15 1,702
IBM Fixed 0.8% - 25,517
Alfa Fixed 1.5% 11,040 5,101
2,677,660 436,656
Foreign currency
ABN AMRO YEN 4.9% 252,556 375,920
Santander UsD 5.9% 337,693 271,992
Itat BBA uUsD 296,147 -
Brasil YEN 145,570 -
1,031,966 647,912
Swap agreements
ABN AMRO CDI 104.2% 4,188 102,902
Santander CDI 101.6% 56,558 49,269
Itat BBA CDI 100.0% 35,055 -
Votorantim CDI 100.0% - 197
Pactual CDI 100.0% - 718
Brasil CDI 103.6% 18,809 1,098
114,610 154,184
Total 3,824,236 1,238,752

The Company uses swap transactions to exchange U.S. dollar-denominated and yen-denominated obligations and fixed interest
rates to the Brazilian real pegged to CDI (floating) interest rate. The Company concurrently executed with the same counterparty
currency and interest rates swap transactions. The CDI annual benchmark rate at December 31, 2010 was 9.87% (9.88% in 2009).

The Company signed promissory notes and letters of guarantee in the amount of R$ 37,346 given as collateral for loans and
borrowings with Banco IBM and Brazilian Development Bank (BNDES).
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17. Loans and financing (Continued)

(i) Noncurrent maturity (Continued)

a) Working capital financing (Continued)

There are also debt related to sales to customers of NCB, with sales made in monthly installments, including financial charges at the
average annual rate of 12.31% over which, NCB transfers the receivables to Bradesco, but retains the credit risk.

b) BNDES credit line

The line of credit agreements denominated in reais, with the Brazilian National Bank for Economic and Social Development
(BNDES), are either subject to indexation based on the TJLP rate (long-term rate), plus annual interest rates, or are denominated
based on a basket of foreign currencies to reflect the BNDES’ funding portfolio, plus annual fixed interest rates. Financing is paid in
monthly installments after a grace period, as mentioned below.

The Company cannot offer any assets as collateral for loans to other parties without the prior authorization of BNDES and it is
required to comply with certain debt covenants, calculated based on the consolidated balance sheet, in accordance with Brazilian
GAAP, including: (i) maintenance of a capitalization ratio (shareholders' equity/total assets) equal to or in excess of 0.40 and (ii)
maintenance of a current ratio (current assets/current liabilities) equal to or in excess of 1.05. The Company controls and monitors
covenants.

On December 31, 2010, the Company was in compliance with the covenants above.
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17. Loans and financing (Continued)

(i) Noncurrent maturity (Continued)

b) BNDES credit line (Continued)
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Number of
Grace period in monthly
Annual financial charges months installments Maturity 2010 2009

Currency basket + 4.125% 14 60 jan/10 - 654
TILP + 3.2% 6 60 nov/12 63.339 96.385
TILP + 2.7% 6 60 nov/12 9.150 13.924
TILP + 4.5% 4 24 Feb/10 - 7.336
TILP + 4.5% 5 24 jan/11 149 4.018
TILP + 2.3% 3 11 nov/11 8.888 -
TILP + 2.3% 3 11 nov/11 1.108 -
TILP + 2.3% 5 48 May/12 4.459 2.538
TILP + 2.3% 11 48 jun/1313 43.591 13.035
TILP + 2.8% 7 48 nov/11 4.183 25.910
TILP + 4.5% 6 48 May/12 2.725 9.715
TILP + 4.5% 3 48 dec/14 170 -
TILP + 4.5% 18 60 dec/16 40.000 -
TILP + 4.5% 18 60 dec/16 41.000 -
TILP + 4.5% 18 60 dec/16 98.661 -
TILP + 4.5% 12 60 dec/16 45.000 -
TJILP + 4.5% 12 60 dec/16 100.000 -

462.424 173.515

c) Redeemable PAFIDC shares
As per IAS 32, the Company records the amounts related to the senior shares as “Loans and financing”.
d) Debentures
(i) Breakdown of outstanding debentures — 6th issue
Outstanding Annual financial
Type securities charges Unit price 2010 2009
62 Issue 1st series No preference 54 CDI + 0.5% 10.458 559,195 555,821
62 Issue 2nd series No preference 23.965 CDI + 0.5% 10.458 248,169 246,672
72 Issue 1st series No preference 200 119% of CDI 1.056.320 234,979 211,264
82 Issue 1st series No preference 500 109.5% of CDI 1.003.959 555,772 501,979
62 Issue 1st and 2nd series Interest swap - 104.96% of CDI 598 654
Funding cost (10,566) (15,648)
Current and Non-current 1,588,147 1,500,742
Noncurrent liabilities 1,067,472 1,481,356
Current liabilities 520,675 19,386
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17. Loans and financing (Continued)

(i) Noncurrent maturity (Continued)

d) Debentures (Continued)

(i) Breakdown of outstanding debentures

Number of
debentures Value
At December 31, 2008 77,965 814,729
Interest paid - (92,988)
Interest accrued - 79,001
72 Issue 200,000 200,000
82 Issue 500,000 500,000
At December 31, 2009 777,965 1,500,742
Interest paid - (73,319)
Interest accrued - 160,724
At December 31, 2010 777,965 1,588,147

(i) Additional information

6! issue — On March 27, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the issue of 77,965 debentures, corresponding to
the total amount of R$ 779,650. The debentures issued within the scope of the 6th issue have the following characteristics:

Two series: 54.000 and 23,965 debentures were issued in the first and second series, respectively.

Class and Convertibility: not convertible into shares issued by the Company.

Type: unsecured

Issue Date: March 1, 2007

Term and Maturity: seventy-two (72) months, thus maturing on March 1, 2013;
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17. Loans and financing (Continued)

(i) Noncurrent maturity (Continued)

d) Debentures (Continued)

(iii) Additional information (Continued)

Remuneration: daily average rate of one-day DI — Interbank Deposits, known as “over extra group,” expressed as annual
percentage, based on a year of 252 days, calculated and disclosed by CETIP — Clearing House for the Custody and Financial
Settlement of Securities, plus annual spread of 0.5%, of principal, due semi-annually, as of the issue date, always on March and
September 1 every year;

Amortisation: to be amortised in three (3) annual installments: March 1, 2011, March 1, 2012, and March 1, 2013. On each
amortisation payment date, 25,988 debentures will be paid.

Guarantee: not guaranteed

Optional Early Redemption: as of the 18th month after the issue date, the Company may fully or partially redeem in advance the
debentures by paying (i) the Unit Face Value plus Remuneration, calculated on a “pro rata temporis” basis, as of the issue date
or the last date of payment of the Remuneration, where applicable, until the date of its effective payment; or (ii) reimbursement
of premium corresponding to, at most, 1.5%, calculated on a “pro rata temporis” basis, decreasing over time. The partial
redemption, if applicable, may occur through a draw, pursuant to paragraph 1 of Article 55 of Law 6,404 of December 15, 1976
(“Brazilian Corporation Law") and other applicable rules;

Financial Ratios: calculated based on the Company’s financial statements in Brazilian GAAP: (i) net debt (debt less cash and
cash equivalents and accounts receivable) not exceeding the shareholders’ equity; (ii) consolidated net debt/EBITDA ratio ,
lower or equal to 3.25. At December 31, 2010 and 2009 the Company was in compliance with such covenants.

Utilization of funds: the funds raised through the series of the 6th issue of debentures will be used by the Company to
strengthen working capital and to pay current debt.
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17. Loans and financing (Continued)

(i) Noncurrent maturity (Continued)

d) Debentures (Continued)

(iii) Additional information (Continued)

71 issue — at June 8, 2009, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the issue and the restricted offering of 200 non-
convertible debentures, in the total amount of R$ 200,000. The debentures issued within the scope of the 7th issue have the
following characteristics:

Series: single

Class and Convertibility: registered, book-entry and without issuing share certificates. The debentures are not converted into
shares issued by the Company.

Type: unsecured
Issue date: June 15, 2009
Term and Maturity: seven hundred and twenty (720) days as of the issue date, thus maturing on June 5, 2011.

Remuneration: 119% of average daily rates of one-day DI — Interbank Deposits, known as “over extra group,” expressed as a
percentage per annum, based on a year of 252 days, daily calculated and published by CETIP.

Amortisation: amortisation in a lump sum on the maturity date

Early Redemption: not applicable

Guarantee: no guarantee

Financial Ratios: calculated based on the Company’s financial statements in Brazilian GAAP: (i) net debt (debt less cash and
cash equivalents and accounts receivable) not exceeding the shareholders’ equity; (ii) consolidated net debt/EBITDA ratio, lower

or equal to 3.25. At December 31, 2010 and 2009 the Company was in full compliance with such covenants.
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17. Loans and financing (Continued)

(i) Noncurrent maturity (Continued)

d) Debentures (Continued)

(iii) Additional information (Continued)

Utilization of funds: funds raised by means of the 7th issue shall be exclusively used by the Company to acquire farming and
ranching products with its suppliers who are agricultural producers and/or cooperatives listed in the respective Deed of Issue
within a term not exceeding five (5) months as of the issue date to be sold at the Company’s establishments.

8t issue — at December 4, 2009, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the issue and the restricted offering of 500 non-
convertible debentures, in the total amount of R$ 500,000. The debentures issued within the scope of the 8th issue have the
following characteristics:

Series: single

Class and Convertibility: registered, book-entry and without issuing share certificates. The debentures are not converted into
shares issued by the Company.

Type: unsecured

Issue date: December 15, 2009

Term and Maturity: sixty (60) months as of the issue date, thus maturing on December 15, 2014.

Remuneration: 109.5% average daily rates of one-day DI — Interbank Deposits, known as “over extra group,” expressed as
annual percentage, based on a year of two hundred and fifty-two (252) days, calculated and published by CETIP. The
Remuneration will be paid as of the thirty-sixth (36th) month after the issue date, on the following dates: (i) December 15, 2012;
(i) June 15, 2013; (iii) December 15, 2013; (iv) June 15, 2014; and (v) on the Maturity Date, December 15, 2014.
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17. Loans and financing (Continued)

(i) Noncurrent maturity (Continued)

d) Debentures (Continued)
(iii) Additional information (Continued)
Amortisation: the unit face value of the debentures will be amortised on the following dates: (i) December 15, 2012; (ii) June 15,
2013; (iii) December 15, 2013; (iv) June 15, 2014; and (v) on the Maturity Date, December 15, 2014. On each date, one fifth (1/5)
of the unit face value of the debentures (R$ 1,000,000) will be paid.

Early Redemption: the Company is entitled to early redemption at any time, at its exclusive discretion, pursuant to the conditions
established in the deed of issue.

Guarantee: no guarantee
Financial Ratios: calculated based on the Company’s financial statements under Brazilian GAAP: (i) net debt (debt less cash and

cash equivalents and accounts receivable) not exceeding the shareholders’ equity; (ii) consolidated net debt/EBITDA ratio, lower
or equal to 3.25. At December 31, 2010 and 2009 the Company was in full compliance with such covenants.

Utilization of funds: the funds raised through the 8th issue of debentures shall be used by the Company to maintain its cash
strategy and to strengthen its working capital.
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18. Financial instruments

The Company uses financial instruments in order to sustain its growth strategy. The derivative transactions have the exclusive objective of
reducing the exposure to the foreign currency fluctuation and interest rate risks and to maintain a balanced capital structure.

Financial instruments have been reported pursuant to IAS 32 and IAS 39. The main financial instruments and their amounts by category are

as follows:
Book Value Fair Value
2010 2009 2010 2009
Cash and cash equivalents 3,817,994 2,341,927 3,817,994 2,341,927
Marketable securities 608,002 - 608,002 -
Receivables and FIDC 4,658,864 2,894,564 4,658,864 2,894,564
Related parties receivables 176,241 118,650 176,241 118,650
Related parties payables (274,291) (31,734) (274,291) (31,734)
Financial Instruments 416,004 - 416,004 -
Trade payable (5,306,349) (4,004,395) (5,306,349) (4,004,395)
Loans and financings (*) (6,981,293) (2,769,469) (6,981,293) (2,769,469)
Debentures (1,588,147) (1,500,742) (1,580,328) (1,481,880)
Net exposure (4,472,975) (2,951,199) (4,465,156) (2,932,337)

The Company adopts risk control policies and procedures, as outlined below:

a) Considerations on risk factors that may affect the business of the Company

(i) Credit risk

» Cash and cash equivalents: in order to minimize credit risk of these investments, the Company adopts policies restricting the
marketable securities that may be allocated to a single financial institution, and take into consideration monetary limits and
financial institution credit ratings, which are frequently updated (Note 7).

» Trade accounts receivables: the Company sells directly to individual customers through post-dated checks, in a very small
portion of sales (0.59% of sales in the 4th quarter).

» The Company also has counterparty risk related to the derivative instruments; such risk is mitigated by the Company’s policy of
doing business with major financial institutions with good financial standing. Credit card and/or tickets sales are mostly
assigned to PAFIDC, the risk of which is related and limited to the amount of subordinated shares held by the Company (Note
10).
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18.

Financial instruments  (Continued)

a) Considerations on risk factors that may affect the business of the Company (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Interest rate risk

The Company is subject to increased interest rate risk, due to the CDI related debts. The balance of marketable securities indexed
to CDI, partially offsets this effect.

Exchange rate risk

The Company is exposed to exchange rate fluctuations, which may increase the liability balances of foreign currency-denominated
loans. Therefore, the Company enters into swap agreements to hedge against exchange variation deriving from foreign currency-
denominated loans.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company’s derivatives contracted before December 31, 2008, are measured at fair value through profit or loss, including: (i)
Swap agreements of foreign currency debts (U.S. dollars and Japanese yen), to convert from fixed interest rates and foreign
currencies to Brazilian Reais and domestic variable interest rates (CDI). These agreements amounted to a notional amount of R$
1,463,399 and R$ 1,393,109 at December 31, 2010 and 2009. These instruments are contracted with the same financing terms
and the with same financial institution, within the limits approved by Management and (i) the remaining swap agreements are
primarily related to debentures and BNDES loans, exchanging variable domestic interest rates plus fixed interest rates with
variable interest rates (CDI).

According to the Company’s treasury policy, swaps with caps are not allowed, as well as return clauses, double index, flexible
options or any other types of options different from traditional swaps, for speculative purposes, rather than for hedging debt.

The Company designates certain of its swap agreements as fair value hedges. These agreements cover a portion of foreign
currency debts (U.S. dollars), to convert from fixed interest rates and foreign currencies to Brazilian Reais and domestic variable
interest rates (CDI). These agreements amounted to a notional amount of R$ 1,296,750 and R$ 390,000, at December 31, 2010
and 2009. These instruments are contracted with the same terms of the financing agreement, preferably with same financial
institution and within the limits approved by Management.
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18. Financial instruments (Continued)

a) Considerations on risk factors that may affect the business of the Company (Continued)

(iv) Derivative financial instruments (Continued)
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Notional amount Fair value
2010 2009 2010 2009
Fair value hedge
Purpose of hedge (debt) 1,296,750 390,000 1,321,654 391,722
Long position
Pre-fixed rate 12.01% p.a. 1,296,750 390,000 1,321,654 391,722
Short position
% CDI 103.17% p.a. (1,296,750) (390,000) (1,364,407) (392,822)
Net position - - (42,753) (1,100)
Notional amount Fair value
2010 2009 2010 2009
Swap agreements measured by fair value through inco  me
Asset position
USD + Fixed 5.92% p.a. 575,518 502,522 617,499 545,442
YEN + Fixed 1.69% p.a. 108,231 108,231 127,371 118,271
100% CDI + 0.05%
CDI + Fixed p.a. 779,650 779,650 811,600 810,098
100% CDI - 4.61%
USD + Fixed p.a. - 2,706 - 529
1,463,399 1,393,109 1,556,470 1,474,340
Liability position
% CDI (1,463,399) (1,393,109) (1,628,925) (1,628,078)
Swap net position - - (72,455) (153,738)
Total swap net position - - (115,208) (154,838)

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, the fair value of R$ 115,208 and R$ 154,838 payable is recorded in “loans and

financing”.

The effects of fair value hedges in the net finance expense line of the income statement were R$ (42,753) for the year ended

December 31, 2010 (R$ (1,100) as of December 31, 2009).
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18. Financial instruments (Continued)

a) Considerations on risk factors that may affect the business of the Company (Continued)

(v) Fair values of derivative financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an
arm’s length transaction.

Fair values are calculated by projecting the future cash flows of operations, using the curves of BM&F Bovespa and discounting
them to present value, using CDI market rates for swaps published by BM&F Bovespa.

Fair values of swaps —the exchange of the dollar plus fixed coupon rate for a CDI rate was obtained by using exchange rates
prevailing in the market on the balance sheet dates and rates projected by the market obtained from currency coupon curves. In
order to determine the coupon of foreign currency indexed- positions, the straight line convention of 360 consecutive days was
adopted and to determine the coupon of CDI indexed-positions the exponential convention of 252 business days was adopted.

b) Analysis of sensitivity of derivative financial instruments

Below is a sensitivity analysis chart, for each type of market risk deemed as relevant by Management.

The Company assessed the most likely scenario, at each contract maturity date using the BM&F BOVESPA market projection for
currency and interest rates. The reasonably possible scenario is used by the Company to estimate the fair value of the financial
instruments. For scenarios Il and lll, the Company assumes a deterioration of 25% (scenario Il) and 50% (scenario Il — extreme
situation scenario) of the market projection for currency and interest rates.
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18. Financial instruments (Continued)

b) Analysis of sensitivity of derivative financial instruments (Continued)
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The Company disclosed the net exposure of the derivatives and corresponding financial instruments in the sensitivity analysis chart

below, for each of the scenarios mentioned:

(i) Fair value hedge (at maturity dates)

Market Projection

Operations Risk Scenario | Scenario Il Scenario Il
Debt at pre-fixed rate Increase of Rate (972,228) (1,043,186) (1,109,476)
Swap (asset position in pre-fixed rate) Increase of Rate 966,104 1,035,156 1,099,378
net effect (6,124) (8,030) (10,098)
Swap (liability position in CDI) Decrease of CDI (962,458) (1,024,960) (1,079,571)
Total net effect (64,408) (121,087)
(i) Derivatives accounted for at fair value through income
Market Projection
Transactions Risk Scenario | Scenario Il Scenario llI
Debt - USD increase of USD (1,262,700) (1,578,374) (1,894,049)
Swap (asset position in USD) increase of USD 1,269,696 1,587,121 1,904,546
net effect 6,996 8,747 10,497
Debt — YEN increase of YEN (140,313) (175,391) (210,469)
Swap (asset position in YEN) increase of YEN 140,313 175,391 210,469
net effect -
Swap (liability position in CDI) decrease of CDI (1,267,652) (1,326,720) (1,387,808)
Total net effect (57,317) (116,655)
Market Projection
Transactions Risk Scenario | Scenario Il Scenario lll
Swap (short position in USD) decrease of USD 989,318 1,032,415 1,074,978
Swap (long position in CDI) increase of CDI (989,298) (1,034,550) (1,079,264)
net effect 20 (2,135) (4,286)
Total net effect (2,155) (4,306)
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18. Financial instruments (Continued)

b) Analysis of sensitivity of derivative financial instruments (Continued)

(iii) Other financial instruments

Balance as of
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Market Projection

Transactions Risk Dec.31, 2010 Scenario | Scenario |l Scenario |l
Loans and Financing:

Debentures:

6th Issue 100.05% CDI 807,364 909,580 1,033,307 1,200,943
7th Issue 119.00% CDI 235,977 314,791 423,440 582,728
8th Issue 109.50% CDI 555,772 682,206 844,408 1,069,285
Total Debentures 1,599,113 1,906,577 2,301,155 2,852,956
PAFIDC (Senior quotas) 105.00% CDI 1,096,130 1,290,200 1,531,330 1,859,452
Total loans and Financing exposure 2,695,243 3,196,777 3,832,485 4,712,408
Marketable securities (*) 100.60% of CDI 4,094,969 4,618,003 5,251,396 6,109,415
Total net exposure (and deterioration compared tos  cenario 1) 1,399,726 21,500 19,185 (2,719)

(*) weighted average

Sensitivity assumptions

The Company used projected future interest and U.S. dollar rates, obtained with BM&F on the maturity date of each agreement,
considering an increment of 25% in scenario Il and an increment of 50% for scenario III.

In order to calculate the net exposure, all derivatives were considered at fair value on respective maturity dates, as well as their
related debts (hedged items) and other Company’s financial instruments.

The total net effect in net income of scenarios mentioned above are primarily due to the Company’s exposure to CDI.

The Company has in its subsidiary Globex, at December 31, 2010, an amount of R$ 16,618 (US$ 9,548 thousand) related to cash
balances in banks and R$ 1,456 (US$ 837 thousand) related to U.S. dollar-denominated foreign investments.
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18. Financial instruments (Continued)

c¢) Fair value measurements

Consolidated assets and liabilities measured at fair value are summarized below:

Fair value measurement at reporting date using
Quoted prices

in active Significant
markets for other
identical observable Other
instruments Inputs (Level observable
2010 (Level 1) 2) Inputs (level 3)
Cross-currency interest rate swaps (106,916) - (106,916) -
Interest rate swaps (8,292) - (8,292) -
Swaps (115,208) - (115,208) -
Cash and cash equivalents 3,817,994 3,817,994 - -
Marketable securities 608,002 608,002 - -
Financial instruments 416,004 - - 416,004

Level 3 are related to techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on
observable market data.

The fair value of other financial instruments described in Note 18 (a) (v) approximate carrying value based on existing payment terms.
During the reporting period ending 31 December 2010, there were no transfers between Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements.
As of December 31, 2010, the derivatives position was presented as follows:
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18. Financial instruments (Continued)

¢) Fair value measurements (Continued)

i Fair value
Amount payable or receivalbe
Contracting
Description Counterparties Notional Date Maturity 2010 2009 2010 2009
Exchange swaps
registered at CETIP
(JPY x CDI) ABN AMRO YEN 6,281,550 10/30/2007 10/31/2011 19,005 8,734 17,037 8,131
SANTANDER US$ 40,000 11/21/2007 4/29/2011 (19,263) (11,031) (17,841) (6,614)
US$ 40,000 11/21/2007 5/31/2011 (19,259) (11,028) (17,611) (6,351)
US$ 40,000 11/21/2007 6/30/2011 (19,238) (11,011) (17,362) (6,081)
US$ 57,471 04/16/2010 04/10/2013 (9,121) - (3,746) -
VOTORANTIM US$ 20,000 07/05/2005 06/10/2010 - (30,927) - (30,223)
Exchange swaps
registered at CETIP
(USD x CDI) US$ 5,304 9/23/2004 1/15/2010 - (195) - (195)
ABN AMRO US$ 25,000 05/10/2005 4/13/2010 - (54,667) - (53,954)
US$ 25,000 06/10/2005 5/13/2010 - (52,438) - (51,521)
US$ 40,000 3/14/2008 03/02/2012 (15,284) (6,890) (13,146) (2,777)
US$ 15,000 3/14/2008 12/20/2011 - (1,741) (1,156)
US$ 10,000 3/14/2008 12/20/2011 (3,631) (1,597) (3,071) (490)
US$ 10,000 3/14/2008 12/20/2011 (5,749) (2,595) (5,008) (1,134)
US$ 49,966 09/03/2005 12/17/2008 - -
PACTUAL US$ 14,474 12/11/2003 1/15/2010 - (522) - (521)
US$ 5,018 7/16/2004 1/15/2010 - (198) - (198)
BRASIL US$ 84,000 03/31/2010 03/12/2012 (19,317) - (11,113) -
ITAU US$ 175,000 07/01/2010 09/07/2013 (37,229) - (35,055) -
BRASIL R$ 150,000 12/28/2009 01/03/2011 - 29 - (399)
*) R$ 117,000 12/28/2010 12/18/2013 29 - (1,253) -
*) R$ 33,000 12/23/2010 01/03/2011 11 - (95) -
R$ 160,000 12/28/2009 04/01/2011 - 33 - (495)
*) R$ 160,000 12/23/2010 01/24/2011 52 - (513) -
Interest rates swap registered at CETIP R$ 35,000 12/28/2009 11/03/2011 - 9 (90)
(Pre-fixed rate x CDI) *) R$ 35,000 12/23/2010 11/03/2011 11 - (154) -
R$ 45,000 12/28/2009 03/11/2011 461 11 437 (116)
R$ 80,000 06/28/2010 06/12/2013 404 - (847) -
R$ 130,000 06/28/2010 06/06/2014 575 - (2,190) -
R$ 130,000 06/28/2010 06/02/2015 511 - (2,910) -
SANTANDER R$ 200,000 03/31/2010 03/07/2013 2,627 - 362
R$ 50,000 06/28/2010 06/12/2013 297 - (531)
UNIBANCO R$ 779.65 6/25/2007 03/01/2013 (6) 234 (598) (654)
(*) Extension of agreements (115,208) (154,838)
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19. Provision for contingencies
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Provision for contingencies is estimated by the Company and supported by its legal counsel. The provision was set up in an amount
considered sufficient to cover losses considered probable by Company’s legal counsel and is stated net of related judicial deposits, as

shown below:

COFINS And

PIS Other Labor Civil and other Total
Balances at December 31, 2008 1,096,405 31,670 116,050 1,244,125
Globex acquisition 100,337 34,776 18,301 66,749 220,163
Business combination - Globex - 179,384 19,021 9,540 207,945
Installment payment Law 11,941/09 (965,300) (19,364) - (38,190) (1,022,854)
Additions 13,253 2,335 36,089 29,649 81,326
Reversal/payment (135,994) (33,238) (43,031) (15,924) (228,187)
Transfer - 49,857 7,159 (57,016) -
Monetary restatement 52,690 5,646 8,502 13,245 80,083
Restricted deposits - 2 (149) (4,107) (4,258)
Balances at December 31, 2009 161,391 251,064 45,892 119,996 578,343
Additions 5,640 224,918 43,859 23,989 298,406
Reversal/payment (26,618) (50,727) (14,134) (91,479)
Transfer - 9,745 (264) (9,481) -
Monetary restatement 8,601 8,283 10,904 10,295 38,083
Installment payment Law 11,941/09 (71,164) (10,610) - - (81,774)
Business combination - Globex - (20,140) 1,744 1,205 (17,191)
Restricted deposits - 1,419 (23,834) (4,167) (26,582)
Balances at December 31, 2010 104,468 438,061 27,574 127,703 697,806

a) Taxes

Tax-related contingencies are indexed to the Central Bank Overnight Rate (“SELIC"), 9.37% at December 31, 2010 (9.50% in 2009), and
are subject, when applicable, to fines. In all cases, both interest charges and fines, when applicable, have been computed and fully

accrued with respect to unpaid amounts.

Tax proceedings and fiscal debts are subject to monthly monetary restatement, which is an adjustment of the amount of the provisions
for contingencies in accordance with index rates used by each tax jurisdiction. The monetary restatement is legally required for all tax

amounts, including provision for contingencies.
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19. Provision for contingencies  (Continued)

a) Taxes (Continued)

COFINS and PIS

With the non-cumulativeness treatment when calculating PIS and COFINS, the Company and its subsidiaries started discussing at
Court the right to exclude the ICMS from the calculation basis of these two contributions.

Regarding the claims referring to the Cofins rate increase, the Company filed a lawsuit requesting to exclude the penalties charges in
the tax amnesty program, established by Law 11,941/08.

Additionally, a Company'’s subsidiary offset PIS and Cofins tax debits with IPI credits, acquired from third parties (transferred based on a
final and unappealable court decision).

The claims amounts of PIS and COFINS at December 31, 2010 is R$ 104,468 (R$ 161,391 in 2009).
Other

The Company and its subsidiaries have other tax claims, which after analysis of its legal counsels, were deemed as probable losses
and accrued by the Company. These are: (i) tax assessment notices related to purchase, industrialization and sale of soybean and
byproducts exports (PIS, COFINS and IRPJ); (ii) disagreement on the non- application of Accident Prevention Factor (FAP) for 2010; (iii)
disagreement on the “Fundo de Combate a Pobreza” (State Government Fund Against Poverty), enacted by the Rio de Janeiro State
government (transferred from other civil claims this year); and (iv) other less significant issues. The amount recorded at December 31,
2010 for these claims is R$ 55,519 (R$ 34,984 in 2009).

In addition, the Company discusses in court the eligibility to not pay the contributions provided for by Supplementary Law 110/2001,
referring to the FGTS (Government Severance Indemnity Fund for Employees) costs. The accrued amount at December 31, 2010 is
R$ 31,088 (R$ 33,463 in 2009), and a judicial deposit of R$ 9,644 was made (R$ 9,564 in 2009).

In view of the procedural progress of certain claims, the Company’s legal counsels changed the chances of loss from possible to

probable, recognizing at December 31, 2010, the amount of R$ 198,621.
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19. Provision for contingencies  (Continued)

a) Taxes (Continued)

Other (Continued)

This amount includes judicial and administrative claims within federal and states scopes, as well as discussed in several states where
the Company operates.

These contingencies derive from discussions related to the utilization tax losses carryforward, support of tax credits originated in
Companies acquired, as well as tax credits in relation to the appropriation of credits under the tax substitution system, vendors
acquisitions deemed as unqualified with the state treasury department, return of goods at stores, error when applying tax rate and
ancillary obligations by tax authorities.

Tax provisions for contingent liabilities were recorded in Globex subsidiary, which upon business combination are recorded, according to
IFRS 3 (R) requirements. The Company revaluated Globex claims on the reference date of acquisition by CBD (July 6, 2009) and
recognized in 2010 with effects in 2009 the amount of R$ 159,244 (R$ 179,384 in 2009) in tax contingent liabilities.

Main tax contingent liabilities recorded refer to R$ 70 million of administrative proceedings related to the offset of PIS contribution, under
Decrees 2445/88 and 2449/88, related to tax credits acquired from third parties and R$ 51 million referring to the offset of tax debts with
tax credits originated on coffee exports.

b) Labor claims

The Company is party to numerous lawsuits involving disputes with its former employees, primarily arising from dismissals in the
ordinary course of business. As of December 31, 2010, the Company recorded a provision of R$ 88,078 (R$ 82,627 in 2009) assessed
as probable risk. Lawsuits with possible unfavorable outcomes as assessed by the Company’s legal counsel amount to R$ 92,730
(R$ 39,788 in 2009). The Company, assisted by its legal counsel, evaluates these contingencies and provides for losses where
reasonably estimable considering historical data regarding the amounts paid. Labor claims are indexed to the Referential Interest Rate
(“TR™ (0.69% accumulated in the year ended December 31, 2010 and 0.70% in the year ended December 31, 2009) plus 1% monthly
interest. The balance of the provision for labor claims, net of judicial deposits, is R$ 6,809 (R$ 26,871 in 2009).
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19. Provision for contingencies  (Continued)
b) Labor claims (continued)

Labor provisions were recorded in Globex subsidiary referring to contingent liabilities recognized upon business combination amounting
to R$ 20,765 (R$ 19,021 in 2009).

¢) Civil and others

The Company is a defendant, at several judicial levels, in civil and other types of lawsuits. The Company accrues provisions in amounts
considered sufficient to cover unfavorable court decisions when losses are considered probable by external legal counsel.

Among these lawsuits, we emphasize the following:

e The Company is party to numerous lawsuits in which it requests the review of rents paid by the stores. In these actions, the judge
determines a provisional lease amount, which shall be paid by the stores, even to define, report and decision, the final value of the
lease. The Company made provision difference between the amount originally paid by the stores and temporarily set theseactions.
In other actions, the Company made a provision of the difference between the amount paid in rent and that provisional pleaded by
the opposing party's action, based on a report of the legal counsels of the opposing party. On December 31, 2010, the amount of
provision for these shares is R$ 33,349 (R$ 25,735 in 2009), for which there is no escrow deposits.

*  Globex’s civil actions at December 31, 2010 were mainly composed of: (i) consumer lawsuits in the amounts R$ 11,513 (R$ 21,022
in 2009) , (ii) provisions referring to action for damages of R$ 8,067 (R$ 7,402 in 2009), an amount deriving from the contractual
termination proposed by a former service provider; (iii) a provision of R$ 20,345 (R$ 23,698 in 2009) in view of the contractual
assumption of mandatory payment of a fee on behalf of shopping center management companies, as a result of change in share
control; and (iv) provision of R$ 8,004 (R$ 7,401 in 2009) in order to deal with the indemnification risks deriving from the expectation
of contractual termination with service providers;

F-97

http://lwww.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1038572/@¥2B1411001900/cbdform20f2010.} 1/7/201:



cbdform20f2010.htn- Generated by SEC Publisher for SEC F Page21¢ of 254

Table of Contents

Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicéo
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

December 31, 2010 and 2009
(In thousands of reais)

19. Provision for contingencies  (Continued)
¢) Civil and others

. Civil provisions were recorded in Globex subsidiary referring to contingent liabilities recognized upon business combination
amounting to R$ 10,745 (R$ 9,540 in 2009).

Total civil contingencies and others at December 31, 2010 amounted to R$ 127,703 (R$ 119,996 in 2009), net of judicial deposits.

d) Other non-accrued contingent liabilities

The Company has other contingencies which have been analyzed by its legal counsel and deemed as possible but not probable. These
contingencies have not been accrued at December 31, 2010 as follows:

e INSS (Social Security Tax) — The Company was assessed regarding the non-levy of payroll charges on benefits granted to its
employees, and the loss, considered possible, corresponds to R$ 237,690 (R$ 112,878 at December 31, 2009). The proceedings
are under administrative and court discussion and R$ 147,635 are guaranteed by real properties or bank guarantees. The
decreased amount is due to a favorable decision in an administrative proceedings and inclusion of new amounts from Globex
subsidiary.

¢« IRPJ, IRRF and CSLL — The Company has several assessment notices regarding offsetting proceedings, rules on the deductibility
of provisions and tax payment discrepancies, all of them await final decision at the administrative level, the amount of which
corresponds to R$ 255,393 (R$ 244,668 at December 31, 2009). The difference in value is due to change of loss probability in
certain lawsuits.

¢« COFINS, PIS and CPMF — The Company has been challenged through administrative proceedings regarding motion for offsetting,
tax payment discrepancies, and collection of taxes on soybean export operations. These proceedings await decision in the
administrative level. The amount involved in these assessments is R$ 722,322 (R$ 632,954 at December 31, 2009). The difference
in value is due to the change of loss probability in certain lawsuits and inclusion of Globex subsidiary amounts.
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19. Provision for contingencies  (Continued)

d) Other non-accrued contingent liabilities (Continued)

¢ ICMS — The Company was served notice by the state tax authorities regarding: (i) the appropriation of electricity credits; (ii)
acquisitions from vendors considered to be incapable according to the state treasury’s records; (i) return of goods to its stores; (iv)
refund of tax replacement without due compliance of ancillary obligations brought by CAT Ordinance 17 of the State of Sdo Paulo;
(v) resulting from the sale of extended warranty, (vi) goods purchased from vendors who enjoy the tax benefits in states where they
are located, (vii) purchase of IT products and automation including tax benefit, (viii) difference in tax classification, among others,
not relevant. The total amount of these assessments is R$ 1,488,728 at December 31, 2010 (R$ 1,328,274 in 2009), which await a
final decision in the administrative and court levels. The difference in value is due to new proceedings, change in loss estimate for
certain lawsuits and inclusion of Globex subsidiary amounts..

* ISS, Municipal Real Estate Tax (“IPTU"), Property Transfer Tax (“ITBI”) and other — These are related to assessments on third party
retention, tax payment discrepancies, fines due to non-compliance of ancillary obligations and sundry taxes, the amount of which is
R$ 140,046 (R$ 68,199 at December 31, 2009) and await administrative and court decisions. The difference in value is due to the
new proceedings and inclusion of Globex subsidiary amounts.

¢ Other contingencies — These are related to administrative lawsuits and lawsuits under the civil court scope, the special civil court,
the Consumer Protection Agency (“PROCON") (in many states), the Weight and Measure Institute (“IPEM”), the National Institute of
Metrology, the Standardization and Industrial Quality Agency (“INMETRO”) and the National Health Surveillance Agency
(“ANVISA”), amounting to R$ 128,761 (R$ 79,510 at December 31, 2009).

At the Globex subsidiary, contingent liabilities of other lawsuits are likely to be considered possible losses, and which therefore are not

recorded, the amount totaled R$ 21,515 at December 31, 2010 (R$ 127,335 in 2009). The difference between 2009 and 2010 in the

amount is explained by the reclassification of the likelihood of losses to probable in Globex.

« Occasional adverse changes in the expectation of risk of the deferred lawsuits may require additional provision for contingencies to be

set up. The aforementioned lawsuits were not included in REFIS (Tax recovery program).
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19. Provision for contingencies  (Continued)

e) Appeal and restricted advances (restricted deposit escrow)

The Company is challenging the payment of certain taxes, contributions and labor-related obligations and has made court escrow
deposits (restricted advances) of equivalent amounts pending final legal decisions, in addition to collateral deposits related to provisions
for judicial suits.

The Company recorded in its assets amounts related to judicial deposits not linked to the claims recorded in liabilities. Provision for
contingencies for claims with judicial deposits directly linked, are presented net of the judicial deposits.

f) Guarantees

The Company has granted collateral to some civil, labor and tax lawsuits, as shown below:

Lawsuits Real Estate Equipment Guarantee Total
Tax 733,151 1,610 1,500,528 2,235,289
Labor 6,156 3,182 69,791 79,129
Civil and other 31,633 2,205 34,051 67,889
Total 770,940 6,997 1,604,370 2,382,307

g) Taxaudits

In accordance with current legislation in Brazil, federal, state and municipal taxes and payroll charges are subject to audit by the related
authorities, for periods that vary between 5 and 30 years.

20. Leasing transactions

a) Commitments and Liabilities

2010 2009
Gross liabilities from operating leases - minimum
lease payments
Less than 1 year 762,313 466,962
Over 1 year and less than 5 years 2,172,858 1,468,056
Over 5 years 4,003,939 2,184,339
6,939,110 4,119,357
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20. Leasing transactions (Continued)

a) Commitments and Liabilities (Continued)

The information above is related to the minimum non-cancellable obligations, related to the lease agreement term. These obligations are
shown in the chart above, as required by IAS 17.

The most of contracts have contract termination clauses by paying fines, ranging from one to six months of rent or 10% of the total of
minimum payments. The obligation of the Company for termination of all contracts as of December 31, 2010 would be R$ 421,517 (R$
116,741 in 2009).

(i) Contingent payments

The Management considers additional rental payments as contingent payments, which vary between 0.5% and 2.5% of sales.

2010 2009 2008

Contingent payments recognized as
expenses during the year 433,340 314,920 320,494

(i) Option conditions to renew or purchase and adjustment clauses
The terms of the agreements for the year ended December 31, 2010 vary between 5 and 25 years and the agreements may be
renewed according to the law of renewal action. The agreements have periodic adjustment clauses according to inflation indexes.
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20. Leasing transactions (Continued)
b) Financial leases

Leasing agreements classified as finances leases amount to R$ 292,747 in 2010 (R$ 257,606 in 2009), according to the chart below
(see Note 17):

2010 2009
Liabilities from financial leasing - minimum lease payments
Less than 1 year 64,467 38,711
Over 1 year and less than 5 years 63,116 45,298
Over 5 years 56,971 38,894
Present value of financial lease agreements 184,554 122,903
Future financing charges 108,193 134,703
Gross amount of financial lease agreements 292,747 257,606
2010 2009 2008
Contingent payments recognized as expenses
during the period 5,300 5,043 3,824

The term of the agreements in the year ended at December 31, 2010 vary between 5 and 25 years and the agreements may be
renewed according to the law of renewal action.

2010 2009
Minimum rentals 395,309 415,771
Contingent rentals 222,020 136,689
Sublease rentals (120,942) (83,998)
496,387 468,462

On October 3, 2005, the Company sold 60 properties (28 Extra hypermarkets and 32 Pao de Acglcar supermarkets), the net book value
of which was R$ 1,017,575 to the Peninsula Fund (controlled by Diniz Family). The Company received R$ 1,029,000. The sold
properties were leased back to the Company for a twenty-year period, and may be renewed for two further consecutive periods of 10
years each. As a result of this sale, the Company paid R$ 25,517, at the inception date of the store lease agreement, as an initial fee for
entering into a long term contract. The initial fee was recorded in deferred charges and is being amortised through the lease agreement
of the related stores.
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20. Leasing transactions (Continued)
b) Financial lease (Continued)

Pursuant to the agreement of this transaction, the Company and Casino Group received a “golden share”, which provided to both veto
rights that ensure the properties will be used in the manner the parties intend for the term of the lease agreement.

The Company is permitted to rescind the lease agreement, paying a penalty of 10% of the remaining rents limited to 12 months.
21. Balances and transactions with related partie s

The transactions with related parties shown below result mainly from the operations the Company and its subsidiaries maintain among
themselves and with other related entities and were substantially carried out at market prices, terms and conditions.

a) Sales and purchases of goods

Balances and transactions resulting from the sale and purchase of goods to the supply of stores by the Company's warehouses, made

at cost.
2010 2009 2008
Suppliers:
Grupo Assai - - 8,787
FIC 8,879 - -
8,879 - 8,787
Purchases:
Grupo Assai - - 200,132
- - 200,132
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21. Balances and transactions with related parties

b) Other transactions

Assets
Casino
FIC
Pao de Agucar Ind. e Comércio
Sendas S.A.
Banco Investcred Unibanco S.A.
Other intercompany balances - Globex
Casas Bahia Comercial Ltda
Other

Liabilities
Fundo Peninsula
Grupo Assai
Galeazzi e Associados
Banco InvestcredUnibanco S.A.
Casas Bahia Comercial Ltda
Other

Income statement

Casino

Peninsula Fund

Casas Bahia Comercial Ltda
Diniz Group

Sendas S.A.

Assai Group

Galeazzi e Associados

FIC/Banco Investcred
Globex Adm de Consorcio Ltda.
Other

(Continued)
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2010 2009
5,519 5,096

- 9,141

1,171 1,171
17,824 17,824
120,605 -
31,122 85,418
176,241 118,650
(14,894) (14,160)
- (189)

(6,886) (12,788)
(231,203) -
(21,308) (4,597)
(274,291) (31,734)
(5,225) (6,020)
(142,632) (134,978)
(67,416) -
(6,346) (13,511)
(58,566) (9,753)
- (3,947)

- (4,599)
(13,832) -
(8,400) (17,382)
(302,417) (190,190)

Casino : Technical Assistance Agreement, signed between the Company and Casino on July 21, 2005, whereby, through the annual
payment of US$ 2,727 thousand, it provides for the transfer of knowledge in the administrative and financial area. This agreement is
effective for 7 years, with automatic renewal for an indeterminate term. This agreement was approved at the Extraordinary General

Meeting held on August 16, 2005.

Peninsula Fund : 58 real estate leasing agreements with the Company, 1 property with Novasoc, 1 property with Sé and 1 property with

Barcelona.

Diniz Family : Leasing of 15 properties for the Company and 2 properties for Sendas Distribuidora.
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21. Balances and transactions with related partie s (Continued)

b) Other transactions (Continued)

Sendas S.A .: Leasing of 57 properties for Sendas Distribuidora.

Assai Group : Comprise the purchase transactions with the following companies: Vitalac Ind. de Laticinios Ltda., Laticinios Vale do
Pardo Ltda., Dica Deodapolis Ind. e Com. Alimenticios Ltda., Laticinios Corumbiara Ltda., Vencedor Ind. e Com. de Produtos Lacteos
Ltda., Centro de Distribuicdo Hortmix Comércio Imp. Exp. Ltda., Laticinios Flor de Rond6nia Ltda., and leasing of five properties of
Assai’s prior shareholders (Assai family) with Barcelona.

Galeazzi e Associados : Consulting services rendered related to the management of operations in the city of Rio de Janeiro (Sendas
Distribuidora).

FIC/Banco Investcred: The impact in the income statement related to Banco Investcred represents: (i) refund of expenses deriving
from the infrastructure agreement, such as: expenses related to cashiers payroll, and commissions on the sale of financial products (ii)
financial expenses related to the receivables discount (named “financial rebate”) and (iii) revenues from property rental.

E-HUB: Former owners of E-Hub assigned 55% of their interest in this company, besides paying R$ 20,000 to mature at January 8,
2013, in exchange for 6% of PF.com. subsidiary. GPA granted a loan of R$ 10,000 to executives to mature at January 8, 2018, duly
restated by inflation.

Casas Bahia: Globex maintains lease agreements for warehouses, office and administrative buildings with the Management of Casas
Bahia Comercial Ltda.

Other: Expenses paid by the Company to its subsidiaries or other associated companies.

Other related parties not described in this note did not present balances or transactions in the periods.
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22. Management compensation

The expenses related to the compensation of management’s key personnel (Officers appointed pursuant to Bylaws and Board of
Directors), which were recorded in the income statement for the years ended at December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, were as follows:

2010 2009 2008

Amounts recorded as expenses 89,583 66,834 35,430
From these totals, 17%, 24%, and 21.3% of the 2010, 2009 and 2008 expenses, respectively, refer to the share based payment
footnote.

23. Taxes and social contribution payable

The amounts payable were as follows:

2010 2009
Current
PIS and COFINS payable 240,847 172,131
Provision for income and social contribution taxes 58,006 82,936
Other 46,614 38,022
345,467 293,089
Taxes paid by installments
Tax Installment Law 11,491/09 970 -
INSS 36,013 45,319
CPMF 14,171 9,682
Other 3,887 3,604
55,041 58,605
Total current 400,508 351,694
Noncurrent
Taxes paid by installments
Tax installment payment law 1,281,132 1,043,046
INSS 54,026 115,069
CPMF 21,257 25,480
Other 20,373 21,984
Total noncurrent 1,376,788 1,205,579
TOTAL 1,777,296 1,557,273

(i) INSS and CPMF- The Company discontinued the discussion on certain lawsuits and filed application for the Special Tax Payment Installment
Program (“PAES”), pursuant to Law 10,680/2003. These installment payments are subject to the Long-Term Interest Rate — TILP and may be
payable within 120 months.
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23. Taxes and social contribution payable

(i) Other — The Company filed application to participate in the State and Municipal Tax Payment Installments Program (PPI). These taxes
are adjusted by SELIC and may be payable within 120 months.

(iii) Tax Installments, Law 11,941/09 — The Law 11,941 was enacted on May 27, 2009, which among others, amends the federal tax laws
related to the tax debt payment by installments, granting reduction of fines and interest rates for those adhering the program (the
“REFIS program”).

The Company is party to several lawsuits and through the aforementioned law, opted for reducing its tax exposure, with the benefits of
reducing fines and interest rates and a financing plan of up to 180 months. The law also allows that remaining tax loss carryforwards
and judicial deposits related to the lawsuits be utilized to reduce the balance to be paid in installments.

During 2009, the Company and its legal advisors evaluated all of the administrative proceedings and lawsuits held by the Company
with RFB — Brazil's Internal Revenue Service, including tax and social security debts evaluated for risks of possible and/or probable
losses and opted for the partial inclusion of lawsuits in the installment program.

Installment balance: 2010 2009

Federal taxes 1,055,410 987,040
Social security 101,667 83,144
Lawsuits with probable risks 1,157,077 1,070,184
Federal taxes 297,285 254,170
Social security 137,965 137,965
Lawsuits with possible risks 435,250 392,135
Offsets due to judicial deposits and tax losses (453,958) (440,027)
Adjustments of the period 142,763 20,754
Installment balance 1,281,132 1,043,046
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23. Taxes and social contribution payable  (Continued)

(i) Tax Installments, Law 11,941/09 (Continued)

Federal taxes

The Supreme Federal Court (STF) recently decided on the constitutionality of the COFINS increase (Law 9,718/99). The decision was
unfavorable to the Company. As result, the Company opted to adhere to the installment payments enacted by Law 11,941/09.
Additionally, some other claims related to the discussion over tax credits over financial expenses and taxation over other revenue
were included in the program. The consolidated amount, net of fine and interest reduction, is R$ 1,055,410 as of December 31, 2010
(R$ 987,040 as of December 31, 2009).

Social security

The Company filed a declaratory action of absence of legal relationship, concerning the contribution to SEBRAE, as enacted by Law
8,029/90, in order to obtain the acknowledgement of the restated credit for offsetting with balances payable to SESC (Social Service for
Trade) and SENAC (National Service for Commercial Training), without the limitation of a 30% limit. An action was also filed over the
constitutionality of the FUNRURAL (Rural Workers’ Assistance Fund) for companies located in urban areas. The consolidated amount
included in REFIS program, net of fine and interest remission is R$ 101,667.

Other lawsuits with possible risks included in the REFIS program

¢ Tax claims — The Company received assessments referring to the controversy over the deductibility of certain expenses and
provisions, extemporaneous credits not subject to taxation when calculating income tax and social contribution and administrative
proceedings related to requests for PIS and COFINS credit offset. Discrepancies are added to this point in relation to the

calculation bases of these contributions and those verified by tax authorities. The consolidated amount involved in these lawsuits is
R$ 297,285 as of December 31, 2010 (R$ 254,170 as of December 31, 2009).
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23. Taxes and social contribution payable  (Continued)

(i) Tax Installments, Law 11,941/09 (Continued)
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¢ Social security — The Company received assessment notices related to social security debt offsets deriving from legal process
credits. The consolidated amount involved is R$ 137,965 as of December 31, 2010 (R$ 83,144 as of December 31, 2009).

The results deriving from additions to provisions, net of gains from fines and interest reductions, accounted for a net expense of

R$ 43,115 in 2010 (R$ 342,634 in 2009) (see Note 27).
24. Income and social contribution taxes

a) Income and social contribution tax expense reconciliation

Income before income taxes

Employee's profit sharing
Earnings before income tax

Income and social contribution taxes at nominal rate (*)

Net result REFIS (**)

Penalty tax

Equity pickup

Fair value of assets arising from business combination

Other permanent differences (non-deductible) and social contribution
tax, net

Effective income tax
Income tax for the year
Current
Deferred

Income tax and social contribution expenses

Effective rate

(*) — The Company does not pay social contribution (9%) based on a claim that was won in the past, which reduces the income taxes to 25% in this entity.

(**) — Gains related to reduction on penalties and interest on REFIS program (note 23) which are not taxable generating permanent difference.
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2010 2009 2008
813,403 732,559 510,759
(35,110) (32,505) (22,173)
778,293 700,054 488,586

(233,488) (210,016) (166,119)
- 113,636 -
(1,557) (1,936) -
10,350 1,624 (165)
113,392 - -
19,044

24,745 2,678
(86,558) (94,015) (147,240)
(52,052) (68,081) (36,347)
(34,506) (25,934) (110,893)
(86,558) (94,015) (147,240)
11.1% 13.4% 30.1%
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24. Income and social contribution taxes  (Continued)

b) Breakdown of deferred income and social contribution taxes

2010 2009

Deferred income and social contribution taxes
Tax loss carryforwards (i) 720,530 578,101
Provision for contingencies and other 233,038 118,850
Provision for interest rate swaps (calculated on a cash

basis under Tax Law). 26,349 15,873
Allowance for doubtful accounts 66,507 9,114
Goodwill in non-merged companies 57,410 50,701
Income tax without Law 11,638/07 effects 5,351 10,882
Goodwill in non-amortised (83,073) (36,323)
Fair value in bussiness combination 65,955 -
Deferred income tax in bussiness combination 121,541 121,541
Goodwill in merged companies - Casino 104,903 208,000
Others 180,194 237,169
Deferred income and social contribution tax assets 1,498,705 1,313,908
Provision for deferred income tax realization (106,196) (106,196)
Total deferred income tax noncurrent assets 1,392,509 1,207,712
Business combination - Casas Bahia (1,006,049) -
Business combination - Assai (16,681) (10,471)
Business combination - Globex (244,865) (163,971)
Provision for derred income tax on unamortized goddwill (34,331) (34,331)
Other (23,407) 501
Total deferred income tax noncurrent liabilities (1,325,333) (208,182)

(i) Tax loss carryforwards are related to the acquisition of Sé and those generated by the subsidiary Sendas Distribuidora. The realization of these assets net of the
valuation allowance is considered probable following tax planning measures.

The Company annually reviews its scenarios related to these deferred tax assets. The Company’s assumptions to record deferred tax
assets include (i) viable tax planning strategies, (ii) the fact that losses carried forward do not expire according to Brazilian law, and (iii)
the likelihood of utilization in the foreseeable period.
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24. Income and social contribution taxes  (Continued)

b) Breakdown of deferred income and social contribution taxes (continued)

Based on these studies, the Company expects to recover these credits as follows:
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R$

2011 239,446

2012 162,775

2013 215,532

2014 206,353

Over 60 months 538,423

Total 1,392,509

c) Changes in deferred income and social contribution taxes
2010 2009 2008

At January 1 999,530 1,040,438 1,151,332
Benefit (expense) for the period (34,506) (25,934) (110,893)
Globex (acquisition) 43,422 208,713 -
NCB (acquisition) (725,060) - -
BARTIRA (advantageous agreements) (141,441)
Installment taxes - (180,757) -
Goodwill in non-amortised (46,750) (31,460) -
Other 28,019 (11,470) )
At December 31 67,176 999,530 1,040,438

Consistent with the REFIS program instituted by the Brazilian tax authorities in 2009 (see Note 23) which allowed the Company to offset
certain other tax liabilities with income tax loss carryforwards, the Company offset the amount of R$ 212,217 against such other tax

liabilities.
25. Shareholders’ equity

a) Share capital

The subscribed and paid-up capital, as of December 31, 2010, is represented by 257,774 (254,852 in 2009) in thousands of registered
shares with no par value, of which 99,680 (same in 2009) in thousands of common shares, 154,745 in thousands of class A preferred
shares (143,878 in 2009) and 3,349 in thousands of class B preferred shares (11,294 in 2009).

The Company is authorized to increase its capital stock up to the limit of 400,000 (in thousands of shares), regardless of the amendment
to the Company’s Bylaws, by resolution of the Board of Directors, which will establish the issue conditions.

At the Board of Directors Meeting held at March 15, 2010 the board members approved the increase of capital by R$ 3,311, by means
of issue of 215 thousands of class A preferred shares, in compliance with the exercise of stock options according to the Company's

Stock Option Plan, observing the limit of authorized capital.
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25. Shareholders’ equity (Continued)
a) Share capital (Continued)

At the Annual and Special Shareholders’ Meeting held at April 29, 2010, the shareholders approved the capital increase in the amount
of R$ 67,126 by means of issue of 1,112 thousands of new class A preferred shares, at the issue price of R$ 60.39 per share. Shares
will be capitalized to the benefit of the Company’s controlling shareholder, Wilkes Participa¢gfes S.A.

At the Board of Directors Meeting held at June 9, 2010 the board members approved the capital increase in the amount of R$ 25,988,
referring to the issue of 1,275 thousands class A preferred shares, in compliance with the exercise of stock options according to the
Company’s Stock Option Plan, observing the limit of authorized capital.

At the Board of Directors Meeting held at July 12, 2010, the board members approved the increase of capital by R$ 940, by means of
issue of 67 thousands class A preferred shares, in compliance with the exercise of stock options pursuant to the Company’s Stock
Option Plan.

At the Board of Directors meeting held at October 28, 2010, the board members resolved to increase capital by R$ 3,613, by means of
issue of 162 thousands class A preferred shares, in compliance with the exercise of stock options according to the Company’s Stock
Option Plan, observing the limit of authorized capital.

At the Board of Directors Meeting held at December 15, 2010, the board members resolved to increase capital by R$ 1,267, by means
of issue of 91 thousands class A preferred shares, in compliance with the exercise of the stock options according to the Company’s
Stock Option Plan, observing the limit of authorized capital.
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25. Shareholders’ equity (Continued)

b) Capital stock

Change in capital stock and number of shares:

Number of shares - thousands

Capital stock Preferred Common
At December 31, 2008 4,450,725 135,569 99,680
Capitalization of reserves 135,225 - -
Profit 15,026 - -
Special Reserve Goodwill 88,780 2,197 -
Private subscription of shares 664,362 16,611 -
Stock option
Series VIII 6,285 192 -
Series IX 326 11 -
Series X 8,582 223 -
Series Al Silver 233 9 -
Series A2 Silver 5,205 193 -
Series A2 Gold 2 167 -
At December 3]_’ 2009 5,374,751 155,172 99,680

Number of shares - thousands

Capital stock Preferred Common

At December 31, 2009 5,374,751 155,172 99,680
Profit 85,480 - -
Special Reserve Goodwill 83,908 1,112 -
Stock option -
Series IX 7,441 244 -
Series X 202 6 -
Series Al Silver 14,274 579 -
Series Al Gold 2 164 -
Series A2 Silver 4,201 156 -
Series A2 Gold 1 119 -
Series A3 Silver 5,439 198 -
Series A3 Gold 3 178 -
Series A4 Silver 3,556 76 -
Series A4 Gold 1 90 -

At December 31, 2010 5,579,259 158,094 99,680
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25. Shareholders’ equity (Continued)

b) Capital stock

Treasury Shares

At the Board of Directors Meeting held at February 19, 2010, the board members approved the conversion of 137 thousands class A
preferred shares held in treasury in equal number of class B preferred shares, as a result of the auction of Globex’s public tender offer
(OPA).

c¢) Share rights

d)

Class A preferred shares (“PNA”) are non-voting and entitle the following rights and advantages to its holders: (i) priority in the
reimbursement of capital should the Company be liquidated; (ii) priority in the receipt of a non-cumulative annual minimum dividend of
R$ 0.08 per share; (iii) right to receive a dividend 10% greater than the dividend attributed to common shares, including the preferred
dividend paid pursuant to item (ii) above for the purposes of calculating the respective amount.

Class B (“PNB") preferred shares will entitle the following rights to its holders: (a) a fixed dividend of R$ 0.01 per share; and (b) priority
in reimbursement should the Company be liquidated. PNB shares shall not have voting right. PNB shares may be converted into PNA
shares, at the 1:1 ratio, observing the following terms: (i) 32% of PNB shares were converted at September 28, 2009; (ii) 28% of total
PNB shares were converted into PNA shares at January 7, 2010; (iii) 20% of total PNB shares were converted into PNA shares at July
7, 2010, and (iv) 20% of total PNB shares were converted into PNA shares at January 7, 2011.

Capital reserve — Special goodwill reserve

This reserve was generated by the corporate restructuring process and represents the amount of future tax benefit to be earned through
the amortisation of the goodwill merged. The special reserve portion corresponding to the benefit earned may be capitalized at the end
of each fiscal year to the benefit of the acquiring shareholders, with the issuance of new shares.
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25. Shareholders’ equity (Continued)

d) Capital reserve — Special goodwill reserve (Continued)

There was a transaction in 2006, where the merger of the prior holding company of Grupo Pao de Agucar, resulted in a deferred income
tax benefit for CBD in the amount of R$ 517,294. The effects of this transaction were the deferred tax asset of R$ 104,903 (R$ 208,001
in 2009), and a “Special goodwill reserve” in shareholders’ equity (R$ 344,606 in 2010 and R$ 428,551 in 2009), which will be converted
in shares and delivered to the shareholders’, according to the cash benefit of the deferred tax merged.

The capital increase will be subject to the preemptive right of noncontrolling shareholders, in the proportion of their respective interest,
by type and class, at the time of the issuance, and the amounts paid in the year related to such right will be directly delivered to the
controlling shareholder.

At April 29, 2010, at the Annual and Special Shareholders’ Meeting, the shareholders approved to increase the Company's capital, in
the amount of R$ 83,908, by capitalizing the special goodwill reserve.

Out of this amount, R$ 16,782 were capitalized without issuing new shares, thus, to the benefit of all the Company’s shareholders and
R$ 67,126 were capitalized to the benefit of the Company’s controlling shareholder, i.e., Wilkes Participagbes S.A., pursuant to Article 7
of CVM Rule 319/99, by means of issue of 1,112 thousands new class A preferred shares of the Company.

e) Granted options

Refers to recognized share-based payments made to management of the Company.

f) Revenue reserve

(i) Legal reserve: is formed based on appropriations from retained earnings of 5% of annual net income, before any appropriations, and
limited to 20% of the capital.
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25. Shareholders’ equity (Continued)

f) Profit reserve (continued)

(ii) Expansion reserve: was approved by the shareholders to reserve funds to finance additional capital investments and working capital
through the appropriation of up to 100% of the net income remaining after the legal appropriations and supported by capital budget,
approved at the shareholders’ meeting.

Under the Ordinary and Extraordinary Shareholders Meeting held on 29 April 2010 approved the proposal from the administration regarding
the capital increase, amounting to R$ 85,480, without issuing new shares through the capitalization of the Reserve Expansion and Retained
Earnings based on the Capital Budget, both approved in the Annual General Meeting of April 30, 2009.

g) CBD Share-based payment plans

(i) Original stock option plan

The Company offers a stock option plan for the purchase of preferred shares to management and employees. The shares issued
under the Plan afford the beneficiaries the same rights granted to the shareholders of the Company. The management of this plan
was attributed to a committee designated by the Board of Directors.

The strike price for each lot of options is, at least, 60% of the weighted average price of the preferred shares traded in the week the
option is granted.

The options vest in the following terms: (i) 50% in the last month of third year subsequent to the grant date (1st tranche) and (ii) up to
50% in the last month of fifth year subsequent to the grant date (2nd tranche), this second tranche is subject to restriction on sale until
the beneficiary’s retirement, as per a formula defined in the regulation.

Shares subject to limitation of sales (Q), upon the options exercise are calculated using the following formula:

0= (Q1*Pm) - (Q1*Pe)
Where: - Pm

Q= Number of shares to be encumbered by limitation of sales.

Q1= 50% of the Company total shares on the granting date.

Pm = Company share market price on the exercise date.

Pe = Share original exercise price, determined on the granting date, observing the terms of the Plan.
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(i) Original stock option plan (Continued)

The option price is updated by reference to the General Market Price Index — IGP-M variation to the date of its actual exercise, less
dividends attributed for the period.

(i) New Stock option plan

An amendment to the Company’s Stock Option Plan was approved at the Extraordinary General Meeting, held on December 20,
2006, This plan was originally approved at the Extraordinary General Meeting held at April 28, 1997.

As of 2007, options issued to management and employees under the preferred stock option plan will have the following conditions:

Shares are classified into two types: Silver and Gold, and the quantity of Gold-type shares may be decreased and/or increased, at
the discretion of the Plan Management Committee, in the course of 35 months following the granting date.

The exercise price for each Silver-type share will correspond to the average of the closing price of the Company’s preferred shares
that occurred over the last 20 trading sessions of BOVESPA, prior to the date on which the Committee approved the grant of the
option, with a discount of 20%. The price per each Gold-type share will correspond to R$ 0.01 per share and the granting of these
options are additional to the Silver options, it is not possible to grant or exercise of Gold options alone.

The Silver and Gold options shall be effective as of the date of the respective agreement. The number of shares resulting from the
Silver option is fixed (established in the agreement). The number of shares resulting from the Gold option is variable, establishing on

the granting date a number of shares that may be increased or decreased, according to the Return on Invested Capital (“ROIC")
verified at the end of the 36th month as of the granting date.
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25. Shareholders’ equity (Continued)

g) CBD Share-based payment plans (Continued)

(i) New Stock option plan (continued)

The previous plan series are still effective until the respective maturity dates.
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At the Board of Directors Meeting held at May 7, 2010, the increase of the global limit of shares allocated to the Company's General
Stock Option Plan was approved, from 10,118 thousand class A preferred shares to 11,618 thousand shares, an increase of 1,500

thousand new class A preferred shares.

2009
Weighted
Weighted average
average exercise remaining Aggregate

Shares price contractual term intrinsic value
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 3,158 22.38 1.03
Granted during the year 1,361 13.99
Exercised during the year (796) 25.91
Forfeited during the year (48) 32.91
Expired during the year (14) 33.44
Outstanding at the end of the year 3,661 18.08 1.26 168,826
Vested or expected to vest at December 31, 2009 3,553 18.25 1.74 163,121
Exercisable at December 31, 2009 2,529 20.03 1.03 110,745

2010
Weighted
Weighted average
average exercise remaining Aggregate

Shares price contractual term intrinsic value
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 3,661 18.08 1.26
Granted during the year 657 9.29
Exercised during the year (1,810) 19.40
Forfeited during the year (37) 36.14
Expired during the year - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 2,471 15.60 1.77 132,532
Vested or expected to vest at December 31, 2010 2,471 15.60 1.77 132,532
Exercisable at December 31, 2010 1,161 20.03 1.03 103,518
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25. Shareholders’ equity (Continued)

g) CBD Share-based payment plans (Continued)

(ii) New Stock option plan (continued)

According to the attributions provided for in the Stock Option Plan rules, the Management Committee of the Plan resolved to anticipate
the exercise date of the first tranche of series VII option to December 13, 2005. At March 15, 2007, VI series was terminated; at June 10,
2008, series VIl was terminated, at August 5, 2009 series VIl was terminated and at June 9, 2010, series IX was terminated.

According to the attributions provided for in the Stock Option Plan rules, the Management Committee of the Plan at April 29, 2010
approved the accelerator at 1.5%, referring to A1 Series.

At December 31, 2010, the Company preferred share price at BOVESPA was R$ 69.30 per share.
At December 31, 2010 there were 232,586 treasury preferred shares which may be used in the exercise of the shares in the plan.

(iii) Consolidated information on the stock option plans - CBD

The chart below show the maximum percentage of dilution to which current shareholders will eventually be subject to, in the event of
exercise of all options granted:

2010 2009 2009
Number of shares 257,774 254,852 235,249
Balance of granted series in effect 2,471 3,675 3,158
Maximum percentage of dilution 0.95% 1.42% 1.32%

The fair value of each option granted is estimated on the granting date, by using the options pricing model “Black&Scholes” taking into
account the following assumptions: (a) expectation of dividends of 0.72% (0.89% - 2009), (b) expectation of volatility of nearly 40.47%
(49.37% - 2009) and (c) the risk-free weighted average interest rate of 9.66% (10.75% - 2009). The expectation of average life of series
IX and V is 5 years, whereas for series A1, A2 and A3 the expectation is 3 years.
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25. Shareholders’ equity (Continued)

g) CBD Share-based payment plans (Continued)

(i) New Stock option plan (continued)

IFRS 2 — Share-based Payment determines that the effects of share-based payment transactions are recorded in income and in the
Company’s balance sheet. The amounts recorded as income of Parent Company and Consolidated at December 31, 2010 were
R$ 27,920 (R$ 19,621 in 2009).

h) Minimum mandatory dividends

At August 3, 2009, the Board of Directors approved the adoption by the Company of a new dividend policy, consisting of the payment of
interim dividends on a quarterly basis, payment of which shall be approved at the Shareholders' Meeting, pursuant to Paragraph 3,
Article 35 of the Company’s Bylaws. The amount and payment dates of quarterly advances will be proposed annually by the Company.
Quarterly payments will be made against retained earnings. This present policy does not change the minimum mandatory dividend to be
paid to shareholders pursuant to the law and the Company's Bylaws. Each quarterly payment will be approved by the Board of Directors,
following the approval of the financial statements for the corresponding quarter. Payments may be suspended by Board of Directors
according to the economic-financial condition of the Company at that time.

At February 17, 2010, the Management proposed the dividends to be paid for resolution of the Annual General Meeting, calculated as

follows, considering the dividends prepaid to its shareholders in the amount of R$ 58,408 in 2010. The dividend payable at December
31, 2010 is R$ 114,654 (R$ 94,491 in 2009).
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25. Shareholders’ equity (Continued)

h) Minimum mandatory dividends _ (continued)

Net income for the year
Legal reserve

Dividend calculation basis
Minimum mandatory dividends - 25%

Dividends of R$0.53448 per common share
Dividends of R$0.58793 per preferred share class A
Dividends of R$0.01 per preferred share class B
Dividends of R$0.627728 per common share
Dividends of R$0.690501 per preferred share class A

26. Segment information

Management groups the entities recently acquired into four separate segments.
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2010 2009
722,422 591,580
(36,121) (29,579)
686,301 562,001
171,575 140,500

- 53,277

- 87,156

- 67
62,572 -
109,003 -

« Retail — Includes the banners P&o de Acucar, CompreBem, Extra, Sendas and explores the retail activity;

* Home Appliances — Includes the banner Ponto Frio and Casas Babhia;
e Cash & Carry - Includes the banner Assai;

e E-Commerce - Includes the websites www.pontofrio.com.br, www.extra.com.br and www.casasbahia.com.br

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss and is measured consistently with
operating profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements. Company financing (including finance costs and finance income) and

income taxes are managed on a segment basis.
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The Company is engaged in operations of retail stores located in 20 states and the Federal District of Brazil. Operating segments are
reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker who has been identified as the
chief executive officer.
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26. Segment information (Continued)
The chief operating decision-maker allocates resources and assesses performance by reviewing results and other information related to
four segments. These four segments are identified based on the decentralization of management of the businesses. These three segments
include the Retail segment which is comprised of the Company’s legacy stores and fully integrated acquisitions operating principally under
the trade names “Pao de Agucar”, “Comprebem”, “Extra”, “Extra Perto”, “Extra Facil’, and “Sendas”, the Cash & Carry segment which
includes the Barcelona acquisition and operates under the trade name “Assai”, and the Home Appliances segment which includes the
Globex and Casas Bahia acquisitions and operates under the trade names “Ponto Frio”. Operating segments have not been aggregated to
form the reportable segments.
In 2010, the Company identified the e-commerce segment separate from the home appliances segment due to different strategy and
business management, which includes the web sites pontofrio.com.br, extra.com.br and casasbahia.com.br.
The Company measures the results of segments in IFRS using, among other measures, each segment’s operating profit, which includes
certain corporate overhead allocations. At times, the Company revises the measurement of each segment’s operating profit, including any
corporate overhead allocations, as dictated by the information regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker. When revisions are
made, the results of operating for each segment affected by the revisions is restated for all periods presented to maintain comparability.
Information for the segments is included in the following table:
At December 31, 2010
Cash & Home Elimination
Description Retail Carry E-Commerce  Appliances (a) TOTAL
Net sales 20,562,716 2,922,916 1,703,798 6,902,244 - 32,091,674
1,625,719
Gross profit 5,524,067 422,368 278,044 - 7,850,198
Depreciation and amortisation (336,357) (24,302) (2,219) (77,261) - (440,139)
Operating profit 1,244,601 67,942 215,746 73,616 - 1,601,905
Financial expenses (646,204) (53,647) (73,467) (381,381) - (1,154,699)
Financial revenue 290,116 7,244 395 33,943 - 331,698
Income before income and social contribution taxes 864,962 21,538 (2,682) (70,415) - 813,403
Income and social contribution taxes (105,383) (7,951) 5,333 21,443 - (86,558)
Current assets 6,742,456 725,622 518,760 6,812,134 (82,607) 14,716,365
Non-current assets 13,882,948 768,278 16,328 2,381,808 (1,832,979) 15,216,383
Current liabilities (5,352,448) (738,753) (594,368)  (4,559,843) 428,514  (10,816,898)
Non-current liabilities (7,098,372) (512,839) (545,558) (1,460,381) 85,070 (9,532,080)
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26. Segment information (Continued)
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At December 31, 2009

Cash & Home Elimination

Description Retail Carry E-Commerce Appliances (@) TOTAL

Net sales 18,524,197 1,981,779 625,529 2,118,759 (57,506) 23,192,758
Gross profit 4,965,236 291,278 102,164 397,780 (57,506) 5,698,952
Depreciation and amortisation (415,485) (12,126) (2,365) (25,483) (4,441) (459,900)
Operating profit 989,779 39,479 (17,619) (42,460) 12,443 981,622
Financial expenses (432,576) (10,616) (14,662) (43,327) ) (501,181)
Financial revenue 238,028 1,418 ) 10,584 (3,324) 246,706
Income before income and social contribution taxes 795,976 30,281 (18,408) (95,376) 20,086 732,559
Income and social contribution taxes (119,769) (14,329) 3,386 102,143 (65,446) (94,015)
Current assets 6,820,003 359,533 174,945 1,194,297  (149,030) 8,399,748
Non-current assets 8,398,775 334,735 22,782 1,045,447 372,566 10,174,305
Current liabilities (3,956,587) (375,323) (178,459) (1,316,162) (207,194) (6,033,725)
Non-current liabilities (5,066,601)  (181,765) (84,361)  (557,997) 7,121 (5,883,603)

At December 31, 2008
Cash & Home Elimination

Description Retail Carry E-Commerce Appliances @ TOTAL

Net sales 16,769,177 1,262,838 ) - ) 18,032,015
Gross profit 4,557,587 194,931 ) - ) 4,752,518
Depreciation and amortisation (437,397) (5,317) ) - ) (442,714)
Operating profit 799,524 43,287 ) - ) 842,811
Financial expenses (618,772) (4,880) ) - ) (623,652)
Financial revenue 290,991 1,095 ) ) ) 292,086
http://lwww.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1038572/@¥2B1411001900/cbdform20f2010.} 1/7/201:



cbdform20f2010.htn- Generated by SEC Publisher for SEC F

Income before income and social contribution taxes 497,122
Income and social contribution taxes (133,603)
Current assets 5,300,445
Non-current assets 7,979,402
Current liabilities (3,236,929)
Non-current liabilities (4,619,325)

39,502

(13,637)

254,616

292,420

(401,456)

(16,266)

(a) Eliminations are comprised of intercompany balances;

Entity wide information
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(25,865) 510,759
(147,240)

(6,043) 5,549,018
(102,239) 8,169,583
9,596 (3,628,789)
(4,635,591)

The Company operates primarily as a retailer of food, clothing, home appliances and other products. Total revenues are composed of the

following types of products:

Food
Non-Food
Other (*)
Total Sales

(*) Represents sales of gasoline and pharmacy items

2010 2009 2008
53.2% 80.2% 75.8%
43.0% 14.8% 17.3%

3.8% 5.0% 6.9%
100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
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27. Other operating expenses, net

Expenses 2010 2009 2008
Provision for probable lawsuits, net of gains from fine and interest remission - Law

11,941/09 (Note 21(iii)) (43.115) (387.843) -
Provision for lawsuits (272.574) -

VAT and other taxes writen-off (23.116) (358.973) -
Business combination expense (24.064) (52.557) -
Write-off restricted deposits - (29.838)

Installment taxes (77.263) - -
liability indemnity 29.649 - -
restructuring (8.039) - -
Loss on disposal of property and equipment (73.517) (23.288) (10.936)
Other (8.125)
Total non-operating expenses (492.039) (852.499) (19.061)
Income

Net Income Ital Agreement - 655.406 -
Gains resulting from arising purchase of a business combination 453.569

Reversal of provision for contingencies - PIS/ICOFINS - 107.532 -
Other 12.454 11.688

Total non-operating expenses revenues, net 466.023 774.626 -
Non operating (expenses) revenues, net (26.016) (77.873) (19.061)

(i) In view of the procedural progress of certain claims, the Company’s legal counsels changed the chances of loss from possible
to probable.
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28. Net financial expenses

Financial expenses
Financial charges — BNDES

Financial charges — Debentures

Interest on loan

Swap operations

Fair value of financial instruments

Capitalized interest

Charger on receivables securitization

Sale of credit card receivables

Financial charges on contingencies and taxes
Interest on financial leasing

Financial transaction taxes and bank services

Mutual interest on loan
Present value adjustment
Other financial expenses
Total financial expenses

Financial income
Interest on cash and cash equivalents
Fair value of financial instruments
Financial charges on taxes and judicial deposits
Interest accrued on installment sales
Present value adjustment
Other financial income
Total financial income
Net financial results

29. Private pension plan of defined contribution
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2010 2009 2008
(19.243) (18.288) (27.483)
(156.400) (91.202) (97.649)
(106.708) (83.703) (84.635)
(71.341) (50.011) (92.701)
(3.082) 38.731 (37.549)
9.580 12.426 31.723
(113.807) (106.931) (135.111)
(352.574) (18.249) -
(211.439) (146.051) (132.031)
(14.225) (3.821) (5.154)
(49.818) (23.807) (27.272)
- - (577)

(820) 122 (458)
(64.822) (10.397) (14.755)
(1.154.699) (501.181) (623.652)
144.326 142.353 184.449
57.344 51.018 49.072
90.435 42.606 39.732
7.863 5.362 23.708
(4.830) 307 (4.920)
36.560 5.060 45
331.698 246.706 292.086
(823.001) (254.475) (331.566)

In July 2007, the Company established a supplementary defined contribution private pension plan on behalf of its employees to be
managed by the financial institution Brasilprev Seguros e Previdéncia S.A. The Company provides monthly contributions on behalf of its
employees. Contributions made by the Company for the year ended at December 31, 2010, amounted to R$ 2,348 (R$ 1,960 in 2009), and
employees’ contributions amounted to R$ 3,462 (R$ 2,969 in 2009). The plan has 840 participants as of December 31, 2010 (861 in 2009).
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30. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period, excluding shares
issued in payment of dividends and treasury shares.

Equity instruments that will or may be settled in Company’s shares are included in the diluted earnings per share calculation only when their
settlement would have a dilutive impact on earnings per share.

In Brazil, preferred and common shares give different voting and liquidation rights.
Beginning in 2003, preferred shares are entitled to a dividend 10% greater than that distributed to the common shares. As such earnings
may be capitalized or otherwise appropriated, there can be no assurance that preferred shareholders will receive the 10% premium referred

to above, unless earnings are fully distributed, and, accordingly, earnings per share has been calculated for preferred shares.

The Company computes earnings per share by dividing the net income pertaining to each class of share by the weighted-average number
of the respective class of shares outstanding during the period.

The Company has issued employee stock options (Note 25), the dilutive effects of which are reflected in diluted earnings per share by
application of the "treasury stock" method.

Under the treasury stock method, earnings per share are calculated as if options were exercised at the beginning of the period, or at time of
issuance, if later, and as if the funds received were used to purchase the Company's own stock.

When the stock option exercise price is greater than the average market price of the preferred shares, diluted earnings per share are not

affected by the stock options.
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30. Earnings per share (Continued)

The table below presents the determination of net income available to common and preferred shareholders and weighted average common
and preferred shares outstanding used to calculate basic and diluted earnings per share for each of the years presented:

At December 31, 2010 At December 31, 2009
Preferred Common Total Preferred Common Total

Basic numerator

Actual dividend proposed 109,003 62,572 171,575 87,223 53,277 140,500

Basic allocated undistributed earnings 349,156 201,691 550,847 288,919 180,012 468,931

Allocated net income available for

common and preferred shareholders 458,159 264,263 722,422 376,142 233,289 609,431
Basic denominator (in thousands of shares)

Weighted_a\/erage number of shares 156,873 99,680 256,553 145,442 99,680 245,122

Basic earnings per thousand shares (R$) 2.92 2.65 2.59 2.34
Diluted numerator
Dividend proposed (accrued) 109,003 62,572 171,575 87,223 53,277 140,500
Diluted allocated undistributed earnings (loss) 349,156 201,691 550,847 288,919 180,012 468,931
Allocated net income (loss) available for

common and preferred shareholders 458,159 264,263 722,422 376,142 233,289 609,431
Diluted denominator
Weighted-average number of shares 156,873 99,680 256,553 145,442 99,680 245,122
Stock options 1,616 - 1,616 1,302 - 1,302
Put Options (Sendas) - - - 3,566 - 3,566
Diluted weighted average shares (in thousands) 158,489 99,680 258,169 150,310 99,680 249,990
Diluted earnings per thousand shares (R$) 2.89 2.65 2.50 2.34
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30. Earnings per share (Continued)

Basic numerator
Actual dividend proposed

Basic allocated undistributed earnings

Allocated net income available for

common and preferred shareholders

Basic denominator (in thousands of shares)

Weighted-average number of shares

Basic earnings per thousand shares (R$)

Diluted numerator
Dividend proposed (accrued)
Diluted allocated undistributed earnings (loss)

Allocated net income (loss) available for
common and preferred shareholders

Diluted denominator
Weighted-average number of shares
Stock options

Put Options (Sendas)

Diluted weighted average shares (in thousands)

Diluted earnings per thousand shares (R$)

At December 31, 2008
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Preferred Common Total

37,071 24,780 61,851
165,812 113,683 279,495
202,883 138,463 341,346
132,170 99,680 231,850

1.54 1.39
37,071 24,780 61,851
165,812 113,683 279,495
202,883 138,463 341,346
132,170 99,680 231,850
3,566 - 3,566
135,736 99,680 235,416

1.49 1.39
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31. Insurance coverage

Coverage at December 31, 2010 is considered sufficient by Management to meet possible losses and is summarized as follows:

Insured assets Covered risks Amount insured
Property, equipment and inventories Assigning profit 13,112,855
Profit Loss of profits 2,395,808
Vehicles and other Losses and damages 229,520

In addition, the Company maintains specific policies referring to civil liability and Directors & Officers liability amounting to R$ 139,860. The
aforementioned information was not reviewed by independent auditors.

The scope of our auditors work does not include the review of the sufficiency of the insurance coverage, which was assessed and
evaluated as to its adequacy by the Company's Management.

32. Subsequent events
At January 11, 2011, NCB and Ital Seguros S.A. (“ltauseg”) entered into an Addendum to the Operational Services Agreement related to

the sale of extended warranties, effective until December 31, 2015 renewable for three years. NCB received from Itauseg on January 20,
2011 the amount of R$ 260,000.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Globex Utilidades S.A.
Rio de Janeire RJ- Brazil

1. We have audited the consolidated balance sheelpbis Utilidades S.A. and its subsidiaries (the fiany”)as of December 31, 2009, :
the consolidated comprehensive loss, changes meltsblders’ equity, and cash flows for the sbonth period then ended, all expresse
Brazilian reais. These financial statements ared¢bhponsibility of the Company’management. Our responsibility is to expresspaman or
these financial statements based on our auditsdid/eot audit the financial statements of Banccebtered Unibanco S.A. (“BINV”)the
Company's indirectly owned equity investee as ofédeber 31, 2009, which represents an investmeR$&B,030 thousand and for wh
the equity in earnings, included in net incomealtetd R$11,050 thousand for the smenth period ended December 31, 2009. T
statements were audited by other auditors, whqsmtréncluded an explanatory paragraph statingithatcordance with Circular No. 3,(
of Banco Central do Brasil (“BACEN"yjo comparative financial information was preseraeaf and for the year ended December 31,
as a result of the corporate restructuring and, ttie corporate restructuring, which occurred orcddeber 31, 2009s in the process
approval by the BACENhas been furnished to us, and our opinion on thenfiial statements expressed herein, insofar ratates to th
amounts included for BINV, is based solely on tepart of the other auditors. We did not audit timaricial statements of Financeira
CBD S.A. Crédito Financiamento e Investimento (“BJGhe Company's indirectly owned equity investee faBecember 31, 2009, whi
represents an investment of R$50,710 thousand.eThtagements were audited by other auditors, whegert included an explanatt
paragraph stating that the corporate restructusiigch occurred on December 31, 2009, is in thegss of approval by the BACEMa:
been furnished to us, and our opinion on the firdrstatements expressed herein, insofar as iteel® the amounts included for FIC
based solely on the report of the other auditors.

2. We conducted our audits in accordance with audistandards generally accepted in Public Companyodming Oversight Boa
(PCAOB). Those standards require that we plan anfbpn the audit to obtain reasonable assurancetaftigether the financial stateme
are free of material misstatement. An audit inctudensideration of internal control over finanai@porting as a basis for designing a
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstrimné not for the purpose of expressing an opioiothe effectiveness of the companies
internal control over financial reportingccordingly, we express no such opinion. An aulibancludes examining, on a test basis, evid
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the filmhstatements, assessing the accounting prirscied and significant estimates mad
management, as well as evaluating the overall Gigdustatement presentation. We believe that oditaprovide a reasonable basis for
opinion.
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3. The consolidated financial statements do not irelind comparative balance sheet as of Decemb@088, and the consolidated statem
of comprehensive income/loss, changes in sharetl@guity and cash flows for the simenth period then ended. Therefore,
consolidated financial statements do not constigutmmplete set of financial statements under ¢lggirements of International Finan
Reporting Standards as issued by the Internatiboedunting Standards Board.

4. In our opinion, based on our audits and the repbthe other auditors, and except for the omissibthe consolidated balance sheet ¢
December 31, 2008 and the consolidated statem&otsprehensive income/loss, changes in sharel®ldquity and cash flows for the six-
month period then ended, as described in the pirgquhragraph, such consolidated financial statésnpresent fairly, in all mater
respects, the financial position of the Company ismdubsidiaries as of December 31, 2009, anctcdmsolidated results of its operatic
changes in shareholders’ equity and its cash flmwshe sixmonth period then ended, in conformity with Inteimi@al Financial Reportir
Standards, as issued by the International Accogr8tandards Board.

5. The consolidated financial statements of the Comand its subsidiaries have been prepared for pepof consolidation by Compan
Brasileira de Distribuicdo S.A. as it relates te #mnual report on Form 20-F of Companhia Brasilé# Distribuicdo S.A..

/SIDELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU
Auditores Independentes

June 28, 2010
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